
From: Meira Goldberg
To: Peter Manuel; Miguel Angel Berlanga Fernández; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: ¡Música Oral del Sur, vol. 12 (2015)!
Date: Tuesday, January 26, 2016 4:24:53 PM

Muy estimados colegas,

Eso sería una oportunidad buenísima para muchas instituciones, por supuesto. ¿Quieres que sea en New York, Miguel?
(Porque también está Tony Dumas cerca de Canada, tengo contactos en Georgia - Javier Albo, tu alumno Peter - Kansas,
también está Walter en California...)

Encantada de apoyar en todo lo que puedo,

Meira
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Miguel A Berlanga <berlanga@ugr.es>
Date: 2016-01-24 5:52 GMT-05:00
Subject: Re: ¡Música Oral del Sur, vol. 12 (2015)!
To: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

Querida Meira: Tengo la posibilidad de pedir una beca para una estancia en los EEUU de hasta 6 meses, pagada por el
Estado español. He pensado si entre tú y Peter podríais ver la posibilidad de impartir yo algún curso, en inglés (sigo
mejorándolo, ahora ya en serio) entre los meses de febrero (20 o así) y junio de 2017, es decir dentro de un año aprox.
Podría ser sobre historia del flamenco a través de la danza (interacciones entre lo popular y lo teatral en el baile flamenco,
por ej.). Otros posibles títulos de cursos a impartir: flamenco y música gypsy, flamenco y músicas tradicionales de
Andalucía (comparación contextual y musical), el fenómeno del "ida y vuelta" entre España e (Ibero)América, cuestiones
sobre flamenco y jazz...

También, si estuviera en New York, podría buscarme yo impartir algún otro curso en alguna otra Universidad
(dependiendo del tiempo que me requirieran inicialmente). Quizá a Peter, si le pasas este correo, se le pueda ocurrir algo.
La cuestión es gestionar la beca yo desde aquí contando con alguna petición formal desde alguna universidad de fuera. Y
si me dan la beca, confirmaría mi viaje a lo largo de este cuatrimestre y entonces sería el momento de negociar, según los
intereses de la Universidad de acogida.

Un abrazo
Miguel A. Berlanga

El 19/1/16 a las 23:04, Meira Goldberg escribió:

Estimado Miguel,

Estoy recopilando una lista "maestra" de todas las revisiones, que espero pasar a MOS lo antes posible. Así
que, por favor, intentemos por las dos vías: díceselo tú, pero también mandame la lista de correcciones para
incorporarla en mi lista, vale?

con un fuerte abrazo desde Nueva York,

Meira

2016-01-17 13:46 GMT-05:00 Miguel A Berlanga <berlanga@ugr.es>:
Estimada Meira: solo este fin de semana pude leer mi comunicación y he visto que los cuadros están
desordenados y le faltan además lo links propuestos. Pero puesto que contacté con los editores aquí mismo
en Granada hace un par de meses, si no me dices otra cosa se lo diré a ellos el martes (mañana tengo una
lectura de Tesis Doctoral de un doctorando).

Encantado de volver a saludarte.
MABerlanga

El 8/1/16 a las 0:09, Meira Goldberg escribió:

Así me lo he tomado, en el mejor sentido de la palabra...
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On Thu, Jan 7, 2016 at 4:20 AM, Miguel A Berlanga <berlanga@ugr.es> wrote:
Por supuesto lo de "culpable" es en sentido positivo. Los errores son de los gestores de la
revista :-)
MA

El 5/1/16 a las 20:54, Meira Goldberg escribió:

Estimados y queridos colegas,

Le advertimos de la buena nueva de que nuestras actas han salido en MOS.
¡Muchas gracias María Luisa y Guillermo por avisarnos! Antoni y yo estamos
orgullosísimos de que nuestras actas hayan salido en una publicación tan
prestigiosa.

We are pleased to announce that our proceedings are out in MOS. Thank you
María Luisa and Guillermo for letting us know! Antoni and I are very proud to
have our proceedings published in such a prestigious publication.

Aquí el enlace/ Here's the link:
http://www.centrodedocumentacionmusicaldeandalucia.es/opencms/documentacion/revistas/revistas-
mos/musica-oral-del-sur-
n12.html[centrodedocumentacionmusicaldeandalucia.es]

Hemos notado que contiene varios errores y omisiones. Nos hemos puesto en
contacto con MOS para pedir que nos den la oportunidad de corregirlos. Así que,
por favor, miren vuestros artículos y mándennos vuestras revisiones. Las
compilaremos y las comunicaremos con MOS. 

We have noticed that the proceedings contains a number of errors and omissions.
We have contacted MOS to ask for the opportunity to make corrections. So
please look at your articles and send us a list of corrections. We will compile
them and send them off to MOS.

Muchas gracias por vuestra erudición, y por vuestra paciencia contínua.

Many thanks for your scholarship, and for your continued patience.

con un saludo respetuoso y un abrazo fandanguero desde NYC,

Meira y Antoni

-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in
dance form—of the equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell
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“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—of the equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell



From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: ¿Vuestras ponencias en inglés?
Date: Wednesday, January 20, 2016 3:23:45 PM
Attachments: NYU paper JMHJ.docx

Querido Antoni,

Estoy leyendo esto y me preocupa mucho porque el tono me parece demasiado combativo--¿es
normal esto en España? Ha atacado a TODO EL MUNDO, incluyendo muchos de los autores
de la antología y muchos de los ponentes de nuestro congreso. Tanto es así que me parece que
el artículo sufre-- estoy a más de la mitad y aún no ha presentado los resultados de sus
investigaciones.

Qué aconsejas?

Besos

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Jose Miguel Hernandez Jaramillo <jmhernandezj@yahoo.es>
Date: Thursday, January 14, 2016
Subject: ¿Vuestras ponencias en inglés?
To: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

Hi Meira,

Te adjunto mi artículo por fin. Siento mucho mi retraso, acabo de recibir la traducción
revisada. Agradezco las facilidades que nos has dado a la hora de poder entregar el trabajo con
unos días de retraso, y aprovecho para mandaros de nuevo mis felicitaciones por el esfuerzo
que realizáis para llevar a cabo estas iniciativas.  

Seguimos en contacto. Saludos,

José Miguel.

-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—of the
equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell
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Abstract

In this paper, the first results of my research on the role that the fandango occupied in the nineteenth century flamenco are shown. According to them, this role is, paradoxically, quite different from what flamencology stated over years, and highlights the lack of knowledge that still prevails nowadays about nineteenth century flamenco. In this brief essay I make an invitation to reflect on the ways in which the research around flamenco music of past times has been carried out, and the way the knowledge has been built –even in recent dissertations or academic and institutional projects–, in order to achieve more precise knowledge about flamenco in future research works.



Key words

Fandango, flamenco, nineteenth century flamenco, flamenco dance.



Author bio

José Miguel Hernández Jaramillo was born in Seville. He received his Ph.D. in Flamenco Musicology in 2015 from University of Seville. He’s finishing a second Ph.D. in Ethnomusicology in the Music Faculty (National Autonomous University of Mexico). He’s also computer engineer (University of Seville) and flamenco guitarist. His research work focuses on the study of flamenco music in eighteenth and nineteenth century, and the musical relationships between Spanish and American music. In 2002, Bienal de Flamenco (Seville), published his book “La música preflamenca”. He has also published several articles in journals and books, and participated in international conferences and seminars. 







1

The fandango has been one of the most relevant musical expressions in several musical cultures in Ibero-America in the last three centuries. Its popularity has even transcended borders, and has been used by several European composers in their works. Even nowadays we find it spread across several territories in Spain and America. To flamencology, the fandango is also “Considered one of the fundamental styles of flamenco” (Kroher, Díaz Báñez, Mora Roche, and Gómez Gutiérrez, 2015, p. 11)[footnoteRef:1], and it is often represented in genealogical trees as one of its fundamental pillars.  [1:  With the term style, the authors refer to each one of the different musical expressions that are part of flamenco. ] 


Years ago I carried out a musical research on nineteenth century fandango, and in the phase of the state of the art I found out that there are no studies proving the important role that has been granted to it in flamenco in that century. Likewise, what has been written about the fandango contrasted with what my research was unveiling[footnoteRef:2]. In that moment it seemed important to make a stop and to think about the ways in which the research around flamenco music has been carried out and the way the knowledge has been built in that field[footnoteRef:3], with the aim to understand the discrepancies between what has been written about the fandango and what the sources of the nineteenth century were telling me. In this paper I present a series of reflections around the issue. To start with, I will present some general questions regarding the research that traditionally has been done on flamenco. Then I proceed with a revision on what flamencology has said about the fandango and, finally, I will present the results obtained so far in my research, in which it is quite evident that there is an untold story of the fandango in the nineteenth century flamenco.  [2:  In other previous researches about peteneras I had already met with a similar situation (Hernández Jaramillo, 2009; 2015).]  [3:  In this regard I agree with the approach that Hettie Malcomson outlined in her article about the danzon (2011), in the sense that it is necessary to do a critical review of what has been written about certain musical genres.] 


[bookmark: _Toc311915841]Some thoughts on flamencological musical research 

Even though bibliography in flamencology is broad, in this paper I shall emphasize the most recent ones –last twenty years–, in order to highlight theories about fandango still in use. In many of them I find a series of inaccuracies when studying repertoires of the past. From my point of view, two have been the main causes that have conditioned and limited these works: a) the research is guided by immovable prejudices; b) the research is carried out under an evolutionist and lineal premise.

When a flamencologist treads the paths of researching documentary sources of the eighteenth or nineteenth centuries, its work is usually guided by a conjunction of prejudices that have been acquired basically from previous flamencological works[footnoteRef:4]. The most important of them is the recognition of an “official history” of flamenco, barely questioned, that has been built throughout the last century, according to which flamenco in the nineteenth century did not differ greatly from the one that we know in the current days. Usually, the primary sources to study the past have been the descriptions of travelers or romantic writers, as well as hemerographic references, and in their reading it is clearly visible a previously acquired subjectivity, understanding this as was defined by Hans-Georg Gadamer: [4:  This opinion is shared by other authors, such as Gregorio Valderrama “it’s increasingly necessary to have musicologists who are able and willing to deal with the topic objectively and without any interested or distorted prejudice originated by the legend of the flamenco that has arrived until nowadays” (2008, p. 162).] 


A person who is trying to understand a text is always projecting. He projects a meaning for the text as a whole as soon as some initial meaning emerges in the text. Again, the initial meaning emerges only because he is reading the text with particular expectations in regard to a certain meaning. (2013, p. 279).

Using some prejudices as the starting point when doing historical research is not necessarily a bad practice. In some occasions it could be a useful resource when dealing with researches that delve on unknown or scarcely studied themes. However, this act should be accompanied by an open attitude at the moment of interpreting what is been narrated in the sources, and with a willingness to review these prejudices once new knowledge is obtained. A flamencologist rarely goes through this process. In this sense, as Gadamer says, they leave the Heidegger’s hermeneutic cycle unclosed:

Working out this fore-projection, which is constantly revised in terms of what emerges as he penetrates into the meaning, is understanding what is there. (…) The process that Heidegger describes is that every revision of the fore-projection is capable of projecting itself a new projection of meaning. (…) This constant process of new projection constitutes the movement of understanding and interpretation. (2013, págs. 279-280) 

As a rule, the new texts that are found are subject to eisegetic interpretations. In this way, they’re used as arguments that confirm and reinforce previous prejudices rather than to refine or widen knowledge. This confirmation bias has become and obstacle to the production of knowledge in flamenco. Besides, there is usually no questioning about what other flamencologist have previously written[footnoteRef:5], and by doing that, they attribute them an authority as described by Gadamer: "Thus acknowledging authority is always connected with the idea that what the authority says is not irrational and arbitrary but can, in principle, be discovered to be true" (2013, p. 292). Therefore, reading historical sources under this kind of prejudices, lead to a distorted and limited interpretation of musical reality of the nineteenth century flamenco, most of the time justified with pretty inconsistent basis. [5:  This element has been one of the causes of the generation of mythical theories to explain some aspects of flamenco (Reyes Zúñiga and Hernández Jaramillo, 2013).] 


This practice is more acute in texts written by persons with scarce or no specialized musical training, and therefore they try to fill this void using their prejudices as the main resource to substantiate their work. An example of this can be found in works presented by the COFLA research team (University of Seville). They are aware of the need to perform a rigorous musical analysis when doing musical studies on flamenco: “When attempting to carry out a scientific study on the evolution of flamenco, it is undoubtedly needed, to make a rigorous analysis of the musical features of each style” (Díaz Báñez and Escobar Borrego, 2010, p. 261), and yet, they do acknowledge they don’t have enough competence to carry out musical research (Díaz Báñez, Escobar Borrego, Gómez Gutiérrez, Gómez Martín, and Mora Roche, 2010, p. 40). Regardless of that, the group does undertake projects such as studying the “evolution” of flamenco, as the one that has been referred previously.

The lack of musical specialization has led them to obtain questionable results, as is evidenced in the article Similarity and evolution in flamenco rhythmic: a revision of computational mathematics (Díaz Báñez, Farigu, Gómez Martín, Rappaport, and Toussaint, 2005). In this paper, a group of mathematicians attempts to apply a series of similitude measures to flamenco music, based in mathematics and in a phylogenetic analysis stemming from biology, without any deep basis on musical theory, with the following objective:

One of the objectives of this work is, on the one hand, to provide to a flamenco musicologist analytical tools, in this case on rhythm. On the other hand, arising from the outcome of the research, to suggest ideas on current musicological matters, such as the study of the relation between the different styles, their origins, to contrast the different genealogical trees of flamenco cantes, […], a search of possible ancestral styles, influences of music foreign to Andalusia, etc. (p. 492)

They consider the rhythm as the pertinent feature of differentiation between the musical expressions they study, without any solid argument to justify the selection of this analytical feature:

We have focused on rhythm because, among the many musical factors that constitute flamenco, it is, undoubtedly, one of the most noticeable ones. An easy way to carry out this analysis would be to strip flamenco music from its lyrics, harmony and melody and to leave out only the rhythm (in its general sense) as the only element. […] it’s logical to consider rhythm when thinking about simplifying the style. (p. 492)[footnoteRef:6]  [6:  It has to be said that not because a feature is “noticeable”, it is implied that it has to be a representative element for analytical purposes, and in this case they don’t explain why they consider that it is.] 


To that end, they chose a single “clapping rhythm” of each of the five flamenco palos[footnoteRef:7] they study –fandango among them– because, according to them, for each palo “the underlying rhythmic pattern is expressed through clapping accents” (p. 493). I do not agree with this statement, because the accents that are done in the clapping accompaniment may be different to the intrinsic rhythm of each palo. In fact, we can listen to them without any clapping accompaniment and still will have their own identity. Moreover, there may be multiple and complex patterns of clapping accompaniment for each palo[footnoteRef:8]. [7:  Palo is an emic category with which every musical expression of flamenco is denoted.]  [8:  In any case, a profound study of the rhythmic structures of flamenco should be carried out, such as the ones that have been done for other musical cultures (Arom, 1991). ] 


A numeric mathematic model[footnoteRef:9] is applied to these simple rhythmic patterns and as a result they get a representation in the form of a phylogenetic tree of palos. They conclude making an interpretation of the tree, in such a way that the results match their own scheme of prejudices[footnoteRef:10], that stems from what flamencology has built across time[footnoteRef:11], and from this interpretation, they provide a series of “questions and suggestions for the flamenco musicologist to respond.” (p. 504). In these, they even go as far as to extrapolate their outcomes to the entire flamenco and its historic development, by even suggesting the existence of “ancestral rhythmic patterns” of which the current ones could have evolved from. (p. 501). To sum up, this is a clear example of a study of flamenco music in which, deriving from a very simplified premise, generic outcomes are proposed in accordance to prejudices, and the validity of the results is never questioned[footnoteRef:12]. [9:  The authors justify the use of this model arguing that: “The human ear considers two rhythmic patterns as being closely tied when the change between accents is small and these changes occur between adjacent accents” (p. 498), without providing a reference to any study supporting such statement.]  [10:  Perhaps the most evident prejudice is when they interpret the fandango and the guajira, two palos that appear in the center of their tree. According to them “The rhythmic patterns that are more similar to the others are guajira and fandango […]. This is why these are portrayed in the middle of the graph.” (p. 502). They justify the location of the guajira at the center by arguing that its rhythmic pattern is a “trace of the influence that other styles have exercised in this rhythmic pattern” (p. 504-505) because they consider it a “recent” palo. In line to their evolutionist prejudice, in which one of the analyzed palos should be the “father” of the rest, this is what they refer about the fandango: “it is possible to think that fandango is the most primitive one, because this is the other rhythmic pattern that is located at the center”. (p. 505). The authors elevate this statement up to the rank of a “theory” and they make an attempt to support it by means of the following quote: “fandango is the source of all flamenco patterns”, by Jose Manuel Gamboa (p. 505). Therefore, as can be seen, two different interpretations have been used for the same mathematic outcome.]  [11:  They even include erroneous quotes. For instance, when they say that “there are existing theories stating that seguiriya is a style that was incorporated to flamenco by the end of nineteenth century and the beginning of the twentieth” (p. 505) and they refer that quote to my book La música preflamenca (Hernández Jaramillo, 2002). I have never made such statement in this, nor in any other work of mine.]  [12:  In a later work which also deals with the rhythmic aspect of flamenco, they still maintain these considerations (Guastavino, Gómez Martín, Toussaint, Marandola, and Gómez Gutiérrez, 2009).] 


Another recurrent aspect of the research in flamencology is the tendency to explain flamenco of times past in a simplistic and linear way. A series of historic stages clearly delimited that have occurred one after the other has been described, such as the era of cafes cantantes, the golden age, or the opera flamenca. These periods have been seen under low-graduation lenses, and therefore attributing features in a generic way, rather than using a microscope to allow reaching further detail. Moreover, it is a recurring practice that musical research in flamenco takes on broad and general topics in a wide timeframe[footnoteRef:13]. Given the extension of the object of study, it’s common to find epidermal explanations to complex processes through generic statements. This trivialization of reality will be referred later on in this paper with some concrete examples about fandango. [13:  It is a recurring practice that a research pretends to cover in a single work all musical expressions of flamenco throughout all its history or a big part of it. Examples of this type of works are (Hernández Jaramillo, 2002; Valderrama Zapata, 2008; Hurtado Torres and Hurtado Torres, 2009; Castro Buendía, 2010; Núñez Núñez, 2011; Castro Buendía, 2014; Castro Buendía, 2015), among others.] 


In the same way, flamenco research has been focused in the search for “origin and evolution” of the diversity of flamenco musical expressions. This evolutionist conception has simplified reality and it has added obstacles in the understanding of a complex process of conformation of flamenco, which encompasses the coexistence of musical cultures of at least three continents over more than three centuries. In this sense, it is frequent to see flamenco genealogy trees, explaining palos ever since their supposedly ancestral roots from which all branches and leaves have derived[footnoteRef:14]. In my view, the implied simplification of this kind of representations necessarily excludes fundamental elements that are needed for the understanding of the phenomenon.  [14:  A recent example of this can be found in (Anguita Peragón, 2010, p. 17). In the last years, graphs have been proposed instead of trees for phylogenetic representations (Díaz Báñez et al, 2010; Núñez Núñez, 2011), without leaving this evolutionary conception.] 


As a consequence, the above elements have lifted obstacles to the process of generation of knowledge and, in a way, it has led to a rejection and exclusion –even institutional exclusion– to the outcomes of those researches that contradict the established “official history”. Thus, it is needed to focus on a deep and detailed study of each of these musical processes. 

[bookmark: _Toc311915842]The told story

At this point, it is useful to review what have been said about flamenco, especially of nineteenth century fandango. In accordance to the dogma that flamencology has stated, flamenco in this period would be limited to family or working enviroments, usually in gypsy communities. It is often said that even though some sporadic representations for tourists or travelers, its appearance on stage was in cafes cantantes by the second half of nineteenth century. “Cafe cantante was the ultimate space of professionalization for flamenco” (Pulpón Jiménez, De Vega López, Gallargo Gutiérrez, Ibáñez Jiménez-Herrera, and Tenorio Notario, 2011), where “for the first time, artists would become salaried workers” (González Sánchez, 2011). This notion is still prevalent in flamencology nowadays, even in academic and institutional contexts. 

This description of the phenomenon often comes along with arguments stating that flamenco of past times cannot be known or studied given the fact that it is a music stemming from oral transmission. Following this line of thought, Alicia Gonzalez, professor of flamenco in the Conservatory of Music “Rafael Orozco” in Cordoba, said the following in a lecture in 2011 called “The history of flamenco”[footnoteRef:15]: [15:  The lecture can be heard at the URL: http://www.cacocu.es/static/CacocuElementManagement/*/alicia-gonzalez-la-historia-del-flamenco-2/ver (last heard on March 18th, 2015).
] 


Can a history of flamenco be made? Bearing in mind that flamenco is an oral transmission music, an art of oral tradition, how can we make a history out of something that is oral? We have no scores, no texts, cantaores could not write, in many occasions creators could not read or write, so, how can we make a history out of all this? The truth is that it is quite complicated. (González Sánchez, 2011)

Throughout her lecture, she states that “the main sources to clarify this stage in flamenco are Demofilo and Fernando from Triana”, testimonies that traditionally have been used by flamencology and therefore being oblivious to innumerable sources to which we have access nowadays in this subject. Under the premise that it stems from an oral tradition, other works do state that there are few remaining musical traces of flamenco in the nineteenth century: “The fact that Flamenco is a music of oral tradition, along with a lack of documents both of sound and written information, leads the study of flamenco music to engage in interdisciplinary studies” (Díaz Báñez and Escobar Borrego, 2010, p. 261). Guillermo Castro Buendia in his PhD dissertation acknowledges that there is indeed musical documentation referred to flamenco in the nineteenth century, but he argues that most of it is useless to its study: 

There is a big amount of publications of the nineteenth century with “popular”, “folk” and “flamenco” musical content, at least supposedly in the latter. However, once we have studied all the material that has appeared with this qualifier [flamenco] from the middle of the nineteenth century onwards, we must to say that there is scarcely any useful material. Exception made of Eduardo Ocon, Ramon Sezac and some other specific case, the rest of scores preserved do not reflect in a faithful way the interpretative nature of the cantos flamencos. Most of them are what we could call “flamenco inspirations”, compositions by authors attempting to reflect flamenco influence in their work, whether in the melodies of cante or in some rhythmic and harmonic formulas. Others are simply “Andalusian songs”, very fashionable at the time, with the presence of musical features that are common in flamenco (Andalusian cadences, melismatic singing…), but not flamenco songs. (Castro Buendía, 2014, p. 90) 

Paradoxically, by analyzing documental and musical sources of the time we find contradictions between what these show us and what has been told in the history woven by the flamencology that we have just seen. The sources prove that the notion of flamenco in the nineteenth century was very wide; I would even dare to say that it was wider than in our current days, and therefore we cannot think that there was one and only type of flamenco in those days. Beyond the musical occasions that flamencology is willing to admit, there have been others that have been invisibilized that encompass scenic, salon or instrumental music, as well as music for religious contexts, music for bullfights, for fairs, romerias, etc. In the last decades of the century, we will find it practically in every social context, from slums of cities to aristocratic and royal gatherings and parties, and in all of them they’re called with one single term: FLAMENCO (Hernández Jaramillo, 2009; Reyes Zúñiga, 2015). I have selected some hemerographic sources of the time that clearly reflect this reality: “flamenco invades Spain” (Ortega Munilla, 1885, p. 202); “Flamenquismo has turned the concept of Andalusian from regional to national.” (Gómez de Baquero, 1897, p. 134); “Flamenquismo has corroded the scenarios, (…) you can barely conceive a play in which no palms are being clapped, in which actors are no stomping cuatro pataitas, or using a crepe scarf” (Pérez Nieva, 1890, p. 466); “flamenco is dominating every scenario. There is barely a piece in the theatres without any occasion to play peteneras or malagueñas.” (“La plaga flamenca”, 1888).

Therefore, the idea that flamenco was restricted to subaltern social spheres in which only mechanism of oral transmission prevail is inaccurate. Music circulated in every social stratus, and this very same dynamicity explains why we meet flamenco in all this diversity of musical occasions. Even though the means of interpretation could be different, in the structural dimension the music that appears in nineteenth century scores, resembles to that of what the people would sing in the different musical occasions[footnoteRef:16]. In this sense, I do not agree with Castro Buendia when he states that most of these scores are “folk” or “flamenco inspirations”[footnoteRef:17]. It seems that the prejudice that leads this author to declare that “there is barely any useful material” comes from the notion that the “interpretative nature of flamenco” in the nineteenth century should be similar to that of flamenco that we are familiar with nowadays. [16:  In different researches in which I have carried out a comparative structural analysis between the flamenco music displayed in nineteenth century scores and recorded music from the ending of that century to the present time, we can see a very high degree of fidelity of written music with respect to that of oral nature (Hernández Jaramillo, 2009; 2015).]  [17:  There are other works that contradict this affirmation. For example, the PhD dissertation of the ethnomusicologist Lenica Reyes (2015), shows that a big number of analysed malagueñas of nineteenth century and beginning of the twentieth do have a shared structure, and that many of them were specifically referred to as “flamencas”. Moreover, she finds very few examples of pieces called “malagueñas” without a structural correlation to malagueñas of those times, but that could be "flamenco inspirations" of some composers; however, those would be exceptional cases.] 


At this point I should make some reflections: If in those times there was a very wide notion of flamenco, why should we only consider the flamenco that most resemblance has with the current one, while leaving aside the rest? And, why should we use the categories “preflamenca”, “protoflamenco” or “folk” to refer to this type of flamenco that does not fit in the one we have known in the twentieth century? Why is it that there is still such a rigid division between what was or wasn’t considered as flamenco in those days? Do we know more about nineteenth century flamenco than the very persons that lived it, narrated it, registered it in scores and described it in that time? 

Under this limited notion of nineteenth century flamenco, which is the told story of fandango in those times? There are two main ideas that we will find in mostly all flamencologic works on this matter. The first one, is flamencologists consider the fandango, malagueñas, rondeñas, granadinas, verdiales or javeras, among others, to be part of the same entity (Díaz Báñez et al, 2005, p. 505; Ortega Castejón, 2012, p. 105; Soler Díaz, 2015, p. 201; among others). The consequence of this position is that the descriptions of these musical expressions are usually carried out in a joint manner, thus preventing to grasp the particularities of each and every one of them:

The group of fandangos conform the widest family of cantes in flamenco. From the most primitive and less evolved forms, such as verdiales, to other that developed later, such as malagueñas nuevas or “de cante”, granainas, cante minero-levantinos and personal fandangos, that came up last in time, they all share a common origin in popular fandango (Castro Buendía, 2014, p. 193)

They even get to the point in saying that all these musical expressions that are part of the “fandango family” have “exactly” the same features: “These cantes [malagueñas, granaínas and cantes de levante] are, rigorously speaking, varieties of fandango, due to the fact that absolutely all their poetic, melodic and harmonic features are exactly the same than those of any fandango” (Hurtado Torres and Hurtado Torres, 2009, p. 173). We cannot ignore the musical similitude that all of those may have, but for the purposes of our analysis, we need to separate them, because historically they have clearly had a very defined identity. This may become a clear example of how the emphasis on the phylogenetic links among the different musical expressions in flamenco, has prevented a deepening in the characterization of each and every one of them[footnoteRef:18].  [18:  In accordance to the thorough comparative musical analysis between fandangos and malagueñas of the nineteenth century carried out by Lenica Reyes in her PhD dissertation (2015, págs. 118-156), despite some shared features that are mostly harmonic, both musical expressions have specific features that define and differentiate them. ] 


The second argument that we often find is the idea that flamenco palos derive from folk variants: “Cantes de Juan Breva, also called Juan Breva’s malagueñas go from folklore to flamenco” (León Benítez, 1999), “Interpretations of fandangos largely vary with respect to their abstraction from the folkloric origin” (Kroher et al, 2015, p. 11), or we will find more generic statements saying that: “flamenco was created from an innovative and artistic reinterpretation of the Andalusian folklore” (Steingress, 1998, p. 221). This step from folklore to flamenco is what many authors have called aflamencamiento: 

Nevertheless, the popular and folkloric character associated to the dancing of the first modalities, reveals that its aflamencamiento was carried out at the same time than the rest of the styles: towards mid nineteenth century, as we shall see in the caña, polo, serrana, etc., and they all acquired its final flamenco form in the last quarter of the same century within the café cantante environment. (Castro Buendía, 2014, p. 343)

This route of the fandango traced by Castro Buendia contradicts the opposite path described by Jose Luis Navarro: “little by little it was loosing ground and became a specific dance of folkloric nature” (2008, p. 124). The notion of folklore of past times is used in these examples as a generic resource to end what should be a more thorough description.

In this way, statements of such magnitude do not usually come with justifying arguments, nor they do make reference to the research works or frameworks of thought upon which these are based. Besides these, there have been many other statements regarding the fandango that have not been proved either. I will list some examples that have been mentioned in recent flamencological works:



a) Verdiales are the “most primitive and least evolved forms” of fandango. (Castro Buendía, 2014, p. 193).

b) “The pandas de verdiales perform a very archaic variant of fandango, which is malagueña’s ancient form” (Hurtado Torres et al, 2009, p. 256).

c) “The oldest fandango that is accepted by the history of flamenco is, precisely, that of Malaga” (Arrebola Sánchez, 1998, p. 223).

d) “Verdiales are the oldest and most ancient expression of this type of fandango [fandango from Malaga], that comes along with other musical forms.” (León Benítez, 1999).

e) “these traditional fandangos [fandangos verdiales and fandangos from Huelva] are the direct ancestors of flamenco fandangos—preflamenco music.” (Berlanga Fernández, 2015, p. 173).

f) “Verdiales are the fandango of the Andalusian moors.” (León Benítez, 1999).

g) “Verdiales gave way to malagueñas” (Cruces Roldán, 2003, p. 39).

h) “Many flamenco styles have their roots in the fandango from Malaga” (Arrebola Sánchez, 1998, p. 224).

i) From verdiales “stems the tree trunk of what we now call flamenco” (Mandly Robles, 2013).

j) “Polo and soleá are derivatives of fandango” (Hurtado Torres et al, 2009, p. 173).

k) “Jacara and fandango are practically the same” (Fernández Marín, 2011, p. 42).

l) “The presence of fandango is also evident in the petenera” (Hurtado Torres et al, 2009, p. 255).

m) “The fandango is the genre whose main features prompted the evolution of Andalusian music until they crystallized, by mid nineteenth century, in the most authentic styles of flamenco, such as soleares, bulerias and fandangos flamencos” (Núñez Núñez, 2012, p. 143).

n) “Primitive fandango was purely instrumental, without any vocal copla” (Fernández Marín, 2011, p. 39).

o) “The historic fandango refers, then, not to a singing piece, but to the music to accompany dancing, which will after lead to the crystallization of jaleos which in major tone would be named cantiñas, and in Andalusian modal tone, soleares” (Núñez Núñez, 2012, p. 144).

p) “However, the seguidillas, and especially the boleras, had a great influence in the crystallization of many flamenco genres. It is not in vain that the so called abandolao rhythm, natural to a large part of fandangos from Malaga, Granada and Almeria, is no other than that of bolero, the Spanish bolero that was so famous during a great part of nineteenth century”. (Núñez Núñez, 2012, págs. 145-146).

q) “In my opinion, the tirana is the clearest predecessor of jaleos (and therefore, of solea), and is also the link that joins jaleo with the historic fandango, resulting the evolutionary line as follows: jacara-fandango-tirana-jaleo-solea. This is only a hypothesis, but it is a first step to achieve a musical history of flamenco styles”. (Núñez Núñez, 2008, p. 199).



According to the flamenco phylogeny that has been expressed in these references, the “ancestors” of fandango would be bolero or jacara, and among the “descendants” or influenced by fandango we would have tirana, polo, solea, petenera, buleria, jaleos, cantiñas, verdiales or malagueñas. If flamencology does not manage to escape from these categorical statements, that are presented without any analytical argumentation, and puts a question mark to them, we will hardly be able to reach an understanding of the historic process that fandango and flamenco have had. 

[bookmark: _Toc311915843]The untold story

When I go through the research of fandango within the nineteenth century flamenco I find, as you might expect, a greatest number of sources that refers to musical practices in the hegemonic strata of society. The subaltern ambiences are only referred to in stories told by travelers, chronicles, iconography and literature, or in the representation of these ambiences within scenic plays (as a secondary source), that is, in texts in which these are represented. In this context, it’s surprising that most of the references describe the fandango as a dance. This conception is totally different from that one that is hold in nowadays flamenco, in which, paradoxically, dance has practically disappeared: “nowaday, the fandango except for some choreographic piece more or less sporadic, […] cannot be said that takes part of the lush tree of flamenco dances.” (Navarro García, 2008, p. 124). Despite the fact that I find numerous sources informing about this danceable characteristic throughout the nineteenth century, in the flamenco studies its presence is acknowledged only in the eighteenth century and the first half of the nineteenth century. For instance, in the work Historia del Baile flamenco by Jose Luis Navarro (2008), there is only a brief mention to the dance of the fandango in the second half of nineteenth century stating that it was “loosing ground”, as seen above, and, on the contrary, it presents information on descriptions of its dance given by travelers in Spain in previous years.

Let’s see some examples describing the fandango of the second half of nineteenth century –usually as a dance form– in different performative contexts. Benito Mas y Prats, in his article Bailes de palillos y flamencos (1882), includes the fandango as one of the most frequent dances: “The most frequent palillos dances have been, and still are in current days, the fandango, bolero and seguidillas mollares, manchegas and sevillanas.” (p. 58), considering it, along with the sevillanas, as “the salt and pepper of public or crowded gatherings” (p. 59). He also offers a description of the way of the dancing: 

It is usually danced by punto de malagueñas; all the couples go out at the same time, and, after performing each of them their steps, they repeat the same exits. There is no need to have great skills to do it, and all Andalusian girls take part in it during the most climatic moments of their crowded gatherings. (p. 59) 

Mas y Prats also refers to this dance in rural ambiences, where, according to him “it reigns without any rival among our peasants” (p. 58). Moreover, he mentioned it when describing the parties that are carried out during the time of the milling of oil:

It looks like an impossible task that poor women, who open their eyes at dawn, and whose bodies stand the fatigue of long hours of work under the sky, have the strength and the agility to dance one and a hundred fandango coplas. (Más y Prats, 1885, p. 118)

Nor could it be absent in parties and popular verbenas such as in Velá de Santa Ana in the Sevillean neighborhood of Triana (“Gacetillas”, 1879, p. 2). We also have proof that it was danced in café cantantes, as it is clear in the following description of the Café Filarmónico in Seville, “where you can dance, sing and drink, all of that in the style of our country; because the dance is fandango, and the singing is polos or malagueñas, and the drink is manzanilla”. (Lamasque, 1879, p. 1). This quote is pretty similar to the following one, that was published some years after: “Spain, where the pandereta is played, and the malagueña is sung and the fandango is danced” (Alfonso, 1884, p. 1). All these sources reflect a clear differentiation between malagueña and fandango, being this latter associated to dancing, whereas malagueña is the paradigm of flamenco sung[footnoteRef:19]. The fandango was considered a national dance: “Fandango, that became a dance of national nature in our Peninsula, […]” (Varela Silvari, 1881, p. 1); “The fiesta flamenca is not the mill party nor the so-called Andalusian fiesta. The fandango is cosmopolitan, and it is danced, both at the heart of the Betica and in the eastern coasts, and in Ronda mountains”. (Más y Prats, 1885, p. 118). [19:  This is in open contradiction with the statement made by Castro Buendia about the fandango as being a relevant singing form in nineteenth century: “the fandango kept on being cultivated in the nineteenth century, becoming one of the most influential singing forms in the emerging flamenco art” (2014, p. 218).] 


A second fact to highlight from the first outcomes of the research is that as the nineteenth century passed by, and above all with the prevalence of flamenquismo[footnoteRef:20], in the last quarter of the century, several musical expressions that were in vogue at the beginning of the century, such as the bolero, zorongo, cachucha or fandango, were loosing popularity and disappearing from the stage[footnoteRef:21]. From that moment on, some adjectives are applied to it, such as “primitive” (Barbieri, 1861, p. 16), “classic” (Rueda Santos, 1887, p. 2), or “ancient” (Vidal y Careta, 1914, p. 64). There are many indicators that reaffirm this fact. The first of them is the drastic diminishing of the presence of fandango in the Spanish stage, almost to the point of its complete disappearing. In the newspapers of that time we barely find the fandango performed at theatres or events by the bourgeoisie or the aristocracy, unlike what used to happen with other flamenco musical expressions, such as malagueñas, peteneras, tangos, zapateados, soleas or sevillanas. [20:  This term was used to refer the tremendous success of flamenco in the Spanish society during the last quarter of the nineteenth century (Reyes Zúñiga, 2015, p. 178).]  [21:  As we previously saw, Jose Luis Navarro also warns about this “loss of field” that the fandango had during the second half of nineteenth century.] 


The reasons of this situation are not yet clear, and it’s needed to keep on doing research in the future, but a hypothesis may now be proposed: given its almost exclusively dancistic character, the fandango suffered the decadence of dancing that took place in the last three decades of nineteenth century, after the splendor that it had in Spain in the middle of the century. Anastasio Gonzalez known as “Alejandro Miquis” gives in 1902 a possible cause of this decadence:

The star of Terpsichore suffered from an almost expected fall as a reaction to the great dance shows of Circo de Rivas, and the dancers went to take refuge in theatres of lower scale, Martin and la Infantil were the last homes, and in them there was «Dance at the end of each act», after that the cancan, with scarce clothing, had scared away from la Infantil and Capellanes to those who considered their moral offended with that show. 

In Martin and in la Infantil […], dance lived a languid life, but not even there it managed to last, and, finally, it disappeared. The eclipse would have been total without bailarinas, who, renewing Gades traditions, kept burning the sacred fire in cafes cantantes. Terpsichore had come down to a very low level. (González y Fernández, 1902, p. 159)

Another indicator of the scarce scenic presence of fandango in that time is the number of zarzuelas that includes it. Between 1840 and 1915, I can only identify two of them containing fandangos[footnoteRef:22]: Chorizos y polacos (1876) by Francisco Barbieri and Soledá (1906) by Joaquín Gené. This low number makes a big contrast with what other flamenco musical expressions had, such as malagueñas, present in 78 zarzuelas, or peteneras, in 43 (Reyes Zúñiga, 2015, p. 184). [22:  Even though in zarzuela Exposicion Universal by Ruperto Chapi (1889) appears a piece called “Fandango y jota valenciana”, I can’t identify in it the structure of nineteenth century fandangos. ] 


I also considered relevant to analyze the presence of fandango in the first recordings of flamenco. To this end, I conducted a quantitative analysis of the number of fandangos recordings in relation to other musical expressions, by consulting the database of recordings of the Centro Andaluz de Documentación de Flamenco[footnoteRef:23]. This collection holds data of more than four thousand recordings of flamenco of all times since the year 1897. By limiting the search to the period of our interest, by stating the higher limit in the year 1915, I got the percentage of recordings of the different palos shown in the following chart: [23:  Available at: http://www.juntadeandalucia.es/cultura/centroandaluzflamenco/ServicioDocumental/Catalogos/form_palos.php (last time visited: March 19, 2015).] 




[image: ]

Figure 1. Percentage of recordings of each palo between 1897-1915 (Source: CADF)



Out of the total of 715 recordings during this period[footnoteRef:24], we can see that only eleven correspond to fandangos[footnoteRef:25], representing a 1,52% of the total recordings, against the one hundred malagueñas (13,77%). Therefore, the fandango ranks in the number sixteen of palos. In line of what statistics show, I found an article on music therapy in which professor Vidal y Careta comments in 1914 the absence of fandango in flamenco repertoire:  [24:  Those recordings that have no information in the field “year” have been excluded, and therefore it is possible that exist more recordings of that time within this database. ]  [25:  I only considered the recordings titled fandanguillos or fandangos, excluding some others labeled as “fandangos del País Vasco”, "fandangos of Málaga" or "fandangos de Lucena", that either do not correspond with Andalusian or flamenco fandangos, or they are structurally more similar to other musical expressions such as malagueñas.] 


In the town in which I live in, what you rarely hear singing is the old fandango, the father of all the tunes of the Andalusian region; you shall hear everywhere malagueñas, rondeñas, murcianas, farrucas, marianas, cante jondo, to put it in one word (…); but you will rarely savor in all its purity the truly popular singing, the artistic fandango, sentimental, expressive, clear of any ornaments or effeminate lamentations. (Vidal y Careta, 1914, p. 64).

If we undertake a statistical analysis of recordings similar to the previous one, but without any time restrictions, then we find that the fandango has been the most recorded palo of flamenco, with a 23,27%, and at a great distance is the second, the solea, with an 8,63%. To explain this apparent paradox between the weight that fandango has had in the first years of the twentieth century with respect of the rest of the century, we only need to observe the way in which that percentage has changed over time. Figure 2 shows the percentage of fandangos recorded in relation to the total of recordings of each year up to 1940, in comparison to those of the malagueña. We can see how, starting from the third decade of the century, the fandango becomes the favorite of flamenco artists, and that there were years in which more than half of recorded cantes were fandangos. The study of the possible causes of this resurgence of fandango goes beyond the limits of this paper, and will be dealt with in the future. 



[image: ]

Figure 2. Percentage of recordings of fandangos and malagueñas, per year up to 1940 (Source: CADF)

All these indicators are showing us a story so far untold by flamencology or musicology: Fandango was at the verge of disappearing from the range of palos, and it could only hook to the flamenco chariot –losing its danceable character that defined it in the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries– almost in the last breath, before its repertoire became “closed”, defined in the way that we know it nowadays.

[bookmark: _Toc311915844]Although these are only the first results of my research, I believe that they are strong enough to realize the considerable lack of knowledge that still prevails nowadays, not only about the fandango, but also about the nineteenth century flamenco in general. In this paper, my aim has been to share a series of elements to reflect on the path that musical research of flamenco has taken, of its told and silenced stories. The eisegesis of flamencologist and some musicologist needs to give place to the exegesis, so that in the musical research of flamenco, with the passing of time, we have less untold stories.
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From: Douglas Riva
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: 13 FIMTE simposio
Date: Tuesday, January 26, 2016 12:02:45 PM
Attachments: CALL FOR PAPERS – FIMTE 2016.docx

CONVOCATORIA FIMTE SIMPOSIO 2016.docx

Este es el mensaje de Luisa con la call for papers en inglés y castellano.  Sería bueno colocarlo
también en nuestro web. 

Hablamos.  Una pregunta ¿a que hora tenemos la llamada con Ángel el jueves?

D
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: FIMTE Festival <fimteinfo@gmail.com>
Date: 2016-01-18 5:38 GMT-05:00
Subject: 13 FIMTE simposio
To: Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com>
Cc: Douglas Riva <jdriva@earthlink.net>

Buenos días Douglas:
Te envío la convocatoria del 13 simposio FIMTE que tendrá lugar en el Parador de Mojácar
los próximos 16 y 17 de Septiembre. Te agradezco le puedas dar difusión en vuestra página de
eventos sobre Granados.
Un fuerte abrazo,
Luisa

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:fimteinfo@gmail.com
mailto:jdriva@gmail.com
mailto:jdriva@earthlink.net

CALL FOR PAPERS – FIMTE 2016

13th Symposium on Spanish Keyboard Music “Diego Fernández”

GRANADOS IN CONTEXT: THE SPANISH PIANO SCHOOL AND PRE-WAR ARTISTIC MOVEMENTS

Parador de Mojácar, Almería,  SEPTEMBER 16 - 17, 2016

Chairs: Michael Christoforidis (University of Melbourne) – Walter Clark (University of California, Riverside) – Luisa Morales (FIMTE, Almería/University of Melbourne)



The Catalan piano school, whose antecedents are to be found in Joan Baptiste Pujol and Felip Pedrell, is the origin of what is now known as the Spanish national piano school, represented by Albéniz, Granados and Falla. To this generation of pianist-composers, Paris was a most significant reference point. From the late 1880s, when Granados studied in Paris, the French capital was a centre for the growing interest in early music, and also served as a key site for the emerging voice of Spanish musical identity, visited frequently by Spanish performers and composers.

This symposium will explore the works of Granados in the context of Spanish and French artistic movements, from Early Music revivals and the Goyesque to Alhambrism and Modernisme in the years preceding World War I.



We welcome 200-250 word abstracts for 20-minute papers, as well as proposals for lecture- concerts (30-minutes) and concerts (one hour). Abstracts should be signed at the bottom with the author’s name, institutional affiliation or city of residence and full return address, including e-mail address. 

Official languages: English and Spanish

Symposium fee (including concerts, coffee breaks and Symposium dinner) EUR 180

Deadline for abstracts: May 15,  2016

The 13th International Symposium on Spanish Keyboard Music “Diego Fernández” will be held at the Parador of Mojácar, Almería, Andalusia, as part of FIMTE 2016: the 17th International Festival of Spanish Keyboard Music. The festival will feature a full week of concerts, expert lectures, and workshops from September 12 to 18. 

For further information, please contact: 

Luisa Morales 

FIMTE C/ Cervantes, 37 Garrucha 04630 Almería ESPAÑA 

Tel: +34 610804486/950132621 

fimteinfo@gmail.com 

www.fimte.org 



Accomodation: · 

Hotel Mojácar Playa, 3 minutes walk from the Conference building. Rooms available from 50 to 60 euros night. Please, contact them directly: http://www.hotel-mojacar-playa.com, Tel. 34-950 472602; FAX 34-950 478940; e-mail: hotelmojacar@wanadoo.es 

Parador Nacional de Mojácar, where the conference is held. Rooms from 120 to 150 euros. Please, contact them directly: http://www.parador.es/en/portal.do , Tel. 34-950478250; FAX 34-950478183; e-mail: mojacar@parador.es 

Because this is a touristic destination, we strongly recommend you to book at least one month prior to the symposium. 

Transport: 

Airport: Almería is the nearest airport (90 km from Mojácar)  

· Train: Almería Station (90 km) or Lorca Station (60 km)  

·  Bus: Vera or Mojacar Bus Station (connecting with Barcelona, Madrid, Granada, Murcia...)  

· A service of shuttles Almería-Mojácar would be available in the afternoon of the 15th September. Please, contact us well in advance to organize your transport.  

[bookmark: _GoBack][image: ] 
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CONVOCATORIA – FIMTE 2016

13 Simposio Internacional de  Música de Tecla Española “Diego Fernández”

ENRIQUE GRANADOS:  LA ESCUELA ESPAÑOLA DE PIANO Y LOS MOVIMIENTOS ARTÍSTICOS ENTORNO A LA GRAN GUERRA

Parador de Mojácar, Almería,  16 y 17 de SEPTIEMBRE 2016

Moderadores: Michael Christoforidis (University of Melbourne) – Walter Clark (University of California, Riverside) – Luisa Morales (FIMTE, Almería/University of Melbourne)

La escuela catalana de piano cuyos antecedentes son Joan Baptiste Pujol y Felip Pedrell se encuentra en el origen de lo que hoy en día se conoce como la escuela nacional de piano, con Albéniz, Granados y Falla como sus mayores exponentes. Para esa generación de pianistas-compositores, Paris fue un punto de referencia de primer orden. 

Desde finales de los años 1880, época en que Granados estudió en Paris, la capital francesa se convirtió paulatinamente en el centro de la Música Antigua así como en un lugar clave para la manifestación de la emergente identidad musical española, atrayendo la visita de compositores y músicos españoles.

Este simposio explorará las obras de Enrique Granados en el contexto de los movimientos artísticos que se desarrollaron en España y Francia en los años que precedieron a la I Guerra Mundial, desde la recuperación de la Música Antigua, hasta las recreaciones Goyescas, incluyendo el Alhambrismo y el Modernismo.



El tiempo destinado para cada una de las comunicaciones será de 20 minutos. También se aceptarán propuestas de conferencias-concierto (30 minutos) y conciertos (una hora). 

Deberá enviarse a la organización del Symposium un resumen de las propuestas (abstract) que no sobrepase 250 palabras. En la parte superior del resumen debe aparecer el nombre del autor, afiliación institucional o ciudad de residencia y la dirección completa, incluyendo dirección de correo electrónico.



Lenguas oficiales del Symposium: castellano e inglés. 



Fecha límite para la presentación de resúmenes: 15 de Mayo de 2016



Precio de la inscripción: 180 euros (incluye conciertos y cena de despedida)



Información: 

Luisa Morales 

FIMTE 

C/ Cervantes, 37 Garrucha 04630 

Almería ESPAÑA 

Tel: +34 610804486/950132621 

fimteinfo@gmail.com

www.fimte.org



Alojamiento: 



• Hotel Mojácar Playa, 3 minutos a pie del Parador. Habitaciones desde 45 a 60 euros, desayuno incluido. Contactar directamente con el hotel: http://www.hotel-mojacar-playa.com, Tel. 34-950 472602; FAX 34-950 478940; e-mail: hotelmojacar@wanadoo.es



• Parador Nacional de Mojácar, habitaciones desde 100 a 150 euros. Contactar directamente con el hotel: http://www.parador.es/en/portal.do , Tel. 34-950478250; FAX 34-950478183; mojacar@parador.es 



Transporte: 

Aeropuerto: Almería (a 90 km de Mojácar)  

· Tren: Almería (90 km) o Lorca (60 km)  

·  Autobús: Vera o Mojácar (conexión con Barcelona, Madrid, Granada, Murcia...)  

[bookmark: _GoBack][image: ] 
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From: Douglas Riva
To: Straker, Kathryn; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: 13 FIMTE simposio
Date: Wednesday, February 03, 2016 1:35:56 PM
Attachments: CALL FOR PAPERS – FIMTE 2016.docx

CONVOCATORIA FIMTE SIMPOSIO 2016.docx

Hi Katie,

Below are the English and Spanish information we would like to include on the web site. 
Thanks!!!

DR
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

mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu
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
Subject: Fwd: Approval of your MS
Date: Wednesday, January 13, 2016 9:03:00 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: <admin@cambridgescholars.com>
Date: Wednesday, January 13, 2016
Subject: Approval of your MS
To: fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com

Dear K. Meira Goldberg and Antoni Pizà,

This is an automated email to thank you for and acknowledge receipt of your signed contract
for Spaniards, Indians, Africans, and Gypsies: The Global Reach of the Fandango in Music,
Song, and Dance /Españoles, indios, africanos y gitanos.

Cambridge Scholars Publishing Administration.

If you experience any difficulty reading this email, please send us an email to admin@c-s-
p.org.
Cambridge Scholars Publishing Ltd is registered in England. Reg. No: 4333775; VAT No:
108280727
Disclaimer: The views and opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily represent
those of Cambridge Scholars Publishing Ltd. The contents of this message are intended for the
addressee only. They are confidential and may contain private information. Cambridge
Scholars Publishing is not responsible for any damages resulting from the unauthorised use,
forwarding or disclosure of this message, and will not be held liable for damages or loss
caused by any viruses.

-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—of the
equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:admin@cambridgescholars.com
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
javascript:;
javascript:;


From: Elena Siyanko
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Belen: I"m resending this email of a few weeks ago...I know you must be very busy...
Date: Wednesday, August 17, 2016 4:27:34 PM

-------- Original message --------

From: Elena Siyanko <esiyanko@clarkart.edu>

Date: 17/08/2016 16:16 (GMT-05:00)

To: lameira2011@gmail.com

Subject: Fwd: Belen: I'm resending this email of a few weeks ago...I know you must be very busy...

Dear Meira and Anthony,

I talked about you a while ago with our office of  communucations. We could not wrap our heads around ways to  recognize you properly since the event has already passed
and the only time people would look at the Web page description would have been when they were buying tickets.

We just didnt have a proper logical place to add a recognition after the event has passed. We could do it still but no one would find the archive or have a reason to scroll to past
events.

This being said I as colleague , programmer, agent, and former director of two festivals was enormously grateful for your collegiality. In a similar fashion I have fostered,
connected and promoted a number of artists in the past recommending artists I worked with to other presenters.

You served a great favor to Belen: Williams now is very interested in hiring her to teach.

I made sure to invite especially people from Yale and Williams.

It also took us a bit of time to shape the right program with her. I insisted that the talk should be an actual demonstration, not a lecture as she originally  proposed.

It took me a while to find the right cantaor, at the recommendation of a colleague at the Berkeley School of Music.

Meira, I do hope to be of service in the future.

Do you want to do your book presentation in Barrytown NY, in a performance space run by two Berliners. I can organize this. I d also be happy to send your materials to the
chair of the dance program in Williams, so that you are invited to present a talk in the spring.

The Programming Producer from Williams and I will attend your presentation at the 92nd st Y. I told him your book was exceptionally important.

I am delighted to stay in touch and hope to collaborate in the future.

With kindest wishes and appreciation for your good will.

Elena

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: La Meira [mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com]

Sent: Sunday, July 31, 2016 8:30 PM

To: Elena Siyanko; Piza, Antoni

Subject: Re: Belen: I'm resending this email of a few weeks ago...I know you must be very busy...

Good morning Elena,

I hope this note finds you enjoying the long summer days! I heard from Belén and saw photos on Facebook - it sounds like a fabulously successful event.

Antoni Pizà, Director of the Foundation for Iberian Music at the CUNY Grad Center and I (I'm a Visiting Research Scholar there) are proud to have made the suggestion and to
have helped facilitate the event.

In fact, we've listed it on the FIM website: http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu/the-art-of-flamenco/

But we note that your page does not list us or recognize our work on this. Do you think you might rectify this please? You could simply say something like, "This performance
was organized in consultation with K. Meira Goldberg and the Foundation for Iberian Music at the CUNY Graduate Center."

Do you think you could make that happen? We would be most grateful.

with best wishes,

Meira and Antoni

[https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-
3A__ssl.gstatic.com_ui_v1_icons_mail_images_cleardot.gif&d=CwIGaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-
iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=x9beA-iHF26MFWX2mo1I1BX0-KRhRhBmMao1AVppQc4&s=mnBFkTuvyohyigdEVJ1wim--JJwQImdoAXZICEqFTgY&e= ]

On Wed, Jun 29, 2016 at 8:54 AM, La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com<mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com>> wrote:

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

mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com
http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu/the-art-of-flamenco/
mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com
http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu/the-art-of-flamenco/


Meira and Antoni

--

...por que la vida se nos acaba,

y yo quiero morir cantando,

como muere la cigarra...

www.lameiraflamenco.com<https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-
3A__www.lameiraflamenco.com&d=CwIGaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-
iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=x9beA-iHF26MFWX2mo1I1BX0-KRhRhBmMao1AVppQc4&s=aMqVpWDsKf9YuWMsrAAbDV6jmkLdOZSpN6gyPDfCdlQ&e= >

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



From: La Meira
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Belen: I"m resending this email of a few weeks ago...I know you must be very busy...
Date: Thursday, August 18, 2016 11:01:40 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Elena Siyanko <esiyanko@clarkart.edu>
Date: Wednesday, August 17, 2016
Subject: Fwd: Belen: I'm resending this email of a few weeks ago...I know you must be very
busy...
To: "lameira2011@gmail.com" <lameira2011@gmail.com>

Dear Meira and Anthony,

I talked about you a while ago with our office of  communucations. We could not wrap our
heads around ways to  recognize you properly since the event has already passed and the only
time people would look at the Web page description would have been when they were buying
tickets.

We just didnt have a proper logical place to add a recognition after the event has passed. We
could do it still but no one would find the archive or have a reason to scroll to past events.

This being said I as colleague , programmer, agent, and former director of two festivals was
enormously grateful for your collegiality. In a similar fashion I have fostered, connected and
promoted a number of artists in the past recommending artists I worked with to other
presenters.

You served a great favor to Belen: Williams now is very interested in hiring her to teach.

I made sure to invite especially people from Yale and Williams.

It also took us a bit of time to shape the right program with her. I insisted that the talk should
be an actual demonstration, not a lecture as she originally  proposed.

It took me a while to find the right cantaor, at the recommendation of a colleague at the
Berkeley School of Music.

Meira, I do hope to be of service in the future.

Do you want to do your book presentation in Barrytown NY, in a performance space run by
two Berliners. I can organize this. I d also be happy to send your materials to the chair of the
dance program in Williams, so that you are invited to present a talk in the spring.

The Programming Producer from Williams and I will attend your presentation at the 92nd st
Y. I told him your book was exceptionally important.

I am delighted to stay in touch and hope to collaborate in the future.

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:esiyanko@clarkart.edu
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
Subject: Re: Belen: I'm resending this email of a few weeks ago...I know you must be very
busy...

Good morning Elena,

I hope this note finds you enjoying the long summer days! I heard from Belén and saw photos
on Facebook - it sounds like a fabulously successful event.

Antoni Pizà, Director of the Foundation for Iberian Music at the CUNY Grad Center and I
(I'm a Visiting Research Scholar there) are proud to have made the suggestion and to have
helped facilitate the event.

In fact, we've listed it on the FIM website: http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu/the-art-of-flamenco/

But we note that your page does not list us or recognize our work on this. Do you think you
might rectify this please? You could simply say something like, "This performance was
organized in consultation with K. Meira Goldberg and the Foundation for Iberian Music at the
CUNY Graduate Center."

Do you think you could make that happen? We would be most grateful.

with best wishes,

Meira and Antoni
[https://ssl.gstatic.com/ui/v1/icons/mail/images/cleardot.gif[ssl.gstatic.com]]

On Wed, Jun 29, 2016 at 8:54 AM, La Meira
<lameira2011@gmail.com<mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com>> wrote:

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

www.lameiraflamenco.com[lameiraflamenco.com]<http:/
/www.lameiraflamenco.com[lameiraflamenco.com]>

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

www.lameiraflamenco.com[lameiraflamenco.com]
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From: Jeff Nichols
To: Martelle, Jacqueline
Cc: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Benet
Date: Friday, March 04, 2016 10:55:37 AM
Attachments: BenetBlurb.docx

Hi Jackie,

Could you please circulate the attached today? The event will be in the big seminar room (it's
happening during composers forum).

Or should I write a cover email that you include? 

Thanks!

Jeff

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Piza, Antoni <APiza@gc.cuny.edu>
Date: Tuesday, March 1, 2016
Subject: Benet
To: Jeff Nichols <jeff.william.nichols@gmail.com>

Jeff, see attachment.

 

Thanks so much for doing this.

 

Best

 

Antoni

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:amartelle@gc.cuny.edu
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The Music of Casablancas:  A Talk with Musical Benet Examples

March 9 2016 – Rm 3492 / 10:00-11.30am

The Graduate Center, CUNY

365 Fifth Ave, New York NY 10016



Widely regarded as one of the leading Spanish composers of his generation, Benet Casablancas (1956 Sabadell, Catalonia, Spain) studied in Barcelona and Vienna, and he graduated in Philosophy in the University of Barcelona, obtaining a PhD in musicology. His music, firmly rooted in the great modernist tradition, is notable for its great individuality, structural complexity and extraordinary richness of textural detail. In the 1990s he became more concerned with harmony, timbral differentiation and instrumental virtuosity. Critics have highlight his concern for balancing constructional rigor and expressive strength, lyricism, dramatic character and whimsical register. His works are performed regularly around Europe, Canada, US, Japan and Latin America by internationally acclaimed orchestras and ensembles including the National Orchestra of Spain, the BBC Symphony Orchestra, London Sinfonietta, Orchestre de Chambre de Lausanne, Arditti Quartet, Leipziger Streichquartett, Trio à cordes de Paris, Deutsches Kammerphilharmonie Bremen, Orchestre National de Belgique, NJO of The Netherlands, L´Hermitage State Orchestra Saint Petersburg, Perspectives Ensemble New York, Ensemble 10/10 Liverpool, The Tokyo Sinfonietta, Notabu Ensemble Düsseldorf, Nomad Ensemble Japan, Ensemble Modern Akademie, Grupo Encuentros de Buenos Aires, Ensemble Reconsil Wien, Oberlin Contemporary Music Ensemble, Zeitfluss Ensemble in Graz, Seattle Chamber Players, Malmö Symfoni Orkester, London Philharmonic Orchestra etc.

Publishers web:

[bookmark: _GoBack]http://www.musicsalesclassical.com/composer/short-bio/Benet-Casablancas



Antoni Pizà, Director

Foundation for Iberian Music

The Graduate Center, The City University of New York

365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016

 

-- 
Jeff Nichols
Associate Professor
Acting Deputy Executive Officer
Ph.D/D.M.A. Programs in Composition
Queens College and The Graduate Center, CUNY



From: Barbara Mackenzie
To: Blazekovic, Zdravko; Piza, Antoni; Graziano, John; Melo, James; Hosford, Desmond; Sharon Kanach
Subject: Fwd: Center & Institute Annual Report 2015-16
Date: Wednesday, May 25, 2016 3:38:41 PM
Attachments: ann_rep_FY16.docx

ann_report_data_FY16.xlsx

Dear Brook Center Directors,

See below. As every year, I need to put together our uber-report, and I need to complete these before I leave for
IAML (Rome) and Germany in late June, so please send me the completed report for your project(s) no later than
Monday, 20 June.

Many thanks!
Barbara

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Klein, Adrienne <AKlein@gc.cuny.edu>
Date: Mon, May 16, 2016 at 4:37 PM
Subject: Center & Institute Annual Report 2015-16

Dear Center and Institute Directors and Staff:

 

Attached are the Center and Institute Annual Report forms for the 2015-2016 fiscal year (FY 16). 
Except for a few cosmetic changes, the report forms are unchanged from last year’s. 

Attached are:

 

1. A form with questions about your activities and plans.  Please note the Activities Assessment
question, in which we ask that you review your activities in the past year in the context of
what you planned to be able to accomplish.  That is followed by a question about your plans
for the future.

 

2. An Excel file with five tabs.  Tab one is instructions and on the four pages that follow you are
asked to supply data about the students and staff you employ, your current grants and those
you’ve applied for, and your center’s accounts.  NEW: Even if you do not employ students,
fill in the identifying information in the upper right hand corner on the Student Employee
page and it will autofill that data on the other 3 pages.

 

Please complete the Word and the Excel files and return them by email.  Return them as soon as you
can, but certainly no later than Thursday, July 7. 

mailto:zblazekovic@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:jgraziano@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:JMelo@gc.cuny.edu
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RESEARCH AND SPONSORED PROGRAMS

ANNUAL REPORT OF RESEARCH CENTERS AND INSTITUTES

For the period July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016 (FY 16)



Please fill in the requested information, expanding the space provided, as you require. You may respond to this questionnaire on paper, but we would prefer that you save it as a Word document and send it as an email attachment.  Provide the most up-to-date information available as of the date this is completed.



PLEASE RESPOND NO LATER THAN

THURSDAY, JULY 7, 2016.

[bookmark: _GoBack]



Center/Institute: _____________________________________________________________



Director: ____________________________________________________________________



Phone:	______________________________________________________________________



Email: ______________________________________________________________________



Office Space: list the rooms your Center/Inst occupies: _______________________________



____________________________________________________________________________



Name of person responding, if other than Director: __________________________________





A.  ACTIVITIES 

Please present a summary of what you consider to be your Center/Institute’s major accomplishments during the 2015-2016 fiscal year.  

Please draw the connection between your activities and the funding that you have received.  



Include publications or productions (film/videos, exhibitions), scholarly papers in refereed journals, papers presented at professional meetings, books and book chapters, lectures, seminars and educational activities such as curriculum development, teacher training, or faculty development.



B.  ACTIVITIES ASSESSMENT

Please review your Annual Report for 2014-15 and read your PLANS FOR THE FUTURE projections.  How does this compare with what you were actually able to accomplish this year? Please comment briefly.



C.  PLANS FOR THE FUTURE

What are the goals and planned activities for the Center/Institute for the academic year 2016-2017?  How will these activities be funded?



D.  ADVISORY BOARD

If you have an advisory board, please include a list of the members and their home institution and/or expertise with respect to your Center. 



E.  BROCHURE

Does your Center have a brochure or descriptive handout?  If so, please include one copy.





The following sections are now included in one Excel file.  Each page is opened by clicking one of the tabs at the bottom of the screen.  Please complete information on all four pages, save the file and then email it back as an attachment.   



STUDENT EMPLOYMENT REPORT

[bookmark: OLE_LINK2][bookmark: OLE_LINK1]Please list the students who work for your Center/Institute and information about their compensation.  Reminder: If you do NOT have any student employees, please note that.  

All students who are employed in your Center/Institute should be included whether they are paid by tax-levy, non-tax levy, the Research Foundation or through Fellowship funds.  Be sure to include the total amount of money allocated to each student.  Total Wage should not include benefits (where applicable).



STAFF REPORT

Please list your staff, including the Director(s), but excluding students.  What is the source (not the amount) of the salary for each staffer?  Please describe any course release arrangements.



GRANTS – proposals and active grants

Please list the grant proposals your Center/Institute has generated in the last year.  Include those that have been funded or are pending, along with title, funding agency, and amount requested or awarded.  On the same form, please list your awarded, currently active grants.  You will see that the two columns on the right ask for the account number and the year that a grant was awarded. 

Please indicate whether these grants are administered by the GC Business Office (GC BO), the Research Foundation (RF) or the GC Development Office.  If elsewhere, please specify.  

At the bottom enter those grants that you applied for but were not awarded.  



FINANCIAL SUPPORT

Please list all account numbers and balances (as of June 30, the end of fiscal year 2016) for funds being held either in the GC Business Office (GC BO), the Research Foundation (RF) or the GC Development Office.  If elsewhere, please specify.

At the bottom of this form, please list any gifts received, contracts entered into, or other income not included in any item above, such as registration fees, book income, luncheons, etc. 



THANK YOU FOR YOUR COOPERATION. 





1




Instructions

		Center / Institute Annual Report (Part B - Data) - The Graduate Center of the City University of New York

		2015 - 2016

		INSTRUCTIONS: Each of the four tabs opens a page.  Please complete the information requested on each page.

		Fill in "Center/Institute," "Submitted by," and "Date:" on the "Student" tab. This data copies to all other tabs.

		Save the file and then email it back as an attachment.   



		Student Employment:

		Please list the students who work for your Center/Institute and information about their compensation.  Please note: If you do NOT have any student employees, please enter that on the form.  

		All students who are employed in your Center/Institute should be included whether they are paid by tax-levy, non-tax levy, the Research Foundation or Fellowship funds or are conducting grant funded research.  Please include the total amount of money allocated to each student.  Total Wage should not include benefits (where applicable).



		Staff Report:

		Please list your staff, including the Director(s), but excluding students.  What is the source (not the amount) of the salary for each staffer?  Please describe any course release arrangements.



		Grants:

		Please list your currently active grants, even if they are multi-year grants and were not awarded this year.  The two columns on the right ask for the account number and the year that a grant was awarded.
At the bottom of this form please list the grant proposals your Center/Institute has generated in the last year that are under review or were not funded.   



		Accounts:

		Please list all account numbers and balances (as of June 30, the end of the fiscal year) for funds being held either in the GC Business Office (GC BO) or the Research Foundation (RF).  If elsewhere, please specify.

		At the bottom of this form please list any gifts received, contracts entered into, or other income not included in any item above, such as registration fees, book income, luncheons, etc. 





Student

		Graduate Center Student Employment Report								Center / Institute: 										(Autofills to next three tabs)

		2015 - 2016								Submitted by: 										(Autofills to next three tabs)

										Date: 										(Autofills to next three tabs)

		Name		Program / Discipline		Functional
Title		Hourly
Rate		Total
Hours
for year		Total Wages		Start
Date		End
Date		Source of
Funds



























		TOTAL:										$   - 0













Staff

		Center / Institute Staff Report 						Center / Institute: 		0				(Autofills from "Student" tab)

		2015 - 2016						Submitted by: 		0				(Autofills from "Student" tab)

								Date: 		0				(Autofills from "Student" tab)



		Name		Functional Title
e.g. Director		GC central
line faculty? 
Y or N		Contract Rank
e.g. HEO		Source of Compensation
(not amount)		Course Release? Please describe

























Grants

		Center / Institute Grants				Center / Institute: 		0								(Autofills from "Student" tab)

		2015 - 2016				Submitted by: 		0								(Autofills from "Student" tab)

						Date: 		0								(Autofills from "Student" tab)



												Currently active grants

		FUNDED GRANTS
(List ALL active grants, not only new grants)
Title:		Funding Agency		Amount
Requested /
Awarded		Indirect costs		Administered
by GC Business Office or RF?		Account no.		Year
awarded















		UNFUNDED or PROPOSALS
(list proposals under review or rejected)
Title:		Funding Agency		Amount
Requested		Indirect costs













Financial

		Center / Institute Accounts				Center / Institute: 				0						(Autofills from "Student" tab)

		2015 - 2016				Submitted by: 				0						(Autofills from "Student" tab)

						Date: 				0						(Autofills from "Student" tab)



		
Account Number		Fund Manager / PI		Name of Project						At GC Business Office or RF?		Balance
(as of end of FY 2016)























												TOTAL:		$   - 0



		Please list below any gifts received, contracts entered into, or other income not included in any item above,

		such as registration fees, book income, luncheons, etc.





















Thanks for your cooperation. 

 

Best regards,

Adrienne

 

Adrienne Klein

Director, Special Projects

Research Integrity Officer

Office of Research and Sponsored Programs, room 8309

The Graduate Center of the City University of New York

212.817.7522

 

tel:212.817.7522


From: Douglas Riva
To: Angel Gil-Ordóñez; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Concierto Granados en Nueva York
Date: Monday, March 21, 2016 9:31:47 AM

Buenos días, Ángel y Antoni,

Acabo de recibir el siguiente de Mari Luz.  Gracias a su gentileza estamos a salvo.

Os deseo mucha tranquilidad en Semana Santa.

Abrazos,

Douglas
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Maria Luz Gonzalez Peña <mgonzalez@sgae.es>
Date: 2016-03-21 3:23 GMT-04:00
Subject: Re: Concierto Granados en Nueva York
To: Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com>

No te avergüences, querido Douglas... al fin y al cabo el alquiler iba a ser para ti, así que, no mando la
factura y ya está!!!

En cuanto a los derechos, no se si habéis recibido algún requerimiento de la SGAE en USA, si no es así,
olvidadlo, te digo lo mismo, los derechos eran para ti, y tratándose de un concierto gratuito, iba a ser
muy poca cosa.....

Díselo a ángel y olvidado!!!

D. Enrique Granados os lo agradecerá...desde algún lugar

MLuz

De: Douglas Riva [jdriva@gmail.com]
Enviado: viernes, 18 de marzo de 2016 20:38
Para: Maria Luz Gonzalez Peña
Asunto: Concierto Granados en Nueva York

Querida Mari Luz,

No tengo que explicarte lo complicado que ha sido organizar el simposio y concierto Granados
la semana pasada.  Ya podrías adivinar casi todo.  Hasta la semana antes del actos no
habíamos recibido confirmación de la financiación por parte de Acción Cultural.  Además este
dinero fue destinado integralmente para pagar los músicos.  Tanto Ángel Gil-Ordoñez como
yo mismo no cobramos nada para nuestras actuaciones.  Sé que Ángel te escribió comentando
que tenías que enviar la factura a la Foundation for Iberian Music. 

Llevo cuatro años trabajando para organizar el simposio y concierto.  Ha sido un proyecto,
casi personal, de promoción para Granados y en cierto sentido para la nueva edición de las
obras orquestales.  Afortunadamente resultó un exitazo con la sala llena y además gratis para
el público. 

mailto:angel@postclassical.com
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:mgonzalez@sgae.es
mailto:jdriva@gmail.com
mailto:jdriva@gmail.com


Pero aparte del orgullo que sentimos Antoni y yo, tan contentos de nuestro trabajo, la verdad
es que no disponemos del dinero para pagar el alquiler.  ¿Habrá una posibilidad de que la
SGAE podría encontrar una forma de ceder el alquiler y los derechos para las dos obras en
esta ocasión?   De mi parte estoy dispuesto a renunciar mi porcentaje de los honorarios. 

Me da vergüenza escribirte con esta petición.  Ya me comentarás.

Un abrazo enorme,

Douglas

     

Este mensaje tiene como destinatario a la persona o entidad que figura en la dirección. Su
contenido tiene 
carácter restringido o confidencial. Está prohibido el uso directo o indirecto del mismo, no
autorizándose su 
publicación, reproducción, distribución o retransmisión. Si Ud. recibe por error el mensaje le
rogamos lo 
notifique inmediatamente al emisor. Quien lo envía no es responsable de su integridad,
exactitud, o de lo que 
acontezca cuando el mensaje circula por las infraestructuras de comunicaciones electrónicas
públicas.

Recipient of this message is the individual or the corporation shown in the address. Contents
thereof are of a 
restrictive or confidential nature. Any direct or indirect use of such message is prohibited and
its publication, 
reproduction, distribution or broadcast unathorized. If you receive, by mistake, this message,
please kindly 
inform issuer inmediately. Deliverer is not liable for its integrity, accuracy or for what it may
happen when 
message flows through the public electronic communication infrastructures.



From: Angel Gil-Ordóñez
To: Straker, Kathryn
Cc: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: congreso
Date: Wednesday, February 10, 2016 9:50:39 AM
Attachments: Granados conference program2.pdf

Katie, please include the Embassy of Spain logo in the attached conference program as well.
Many thanks
Angel

mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
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The Life and Music of Enrique Granados (1867-1916): 
A Centennial Celebration 


Enrique (or Enric) Granados (1867-1916) spent the final months of his life in New 


York. His visit to the United States included some of the most important artistic 


triumphs of his life—the World Premiere of his opera, Goyescas, at the 


Metropolitan Opera, solo and chamber music recitals with cellist Pau Casals, 


recordings for the Duo-Art Reproducing Piano, the premiere of his symphonic 


poem, Dante, by the Chicago Symphony, and a recital at the White House. 


The coincidence of the Centenary of Granados’ death in 2016 and the 150th 


Anniversary of his birth in 2017 provides a unique opportunity to re-discover and 


re-evaluate the important contributions by Granados to the musical world and to 


highlight the ties between his native Catalonia and the city of New York. 


The centenary celebrations are being curated and sponsored by the Foundation for 


Iberian Music, at the Graduate Center of the City University of New York and 


other institutions. An international committee is now actively working to organize 


and coordinate events commemorating the Granados Centenary around the 


world. 


—Antoni Pizà and Douglas Riva 
Organizing Committee  


  







 
 
 


3 
 
 


PROGRAM 
8:30–9:00   Welcome Breakfast 


 


9:00–10:30 RECOVERIES AND DISCOVERIES  
Chair: Antoni Pizà  


 


Óliver Curbelo and Cristina Martín, “The Unedited Manuscript of Granados ´s Five 


Military Marches: An Analytical and Performative Study” 


 


Douglas Riva, “Granados´s Orchestral Works—Recovery of Unknown Masterpieces” 


 


Mario Quijano, “Enrique Granados and the Rural Drama of Feliú y Codina in the Two 


Works for Castillian Scenes: Miel de la Alcarria (1897) AND María del Carmen (1898)” 


 


Anna Tonna, “Tonadilla 


 


10:45–11:15 Keynote Address 
  


“Granados and Goyescas at the Met: American Reception of a Spanish Opera, and 


Spanish Perceptions of an American Premiere” 


Walter Aaron Clark, UC Riverside 


 


11:30–1:00  INTERPRETATION AND PERFORMANCE OF 


GRANADOS’S PIANO WORKS 
Chair: Douglas Riva 


 


José Curbelo and Ariadna Martín, “Extramusical Context in the Interpretation of 


Goyescas: Los Majos Enamorados” 


 


Óliver Curbelo, “Enrique Granados´s Pedal Method: The Great Pedagogical Innovation in 


20th Century Piano” 


 


Ricardo de la Torre, “Granados and Cuba: An Idealized View of the Caribbean” 


 


Adam Kent, “Granados´s Piano Trio: Harbinger of Masterworks to Come” 
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1:00–2:00 Lunch Break 


 


2:15–3:30 GRANADOS AND HIS ERA  
Chair: Mary Ann Newman  


 


Miriam Perandones, “A Necessary Rearticulation of Historiographic Discourse on the 


Composer Enrique Granados” 


 


John Milton, “Enrique Granados in the USA” 


 


Francesc Cortès, “The varied projects of Catalan Lyric Theater and the lyrical works of 


Enric Granados” 


 


 


3:30–4:45 GRANADOS IN THE 21ST CENTURY 


Chair: Miriam Perandones 


 


Mònica Pagès, “Enrique Granados: One Legacy, Several Archives” 


 


Carolina Estrada, “Shifting to a New Musicology and the Multidimensional Mapping of 


Enrique Granados´s Pedagogical Methods and Pianistic Tradition” 


 


Anna de la Paz, “Dance and Granados” 


 


5:00–5:30 Closing Remarks: Douglas Riva, Antoni Pizà, 


and Walter Clark 


5:30–6:30 Film Screening: (Enrique Granados: A Musical Portrait, 


dir: Stephen Halpern) 


 


7:00  Concert by Perspectives Ensemble 


With conductor Ángel Gil-Ordoñez, featuring the world 


premiere of Romanza sin palabras: Homage to Granados, by 


Benet Casablancas 
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ABOUT THE KEYNOTE SPEAKER 
 


Walter Aaron Clark received his doctorate in musicology from UCLA 
(1992), where he wrote his dissertation under the guidance of the late 
Robert M. Stevenson. He also holds performance degrees in classical 
guitar from the North Carolina School of the Arts (B.M.), where he 
studied with Jesús Silva and performed in a master class with Andrés 
Segovia; and the University of California, San Diego (M.A.), where he 
was a student of Pepe and Celin Romero. Clark studied early music 
with lutenist Jürgen Hübscher and concertized in Germany for two 
years on a Fulbright grant (1984-86). Before coming to UCR, he was on 
the faculty at the University of Kansas for ten years, having previously 
taught various courses at Scripps and Pomona Colleges, California State 
University, Long Beach, and UCLA. 


Prof. Clark’s specialty is the music of Spain and Latin America, and he is 
the founder/director of the Center for Iberian and Latin American Music at the University of 
California, Riverside. He is the series editor for Oxford University Press’s Currents in Latin 
American and Iberian Music and editor-in-chief of both the incipient Grove Dictionary of Latin 
American and Iberian Music and the new refereed online journal Diagonal: An Ibero-American Music 
Review. He also serves on the editorial boards of Revista de Musicología, Monumentos de la Música 
Española, Cuadernos de Música Iberoamericana, Música em Contexto, Soundboard Scholar, and the 
Encyclopedia of Latin American Popular Music (ABC-Clio/Garland, 2014). 


His research has appeared in numerous journals and musical encyclopedias. He is the author of 
Isaac Albéniz: A Guide to Research (Garland, 1998) and Isaac Albéniz: Portrait of a Romantic (Oxford, 
1999; paperback, 2002), also available in Spanish translation (Turner, 2002). His book Enrique 
Granados: Poet of the Piano (Oxford, 2006; paperback 2011) won the 2006 Robert M. Stevenson 
Award in Iberian musicology from the American Musicological Society. He has published research 
on topics as diverse as the lute and vihuela intabulations of Josquin’s Mille Regretz; Isaac Albéniz’s 
opera Merlin; the Hollywood musicals of Carmen Miranda; the choral, stage, and piano works of 
Enrique Granados; the guitar music of Fernando Sor, Francisco Tárrega, and Federico Moreno 
Torroba; choral music in nineteenth-century Ibero-America; music during the Franco dictatorship; 
and contemporary music in Latin America. He was the 1992 recipient of the Ralph Vaughan 
Williams Research Fellowship in England, and his essay on the opera Riders to the Sea appeared in 
Vaughan Williams Essays, edited by Byron Adams and Robin Wells (Ashgate, 2003); he also 
contributed an essay to Música y cultura en la Edad de Plata, 1915-1939, edited by María Nagore, 
Leticia Sánchez de Andrés, and Elena Torres (ICCMU, 2009), as well as a chapter on the 
Philippines and Ibero-America to Nineteenth-Century Choral Music, edited by Donna Di Grazia 
(Routledge, 2012). He has published reviews in American Music, Journal of Musicological 
Research, Nineteenth-Century Music Review, Music & Letters, Hispanic Review, Revista de 
Musicología, and Notes of the Music Library Association; he also served as a contributing editor to 
the Handbook of Latin American Studies. In addition, he has written liner notes for Hyperion, 
Naxos, DGG, BIS, Tritó, EMEC, and Decca. He has read papers at numerous conferences in Europe, 
Australia, and throughout the U.S. 
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ABSTRACTS 
 
 


■ Walter Aaron Clark, “Granados and Goyescas at the Met: American Reception 
of a Spanish Opera, and Spanish Perceptions of an American Premiere” 


Keynote Address 


In late 1915, Enrique Granados journeyed from Spain across the Atlantic to assist in the 
rehearsals and attend the premiere of his Goyescas at the Metropolitan Opera in New 
York, slated for January 1916. This was to be the first Spanish opera on the Met stage, and 
it aroused intense curiosity and excitement among the press and public in America’s 
leading city. Spanish commentators saw this as a signal honor for one of their own 
composers and a significant milestone in the progress of Spanish national music. The 
largely negative reaction of American reviewers to this opera and the aggrandizing 
manner in which Spanish critics chose to “spin” that reaction tell us much about Spanish-
American relations only eighteen years after the war over Cuba. The critical reception of 
this opera reveals an enduring gulf of misunderstanding between the two nations, one at 
the beginning of its imperial epoch, and the other, at the end. Moreover, the American 
premiere of Goyescas provided a means by which Spaniards assessed their altered status 
and identity in a rapidly changing world. 


■ Francesc Cortès, “The varied projects of Catalan Lyric Theatre and the lyrical 
works of Enric Granados” 


■ José Curbelo and Ariadna Martín, “Extramusical Context in the Interpretation 
of Goyescas: Los Majos Enamorados” The piano suite Goyescas: los majos enamorados is 
Enrique Granados’s most important composition. Evidence for this claim is found in the 
composer’s own notes: “I have finally had the pleasure to find something big: ‘Las 
Goyescas’; ‘Los majos enamorados’, those have come a long way.” The work’s great 
technical demands and its elevated expressive power have transformed it into one of the 
most respected pieces in the Spanish piano repertoire.  


The suite consists of six pieces split in two volumes (1912-14): Los requiebros, 
Coloquio en la reja, El fandango de candil, Quejas o la maja y el ruiseñor, El amor y la muerte, and 
Epilogo o serenata del espectro. This cycle is inspired in Francisco de Goya’s times and 
oeuvre. Granados later produced the suite as a staged work, the one-act opera Goyescas, in 
order to reflect more clearly and directly each of the aspects depicted in Goya’s works: a 
thematic narrative, characters, scenery, atmosphere, as well as some specific clothing. In 
this light, the piano suite Goyescas is a complex artistic work produced by the Catalan 
composer that relates the visual arts, poetry, and music, all against a Spanish backdrop.  
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This presentation explores the work’s extra-musical context between two kinds of 
art and epochs. Making use of our imagination and technological advancements, we will 
be guided towards a complete understanding and enjoyment of Goyescas from another 
perspective, geared toward performers, instructors, musicologists, and music lovers alike. 


■ Óliver Curbelo, “Enrique Granados’s Pedal Method: the Great Pedagogical 
Innovation in 20th Century Piano”Motivated by his great pedagogical activity, 
Granados felt the need to compose a series of works especially dedicated to piano 
pedagogy that would systematize the instrument’s technical foundations. During his 
tenure as director of the Academy, Granados developed a series of exercises and methods 
geared towards technical and expressive improvement that he applied in his teaching. 
The majority of these didactic materials were directed to the use of the sustain pedal. 
Granados was motivated by what he judged a lack of works geared towards a more 
profound use of this technique, as well as the emphasis he placed in providing basic rules 
that would allow students to employ the pedal both judiciously and analytically.  


Granados’s research towards pedal usage represented an important contribution 
in the performative and piano teaching at the beginning of the twentieth century. From an 
interpretative perspective, he set the bases for the use of the upbeat pedaling in Spain, and 
summarized, for the first time in Spanish, a series of basic rules for the use of the pedal 
and the way it is applied on the upbeat according to note-durations, the nature of melodic 
groups, register, and speed.  


During his research, Granados authored up to four pedal methods between 1905 
and 1913: Método teórico práctico de Reglas para el uso de los pedales del piano (Practico-
theoretical Method on the Use of Piano Pedals), El pedal (The Pedal), and two versions of 
his Reglas para el uso de los pedales del piano. The analysis of these pedagogical texts unveils 
the evolution of the way Granados taught pedal theory, which is also reflected in some of 
his compositions. 


■ Óliver Curbelo and Cristina Martín, “The Unedited Manuscript of Granados’s 
Five Military Marches: An Analytical and Performative Study” Enrique 
Granados’s piano literature, published in its entirety by ed. Boileau (2001) and supervised 
by Alicia de Larrocha, has been especially distinguished for its Goyescas, Valses Poeticos, 
Allegro de concierto or its Danzas españolas. Granados’s piano catalogue is much greater 
than those masterworks, but very little known. 


This work unveils the autographed manuscript of five military marches for piano 
composed by Enrique Granados, three of them so far unpublished, just around the 
commemoration of the first centenary of his death (1916). These marches were composed 
as a gift to King Alfonso XIII, and were found in the archives of the Royal Library in the 
Palacio Real de Madrid. 


Two of these marches had been previously edited and catalogued, along with a 
third one attributed to Granados, with the number DLR III:23. The study and analysis of 
the other three marches has allowed us to recognize a previous piano version of the Dos 
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marchas militares for four-hand piano and a completely unedited work by the Catalan 
composer.  


Aside from enriching Granados’s compositional catalogue, the present findings 
highlight his experimenting in the genre of the military march, an affinity well known for 
familiar reasons and his relationship with King Alfonso XIII. 


■ Carolina Estrada, “Shifting to a New Musicology and the Multidimensional 
Mapping of Enrique Granados’ Pedagogical Methods and Pianistic Tradition: A 
case study of Valses Poéticos, op.43” The piano works of Enrique Granados represent 
a challenge to performers not only in terms of their virtuosity, but also in light of their 
refined interpretative demands, which require a deep understanding of the pianistic 
tradition. How might pianists not linked to this particular tradition understand the 
stylistic and interpretative aspects of Granados’s works in order to perform them more 
accurately? To what extend is the country of birth of the performer crucial to this 
understanding and what sources can they access in order to acquire this knowledge? In 
the process of answering all these questions, this research has challenged some pre-
established opinions and proposes a fresh look at the source material to arrive at a more 
authentic interpretation of Granados’ piano music. 


The thorough analysis of Valses Poéticos op.43 written by Granados, which can be 
found with more extensive detail in the recent thesis written by the author of this paper, 
allowed a closer look at performance practices of Granados and the musical tastes of his 
time. This early work is especially relevant due to the significant number of original 
sources related to it. Three different original manuscripts of Valses Poéticos (02.1408 
Valses Poéticos, 02.1424 Mazurka-Valsos, and 02.1365 Valses Poéticos) found in Espai de 
Documentació i Recerca del Museu de la Música de Barcelona reveal sensitive 
information. Also, the two invaluable and very different piano roll recordings of 
Granados himself (Welte 2781 and Triphonola 51125ab1) have been thoroughly analysed 
using the latest technological advances to extract the information from the piano rolls 
including cutting-edge computer software to visualize the sound information captured 
from the MIDI files2. The Welte recording appears to be the most well known in 
musicological circles and has been considered the only valid recording. However, 
evidence found by the author of this paper might prove that the Hupfeld system presents 
a more genuine rendition. Also, recordings by Alicia de Larrocha and Albert Attenelle 
have been explored using the technologies developed by researchers at the AHRC 
Research Centre for the History and Analysis of Recorded Music (CHARM). Furthermore, 
the last living students of Frank Marshall (Granados’ follower), Albert Attenelle, Maria 
Teresa Monteys and Carlota Garriga, have worked intensively with the author of this 
paper and generously shared treasured knowledge for this investigation. 


The multidimensional analysis of all the sources using a combination of traditional 
methods with more up to date analytical approaches has unveiled some ground-breaking 
results that might provoke a re-examination of current knowledge. The multiplicity of 
dimensions has been a crucial part of this in-depth exploration of stylistic elements in 
Granados’ pianism and is unique and central to this investigation. 
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This presentation aims to introduce the outcomes of this fascinating research. The 
differing and equally convincing pianistic styles of Granados’ followers call into question 
the validity of only one possible “authoritative” interpretation when approaching this 
particular performance tradition. In addition, the common belief within musically 
informed circles that Granados’ performances are rather improvisatory might also need to 
be revised. The author found in Granados’ renditions a methodical approach at the 
keyboard consistent to his own pedagogy. 


Hence, this investigation raises questions about current performance practices and 
the stylistic validity that pianists might be able to give in their performances of Granados’ 
works through a combined study of his pedagogical methods, piano roll performances 
and writings. 


■ Adam Kent, “Granados’s Piano Trio: Harbinger of Masterworks to Come” 
Given the extent of Granados’s activity as a chamber musician, it is curious that he 
contributed relatively few original works to the genre. Premiered in 1895, the Piano Trio is 
an important composition, all the more valuable for the overall paucity of chamber music 
produced by the Spanish nationalist school. The trio presents an amalgamation of many 
familiar threads of Granados’s compositional style: virtuosic piano writing, a grounding 
in mainstream European Romanticism, a generalized nationalistic flavor, a more explicitly 
Catalan regional color, and a cyclical handling of large-scale form.  


The trio did not enjoy a significant performance history, and was not published 
until 1976. Full of typographical errors and lacking source documentation, the first edition 
was superseded by an authoritative critical urtext, published by Casa-Boileau in 2013. 
Still, numerous notational dilemmas persist, and the overall aesthetic cohesiveness of the 
work remains a challenge to potential interpreters. 


The present paper situates Granados’s sole essay for piano, violin and cello in the 
context of his overall output, as an antecedent to the more refined handling of many of the 
same compositional traits in the Goyescas and other more mature compositions. It also 
seeks to elucidate both practical and conceptual obstacles to the trio’s integration into the 
repertory.  


■ John Milton, “Enrique Granados in the USA” A chronicle of the day-by-day 
events of Granados and his wife, Amparo, during their eighty-eight day stay in the 
United States. 


■ Mònica Pagès, “Enrique Granados: One Legacy, Several Archives” Enrique 
Granados’ documental legacy has been disseminated through this century in different 
archives from Barcelona—Biblioteca de Catalunya, Museu de la Música, Academia 
Marshall—and from other countries, in the US—Library of Congress, the Hispanic 
Society, the Morgan Library and Museum—and in France—the Bibliothèque National de 
France, Éditions Salabert.  
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In this session, I will describe the three principal ones in Barcelona and mention 
what is preserved in the other ones around the world, specially concerning scores and 
personal documents, so one can make a map of where and what a researcher can find of 
Granados’ legacy.  


■ Anna de la Paz, “Dance and Granados” Much has been written about Enrique 
Granados’ life and work. There are numerous in-depth studies of his body of work, and 
biographies have been written about his life. The purpose of this particular study is to 
look at the work of Enrique Granados through the prism of Spanish dance. We will look 
at Spain during the late 19th and early 20th centuries, the country’s relationship to dance, 
and how Granados identified himself as a Spanish musician; casticismo and the 
Generación del ’98; specific collaborations with dancers Antonia Mercé, Tórtola Valencia; 
and the impact of his work on the future generations of Spanish dancers, like Encarnación 
López, Trini Burrell, Mariemma, Lola Greco and the National Ballet of Spain, to name just 
a few.  


■ Miriam Perandones Lozano, “A Necessary Rearticulation of Historiographic 
Discourse on the Composer Enrique Granados” Enrique Granados is one of the 
three composers forming the so-called “Spanish Nationalism” canon, the other two being 
Manuel de Falla and Isaac Albéniz; his figure, however, is frequently overshadowed by 
his two countrymen. He is also left out of the “foundational triad” of Nationalism, which 
consists of Pedrell, Albéniz and Falla. On these grounds this paper will analyze the 
reasons why Enrique Granados appears in the background of both Spanish and 
international historiography, with the aim of revaluating his figure as a composer. To this 
end I will dismantle the discourse with which his oeuvre was judged in the early 20th 
century. 


First of all, I will carry out a revision of the sources and approaches used by 
influential critics and musicologists (in particular, the work of Albert Soubies, Rafael 
Mitjana, Henri Collet, Gilbert Chase, Adolfo Salazar, Federico Sopeña and Tomás Marco), 
both in the Spanish and the international spheres, as regards both the composer himself 
and the history of music in general. Secondly, the discourses handled by these authors 
regarding the recognition of Granados together with the parameters used to assess his 
worth will be analyzed, focusing on the musical and cultural contexts upon which they 
have been developed. Finally, I will try to rearticulate the discourse around the composer 
by means of a revision of his oeuvre, his aesthetic paradigm and the historiographic 
concepts deployed. 


■ Mario Quijano, “Enrique Granados and the Pastoral Drama of Feliú and 
Codina in Two Spanish Plays: Miel de la Alcarria (1897) and María del Carmen 
(1898)” In general, Granados’s stage works could be placed in two groups according to 
language and context: a Catalan group and a Spanish one. The former ventured into 
modernism while the latter explored the pastoral drama, corresponding thus to the 
composer’s first theatrical attempts stemming from his residence in Madrid and his 
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relationship with José Feliú y Codina. Based on hemerographic evidence, this research 
incorporates the relationship of the two artists: the genesis, premier, reception and 
dissemination of the works Miel de la Alcarria and Maria del Carmen, and an approximation 
towards the interpreting of the pastoral drama genre in the musical language of the 
composer.  


■ Douglas Riva, “Granados's Orchestral Works—Recovery of Unknown 
Masterpieces” Orchestral works are fundamental to any composer’s catalogue of 
compositions. We tend to evaluate the status of a composer based on large scale works 
such as operas and orchestral works.  Remarkably, Enrique Granados has not had this 
opportunity. Eight of his orchestral works are being published for the first time in 2016 
and only two of his operas have been published at the present time.  


In the case of the 11 orchestral works, only two have been performed with any 
regularity—the Intermezzo from the opera Goyescas and the symphonic poem Dante. Of 
the other nine orchestral works, only a few have been performed and then only very 
sporadically. One work, Torrijos, has never been performed. All of the Granados 
symphonic works are being published for the first time in 2016 by the Instituto 
Complutense de Ciencias Musicales, Madrid. 


I will provide a brief description of each orchestral work, sources for the edition, 
Granados’s motivations for composing them, sources of inspiration and their performance 
history.   


■ Ricardo de la Torre, “Granados and Cuba: An Idealized View of the 
Caribbean” Cuba exerted a particular fascination on several generations of Spanish 
composers. Granados—himself of Cuban ancestry—was no exception. 


The purpose of this lecture is to present the context in which the music of colonial 
Cuba interacted with that of Spain during Granados’ youth, paying special attention to 
the relationship between Havana and Catalonia. Granados’s only work with overt 
references to the island, A la cubana, will be discussed, highlighting its similarities with 
Cuban piano music of the time as well as with Albeniz’s own pieces of Cuban inspiration. 
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From: La Meira
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Dance Historian Eblast
Date: Monday, February 22, 2016 7:48:59 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Dance Office <dance@nypl.org>
Date: Mon, Feb 22, 2016 at 6:38 PM
Subject: Dance Historian Eblast
To: Dance Office <dance@nypl.org>

Dear JRDD Eblast recipients:

On Wednesday, February 24 at 1:00pm, David Vaughan will introduce and screen rare Royal Ballet films of
Frederick Ashton's Monotones I&II.

The screening will take place in the Third Floor Screening Room, at the New York Public Library for the
Performing Arts. Go to this link[nypl.org] for more information. Program subject to change. 

Doors open at 12:30pm. 

PLEASE NOTE: Seating is limited to 60 people and is on a first come, first served basis.

Thank you.

Jerome Robbins Dance Division

    [nypl.org]

Plan Your Research Visit[dev.www.aws.nypl.org]

So You Think You Can Find Dance[nypl.org]

Using the Dance Archives[nypl.org]

The Performing Arts Library is located at Lincoln Center, to the right of the Metropolitan Opera House.
Our normal hours are Monday and Thursday from 10:30am-8 and Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday and
Saturday from 10:30am-6.

-- 
...por que la vida se nos acaba,
y yo quiero morir cantando,
como muere la cigarra...

www.lameiraflamenco.com[lameiraflamenco.com]

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:dance@nypl.org
mailto:dance@nypl.org
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.nypl.org_events_programs_2016_02_16_dance-2Dhistorian-2Dashton-25E2-2580-2599s-2Dmonotones&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=LrDpnVHXEDbzEFj00E6movl67WeYqUJ7Mg0tEGqLmDQ&s=vh-ojakmr9VkQJCGiQ5Jyan5JfRXG8rbOQf0b-NHzVo&e=
https://www.facebook.com/JeromeRobbinsDanceDivision
https://twitter.com/nypldance
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.nypl.org_blog_subject_789&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=LrDpnVHXEDbzEFj00E6movl67WeYqUJ7Mg0tEGqLmDQ&s=KLvmKZuyF4CigHpudph_UhSgQNMw5iX5oXh78gQviKQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.nypl.org_blog_subject_789&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=LrDpnVHXEDbzEFj00E6movl67WeYqUJ7Mg0tEGqLmDQ&s=KLvmKZuyF4CigHpudph_UhSgQNMw5iX5oXh78gQviKQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__dev.www.aws.nypl.org_about_locations_using-2Dthe-2Dlibrary_plan-2Dyour-2Dresearch-2Dvisit&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=LrDpnVHXEDbzEFj00E6movl67WeYqUJ7Mg0tEGqLmDQ&s=xyxH7p2f7elsgG1FoypplPJ2v-iZYoQUZRZg5NM6fqU&e=
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From: La Meira
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Dance Historian Eblast
Date: Monday, March 28, 2016 8:00:16 PM

...y confirmando que te veo en 92Y este viernes a las 12...

besos
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Dance Office <dance@nypl.org>
Date: Mon, Mar 28, 2016 at 3:46 PM
Subject: Dance Historian Eblast
To: Dance Office <dance@nypl.org>

Dear JRDD Eblast recipients:

On Wednesday, March 30 at 1:00pm, David Vaughan will introduce and screen films of Trisha Brown's
early works. Iréne Hultman, former Trisha Brown dancer and rehearsal director, and current teacher with the
Trisha Brown Dance Company, is scheduled to join David.

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
Our normal hours are Monday and Thursday from 12-8 and Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday and Saturday
from 12-6.

-- 
...por que la vida se nos acaba,
y yo quiero morir cantando,
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como muere la cigarra...

www.lameiraflamenco.com[lameiraflamenco.com]
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From: Mònica Pagès
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Exemplar núm.29 Granados per a l"Antoni Pizà
Date: Monday, May 16, 2016 1:07:41 PM

Ja m'ha contestat el Jordi. Ja te l'enviaran també per mail. 

Mònica

Inici del missatge reenviat:

De: Jordi Martí <jmarti@enderrock.com>
Data: 16 de maig de 2016 18:56:04 CEST
Per a: Mònica Pagès <monica@monicapages.com>
Tema: Re: Exemplar núm.29 Granados per a l'Antoni Pizà

Hola, i tant, cap problema! De fet, el volia escriure perquè no sabia si li havíem
d'enviar a Nova York... Felanitx molt millor... de totes maneres li enviaré per
wetransfer, va ser molt amable.
Merci, seguim
Jordi

El dia 16 de maig de 2016, 18:27, Mònica Pagès <monica@monicapages.com>
ha escrit:

Hola Jordi,

el Toni Pizà, de la Foundation for Iberian Music de Nova York, voldria tenir un
exemplar de l'última 440, la de Granados, on surt anomenat, seria possible que
li enviessiu a la seva adreça de Mallorca? és que m'ho ha demanat i jo només en
tinc un, suposo que no hi hauria inconvenient.

Antoni Pizà
Carrer Major, 29
07200 Felanitx

Gràcies
Mònica
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From: Meira Goldberg
To: Victoria Carruthers; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: fandango manuscript revision is complete!
Date: Monday, October 10, 2016 9:10:45 PM

Dear Victoria,

We have been working with Amanda on this phase of work on the manuscript and received a
reply that she is on leave till Oct. 24 and to contact you for manuscript submission.

Many thanks for picking up the baton,

Meira and Antoni

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>
Date: Mon, Oct 10, 2016 at 8:38 AM
Subject: fandango manuscript revision is complete!
To: Amanda Millar <amanda.millar@cambridgescholars.com>, "Piza, Antoni"
<APiza@gc.cuny.edu>

Good morning Amanda,

We have shared with you the finalized revision of the fandango manuscript.

Please note there have been changes made to the table of contents: I uploaded our edit of the
separate document "00e_" and I also uploaded those changes in the CSP "00 Intro" - I wasn't
sure what would be easiest for you. 

We have printed out the images and resized in some chapters have added pages so you are
going to have to repaginate the document and update the table of contents I'm afraid.

Will you kindly remind us about what the author discount is, and how many complementary
copies Antoni and I will receive? I assume contributors can order from the CSP website, but if
you provide a link, we will broadcast that to them.

Looking forward to holding it in our hands! 

Meira and Antoni

-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—of the
equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell

-- 

mailto:victoria.carruthers@cambridgescholars.com
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
mailto:amanda.millar@cambridgescholars.com
mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu


“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—of the
equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell



From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: fandango proceedings question
Date: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 12:48:14 PM

Siento que no te pasé esto antes! 
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Victoria Carruthers <victoria.carruthers@cambridgescholars.com>
Date: Mon, Apr 18, 2016 at 8:48 AM
Subject: RE: fandango proceedings question
To: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

Dear Meira,

 

Thank you for your email, I can confirm that the material will be published in both hardback and
eBook format and the print run will be 500.

 

Please let me know if you have further queries, I am more than happy to assist.

 

Kind regards,

 

Victoria Carruthers

Author Liaison

 

Web:     www.cambridgescholars.com[cambridgescholars.com]

Email:   victoria.carruthers@cambridgescholars.com 

Twitter: @CamScholars

 

If you experience any difficulty reading this message, please send us an email to
admin@cambridgescholars.com.

 

Cambridge Scholars Publishing Ltd is registered in England. Reg. No: 4333775; VAT No:
108280727
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Disclaimer: The views and opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily represent
those of Cambridge Scholars Publishing Ltd. The contents of this message are intended for
the addressee only. They are confidential and may contain private information. Cambridge
Scholars Publishing is not responsible for any damages resulting from the unauthorised
use, forwarding or disclosure of this message, and will not be held liable for damages or loss
caused by any viruses.

 

From: Meira Goldberg [mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com] 
Sent: 16 April 2016 17:08
To: Victoria Carruthers
Subject: fandango proceedings question

 

Dear Victoria,

 

Working on permissions: what will the initial print run of our proceedings be? Will it also be
published in digital form?

 

thank you,

 

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


From: Comunicacion Flamenco Festival
To: Piza, Antoni
Cc: Miguel Marin; isabel@flamencofestival.org
Subject: Fwd: Festival de Flamenco 2016 / NYU CON EL ENLACE
Date: Friday, February 19, 2016 4:55:51 AM

Estimado Antoni, 

hemos añadido el enlace a la información que ya teníamos publicada en nuestra web. 

Puede verlo en estos links:

- Español: http://www.flamencofestival.org/ffworld/ff-nueva-york-2016-168/cursos-
actividades/mesa-redonda-mas-alla-de-la-pena-389/[flamencofestival.org]
- Inglés: http://www.flamencofestival.org/eng/ffworld/ff-new-york-2016-168/cursos-
actividades/beyond-sorrow-rethinking-flamenco-389/[flamencofestival.org]

Muchas gracias,
Saludos. 

Mercedes L. Caballero
Coordinación Comunicación Flamenco Festival
San Joaquín, 16 Ático E · 28004 Madrid
Tel: +34 915210550 / 667 34 87 25
comunicacion@flamencofestival.org
www.flamencofestival.org

De: "Piza, Antoni" <APiza@gc.cuny.edu>
Fecha: 18 de febrero de 2016, 22:57:10 CET
Para: Isabel Aranda <isabel@flamencofestival.org>
Cc: Miguel Marin <miguel@miguelmarin.com>
Asunto: RE: Festival de Flamenco 2016 /  NYU  CON EL ENLACE

Enlance:  http://www.kjcc.org/event/beyond-sorrow-rethinking-flamenco-
for-the-21st-century/[kjcc.org]
 
Discupals… se me olvido…
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From: Piza, Antoni 
Sent: Thursday, February 18, 2016 4:56 PM
To: 'Isabel Aranda' <isabel@flamencofestival.org>
Cc: Miguel Marin <miguel@miguelmarin.com>
Subject: Festival de Flamenco 2016 / NYU
 
Querida Isabel y Miguel, como comentamos hace tiempo Meira Goldberg 
y NYU han organizado una mesa redonda en el King Juan Carlos I de NYU.
 
Seria posible ponerlo en vuestra web?
 
Muchas gracias
 
Antoni
 
 
 
From: Isabel Aranda [mailto:isabel@flamencofestival.org] 
Sent: Tuesday, January 12, 2016 12:54 PM
To: Angel Gil-Ordóñez <angel@postclassical.com>
Cc: Miguel Marin <miguel@miguelmarin.com>; Piza, Antoni 
<APiza@gc.cuny.edu>
Subject: Re: Granados en el Festival de Flamenco 2016
 
Hola Angel, 
 
Buenas tardes!
 
Me alegro de que visitéis nuestra web :) Lo cambiamos ahora mismo.
 
Adjunto aquí el folleto del festival en pdf. Esta semana se hace el 
mailing general en Nueva York.
 
Saludos!
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From: Sato Moughalian
To: Angel Gil-Ordóñez; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Final numbers
Date: Tuesday, May 24, 2016 3:06:49 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Angel Gil-Ordóñez <angel@postclassical.com>
Date: Thu, Mar 3, 2016 at 6:19 PM
Subject: Final numbers
To: Sato Moughalian <satomoughalian@gmail.com>
Cc: "Piza, Antoni" <APiza@gc.cuny.edu>

Dear Sato. I just received response from Benet about his flight ticket (at today's change $587).

The final artistic fee for Perspectives will be:
$9,000 + 2,000 Euros ($2,189.49 at today's change) - $587
a total of $10,602.49

All the best,
A
--
Angel Gil-Ordóñez
Music Director, PostClassicalEnsemble
5104 44th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20016-4039
T: (202) 677-5773
Cell: (202) 321 5795 
E: angel@postclassical.com
W:http://postclassical.com/[postclassical.com]
    http://www.chesapeakearts.com/angel-gil-ordonez[chesapeakeartists.com]
Principal Guest Conductor, Perspectives Ensemble, NY
Music Director, Georgetown University Orchestra
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From: Sato Moughalian
To: Piza, Antoni; Angel Gil-Ordóñez; Douglas Riva
Subject: Fwd: Final Program will all movements
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 10:17:20 AM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Sato Moughalian <satomoughalian@gmail.com>
Date: Fri, Jan 22, 2016 at 3:34 PM
Subject: Re: Final Program will all movements
To: Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com>
Cc: Angel Gil-Ordóñez <angel@postclassical.com>, "Piza, Antoni" <apiza@gc.cuny.edu>

Dear all,

Here is the title of Benet's new piece:
ROMANZA SIN PALABRAS
-Homenatge a Granados-

You can give the date of composition for the above as 2016, as it was just completed a few
days ago.

The Perspectives Ensemble solo violinist will be Jesse Mills
Cello Wendy Sutter
Piano Blair McMillen

I think their names should be listed on the front of the program, as the Trio is a substantial
work.

Thanks very much!
Sato

On Fri, Jan 15, 2016 at 12:47 PM, Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com> wrote:
Here is the final program with all movements listed.  I am not exactly

certain about the title of Benet's piece.  Please check this.

Douglas

“FROM BARCELONA WITH PASSION:  ENRIQUE GRANADOS IN NEW YORK”

A concert devoted to the music of Enrique Granados commemorating the Granados
Centenary.  Including a WORLD PREMIERE of Homenatje a Granados by
distinguished Spanish composer Benet Casablancas.    

PERFORMERS:
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PERSPECTIVES ENSEMBLE
Sato Moughalian, artistic director

 
ÁNGEL GIL-ORDOÑEZ, conductor

DOUGLAS RIVA, piano
TBA (from Perspectives), violin

Wendy Sutter or TBA (from Perspectives), cello

WORKS BY ENRIQUE GRANADOS

(1867-1916)

PROGRAM

Barcarola [Barcarolle], DLR V:4                          
 
Vals de concierto [Concert Waltz],  DLR VII:9
           

DOUGLAS RIVA, piano

Trio, C Major (1895)

          Poco allegro, con espressione

          Scherzetto--Vivace molto

           Duetto--Andante con molta espressione

           Finale--Allegro molto            

 

INTERMISSION 

 

Romanza sin Palabras [Hommage to Granados]    BENET CASABLANCAS
[WORLD PREMIERE]                                                                                  (Born
1956)
 

 

DANZA DE LOS OJOS VERDES  [Dance for Green Eyes]      

ANNA DE LA PAZ, Classical Spanish Dancer

 

ELISENDA                                                                                   

El jardín de Elisenda [Elisenda’s Garden]

Trova



Elisenda

 

PERSPECTIVES ENSEMBLE

ÁNGEL GIL-ORDOÑEZ, conductor



From: La Meira
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Flamenco panel in March
Date: Friday, January 08, 2016 1:34:26 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Maria Saldana <msp6@nyu.edu>
Date: Fri, Jan 8, 2016 at 10:12 AM
Subject: Flamenco panel in March
To: Laura Turegano <laura.turegano@nyu.edu>
Cc: Miguel Marin <miguel@miguelmarin.com>, La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com>, Ana
M Dopico <ana.dopico@nyu.edu>

Dear Laura,

Happy new year! I am following up on the phone messages I left on your office voicemail.
Late last year you forwarded me an email from Miguel Marin (cc'd here), the producer  of the
Flamenco Festival in NYC that happens every year. Thank you so much for forwarding the
email to me, as I am thrilled about organizing a panel for the KJCC on the art form that will be
part of the Festival. The panel will be made up of artists participating in the festival and NYU
and CUNY faculty (including dancer and flamencologist Meira Goldberg, also cc'd here). The
topic will be the place of suffering in the future of flamenco. So much of flamenco artistry was
generated by the history of discrimination and poverty endured by the Gitano people, what
will be the new sources of inspiration for the generations of artists who have not know the
suffering of their ancestors? How will this affect the future of the art form, most specifically
with regard to gender relations, as the suffering of unrequited love is itself often a topic of
flamenco lyrics and dance? 

This is a perfect event for the KJCC to participate in, given the Spanish cultural patrimony the
festival brings to New York City every year. We are under some constraints, however, in
terms of possible dates for the panel. The majority of the panel takes place during our spring
break. Given the huge fan base of flamenco aficionados in the City, we could certainly hold an
event during spring break and draw a large enough audience to fill the auditorium. However,
we were hoping for the 9th or 10th of March, in order to serve the NYU community as well as
the City. Is there any chance of availability in the KJCC auditorium either of those nights? 

thank you so much again for steering Miguel toward me and fingers crossed for auditorium
availability. 

abrazos, Josie

-- 
Prof. Josefina Saldaña
Department of Social & Cultural Analysis (SCA)
Center for Latin American and Caribbean Studies (CLACS)
Director, Undergraduate Studies, SCA
New York University
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-- 
...por que la vida se nos acaba,
y yo quiero morir cantando,
como muere la cigarra...

www.lameiraflamenco.com[lameiraflamenco.com]

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.lameiraflamenco.com&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=kgOpex1pV56icyllEnS2DgP4IyU8Y2qcfEWcuIeer2Y&s=iHA_8Nm4Y32hDI3U19DuSP3lNBX-msszd6ArnfE5pe8&e=


From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni; Straker, Kathryn
Subject: Fwd: galleys/ galeradas for Cambridge Scholars Publishing
Date: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 6:42:11 PM

be on lookout for this, and please scan and add to permissions folder...thank you!
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>
Date: Sun, Sep 25, 2016 at 9:29 PM
Subject: Re: galleys/ galeradas for Cambridge Scholars Publishing
To: Jeschke Claudia <Claudia.Jeschke@sbg.ac.at>

Dear Claudia,

Lovely on all counts. You should send your signed agreement to the Foundation, as they are
processing for me...

Foundation for Iberian Music
CUNY Graduate Center
365 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10016
ATTN: Antoni Pizá, Director

besos

On Fri, Sep 23, 2016 at 7:56 AM, Jeschke Claudia <Claudia.Jeschke@sbg.ac.at> wrote:
Dear Meira,

just a short note concerning the return of the contract. Can you please send me your home address; it
might be easier to send a hard copy than a scan - my technical equipment is rather rudimentary here...
I'll look into the galleys as soon as possible.

Thank you for sending the information for the event tomorrow. I am afraid that I'll be not able to join
you due to another social (not artistic) commitment.

I'll be in touch and would love to renew our Bryant Park routine...

all best,
Claudia

Univ. Prof. Dr. Claudia Jeschke
Universität Salzburg, Musik- und Tanzwissenschaft
Unipark, Erzabt-Klotz-Str.1
A-5020 Salzburg
Fon: 0043.662.8044.4670; Fax -4660
Mobil 0043.664.8482.346

Von: Meira Goldberg [fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com]
Gesendet: Donnerstag, 22. September 2016 21:19
An: Jeschke Claudia
Betreff: Re: galleys/ galeradas for Cambridge Scholars Publishing

Claudia!!! Yay...you're in New York!!
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I hope you can come Saturday night to see Belén Maya at the 92nd St.
Y! www.92y.org/Event/Dig-Dance-Flamenco-Romnia[92y.org]

She was here for our book launch, and is finishing her visit with this solo evening. AND let's
definitely get together for coffee in Bryant Park!

Do please send me the signed agreement - it's for CPS...just how they do things in
publishing here: you'll remember you had to sign your life away for McFarland too...

I attach your article...

besos,

m

On Sat, Sep 17, 2016 at 12:34 AM, Jeschke Claudia <Claudia.Jeschke@sbg.ac.at> wrote:
Meira, APOLOGIES!!! 
I missed the expiration date of the galleys. If there is still time, may I ask you to send them again? 

This article is a original one, I don't need any permission.

AND: I am heading for NYC tomorrow for a two weeks stay. Will we have a chance to meet? This
would be great.

All best wishes,
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
Gesendet: Freitag, 9. September 2016 15:31
An: Adam Kent; Alan Jones; Alex E. Chavez; Allan Oliveira; Arnie Sheetz; Aurèlia Pessarrodona;
Bruno Bartra; Claudia Calderón Saenz; Jeschke Claudia; Craig Russell; Cristina Cruces; Guillermo
Castro Buendia; Jared Newman<pjnguitar.earthlink.net[pjnguitar.earthlink.net]>; Jessica Gottfried
Hesketh; John Moore; Jose Miguel Hernandez Jaramillo; Kathryn Straker; Kiko Mora; Lenica Reyes;
Loren Chuse; Lou Charnon Deutsch; María José Ruiz Mayordomo; María Luisa Martínez; Miguel Ángel
Berlanga (vía Google Drive); Nubia Florez; Paul Naish; Peter Manuel; Piza, Antoni; Rafael Figeroa
Hernández; Ramon Soler; Raquel Paraiso; Reinaldo Fernández Manzano; Ricardo Pérez Montfort;
Theresa Goldbach; Thomas Baird; Tony Dumas; Walter Aaron Clark; Wilfried Raussert; Anna de la
Paz
Betreff: galleys/ galeradas for Cambridge Scholars Publishing

Esteemed colleagues and contributors to the CSP proceedings,

Forgive me for writing in English...

We are almost there with this beautiful volume - please find attached the
dustjacket - for you approval.

Please find below a link to download a zipped folder of the proofs for our book:

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.92y.org_Event_Dig-2DDance-2DFlamenco-2DRomnia&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=Nh6ZXtri8q4gJSaSG4CS5ytMgc6zKchuIDqqAq51D_s&s=47nvVPg-nelNDFwMu7Y-K-oLbB0nu6IvETu6k8NEZ2Q&e=
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https://www.sendthisfile.com/fC8Nc0XWIlN3LJc2fJmPM9RM[sendthisfile.com]

 
Please read the Read Me First file before proceeding, and please make all changes
in the files provided. Then please just email me your revised work--take care not
to change formatting please--or, it is easier, simply a list of revisions and we will
input them. We would like to have these back as soon as is convenient, for 2016
publication.
 
We also need you to please print, sign, scan in, and email us the Contributor
agreement, attached. Please do not be distressed by its language!

Here is the language from the front pages:

This volume is a revised and translated edition of bilingual conference
proceedings published by the Junta de Andalucía, Consejería de Cultura: Centro
de Documentación Musical de Andalucía, Música Oral del Sur, vol. 12 (2015).
The bilingual proceedings may be accessed here: http://www.centrodedocum
entacionmusicaldeandalucia.es/opencms/documentacion/revistas/revistas-
mos/musica-oral-del-sur-
n12.html[centrodedocumentacionmusicaldeandalucia.es] 

CSP explains in response to our query that "the standard form basically sets out
that if the text has been published elsewhere, you need to get permission. As it has
been set in your contract that the text has been published elsewhere, and you
already have permission, we can leave the form as it is and you would still be
covered."

So we do hope you feel comfortable with this.

...and stand by for an invitation to the upcoming conference, Spaniards, Indians,
Africans, and Gypsies: Transatlantic Malagueñas and Zapateados in Music,
Song, and Dance, April 6-7, 2017 at the University of California at Riverside. 

¡Pa'lante, y que siga la conversación!

con un saludo respetuoso y un abrazo fandanguero desde Nueva York,

Meira y Antoni
  

-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—
of the equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell
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-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—of
the equality of the human spirit.” 
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
To: Piza, Antoni; Angel Gil-Ordóñez; Tonna, Anna
Subject: Fwd: Got an email from zorpia?
Date: Thursday, February 18, 2016 2:52:07 PM

Good afternoon to all!

I just receive this information from Candice Agree.  Harsh realities all around.

DR
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Candice Agree <candice.agree@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Feb 18, 2016 at 2:45 PM
Subject: Re: Got an email from zorpia?
To: Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com>

Wow. Thanks for filling me in.

For The Spanish Hour, I'm still a one-person operation (and now working full-time at WFMT
and still doing CBS, thank god) it's been harder to keep it going. I am keeping it going,
though, because in the last few months I added 4 stations, everything from a low-power
community station in Missouri to a 100,000 watt powerhouse in Texarkana. So to be able to
use anything for The Spanish Hour, the artists have to do all the leg work; meaning: legal stuff
-- getting everyone who needs to sign a release for broadcast to do so; getting permissions
from publishers/owners of copyrights to waive fees for any non public domain works; getting
me the audio files. After all that, I have to make a judgement on the audio quality. It may be
good enough for the web or for archival purposes, but not for broadcast, you never know.

So if you or someone involves feel they want to go to that kind of trouble with no guarantee
that what I get I can use, I'm happy to accept them. That sounds a lot harsher than I mean it to,
but I think you know what I mean. I'm happy to have live exclusive concert material, but it has
to be broadcast quality sound. This has been my biggest issue with accepting audio files from
live events, and then folks get mad when they don;t hear their stuff on the air.

Let me know what you think. As far as other publicity, bear in mind that while radio stations
will celebrate the birth anniversary of almost anyone (even as they insist on saying Happy
Birthday to dead people) they're pretty reluctant to use a death anniversary as a jumping off
point for programming. It's absolutely true here at WFMT. Have mentioned the Granados
anniversary a number of times but am always told "we don't do death anniversaries."

I was just in NYC this past weekend. Steve is well, working in New York for the LA Times
for about 15 months now. Neither of us like having a commuter marriage, and when it gets
unbearable, I'll quit. But right now I need the retirement plan and the dental insurance. 

Candice Agree
917-494-0949; mobile
10 Mitchell Place             474 North Lake Shore Drive
Apt. 7G                            #3307
New York, NY 10017       Chicago, IL 60611
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On Thu, Feb 18, 2016 at 1:26 PM, Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com> wrote:
Hi Candice, 

The Granados years have begun! The first concert at the Hispanic Society was a huge
success. A video and quality sound recording was made. The program had many unusual
things, like the Tonadillas that are never done as Granados indicated, one with english horn
obligatto, one for male voice , one with recitation and another as a duet instead of a solo
voice. There was also a gorgeous male voice song with catalán text., etc. You might be
interested in using some of this on your Spanish Hour. FYI are two other concerts at the
Hispanic Society, chamber music on April 14 and piano solo on May 12. I am also giving a
recital at the Morgan Library on April 29. These are all to be recorded and there should be
interesting material from those as well.

Closer is the symposium at the CUNY Graduate Center on March 10 and concert with
Perspectives that evening. The program also includes a world premiere piece by Benet
Casablancas Romanza sin palabras-Homage to Granados (Yes, REALLY a title in two
languages!) Can you suggest any ways we can promote this free event? Could you use
interviews, program notes, etc? 

Hope life in Chicago is going well for you. Where is Steve? 

Besos, Doug

On Thu, Feb 18, 2016 at 10:08 AM, Candice Agree <candice.agree@gmail.com> wrote:
Thanks Doug. Hope all's well.

Candice Agree
917-494-0949; mobile
10 Mitchell Place             474 North Lake Shore Drive
Apt. 7G                            #3307
New York, NY 10017       Chicago, IL 60611

On Thu, Feb 18, 2016 at 8:42 AM, Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com> wrote:
And message from Zorpia is spam.  But, I am glad to have your e mail address.

Will send a message here.  D

On Thu, Feb 18, 2016 at 1:00 AM, Candice Agree <candice.agree@gmail.com> wrote:
Did you try to send me a message or is that spam? Can you write me here?

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
To: Amanda Millar; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: here"s the manuscript!!!
Date: Thursday, August 25, 2016 4:45:53 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Aug 25, 2016 at 4:32 PM
Subject: Re: here's the manuscript!!!
To: Victoria Carruthers <victoria.carruthers@cambridgescholars.com>, Anna de la Paz
<annadelapaz@hotmail.com>
Cc: "Piza, Antoni" <APiza@gc.cuny.edu>

Dear Amanda,

We are forwarding this to you, as we have just received an "out of office" response from
Victoria saying she will not be back till Sept. 12. 

Our concern is to have the book out in 2016 - we understand that it must be forwarded
(shared) with copyeditors once again for spot check before it can move on to typesetting.

Can you do that in Victoria's absence?

thank you,

Meira and Antoni

Dear Victoria,

We have completed a thorough revision of the manuscript, with the help of our colleague
Anna de la Paz (cc'd here). We have simply updated the complete manuscript, which was
already shared with you.

We are glad that, given this August submission, the book can still come out in 2016.

We look forward to hearing from you.

with kind regards,

Meira and Antoni

On Wed, Jul 27, 2016 at 8:05 AM, Victoria Carruthers <victoria.carruthers@
cambridgescholars.com> wrote:

Dear Meira,

 

Thank you for getting back to me. I have noted your suggested title change and the
prepress team will get back to me on this matter once your revised work has been
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submitted.

 

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

 

Disclaimer: The views and opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily
represent those of Cambridge Scholars Publishing Ltd. The contents of this message are
intended for the addressee only. They are confidential and may contain private
information. Cambridge Scholars Publishing is not responsible for any damages resulting
from the unauthorised use, forwarding or disclosure of this message, and will not be held
liable for damages or loss caused by any viruses.

 

From: Meira Goldberg [mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com] 
Sent: 27 July 2016 12:27
To: Victoria Carruthers; Piza, Antoni

Subject: Re: here's the manuscript!!!

 

Dear Victoria,
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Hmmm. We certainly appreciate the importance of a clear and concise title. On the other
hand, for us the conceptual thrust and in fact the ground-breaking nature of this volume rests
in the definition/contextualization of what we mean by "Global" in the phrase "Spaniards,
Indians, Africans, and Gypsies." Ours in an inclusive approach to the fandango -- that's what
we mean by "Global" -- that has never been attempted before. The phrase "Spaniards,
Indians, Africans, and Gypsies" is so important to us that we have repeated it, as a "company
brand," so to speak, in the title of our 2017 conference.

 

Is there a possible compromise? What about switching the order of the phrases, thus

 

The Global Reach of the Fandango in Music, Song, and Dance: Spaniards, Indians,
Africans, and Gypsies

 

Let us know your thoughts,

 

Meira and Antoni

 

On Mon, Jul 25, 2016 at 6:45 AM, Victoria Carruthers <victoria.carruthers@cambridge
scholars.com> wrote:

Dear Meira and Antoni,

 

Thank you for your email. If the material is submitted in August and passes then we will
be able to publish the book in 2016.

The prepress team have suggested an amended title as we have found that titles which are
more ambiguous do not sell as many copies as books that have more specific titles.
Acquisition libraries in particular are more inclined to purchase books when the title is
clear and concise and the subject matter is apparent. I understand that the thinking from
our own side is that when the metadata reaches libraries, the subtitle is often not
included. As such, the book will appear with the main title only, and that this title does
not offer enough information for a librarian to make an informed purchasing decision,
thus reducing the likely uptake of University libraries for the publication.

While your title Spaniards, Indians, Africans and Gypsies: The Global Reach of the
Fandango in Music, Song, and Dance is within the recommended length we are
concerned of the ambiguity of this for libraries. Thus the prepress team suggested: The
Global Reach of the Fandango in Music, Song, and Dance.
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
Sent: 24 July 2016 20:17

To: Victoria Carruthers
Cc: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Re: here's the manuscript!!!

 

Dear Victoria,

 

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.cambridgescholars.com_&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=j_WzWn-3bm0P5WxiCRq8XRgYJ2pVfxm7gTjets0mBdY&s=9TsdcQv1bEJstLTmlU5zf8z44DynETfG5fEIrKMQzwE&e=
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I just wanted to give you a status update. We are working on reviewing the manuscript
again, and should have it ready by August 25. Do I understand correctly that if we resubmit
the manuscript by this date in such condition as passes muster with your spot-checkers that
the book can still come out in 2016? That is our hope certainly, so if you need materials
from us sooner than August 25 in order for that to happen please let us know.

 

But do let us address the copyeditors' concerns about the title of the manuscript now, as I
imagine that will be useful: the title of the book, as written on the title page ("00_Title page"
in the folder "CambridgeScholars_00 Front Matter") is 

 

Spaniards, Indians, Africans and Gypsies: The Global Reach of the Fandango in
Music, Song, and Dance

 

This is 99 characters, including spaces. I am confused as to where your copyeditors
got the Spanish version of the title, as it only applies to the bilingual proceedings
published in Música Oral del Sur.

 

Thank you for your continued support of this publication,

 

Meira and Antoni

 

On Thu, Jul 14, 2016 at 10:05 AM, Victoria Carruthers <victoria.carruthers@cambridge
scholars.com> wrote:

Dear Meira,

 

The prepress team have given me their report on your material and unfortunately are
unable to proceed further, this is due to the fact that they found that there are a
significant number of grammatical errors and typos, as per the attached error document.

Please note that the prepress team have also outlined some changes for your cover
material, if you are happy with these changes then please let me know, alternatively if you
have any notes regarding this then please do submit these with the resubmission of your
manuscript.

I am sure you can appreciate that it is in the best interests of the work for it to be
presented with as few errors as possible. CSP do want to support you as far as we can in
this publication process and to that end, the prepress team would ask that you proofread
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the material in its entirety.

  

We are, unfortunately, unable to proceed further with this project until we have a
resolution to this issue. There is no deadline for proofreading, please do take your time
with this process.

 

Finally, please note that the attached error document represents only the errors found
during the spot-check and not a complete review of the manuscript.

 

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
Sent: 12 July 2016 15:15

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

 

thank you Victoria. We will look forward to hearing from them.

 

On Tue, Jul 12, 2016 at 4:38 AM, Victoria Carruthers <victoria.carruthers@cambridge
scholars.com> wrote:

Dear Meira,

 

Thank you for your email, I have passed this over to our prepress team and they will
process this accordingly.

 

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
Sent: 11 July 2016 16:29
To: Victoria Carruthers
Cc: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Re: here's the manuscript!!!

 

Dear Victoria,

 

Thank you for this helpful detail.

 

Please find attached the editor bios and blurb for the back cover. I uploaded the blurb into
the manuscript as well. In the manuscript I placed the editor bios on a page within the end
matter. Do you want me to (also) put them on the back cover, or move them to the back
cover?

 

Which permissions do you require: the author authorizations, or just the images
permissions?

 

sincerely,

 

Meira

 

On Mon, Jul 11, 2016 at 5:47 AM, Victoria Carruthers <victoria.carruthers@cambridge
scholars.com> wrote:

Dear Meira and Antoni,
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Thank you for your email.

Could you please send the blurb and bio for this manuscript? The prepress team will
require this before the material can proceed to typesetting.

 

If you could please send copies of permissions then this would be excellent.

The List Prices of our books vary, as these are set according to the volume’s technical
specifications, i.e. binding, number of pages, number of images etc. Our average price for
a hardback volume is around £45. We are not in a position to offer free copies to
contributors; but all CSP contributors are entitled to free access to your e-book and can
purchase all CSP titles at a 40% discount (not including carriage). Editors will receive 2
complimentary copies each.

The book will be given an ISBN at typesetting and we expect to publish the work 3 months
after the MS is passed to typesetting, when the MS passes to typesetting hinges on
proofreading and how much is required.

 

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
Sent: 08 July 2016 17:49
To: Victoria Carruthers; Piza, Antoni
Subject: here's the manuscript!!!

 

Dear Victoria,

 

Thank you for your patience while we completed the manuscript for submission to CPS. We
apologize for being so late!

 

As we discussed, we have shared the folder containing the manuscript organized into
sections on dropbox. We hope that you will find it as compelling as we do. The word count
comes in at 206,825. If your 200,000 limit is strict, we will remove the references cited in
each article and we think that will bring it in under 200,000. If, however, CSP does not hold
us strictly to the 200,000 limit, we think readers will find the reference lists at the end of
each article helpful.

 

I have communicated with Sophie Edminson and Amanda Millar about color images, and
have placed a double-sided page with color images immediately after the title page.

 

I made a separate page for editor bios in the end matter. Will you kindly remind me to whom
I was supposed to send those editor bios?

 

Likewise, I believe all the images are either fair use, have obtained proper permission, or are
photographs by the author. Do you need me to compile a folder or a document with those
permissions? Likewise, as we discussed, we obtained permission to publish from all of the
authors by email: does CSP need copies of those?

 

How much will the book cost? Do Antoni and I receive any complimentary copies? Can you
remind us what that author discount is, and how to purchase copies?
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Will you let us know as soon as the isbn is obtained?

 

Will it be out in 2016?

 

We will look forward to the next steps.

 

With our best,

 

Meira and Antoni
--
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From: Meira Goldberg
To: Straker, Kathryn; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: how"s this?
Date: Saturday, October 29, 2016 8:15:29 AM
Attachments: moore-diagram.pdf

03_JohnMoore copy CSP edit.docx

Dear Katy,

Please find attached a pdf from John Moore,  the docx of his article for CSP, and the CSP final
galleys. Page 36 is John Moore's chart - it's misaligned. He would like to replace it with the
attached pdf "moore-diagram." Can you work your magic on this please?

thank you!
​

 The Global Reach of the Fandango in Music Song ...
​
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Moore, John <moorej@ucsd.edu>
Date: Fri, Oct 28, 2016 at 4:13 PM
Subject: RE: how's this?
To: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

Will this work?  It is a pdf of just the diagram.

 

From: Meira Goldberg [mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com] 
Sent: Thursday, October 27, 2016 2:58 PM
To: Moore, John
Subject: Re: how's this?

 

OK. ugh. The only way I can think of to fix this is for you to send me an image capture of the
chart and we'll try to get them to insert it in place of the text chart that is there now. I can just
take a screen shot from your pdf but that won't be as high quality an image. Do you want to do
it? 

 

Sorry for how hard it's being...I do want to get it right.

 

beso fuerte,

 

m

mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBcXNnSnd4MGkwVnc/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBcXNnSnd4MGkwVnc/view?usp=drive_web
mailto:moorej@ucsd.edu
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
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John Moore 


 


(5) Fandangos de Huelva (el Cojo de Huelva) 


Line a. Rhythm:   1      2     3     4     5    6    1     2     3    4    5    6 


    Chords:   G7                           C 


    Verse:    que me sir-   ve     de    com- pañaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa 


 


Line b. Rhythm:   1      2     3     4     5    6    1     2     3    4    5    6 


    Chords:   C                            F 


    Verse:    tengo una  pena   con-   mi-  gooooooooooooooooo 


 


Line c. Rhythm:   1      2     3     4     5    6    1     2     3    4    5    6 


    Chords:   G7                           C 


    Verse:    que me sir-   ve     de    com- paña-  aaaaaaaaa 


 


Line d. Rhythm:   1      2     3     4     5    6    1     2     3    4    5    6 


    Chords:   C                            G7 


    Verse:    ya      la ale- gría   pa     miiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 


 


Line e. Rhythm:   1      2     3     4     5    6    1     2     3    4    5    6 


    Chords:   G7                           C 


    Verse:    me    par-    ece    cosa   (e)xtra ñaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa 


 


Line f. Rhythm:   1      2     3     4     5    6    1     2     3    4    5    6 


    Chords:   C          F                  E 


    Verse:    des-   de      que  te   cono-  cííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííí 


 


 






Chapter Three



Cante libre is Not Free—
Contrasting Approaches 
to fandangos personales[footnoteRef:1] [1:  Thanks to Brook Zern for generously sharing the discographic information. He is not responsible for any erroneous interpretations presented here.] 




John Moore







Abstract

Flamenco song forms are often divided into two categories: cante a compás and cante libre; respectively those with a steady rhythmic structure and those said to lack any regular rhythmic structure. Most of the cante libre forms belong to the generalized fandangos family and derive ultimately from rhythmic folkloric song forms. Cante libre emerged in the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, as professional singers expanded the flamenco repertoire by transforming these rhythmic forms into libre vocal showpieces. Among these are the fandangos personales, which are often associated with the twentieth century ópera flamenca movement. This paper will examine two contrasting approaches to rhythm in fandangos personales: those associated with Pepe Marchena and Manolo Caracol. I discuss the interplay between rhythm and adornment in the execution of this form and an evolution where compás diminishes over time. Interestingly, however, one finds vestiges of compás, even in the freest expression of cante libre.



Keywords

Fandangos, fandangos personales, cante libre, flamenco, rhythm, ópera flamenca, Pepe Marchena, Manolo Caracol






Resumen

Los palos flamencos suelen dividirse en dos campos: los palos a compás y los palos libres. La mayoría de los palos libres pertenece a la familia fandangos, los cuales se derivan de palos folklóricos rítmicos. Los palos libres surgieron a finales del siglo XIX y principios del XX, cuando cantaores profesionales ampliaron el repertorio flamenco transformando palos rítmicos en obras libres. Entre estas últimas se encuentran los fandangos personales, asociados con el movimiento de la “ópera flamenca”. Este ensayo estudia dos formas de compás en los fandangos personales: la de Pepe Marchena y la de Manolo Caracol. Propongo aquí que lejos de haber líneas divisorias claras, hay una amplia gama de expresiones rítmicas que van de ejemplos con estructura rítmica muy clara a otros de auténtico cante libre. Sin embargo, siempre quedan vestigios de compás incluso en los ejemplos más libres del cante libre. 

Introduction

This paper will discuss aspects of the fandango personal – a flamenco cante that became popular during the early twentieth century and remains a popular major flamenco song form today. I will begin by discussing the folkloric roots of these fandangos and how the folkloric rhythmic structure was altered to create a vocal showpiece. Fandangos personales are usually characterized as cante libre – that is, a form with no fixed rhythm. Nevertheless, I will show that this is not always the case and that vestiges of the folkloric rhythm remain, even in interpretations that seem to be libre. In addition, I will suggest that interpretations range from fully to less rhythmic, with the trend to dispense with some of the rhythmic remnants as the form evolved in the twentieth century. After discussing the emergence and structure of these fandangos, I will concentrate on their interpretation by two prominent exponents of the fandango personal: Pepe Marchena and Manolo Caracol. These artists had very different approaches, but both were hugely influential during the mid-twentieth century and both were widely imitated, leading to a division in interpretation, which, to some degree, remains with flamenco today.

Eastern and Western varieties

The fandango personal has its roots in the folkloric fandangos of Southwestern Andalucía—often loosely referred to as fandangos de Huelva, due to their prominence in the province of Huelva, although there are several regional varieties of fandangos found in that area. Nevertheless, it is useful to distinguish Western fandangos (de Huelva) from the related Eastern fandangos found in the provinces of Málaga, Granada, and elsewhere, as these latter are characterized by a distinct rhythm (“abandolao”), despite a nearly identical chord structure. 



			The abandolao forms include a number of regional varieties, all with a basic 6-count rhythm and a similar chord structure. The abandolao cover term has gained increased currency over the past decades for forms that once were, perhaps too loosely, referred to as verdiales. Indeed, verdiales represent a particular form in this family, as do rondeñas, jaberas, fandangos de Granada, fandangos de Lucena, among others.[footnoteRef:2] The Golden period of flamenco—roughly the late nineteenth century—saw several singers develop personalized versions of some of these forms. By dispensing with the strict rhythmic structure, they created a repertoire of free form (or cante libre) forms such as malagueñas and granadinas. Major figures from this period include artists such as Juan Breva, Antonio Chacón, Fosforito, El Canario, and Enrique el Mellizo (Molina and Mairena 1979: 298–305, Alvarez Caballero 1981: 121–127). A somewhat different, but similar, process, also in the late nineteenth century, led to the development of the Levante forms from fandangos associated with the Eastern provinces of Almería and Murcia; these include tarantas, mineras, cartegeneras, among others (Castro Buendía 2011). [2:  It may be the case that aficionados did not always control the melodic distinctions between these forms and simply referred to them all as verdiales. Nowadays, more enlightened aficionados still do not always control the distinctions, but refer to them all as abandolao.] 




			Discographic evidence shows that both abandolao-based and Levante forms were popular around the turn of the twentieth century. In 2003 the Centro Andaluz de Flamenco released a double CD with 45 tracks taken from early wax cylinder recordings. While these are not dated, they probably were recorded before 1905. They include six malagueñas, three cartegeneras, and one murciana. Similarly, a 1996 Sonifolk collection of 24 recordings by Antonio Chacón (recorded between 1913 and 1927) includes five malagueñas, two granadinas, two media granadinas, two mineras, and three cartegeneras. Interestingly, neither of these collections includes forms labeled “fandangos”. A survey of recordings from the Soler collection (consisting of about 6000 recordings from cylinders and 78s), restricting the search to recordings from 1890 through 1909, reveals seven cuts labeled simply “fandangos”—three by el Niño de Cabra, one by el Diana, and three by el Mochuelo. While I have not been able to locate all of these, those I have reviewed (by el Niño de Cabra and el Mochuelo) were actually fandangos de Lucena, again from the abandolao category. Also included among these early recordings were a total of twelve cuts labeled “malagueña y fandango”, “cartagena-fandangos”, “tarantas y fandango”, “fandangos de Granada”, “fandangos de Málaga”, and “fandangos de Lucena”. I assume these also represent fandangos based on abandolao or other Eastern forms. Thus, it is likely that the term “fandangos” had not been widely applied to Western varieties at this point and that the regional varieties from the Huelva region had not yet been exploited by professional singers of the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. 



			Whereas the late nineteenth century saw the rise of personalized versions of abandolao forms, the rise of Western-based fandangos seems to have begun slowly in the teens to become a robust trend in the 1920s. Looking again at the Soler collection, of the 26 recordings from teens identified as some type of fandango, we still find fifteen that are unlikely to be Western (listed as “malagueña y fandango,” fandango de Lucena, etc.), but eight labeled simply “fandangos” and three “fandangos de Huelva.” Of course, we don’t know how many of those listed as “fandangos” might be something like fandangos de Lucena, but the first appearance of “fandangos de Huelva” shows that Western varieties are entering the professional repertoire. 



			Turning next to recordings from the 1920s, we find an explosion of fandangos, and it is likely that the majority of these are based on the Western style. Of the 595 Soler recordings from this decade bearing some kind of “fandangos” label, only fourteen have labels like “fandangos de Lucena”, etc., while 26 are “fandangos de Huelva”; the remaining 555 are simply labeled “fandangos.” Of course, the increase in numbers is certainly due to the general increase in recording, but the small percentage of non-Western labels, as compared to earlier periods is significant. Furthermore, we begin to see recordings by artists famous for the Western-based fandangos personales: e.g., Pepe Marchena, Angelillo, José Cepero, el Carbonerillo, Manuel Centeno, el Niño Gloria, Pepe Pinto, and Manuel Vallejo (Alvarez Caballero 1981: 191–199; 207–208). Molina and Mairena (1979: 294) note that the popularity of fandangos personales, often based on fandangos de Huelva, began around 1925.



			I suspect that while the use of the term “fandangos” once tended to refer to abandolao forms, particularly fandangos de Lucena, by the end of the 1920s, this same term generally referred to Western-derived fandangos personales or, in some cases, fandangos de Huelva. Certainly, this latter usage seems to be the norm today.[footnoteRef:3] [3:  A related term “fandanguillos” seems to be used in at least two ways. Manfredi Cano (1963: 147–153) uses it as a synonym for fandangos de Huelva, noting that Pepe Pérez de Guzmán (1895–1930) was an important creator in this genre. Pohren (1984: 20) gives the same definition. Nevertheless, Blas Vega and Ríos Ruiz 1988: 288 note that “fandanguillo” can also refer to any fandango associated with the ópera flamenca period (roughly 1920–1950), including the fandangos personales discussed here.] 


Fandangos de Huelva and fandangos personales

Fandangos personales are the personalized version of primarily Western fandangos and vary in melody and delivery from singer to singer. Often, but not always, these are libre—that is, the guitarist’s rhythm associated with fandangos de Huelva is relaxed or abandoned. The adjective “personales” suggests that each singer modifies the melody and delivery in a way to create a personal style of fandango. Such fandangos, particularly when libre, are sometimes called fandangos naturales or fandangos grandes.[footnoteRef:4] [4:  Pohren (1984:118-119) uses the term “fandangos grandes”, as do many non-Spanish aficionados. It is not clear that this term has much currency in Spain, where the nomenclature “fandangos naturales” or “fandangos personales” is common.] 




			To understand the structure of these fandangos, I first discuss the structure of fandangos de Huelva according to three dimensions: rhythmic structure, chord structure, poetic structure.



Rhythmic structure 

The rhythm associated with fandangos de Huelva is usually described as either a three or six beat cycle. The flamencopolis website represents it with two measures of three beats, as in (1):



(1) 

[image: http://www.flamencopolis.com/wp-content/uploads/palilleo-750x61.png]

(http://www.flamencopolis.com/archives/472)



Because the two measures have slightly different accents, most guitarists think of the form as having a six-beat pattern. 



Chord structure

The chord structure of fandangos de Huelva involves two separate sections: the copla and the entrecopla. The copla is the verse; the singer is accompanied in a major key – often using a C major position.[footnoteRef:5] The verse is divided into six melodic units, each with two measures of six beats. While there are several variations, the pattern in (2) is common: [5:  While the guitarist often plays in the C major position, the actual key will vary, depending on the singer’s range, which is accommodated through the use of a cappo. ] 




(2)		Copla:	   a.	G7 – C

								b.	C – F

								c.		G7 – C

								d.	C – G7

								e.		G7 – C

								f.		C – F – E



Notice that while the copla uses chords associated with the C major key, the last line resolves from the sub-dominant F down a half-step to E, creating an E phrygian chord progression. This leads to the chord structure for the entrecopla (“between coplas”), where the guitar, without singing, cycles through the Andalusian cadence—a pattern associated with the phrygian mode:



(3)		Entrecopla: E – Am – G7 – F – E



The entrecopla is played over two six-beat measures per cycle – there are usually two or more entrecoplas between each copla. In addition, the guitarist may play melodic variations (falsetas) between coplas – these are usually structured around the entrecopla chord pattern. 



Thus, the chordal structure alternates between phrygian Andalusian cadence entrecoplas before and between verses, with related major key coplas interspersed.[footnoteRef:6] [6:  Because traditional flamenco guitarists were unschooled in music theory, they referred to the E position as “por arriba”, reflecting the altitude of the left hand on the fingerboard. Fandangos de Huelva could also be played in the A position, which was called “por medio” (left hand in the middle of the fingerboard); this would involve an A phrygian entrecopla (A Dm, C7, Bb, A), and the related F major copla. Additionally, there are several regional varieties (e.g. Calaña, among others), where the entrecopla remains in E phrygian, while the copla may be in A major, A minor, or A major alternating with A minor.] 


Poetic structure

Fandangos verses typically consist of five lines of approximately eight syllables each;[footnoteRef:7] the example in (4), recorded by el Cojo de Huelva in 1943, is typical: [7:  See Navarro (1968: 61–76) for a discussion of Spanish intonation groups and how they are typically seven or eight syllables long.] 




(4)		1.	tengo una pena conmigo 			(9 syllables)
			2.	que me sirve de compaña.			(8 syllables)
			3.	Ya la alegría para mí						(8 syllables, para → pa”)
			4.	me parece cosa extraña,				(9 syllables)
			5.	desde que te conocí.						(7 syllables)



				“I have a sorrow 

				that keeps me company.

				For me happiness

				is something unknown,

				ever since I met you.”



In order to fit five lines into six melody units, one of the poetic lines (usually the second) is sung twice—as the first and third melodic line (lines a and c in 2). Each line contains twelve beats (two measures of six) and approximately eight syllables. However, there is often more than one syllable per beat and the final syllable may fall as early as the fifth or sixth beat of the first measure, or as late as the third beat of the second measure. In order to fill out the second measure, some syllables can be elongated; most commonly the last syllable is extended several beats, while other accented syllables may also be extended. It is common for the singing to end before the end of the second measure, where the singer rests during the remaining beats. Putting this all together, the example in (4) is sung approximately as in (5):
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Cante libre is Not Free



(5) Fandangos de Huelva (el Cojo de Huelva)

Line a. Rhythm:		1					2				3				4				5			6			1				2				3			4			5			6

Chords:			G7																											C

Verse:				que	me	sir-			ve	 			de	 		com-	pañaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa



Line b. Rhythm:		1					2				3				4				5			6			1				2				3			4			5			6

Chords:			C																												F

Verse:				tengo una 	pena 		con-			mi-		gooooooooooooooooo



Line c. Rhythm:		1					2				3				4				5			6			1				2				3			4			5			6

Chords:			G7																											C

Verse:				que	me	sir-			ve	 			de	 		com-	paña-		aaaaaaaaa



Line d. Rhythm:		1					2				3				4				5			6			1				2				3			4			5			6

Chords:			C																												G7

Verse:				ya 					la ale-	gría 		pa 				miiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii



Line e. Rhythm:		1					2				3				4				5			6			1				2				3			4			5			6

Chords:			G7																											C

Verse:				me 			par-				ece 			cosa 		(e)xtra	ñaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa



Line f. Rhythm:		1					2				3				4				5			6			1				2				3			4			5			6

Chords:			C										F																		E

Verse:				des-			de 					que 	te 		cono-		cííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííííí





Taking the structure of fandangos de Huelva as a canonical pattern upon which fandangos personales are based, we find that singers employ a variety of mechanisms to personalize their interpretations. These include:



(6) Non-canonical aspects of fandangos personales:

· Medium to long extensions: varying degrees of longer extensions than normally found in fandangos de Huelva

· Linking: combining lines – that is, moving from one line to the next without resting for the final beats

· Pauses: breaking up a line with pauses, repetitions, and vocalizations (“ay”, “jipíos”)



The last line (line f) often involves extensions, repetitions, vocalizations, etc.; however, these features are also possible on the other lines. The following examples illustrate some of these effects:



(7)		Fandangos, Pepe Marchena (Gramophóno, 1934; re-released 1996, Cátedra del Cante)

[bookmark: _GoBack]		a.		a implorar vienes tú perdón							

		b.	tú le faltaste a mi madre un día				extensions throughout

		c.		y vienes a implorarme perdón					extension, mid-line

		d.	sabiendo que tú no podías							extension, end of line

		e.		perdonar tu mal acción									extensions, beginning & end 

of line

		f.		aunque tanto yo a ti te quería					pauses



		“One day you disrespected my mother

		and now you come asking forgiveness

		knowing that you cannot

		forgive such a bad deed

		even though I loved you so much.”



(8)		Fandangos, Manolo Caracol (Columbia, 1954; re-released 2007, Discos de Pizarra)

		a.		de mi mente															extension, end of line		

		b.	le pido a ese gran poder								pause, extensions, mid- & end 

of line

		c.		que te quitara de mi mente							extensions throughout

		d.	yo paso un día sin verte

		e. 	delante de una cruz




		f.		a Dios le pido la muerte								vocalizations (ay …), pauses, 

long resolve[footnoteRef:8] [8:  The series of “ay” vocalizations in this example is similar to the malagueña de Enrique Mellizo. In addition, the melody of the fandango resembles that of the malagueña del Mezillo; this was a signature feature of Caracol’s fandango personal. Thus, while the guitar accompaniment is clearly based on Western fandangos, the melody is based on the (ultimately Eastern) malagueña. This is possible because the chord structures are very similar. ] 


		

“I ask that great power

		to get you out of my mind.

		If I go a day without seeing you

		in front of a cross

		I ask God for death.”



In both of the examples in (7–8), the guitarist does not keep a steady rhythm; rather, there is a background rhythm that is broken to match the singer’s structure—this is typical of cante libre, and particularly of libre fandangos. The rhythm is not totally absent, but it is inconsistent. Hence, in these libre fandangos personales, there are still vestiges of the six beat pattern associated with fandangos de Huelva. Nevertheless, it is possible to employ non-canonical features and still keep rhythm; in the following example, the guitarist keeps a steady beat, while the singing tends to float over the rhythmic structure; in addition, each line is longer than the two six-beat measures found in fandangos de Huelva:



(9)		Fandangos, Pepe Marchena (unknown year, re-released 1996, Cátedra del Cante)



		a.		yo vendo flor de romero					vocalization (“ay”), extensions, 

mid- & end of line

		b.	en un campo entre tomillo				extensions, mid- & end of line, 

lines b & c linked

		c.		yo vendo flor de romero

		d.	allí vive en un Castillo						lines d & e linked

		e.		la mujer que tanto quiero				extension mid-line, vocalizations

		f.		a reina del fandanguillo					long resolve

	

	“In a field of thyme

			I sell rosemary flowers

			there, in castle, lives

			the woman I love so much

			the queen of the fandanguillo.”



To summarize, there are a number of non-canonical features associated with fandangos personales – aside from melody, these are mechanisms for personalizing the cante. We have seen these features employed both with a rhythmic accompaniment and as cante libre, although, even in the latter case, the guitarist tends to keep vestiges of a six beat rhythm. This raises several questions about fandangos personales and cante libre: Is there a tendency for them to be libre? Put another way, is there a correlation between non-canonical features and a libre accompaniment? Has libre accompaniment become more prevalent over time? Finally, what is the range of individual variation? I will explore these questions in the next section based on a comparison of two famous fandangueros: Pepe Marchena and Manolo Caracol.

Marchena and Caracol: contrasting approaches 
to fandangos personales

Two of the most influential flamenco singers from the mid-twentieth century were Pepe Marchena and Manolo Caracol. Both enjoyed immense popularity, both have been criticized for their commercialization of flamenco, and both have left scores of followers. However, the two are far apart in the way they approach cante.



José Tejada Martín (1903–1976) was born in Marchena (Sevilla) to working- and service-class parents. His hometown gave him the artistic name “Niño de Marchena” and later “Pepe Marchena”. Marchena worked at menial jobs, beginning around age eight and began singing in local taverns, despite opposition from his father (who was an amateur singer himself). In 1917 Marchena debuted in the Café de Novedades in Sevilla, which launched his professional career. He began recording in 1925 and ended up with one of the most illustrious careers in flamenco and is largely credited with popularizing the fandangos personales. Marchena was the leading figure of the ópera flamenca period, which lasted from the 1920s until the 1950s and was characterized by fandangos, Latin American inspired songs (e.g. milongas), cante libre, and use of falsetto. The antithesis to Gypsy flamenco, ópera flamenca generated considerable controversy; many saw it as a watered-down parody of pure flamenco, while for others, it was the preferred form of popular flamenco. Thus, Marchena was a polarizing figure; while many credit him for his fandangos creations (e.g. el de Triana 1952: 24), there is a range of opinion over his merit and influence (e.g., González Climent 1975, Pohren 1988, Cobo Guzmán 1990, and Mitchell 1994). The ópera flamenca period was populated with Marchena imitators; many aficionados grudgingly admire Marchena, while heaping scorn on these marchenistas (e.g. Camacho Galindo 1977:154-155).



			Manuel Ortega Juárez (1909–1973) bore the family nickname “Caracol” after his father, Manuel Caracol “el del Bulto”, a singer and sword bearer for his bullfighter cousins Rafael el Gallo and Joselito el Gallo. Born in Sevilla, and growing up in the famous Alameda de Hércules neighborhood, Caracol belonged to the Gypsy family Ortega, famous for flamenco artists and bullfighters, tracing their ancestry back to El Planeta and Curro Dulce – two of the earliest singers for which there are historical records. Manolo Caracol debuted at the 1922 cante contest in Granada, organized by Federico García Lorca, Manuel de Falla and others. This contest was an intellectual reaction to the commercialization of flamenco; therefore, only non-professionals were allowed to compete (Mitchell 1994). The teenaged Caracol won the youth prize. He made his first recordings in 1930, and launched a very successful theatrical career, exploiting the popularity of the ópera flamenca movement. While his approach to cante was very Gypsy, he created many commercialized cantes, including zambras (to orchestral accompaniments), often performed with singer/dancer Lola Flores. His fandangos personales are famous and widely imitated, particularly by Gypsy singers. Caracol opened the Madrid tablao Los Canasteros in 1963. Aficionados tend to be more forgiving towards Caracol – partly because he can sing very intense and personal Gypsy flamenco. However, he had no qualms about commercializing his art when expedient, and this has caused some controversy (Camacho Galindo 1977: 162–165).



Evidence from a sample

In this section I report on a sample of 60 fandangos personales recorded between 1928 and 1963 by Marchena and Caracol (30 fandangos each). Each fandango was coded according to the degree to which it strays from the canon of a typical fandangos de Huelva. These codings are based on the sum of a score—between 0 and 3—assigned to each of the first five lines of the fandango. Because the final line is usually ornate, it was not coded. The line score was based on the number and degree of non-canonical features: pauses, linked lines, and extensions all add to the non-canonical score (up to a ceiling of 3). The five line scores are added, yielding a range of scores from zero to ten. The purpose of this coding is to answer the following questions:



(10)	a.		Is there a significant difference between Marchena and Caracol’s approach to fandangos?

b.	Is there a correlation between date of recording and whether the guitar accompaniment is libre?

c. Is there a correlation between non-canonical features and whether the guitar	accompaniment is libre?



It is clear from listening to the examples in (7-8) that Marchena and Caracol sound very different. Caracol’s delivery is typically Gypsy, while Marchena has the sweet, high-pitched voice (with some falsetto) popular in the 1920s and 1930s. However, non-canonical features are, in principle, orthogonal to voice quality. Nevertheless, we find that Marchena’s fandangos are, indeed, less canonical than those of Caracol. The average of Marchena’s 30 scores is 4.8 (SD=2.27), while Caracol’s average is 3.16 (SD=2.26). A one-tailed T-Test shows that this difference is highly significant (p=00465). While it may be possible to find examples where Marchena’s fandango seems more ornate than Caracol’s and vice versa, the statistical analysis shows that Marchena’s fandangos are significantly more non-canonical than Caracol’s.



			As the fandangos personales evolved from Western varieties of fandangos, the rhythmic structure became less pronounced. If this is an actual trend from rhythmic fandangos towards cante libre, we would expect to find more fandangos personales with rhythmic accompaniment earlier and fewer later. The data from this sample bear this out. With two exceptions (two verses from a 1928 recording), all of the recordings between 1928 and 1933 had rhythmic accompaniments. There were two more rhythmic recordings in 1934, but the remaining eight recordings from 1934, and all subsequent recordings (1944-1963) had libre accompaniment. In total, there were 20 rhythmic recordings and 37 libre ones.[footnoteRef:9] Thus, with the exceptions of two libre fandangos in 1928, the practice of cante libre for fandangos personales takes hold definitively in 1934. The correlation between date and type of accompaniment is further confirmed by a regression analysis. [9:  One of Marchena’s recordings, with three verses, was undated and excluded from these data.] 




			In order to determine whether the degree of non-canonicity correlates with a libre accompaniment, and to see if this correlates with other factors, a logistic regression analysis was conducted to see which is the best-fit model to predict libre accompaniment. The independent variables were singer (Marchena, Caracol), guitarist (orchestra, Ramón Montoya, Niño Ricardo, Paquito Simón, Manolo de Badajoz, Paco Aguilera, Manuel Morao, Melchor de Marchena), year (1928–1963), and non-canonical score (0–10). Running a step-up regression, the only factors that were significant in the best model were year and non-canonical score:[footnoteRef:10] [10:  The regression was run using the R-based Rbrul software package 
(http://danielezrajohnson.com/rbrul.html).] 




(11)		BEST STEP-UP MODEL OF RESPONSE libre IS WITH PREDICTOR(S): 

				year (5.83e-11) + score (0.019) [p-values building from null model]



				$year		continuous logodds

   											+1 0.416

				$score		continuous logodds

   												+1 0.526



The fact that neither singer nor guitarist are included in the best model shows that the likelihood of a fandangos having a libre accompaniment does not correlate significantly with each of these variables. The effect of year on the model is highly significant (with a very small p-value, 5.83-11) and the non-canonical score also contributes significantly to the model (with a p-value less than .05, .019). The logodds show the magnitude of the effect that these variables have on the likelihood of increases in year or score resulting in a higher likelihood of a libre accompaniment. This regression analysis confirms that libre accompaniment is more likely in later years (which was clear from the distribution discussed above), but it also shows something less obvious, namely that the degree of non-canonicity contributes to the likelihood of a libre accompaniment. While it may seem self-evident that extending melodic lines, linking them together, and inserting pauses and vocalizations should correlate with mitigated rhythm, we have seen that these can happen with rhythmic accompaniment (e.g., the example in 9), and many of these features are found in other cantes that are not libre. Nevertheless, the current analysis shows, for a particular sample, that these non-canonical features do contribute to cante libre in fandangos personales.

Conclusion

In this paper we have seen the emergence of fandangos naturales, beginning around the 1920s. While the turn of the twentieth was dominated by fandangos from Eastern Andalucía (abandolao forms, particularly malagueñas), the fandangos from the province of Huelva became the model for a new trend that largely replaced the nineteenth reign of malagueñas. While Eastern-based cante libre is still very much alive, it is not nearly as prevalent as fandangos personales/naturales, which are featured in practically every serious recording and performance. It may be that the structure of these fandangos are simpler and more direct than the rather ornate malagueñas and allow for a wider range of interpretations and interpreters.



			We have also contrasted the fandangos of Pepe Marchena and Manolo Caracol and have demonstrated both qualitatively and qualitatively that their approaches are very different. Both were widely influential, although Marchena’s influence waned with the onset of mairenismo in the 1960s, a movement that emphasized Gypsy flamenco and disparaged ópera flamenca practices. Caracol, because of his ability to interpret traditional Gypsy flamenco, fared better. The result is that there have been many younger singers interpreting fandangos caracoleros, and few drawn to marchenismo. The situation may be changing, however, as contemporary flamenco has begun to embrace some of the commercial music of the past (including both marchenista, e.g., Juan Valderrama, son, and caracolera, e.g. Antonio Reyes). Thus, both of these traditions, rooted in the ópera flamenca, period, remain influential today.
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On Thu, Oct 27, 2016 at 5:34 PM, Moore, John <moorej@ucsd.edu> wrote:

I’m afraid it is not aligned – the labels ‘Verse’ and ‘Chords’ should line up and
the words of the letra should start on beat 1.  It should be as on page 5 of the
attached pdf.

 

Sorry this is hard to format!

 

Thanks, John

 

From: Meira Goldberg [mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com] 
Sent: Thursday, October 27, 2016 1:52 PM
To: Moore, John
Subject: how's this?

 

 

--

...y siendo mudos de boca, son habladores de pies...

 ~ Francisco de Quevedo 

 

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
To: Piza, Antoni; Anna de la Paz
Subject: Fwd: Invitation to participate in a California conference on transatlantic malagueñas and zapateados
Date: Tuesday, December 06, 2016 3:10:56 PM

Not even showing this to Walter! :-)
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Estela Zatania <zata3@yahoo.com>
Date: Mon, Dec 5, 2016 at 10:08 AM
Subject: Re: Invitation to participate in a California conference on transatlantic malagueñas
and zapateados
To: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

Hi Meira...  Writing you from Albuquerque...

There are some serious negative points about this event.  Above all, the focus.  Malagueñas
were amply covered in New York, even including some embarrassingly low-quality
presentations that should not have been included.  It takes time to renew and create
projects that won't rehash terrain that has already been covered.  Flamenco is so vast, it
seems crazy to repeat a topic like malagueña, unless it's for the benefit of the Mexican
contingent, famous for claiming Spanish culture as their own, even flamenco, with the help
of Faustino's anti-gypsy theories presented as fact. 

Zapateado is another dead-end, flamenco-wise.  Sarasate composed a piece that was briefly
popularized by Vicente Escudero, but was destined to oblivion since it's the only "flamenco"
that has no cante.  Anyone who goes beyond that single sentence, is simply looking to pad
their resumé via participation.  Even so, one person talking about Sarasate would be more
than sufficient.

However, all this makes sense when seen as an event devoted to Mexican
folklore..."malagueña" from Mexico (a contradiction in terms), and "zapateado", understood,
not as a flamenco form, but as any sort of foot-stomping.

Next problem: since you don't want to deal with any hotel to secure a discount for
participants, people not covered by institutions spend a great deal out-of-pocket.  This in
turn guarantees the absence of hands-on individuals, and the presence of academics with
little practical knowledge, ergo, low quality.

Next problem:  It seems odd I was meticulously excluded from a previous all-expenses-paid
(unrelated) event, but am now encouraged to participate in this self-financed one.  A person
either knows the topic, or does not.

Please let me know if I'm reading any of this wrong.  

With a friendly hug, despite any perceived "tone"...it's just baffling, that's all...
Estela 

On Sunday, December 4, 2016 7:19 PM, Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com> wrote:

SPANIARDS, INDIANS, AFRICANS, AND GYPSIES: TRANSATLANTIC MALAGUEÑAS AND
ZAPATEADOS IN MUSIC, SONG, AND DANCE 

Querida Estela,

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:annadelapaz@hotmail.com
mailto:zata3@yahoo.com
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com


It's Meira! I am writing you on behalf of Walter Clark, Director of The Center for Iberian and Latin
American Music at the University of California, Riverside, and Antoni Pizà, Director of The Foundation
for Iberian Music at the Barry S. Brook Center for Music Research and Documentation at the CUNY
Graduate Center in the hope that you will consider presenting at a conference on the transatlantic
circulation of malagueñas and zapateados at UC Riverside on April 6-7, 2017. More information about
the conference can be found at: 
http://www.cilam.ucr.edu/[cilam.ucr.edu]
http://brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu /2017-spaniards-indians-africa ns-and-gypsies-transatlantic-m
alaguenas-and-zapateados-in-mu sic-song-and-dance-2/
We are incredibly proud of what was accomplished in the inaugural conference in this series, Spaniards,
Indians, Africans, and Gypsies: The Global Reach of the Fandango in Music, Song, and Dance, in which
we gathered in New York in 2015 to explore the fandango as a mestizaje, a mélange of people, imagery,
music and dance from America, Europe, and Africa, whose many faces reflect a diversity of exchange
across what were once the Spanish and Portuguese Empires. The two published editions of its
proceedings—in bilingual form in the Spanish journal Música Oral del
Sur[centrodedocumentacionmusicaldeandalucia.es] (vol. 12, 2015) and in English (forthcoming 2016
from Cambridge Scholars Publishing)—will, we know, be immensely useful resources.
As a prominent flamenco scholar, journalist, and artist, we would be honored to have your participation
in this second conference. At the Riverside meeting, we hope to dive deep into questions of the
interlacing of notions of "classicism" and of "Spanishness," as well as into the grand percussive footwork
traditions that so often subvert and undermine these notions. As before, we will focus on the broad array
of flamenco, Latin American, Caribbean, and concert malagueñas and zapateados, with regard to music,
song, and dance. Please find the call for papers attached, in which we have outlined some of the
questions we hope to explore. We have commitments from several prominent scholars, including Walter
Clark, Elisabeth Le Guin, Cristina Cruces Roldán, Raquel Paraíso, Craig Russell, María José Ruiz
Mayordomo, and Martha Gonzalez. A selected number of papers will be published in Diagonal: Journal
of the Center for Iberian and Latin American Music[cilam.ucr.edu]. Unfortunately, we cannot pay you an
honorarium, but we can provide you with a formal letter of invitation for your university.

If you are able to participate, please submit a title and a 150-word abstract for your presentation by
December 21, 2016. We very much look forward to hearing from you.
Con un saludo respetuoso y un abrazo fuerte,
K. Meira Goldberg
Visiting Research Scholar
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center
The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
fandangoconference.cuny@gmail. com

Prof. Walter Clark, Director
The Center for Iberian and Latin American Music
Department of Music, University of California
900 University Ave., Riverside, CA 92521
Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
apiza@gc.cuny.edu

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
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ATT00001.txt

Estimat Toni,

salutacions des de Lleida, on cam arribar ara fa dos dies. T’envio l’ultima versio de la proposta, despres de totes les
teves indicacions (milions de gracies per tota la teva increible ajuda i temps, de veritat), aixi com les de la Prof.
Tilley. Ara li acabo d’enviar la mateixa a la Prof. Stone.

En quest punt, la Prof. Tilley m’ha demanat que em posi d’acord amb tots vosaltres per defensar la proposta (es véu
que hi han haut alguns fanvis en qui/com s’ha de defensar proposta), pero basat en el que ella m’ha dit (el que diu a
la web del DMA program), necessitaria tant tu, com ella i la Prof. Stone, com a jury per a que pugui defensar la
proposta. Estare, malauradament, a Lleida fins el 7 jurn, i em preguntava si tot just despres d’arribar i durant el mes
de jury (poster com mes avait milor?) podriem trobar una data que anes be a tots vosaltres (jo m’adaptare
completament al vostre horari). Recordo que em vas dir que durant quelles dates poster estaries a Mallorca (?), i la
Prof. Tilley em va dir que potser podriem trobar un moment en que fer amb tu un Skype, o qui sap si fins hi tot
nomes necessitariem algun tipus d’aprovacio teva,… En aquest sentit jo m’adaptare (altre cop) en tot allo que em
digue vosaltres.

Altra vegada, molitssimes gracies Toni per tot.

Una abraçada,

Joan

>
>
>
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I. General Statement

During the first few decades of the seventeenth century, composers developed a notational language for the violin in which the use of slurs took on a rhetorical significance. To a violinist of the Baroque period, the bow was primarily responsible for the production of sound, the shape of a note, and the desired dynamic, but it also afforded the player a wide range of expressive possibilities. It was in the exploration of these possibilities that a connection between bowing and rhetoric developed. 

Rhetoric is a system of communication created by the ancient Greeks that refers to a specific way of speaking by an orator with the main purpose of persuade the listener. Even before the Baroque period, performers were encouraged to imitate speech while playing in front of an audience. During the seventeenth century people were very conscious of the affections or emotions and the way in which different deliveries could affect the body. By altering different aspects of the music, such as the tone, the pace, the dynamics or the rhythm, the performer could move the hearts and minds of the listeners. 

The principles of bow technique at the beginning of the seventeenth century were essentially those of the renaissance violin, which was governed by the “Rule of Down-Bow.”[footnoteRef:1] The “Rule,” an early bow discipline based on the differences between down‑ and up‑bow according to the stress of a note and the number of notes per measure, originated in the mid-sixteenth century, and was first used by viol players. It was quickly adopted by violinists, first in Italy, and later on in France, where it became the standard in Lully’s orchestra. [1:  David D. Boyden, The History of Violin Playing from its Origins to 1761 and its Relationship to the Violin and Violin Music (Oxford: Oxford University Press, 1965, rev. edn. 1990), 80.] 


Yet despite the importance of regulated bow strokes, violin music published during the Baroque era does not include many bowing indications—let alone slurs. And though the slur was originally regarded as an ornament to be added at the discretion of the performer, the primary reason for the absence of slurs in printed notation had nothing to do with the composer’s or performer’s intent, and was instead due to the inability of movable type to accurately notate them.

With the development of violin technique in German countries, composers from both Germany and Italy such as Johann Jakob Walther, Heinrich Ignaz Franz von Biber, Carlo Farina, and Giovanni Henrico Albicastro, began to notate specific slurred bowings (i.e. ondeggiando, slurred tremolo, slurred staccato, lireggiare affettuoso) so as to distinguish between the different affeti—the rhetorical qualities of the human voice—to be imitated by the bow. Thus, by the end of the seventeenth century, the decision to include a slur in the music was no longer just a technical consideration, but a way to move toward greater musical expressiveness.



Purpose of the project and Scholarly Value.

The purpose of my dissertation is the compilation, comparison and analysis of seventeenth‑ and early eighteenth-century violin treatises and published scores in order to examine how the slurred violin bow stroke was understood and performed in Italian and Austrian music in order to demonstrate their connection with rhetoric. What I intend to prove is twofold: first, the connection of this bow technique with the development of rhetoric in violin playing; second, my argument is that seventeenth-century violinists, who understood that they were reading from editions in which the printed slurs were inexact, would have played them in a way that differs from our current, literal interpretation of these signs. 



II. Approach

A. Research Plan and Methodology 

		My research will begin with the compilation of all relevant information regarding slurs to be found in the primary sources; i.e., musical scores and violin treatises. I will then examine examples from the seventeenth-century Italian and German violin literature in order to: a) analyze the compositional context in which they appear (i.e., over measures; between notes of the same pitch; in certain specific rhythmic figurations); and b) compare the length and the clarity of their position in the music so as to determine how many notes should be included under a specific slur. 

I will also study how the printed slurs in violin music differ among the main publishing houses and will then compare the existing music manuscripts with the early editions to those same works in order to see how the slurs were interpreted by the printer. 

Finally, I will study how the addition of slurs—both those of the composer and those added by the performer—might represent, not just a change of bowing distribution or articulation, but rather a rhetorical gesture that would alter the way we perform them and thus change the overall significance of the phrase. 

	





	

As an example of my work, I add here the first two pages of Giovanni Antonio Pandolfi Mealli (1626-1687) Sonata II “La Cesta,” op. 3, in the versions of Michele Wagner edition (Innsbruck, 1660) and the manuscript copy of Jakob Ludwig “Partitur Buch” (Wolfenbüttel, 1662).



[image: ]



Figure 1. Antonio Pandolfi Mealli, Sonata II “La Cesta,” op. 3 (Innsbruck: Michele Wagner, 1660). RISM A/1 P832 (I-Bc) BB74
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                      Figure 2. Detail showing first system of Wagner’ edition 
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Figure 3. Antonio Pandolfi Mealli, Sonata II “La Cesta,” op. 3 manuscript in “Partitur-Buch voll Sonaten, Canzonen, Arien, Allemanden, Couranten, Sarabanden, Chiquen” D-W Cod. Guelf. 34.7 Aug. 2°, 29. 





With the exception of his Sonata no. 1, Pandolfi dedicated all of his op. 3 to Italian musicians who worked with him in Innsbruck. The second sonata of his op. 3, “La Cesta,” would refer to composer Antonio Cesti, who was in charge of the chamber musicians at the court of Archduke Ferdinand Karl. Pandolfi’s technical violin writing surpassed any set of works written around that time by other Italian composers. But although they may seem advanced in comparison with other Italian composers they fall far behind his Austrian colleagues Biber, Westhoff or Walther. 

Michele Wagner published Pandolfi’s op. 3 and op. 4 in Innsbruck using movable type system. He employed several monoblocks to create slurs of different sizes, adding them above and under the stave, as well as inside of it: a particularity that is found in Italian violin music in just one example in 1629 of Bartolomeo Magni of Biagio Marini’s op. 8. Because of the lack of a block that could be used for longer slurs, he usually added different small slurs one next to the other in order to recreate a long slur.[footnoteRef:2] Alessandro Vincenti started using this technique in 1645 in Marco Uccellini’s op.1 Sonatas, and was followed by other publishers until 1688.   [2:  Constance Frei, L’Arco Sonoro. Articulation et Ornamentation: Les Différentes Practiques d’Exécution pour Violon en Italie au XVIIe Siècle (Lucca: Libreria Musicale Italiana, 2010), 535.] 


In 1662 Jakob Ludwig (1623–98) compiled the largest northern European collection of sonatas of the Habsburg repertoire, as a birthday present for Duke August and his wife Sophia Elizabeth. He worked as a musician in Wolfenbüttel although he would later be employed in other courts, including Gotha and most likely Bratislava.[footnoteRef:3]  The so called “Partitur-Buch” is located at the Herzog August Bibliothek in Wolfenbüttel. Among the composers represented in Ludwig’s copy, are seventeen compositions of Antonio Bertali (1605-69). But among these works, No. 25 is wrongly listed in the manuscript as a Berthaly [Bertali] sonata, page. 29, as it is actually Giovanni Antonio Pandolfi Mealli (c. 1620 – c. 1669) “La Cesta” op. 3. One of the particularities of this sonata is that it includes the written-out ornaments, especially trilli and groppi.[footnoteRef:4] As we observe from the examples given above, (first twenty-eight measures), both Ludwig and Wagner do not consistently add slurs over the thirty-second notes. This addition of the slur may alter greatly the emotional delivery of the passage: with separate bows (no slur) the ornament sounds like a concitato style (war-like style) and with the slur it imitates an organ. [3:  Charles E. Brewer, The Instrumental Music of Schmelzer, Biber, Muffat and their Contemporaries (Farnham, UK: Ashgate Publishing Limited, 2011), 346.]  [4:  The term trill, groppi and tremolo can be sometimes confusing in violin literature of the first part of the seventeenth century. In Pandolfi’s case we could name the written ornament as tremolo con l’arco, “tremble with the bow.” First used by Biagio Marini in 1617, the performer should intend to imitate the undulations of the organ tremulant. For a further discussion on bow tremolo and trills, see read Stewart Carter, “The String Tremolo in the 17th Century”, Early Music 19, no. 1 (Feb., 1991): 42–59.] 


Ludwig separates the first measure (and the consecutive measures with the same motivic rhythm) with two big slurs: one covers the half note until the end of the two sixteenth notes and after that a long slur for the written out ornament. This happens in mm. 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 11 and 13. 

                                 [image: ]

		            Figure 4. Jakob Ludwig, mm. 1-2

On the other hand, Wagner doesn’t slur the half note with the third beat of the measure, and the two sixteenth notes are separated as well. In both cases the written ornament would come up-bow. Wagner then doesn’t slur the fourth-beat ornament in mm. 1, 2 and 11, but he does it in mm. 3, 5, 7, 9 and 13. 

                                [image: ]

			Figure 5. Michele Wagner, mm. 1-2
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			Figure 6. Michele Wagner, mm. 7-10

When he slurs the ornaments, the long slur is built with three small slurs one next to the other and incorporating them inside the stave. The starting note of this triple-slur is not the first thirty-second note either the last slur finishes in the last note. One important observation is the fact that Ludwig doesn’t add the word “tr.” that appears on Wagner’s edition over the ornament. We do not know if Pandolfi intended to add both a tremolo bow and a trill with a left hand, but it seems that Ludwig understood the group of thirty-second notes as a trill and because of that did not feel he had to add the extra “tr.” 

However, the differentiation of adding “tr.” or not makes the performance different, as the violinist can still play a tremolo bow with his right arm while playing a left hand trill with his left one. As mentioned previously, the performer may need to decide what Pandolfi understood as a trill: if a repetition of the same pitch note or the combination of two-notes. If Wagner, using the expensive and time consuming movable type system, was attentive enough to add tripe-slur under the ornament plus a “tr” above, this would mean that a “tr” could be added probably at the beginning of the bow (or even freely while playing the repeated notes) and Pandolfi would have wanted the addition of both things. 

In mm. 4, 6, 10, 12 and 14 Ludwig leaves the eighth notes that follow the half note separate, while Wagner slurs them. However, the position of the slur as well as its length is not clear enough to note if the three notes should be slurred together or in some small combination between them. 

[image: ]          [image: ]

Figure 7. Jakob Ludwig, mm. 4-6	      Figure 8. Michele Wagner, mm. 4-6



Measures 17 and 19 are slurred in pairs of eighth notes in Wagner’s edition while Ludwig avoids the slurs again. The same will happen in measure 20, where in this case it seems the slur covers three notes in Wagner, but is separate in Ludwig. 

       [image: ]                                        [image: ]

Figure 9. Michele Wagner, m. 17	    Figure 10. Jakob Ludwig, m. 17



In measures 21 and 22 Wagner slurs every two eighth notes, while Ludwig leaves all the eighth notes separate, but in m. 23 Ludwig adds different slurs in pairs of sixteenth notes while Wagner leaves the notes separate. However, he decides not to add them from mm. 24-28.

[image: ]                               [image: ]

    Figure 11. Michele Wagner, mm. 22-23	     Figure 12. Jakob Ludwig, mm. 22-23



As a general observation, Wagner uses just one short size slur in the first twenty-eight measures of the sonata. He uses it on tied notes with same pitch (m. 1), but this short slur presents problems when added over more than 3 eight notes because it can not accurately show which notes should be slurred or not (m. 4). Furthermore, the creation of a long slur using 3 smaller ones, one next to each other, creates an impractical situation for the performer, as it is unclear where the slur begins or ends. Finally, Wagner is not consistent (mm. 1, 2 and 11) when the written ornament should be slurred or not. 

With Ludwig’s handwriting, it is clear that the written ornament should be played slurred. However, he does not include the “tr” over the third beat as Wagner specifies: this could mean Ludwig perceives the written ornament already as a trill rather than a bow tremolo. Ludwig decides to always leave the eighth notes separate in mm. 4, 6, 10, 12 and 14, when Wagner is very clear he would like slurs on them. If we believe that Wagner’s publication was based on Pandolfi’s manuscript, from which source did Ludwig copy this sonata? Finally, he adds slurs on the sixteenth notes of m. 23 (contradicting again Wagner). Ludwig’s copy of this Pandolfi sonata represents a new thread that could shed on the life and works of this composer. 

Observing the differences between Ludwig’s manuscript and Wagner’s publication, knowing that Ludwig copied the Pandolfi sonata thinking that it was a Bertali work that would be added to the other twenty-five Bertali sonatas that appear in the catalogue, we should assume that Ludwig did not copy this work form Wagner’s publication, but rather from a different unknown source.



















B.	Tentative outline. 

	I. Introduction.

		A. The role of the violin in early seventeenth century music.

		B. Development of the violin bow until the 1760s.

	II. Violin Music Publishing.

		A. History and Development

		B. Types of Printing. From hand copy to engraving

		C. Italy

		D. Germany

		E. Other musical publishing centers

		F. Composers and their publishers. 

		G. Slurs. From movable type to Roger.

	III. Sources on slurs. Performance and Problems.

		A. Treatises on slurs

		B. Comparison between national schools. Performance practice.

		C. Table of Slurs. Printed editions and manuscripts.

	IV. Slurs and rhetoric.

		A. Rhetoric on music. Rhetoric on violin.

		B. Rhetorical figures and slurs. The expressive arch.

	V. Conclusions.

	VI. Bibliography.

	VII. Appendices.



III. Research

A. Present State of Research.

	The most important source regarding the early history of the violin and bow is David Dodge Boyden’s History of Violin Playing from its Origins to 1761. Boyden traces in great detail the development, construction, and playing of the violin over a span of two and a half centuries, connecting throughout the production of the violin sound to the music that was written for it. The importance of his work lies as well in relating the history of the construction of the instrument and the bow to the technical problems of playing the instrument. 

	Along with Boyden’s work, the independent scholar and Baroque violinist Robert Seletsky is a noted authority in the pre-Tourte bow.[footnoteRef:5] In 2004,[footnoteRef:6] he reopened the discussion about the use of the short or long bows in Baroque violin playing. Seletsky justifies the use of bows of different lengths on the basis of the technical need to slur—or not to slur—long passages of fast notes. Seletsky’s work on the evolution of violin bows during the seventeenth and eighteenth century, as well as that of Boyden, have served as important and influential sources for my initial research. [5:  For more information about François Xavier Tourte (1750-1835), see Werner Bachmann, et al. "Bow." Grove Music Online. Oxford Music Online. Oxford University Press, accessed May 10, 2016, http://www.oxfordmusiconline.com/subscriber/article/grove/music/03753.]  [6:  Robert Seletsky, “New Light on the old bow -1,” Early Music 32, no. 2 (May 2004): 286-301.] 


	More recently, Constance Frei has done important research on articulation and ornament in the violin repertoire of the seventeenth century.[footnoteRef:7] Her analysis of violin playing as it is recorded in publications using movable type has led to a revision of the history of right-arm violin technique. [7:  Constance Frei, 105-123.] 


	Finally, British scholar and violinist Judy Tarling has been active in the study of how rhetoric, which was a subject of great interest to both composers and performers of the Baroque era, influenced the technique of string players. Her Weapons of Rhetoric connects the Baroque fascination for rhetoric with articulation, dynamics, tempo, and ornamentation.[footnoteRef:8] Most recently, she has demonstrated that while we have learned much about Baroque violin technique and playing over the past century, there is still much that we do not know about the subject that can be known.[footnoteRef:9] [8:  Judy Tarling. The Weapons of Rhetoric (St. Albans: Corda Musica, 2005), 135-144.]  [9:  Judy Tarling. Baroque String Playing for Ingenious Learner (St. Albans: Corda Musica, 2013), vii-viii.] 
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IV. Writing Sample 



I. Introduction.

B. Development of the violin bow to the 1760s.

	Soon after its publication, Boyden’s History of Violin Playing from its Origins to 1761 became the most important resource for the study of the evolution of the early violin and its music.[footnoteRef:10] Boyden’s main achievement was to relate the technical problems of playing the violin to the reconstruction of the actual sound of the instrument. Prior to Boyden, the literature on the history of the violin and bow had been almost neglected, save for a very few exceptions.[footnoteRef:11]  It was Boyden who noted that even the description of original examples of bows existing in museums were not to be trusted.[footnoteRef:12] [10:  Robert Donington, “The History of Violin Playing from Its Origins to 1761”, The Galpin Society Journal 20 (1967): 118–20.]  [11:  For further earlier research on historical bows, please see Henry Saint-George. The Bow: Its History, Manufacture and Use (London: E. Shore and Co., 1896).]  [12:  David D. Boyden. “The Violin and Its Technique in the Eighteenth Century”. The Musical Quarterly 36, no. 1 (1950): 11. ] 


	The violin bow developed quickly during the first few decades of the seventeenth century, due in part to new technical demands of repertoire written in the stile moderno. This new music required a bow with a larger range of volume, articulation, and a more complex sound. Up to then, the hair of the bow had been attached to the point of the stick through a hole in the wood. The hair would then be knotted and covered at the tip with an ivory or bone cap. This way of wrapping the bow was used throughout the seventeenth century, and may have been in use even later, though most likely by folk players. 

	About 1630, the “pike head” was developed, in which the bow hair was attached inside a rectangular opening to a piece of wood, and to the other side of the stick through a removable frog, thus developing the necessary tension on the hair to be playable. This improvement was called a clip-in frog, and it was in used until the end of the eighteenth century.

	In order to study the repertoire of the seventeenth century and in particular the performance of slurs, it is necessary to know the length of the bow that was in use. Looking at the iconography of that time, there was an artistic custom in paintings to match the length of the bow with the length of the instrument. Consequently, a bass viola da gamba might have a very long bow while a violinist might use a very short bow. The James Talbot Manuscript, written between 1685 and 1701, is one of the earliest sources to discuss the length of the violin bow and to give specific details about it.[footnoteRef:13] According to Talbot, violin bows weighed between 36 and 41 grams, and were two feet (approx. 61 cm) in length, measurements that accord with the illustrations of Michael Praetorius[footnoteRef:14] and Marin Mersenne.[footnoteRef:15] Talbot, however, does not explain how he measures the bow, and it is not clear from his description whether the length cited includes or excludes the frog.  [13:  Robert Donington, “James Talbot’s Manuscript. II Bowed Strings,” The Galpin Society Journal 3 (March 1950), 27-45.]  [14:  Michael Praetorius, Syntagma Musicum II: De Organographia. Trans. and ed. David Z. Crookes (Oxford: Clarendon, 1986), Plate XXI.]  [15:  Marin Mersenne, Harmonie Universelle: The Books on Instruments. Trans. Roger E. Chapman (The Hague: M. Nijhoff, 1957), 236.] 


	Sources indicate that the “short” bow was in use until the 1750s at the very least, but by the early eighteenth century, luthiers had started to make longer and slightly heavier bows: from 66 to 72 cm, and 55 grams. Robert Seletsky has stated that the violinist Giuseppe Tartini (1692-1770) was one of the creators of this “long” bow.[footnoteRef:16] But while the earliest known long bow dates from the 1740s, references to the long bow are found as early as 1702: “Italians play with longer bows.”[footnoteRef:17] Use of the long bow, however, seems not to have been common for the majority of violinists during the first half of the eighteenth century; rather, the iconography indicates that the short bow was standard well into the 1700s. The long bow seems to have been used only by violin virtuosos.[footnoteRef:18]   [16:  Robert Seletsky, “New Light on the old bow -1”, Early Music 32, no. 2 (May 2004): 300.]  [17:  François Raguenet, “Parallele des Italiens et des Français,” (1702), quoted in Oliver Strunk, Source Readings in Music History (New York: Norton, 1950), 477.]  [18:  Francesco Maria Veracini, Sonata accademiche op. 2 (London and Firenze: the author, 1744), frontispiece.] 


	Arcangelo Corelli (1653–1713), the most important advocate in Italy for the use of the short bow, was both famous and enormously influential: his op. 5 violin sonatas were reprinted more than 40 times[footnoteRef:19] and were an essential part of any violinist’s repertoire, whether amateur or professional. Corelli’s technique, moreover, was imitated throughout Europe, including his use of the short bow. Robert Bremner (1713-89), a music publisher and student of Francesco Geminiani, reported that: [19:  they were first published in 1700 in Amsterdam.] 


I have been informed that Corelli judged no performer fit to play in his band who could not, with one stroke of his bow, give a steady and powerful sound, like that of an organ, from two strings at once and continue it for ten seconds; and yet it is said the length of their bow at that time did not exceed twenty inches.[footnoteRef:20] [20:  Robert Bremner, ‘Some Thoughts on the Performance of Concert Music’, the preface to his edition of Schetky, Six Quartettos … opus VI (London, 1776, R/1875), p. viii, note. ] 




	While this account is probably not entirely accurate with respect to the length of the bow, it is certainly testimony as to Corelli’s use of the short bow. Corelli was also a well -respected violin teacher, and among his students were Francesco Geminiani (1687-1762), Pietro Castrucci (1679-1752), Giovanni Battista Somis (1687-1763), and Pietro Locatelli (1695-1764). These students in turn became important teachers who would project Corelli’s style and his use of the short bow well into the eighteenth century. Somis taught and performed, first in Turin and after 1718, in Paris, and like his teacher, was an advocate of the short bow. Among Somis’ students were Gaetano Pugnani (1731-1798) and Jean-Marie Léclair (1697-1764). 

	Corelli was born in the small town of Fusignano, near Ravenna and not far from Bologna, where he moved at some point around 1670. During the second part of the seventeenth century, Bologna turned into the most important center for instrumental music. Upon the arrival of Maurizio Cazzati in 1657, San Petronio and the Accademia Filarmonica became the nest for young violinists and composers who would create a new style of writing and performing of the violin. Although there are no records of Corelli composing during his time in Bologna, he probably had violin lessons with Giovanni Benvenuti (himself student of Ercole Gaïbara) and Leonardo Brugnoli. One of the reasons of this flourishing Bolognese violin school was the development of the local music publishing.[footnoteRef:21] By the 1660’s, and after a decision of turning the priority from vocal to instrumental music, the Bolognese publishers Giacomo Monti and Silvani became the most important music printers in Italy. Venice, which had been the most active center for the first thirty years of the century, suffered a decline in the publishing industry because of the bubonic plague that burst in the city between 1629 and 1631. But despite the busy publishing activity during the entire century in different cities around Italy, so many violinists decided not to publish their works because of the limitations of the movable type system, in use well into the eighteenth century. The biggest amount of Italian solo virtuoso music was passed via manuscript (most of it is unfortunately lost by today), unlike in some German centers, where large collections of violin music were preserved in large hand-copied collections.[footnoteRef:22]  [21:  Peter Allsop, Arcangelo Corelli. New Orpheus of our Times (Oxford: Oxford University Press, 1999), 24.]  [22:  Charles E. Brewer, The Instrumental Music of Schmelzer, Biber, Muffat and their Contemporaries (Farnham, UK: Ashgate Publishing Limited, 2011), 343.] 


	When Corelli moved from Bologna to Rome in 1675, the most important performers in the city, among them Lelio Colista (1629-1680), Carlo Ambrogio Lonati (1645-1712), Bernardo Pasquini (1637-1710) and Giovanni Lorenzo Lulier (1662-1700), were hesitant to publish their works because the inadequacy of movable type in adding major idiomatic techniques for the violin, such as chordal writing and multiple stops.[footnoteRef:23] Upon his arrival, Corelli became committed to supervising all six of his opera publications. Mutij, who most likely received first hand observations from the composer, was the first one to publish Corelli’s op. 2 in Rome, and almost immediately other editions appeared in Venice and in Bologna (Monti).  [23:  Allsop, 124.] 


	The larger part of composers publishing in Bologna in the middle of the seventeenth century lived in an area between Modena, Bologna and Ferrara, and their publications were aiming for a market of dilettanti. Among them, the most important Bolognese composer was Maurizio Cazzati. Aware of the limitations of the Bolognese publishers, he eventually published chamber music with modest technical demands, as almost all the music published represented music that favored dances. Another of the composers from the Bolognese school was Giuseppe Colombi, from Modena. Although the technical demands of his published trio sonatas are rather modest as well, his manuscript solo violin music that is kept in the Estense Library of Modena shows a level of virtuosity not paralleled by any of his chamber music publications of Bologna. We can observe some of the same modest technical demands in Corelli’s first operas, which were published by different houses in Italy using movable type. However, in 1700 Corelli would send his solo set of sonatas op. 5 to Estienne Roger in Amsterdam, as he would be able to publish them using the more accurate engraving system. 

	As an example of the problems that composers faced while publishing their violin works, in particular with the addition of slurs in the music, I would like to observe some differences between the first page of the Violin II part of Corelli’s Ciaccona op. 2 published in 1685. One of the examples belongs to Giacomo Monti (1600-1687) from Bologna and the other one is from Giovanni Angelo Mutij in Rome. Monti was one of the most important printers in Bologna and he would be first associated with Carlo Zenero in the late 1630s and by the end of his life with Marino Silvani. By 1666, Monti would monopolize most of the music publications in Bologna. His catalogue includes works of Cazzati, Bononcini, Vitali, Legrenzi and Colombi, among others. He published three different editions of Corelli’s op. 1 and in 1685, the second edition of the op. 2. 

                                  [image: ]

Figure 14. Arcangelo Corelli, Ciaccona (violin 2), op. 2 (Bologna:  Giacomo Monti, 1685). RISM A/I C3694 (I-Bc) Y182.



	The other example, by Mutij, represents the first edition of Corelli’s op. 2. The Mutij family were active as publishers in Rome for over a century, between 1589 and 1689, and they were responsible for the first publication of the Rappresentazione di Anima et di Corpo in 1600 by Emilio de’Cavalieri. Because of their reputation, Corelli most likely endorsed them to be the first ones to publish his op. 2. 



                                      [image: ]  

Figure 13. Arcangelo Corelli, Ciaccona (violin 2), op. 2 (Rome: Giovanni Angelo      Mutij, 1685). RISM A/I C3693 (I-Bc) Y181.



	Both Monti and Mutij use three different sizes of monoblock slurs. But we can observe small subtleties in those three lengths that make us wonder if there are actually other slur sizes. These differences correspond to irregularities on the application of the ink on the paper as well as the quality of the paper itself used in each publication (Frei, 35). Monti also adds a “telescopic” slur (m. 24), which is built with two small inclined mono-block slurs on each end and 3 consecutive dashes within them, to create a larger slur that covers ten notes. Using this technique, publishers could create with movable type long endless slurs.

	In Corelli’s example, when there is a tied note between bars with the same pitch, both publishers use the smallest size slur. An example of this is from measure 7 to 8, where in both examples the slur is placed closer to the note than over the bar line. The shortest slur is also used by both editors over two slurred notes. 

	In m. 8, Mutij adds a longer slur that finishes at the end of the second sixteenth note, while Monti is unclear about bowing, as he just slurs the two sixteenth notes. Although the added slur is short, it is longer than the one used in the previous measure, over the bar-line. 

                   [image: ]                                [image: ]

            Figure 15. G.A. Mutij, mm. 7-8 		Figure 16. G. Monti, mm. 7-8



	In measure 20, Mutij’s slur covers not just the two sixteenth notes, but also the following eight notes. In contrast, Monti only slurs the two sixteenth notes. The same inaccuracy will be present two measure later. However, in this case Mutij is imprecise with the placement of the slur, which begins before the head of the note, leaving the F- sharp outside of the slur. In this same bar, Monti’s slur of the last four sixteenth notes, compared to Mutij, may seem that it only covers the first two sixteenth notes or purposely leaves the last sixteenth notes with separate bowings. 

	In m. 24 we find a long slur (over ten notes) in both editions. The main difference is that while Mutij adds the slur by hand (after the impression of the page), Monti creates a “telescopic” slur, built over two short inclined slurs and three parallel dashes. 



[image: ]       [image: ]

Figure 17. G.A. Mutij, mm. 21-25			  Figure 18. G. Monti, mm. 21-25



	In mm 26-27, once again there is an inaccuracy of the length of the slur, in this case in Monti’s edition, as it is not precise if the slur is caps two or three notes. 

                                                   [image: ]

					Figure 19. G. Monti, mm. 26-27



	In m. 43, the slur in Monti’s edition seems to be misplaced by one eighth note, covering just the last three notes of the measure, while in Mutij’s edition all the four eighth notes are under the same bow. 

                     [image: ]                                                      [image: ]

         Figure 20. G. Monti, m. 43		             Figure 21. G.A. Mutij, m. 43



	Finally, the slur in m. 64 on Mutij’s edition covers the last three notes, while the one used in m. 65 is unclear if affects two or three notes. On the other hand, Mutij’s slurs in mm. 64 and 65 seems to cap the last two eight notes in both measures, instead of three. 

           [image: ]                          [image: ]

	Figure 22. G.A. Mutij, mm. 64-47  	    Figure 23. G. Monti, mm. 64-65

	This first page of these two 1685 editions of Corelli’s Ciaccona op. 2 are examples of inaccurate placements of slurs because of the limitation of movable type. We observe that while both editors present imprecisions, Monti is more imprecise in his publication. 	The use of a short bow implies important different technical considerations on the performer, even more than if he was using a longer bow: the control over the bow itself, the tone, articulation, string crossing and the bow speed. All these aspects are well related to slurs, as the addition of slurs may change all these factors: the weight we add to the bow will vary because the bow speed will be different depending on the number of notes under the slur; probably the point of contact on the string. The imprecisions on the slurs in both editions are of importance in this kind of music, as the addition or lack of slurs may represent a difference on the overall affection of the piece.

	Decades after Corelli’s death, Pietro Locatelli, one of the most important virtuosos of the eighteenth century and also a student of Corelli, was still using the short bow. Benjamin Tate, an English visitor to the Netherlands, wrote the following account of a Locatelli concert in Amsterdam on April 11, 1741:   

He plays with a short bow, and the reason he gives for doing so is that he believes no fiddler can play anything with a long bow that he can’t play with a short one.[footnoteRef:24] [24:  Albert Dunning, and Arend Koole. “Pietro Antonio Locatelli”. Tijdschrift Van De Vereniging Voor Nederlandse Muziekgeschiedenis 20 (1/2). (Koninklijke Vereniging voor Nederlandse Muziekgeschiedenis), 56.] 




* * * * *

	Over the past several decades, specialists have assumed that Italians developed and used the long bow during the eighteenth century, while French, German and English players used the short bow.[footnoteRef:25] It is true that the Germans were keen on using the short bow on account of their style of separated fast, short notes and double and triple stops. But also true is that during the seventeenth and eighteenth centuries, Italian violinists who emigrated to Germany brought with them both long and short bows. And while virtuoso players such as Tartini preferred the long bow—mainly because it was easier to develop a more cantabile sound with it, and it afforded the player a subtler control over dynamics and articulation—the Italians continued to play with the short bow well into the eighteenth century. 
	It is true that the short bow was dominant in France during the time of Lully, where the biggest part of the violin repertoire was based on dance music and use of the short bow would help in applying the rule of the down-bow (where every measure started with a down bow). But towards the end of the seventeenth century and throughout the eighteenth, French violinists experimented with the length of the bow and ultimately came to favor the use of the long bow. Eventually, the short bow was used only by dancing masters when playing the pochete violin. A clear example of this tendency of experimentation in France is Jean-Marie Léclair, one of the foremost virtuoso players of his time, who studied with Somis and used a short bow, but who came eventually to prefer the longer sonata bow.  [25:  Robin Stowell. The Early Violin and Viola. A Practice Guide (Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press, 2001), 39.] 
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From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni; Straker, Kathryn
Subject: Fwd: Katy and Antoni, do you have time to make this certificado for Aurèlia today?
Date: Tuesday, October 18, 2016 6:21:54 AM

Just let me know how I should help...thank you...

besos
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Aurelia Pessarrodona Perez <Aurelia.Pessarrodona@uab.cat>
Date: 2016-10-18 6:06 GMT-04:00
Subject: sobre el certificado
To: "fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com" <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

Buenos días, Meira,

¿Cómo va el tema del certificado que te pedí? Se trataba de poder justificar que la versión en
inglés de nuestro artículo del fandango está en vías de publicación... Te agradecería mucho
que me dijeras algo, ya que necesito ese papel con un poquito de urgencia. Muchas gracias!

Un abrazo,

Aurèlia

-- 

...y siendo mudos de boca, son habladores de pies...

 ~ Francisco de Quevedo 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu
mailto:Aurelia.Pessarrodona@uab.cat
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com


From: Angel Gil-Ordóñez
To: Douglas Riva; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Más Granados en Nueva York
Date: Tuesday, October 25, 2016 8:06:33 AM

fyi
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Pablo Álvarez <pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es>
Date: 2016-10-25 7:53 GMT-04:00
Subject: RE: Más Granados en Nueva York
To: Angel Gil-Ordóñez <angel@postclassical.com>

Querido Angel.

 

Muchas gracias. Disculpa mi retraso en contestar, ya ves como vamos.

Tomo nota

 

Un fuerte abrazo

Pablo Eulate

 

De: Angel Gil-Ordóñez [mailto:angel@postclassical.com] 
Enviado el: miércoles, 28 de septiembre de 2016 22:11
Para: Pablo Álvarez
Asunto: Más Granados en Nueva York

 

Querido Pablo.

Se me olvidó comentarte que le recordé a Jorge de pasada en la presentación de la Casa de
América el próximo programa que presentará Douglas Riva en nueva York, el cual incluye el
"Canto de las Estrellas".

Acompañando esta obra, Antoni y Douglas han preparado un programa magnífico de
compositores y obras poco conocidas (incluso en España).

Yo sé que ya estáis en contacto con ellos. Aunque yo no estoy implicado directamente en la
ejecución de este concierto, nada más transmitirte que todos deseamos contar con vuestro
apoyo para llevarlo a cabo.

 

mailto:jdriva@gmail.com
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es
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
 

 

2016-09-26 8:01 GMT-04:00 Pablo Álvarez <pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es>:

Querido Angel

 

Te dejo el contacto del Parco della Musica de Roma para que le des un vistazo.

Creemos que seria interesante que le escribas

 

 

José R. Dosal

Auditorium Parco della Musica / Fundazione Musica per Roma

Administratore Delegato

jr.dosal@musicaperroma.it

www.auditorium.com[auditorium.com]

+3906802411

 

Pablo Eulate
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De: Angel Gil-Ordóñez [mailto:angel@postclassical.com] 
Enviado el: lunes, 26 de septiembre de 2016 13:51
Para: Jorge Sobredo Galanes
CC: Pablo Álvarez
Asunto: Re: saludos y eventos míos en Madrid

 

Fue una gran alegría verte, Jorge.

Te ruego me recuerdes la fundación y cómo acceder a los contactos.

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
 

 

2016-09-26 7:48 GMT-04:00 Jorge Sobredo Galanes <jorge.sobredo@accioncultural.es>:

Fue un placer verte Ángel enhorabuena por el espléndido desembarco... Que se repita más
veces

No olvides la idea de Roma te dije igual puede interesar. 

Abz

J

Enviado desde mi iPhone

El 26 sept 2016, a las 13:37, Angel Gil-Ordóñez <angel@postclassical.com> escribió:

Pues otro más que salió ayer!

http://cultura.elpais.com/cultura/2016/09/24/actualidad/
1474716588_746613.html[cultura.elpais.com] 

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
 

 

2016-09-26 7:35 GMT-04:00 Pablo Álvarez <pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es>:

Muchas gracias Angel.

 

Me imprimo el artículo para leerlo con tranquilidad.

Demasiados temas y demasiado rápido vamos, apenas da tiempo de detenerse

No pude ir y ya lo siento

 

Un abrazo

Pablo Eulate

 

De: Angel Gil-Ordóñez [mailto:angel@postclassical.com] 
Enviado el: viernes, 23 de septiembre de 2016 7:23
Para: Pablo Álvarez
Asunto: Re: saludos y eventos míos en Madrid

 

Muchas gracias Pablo por tu mensaje.

Un muy cordial saludo,

Angel

(por si no lo viste
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http://cultura.elpais.com/cultura/2016/09/21/actualidad/
1474484885_654127.html[cultura.elpais.com]

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
 

 

2016-09-21 9:45 GMT+02:00 Pablo Álvarez <pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es>:

Gracias Angel,

Lo siento pero yo no voy a poder estar, el viernes voy de viaje a Santander.
Gracias en todo caso.
Pablo Eulate

-----Mensaje original-----
De: Jorge Sobredo Galanes
Enviado el: miércoles, 21 de septiembre de 2016 9:34
Para: Angel Gil-Ordóñez
CC: Pablo Álvarez
Asunto: Re: saludos y eventos míos en Madrid

Gracias Ángel espero darte un abrazo en Casa América hoy y estaré el viernes
para el concierto.
Enhorabuena porque es un programa magnífico.
Un abz fuerte,
J

Enviado desde mi iPhone

> El 20 sept 2016, a las 21:35, Angel Gil-Ordóñez <angel@postclassical.com>
escribió:
>
> Queridos Jorge y Pablo. Os mando unas líneas para confirmaros los eventos que
tengo en madrid esta semana.
>
> Miércoles 23, 20:00h. Concierto con la OSRTVE
> http://www.rtve.es/rtve/20160908/concierto-homenaje-orquesta-
sinfonica[rtve.es]
> -rtve-compositor-mexicano-silvestre-revueltas/1396720.shtml
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>
> Presentación del DVD "Redes"
> Banda sonora restaurada por PostClassical Ensemble bajo la dirección
> de Angel Gil-Ordóñez Casa de América, 21 de Septiembre de 2016. 17:00h
> Participantes: Antonio Caño (director El País), Antonio Muñoz Molina
(escritor), Jorge F. Hernández (escritor), Javier Martín Domínguez (especialista
en Cine), Angel Gil-Ordóñez (director de orquesta).
>
> Babelia publicó este magnífico artículo el sábado pasado (adjunto).
>
> Ojalá pudiérais asistir a alguno de los eventos.
> Un fuerte abrazo
> Angel
>
> <Babelia 17-9-2016.pdf>

 

 

 

 



From: La Meira
To: Piza, Antoni; Wendy Perron; Aileen Passloff; Barbara Dilley; Nina Bennahum; Sandra Neels; Daisy Pommer
Subject: Fwd: Merce Cunningham dancers rehearsing near Barcelona 1966
Date: Monday, February 15, 2016 3:24:32 PM
Attachments: fotografies assaig companyia Merce Cunningham w Aileen Passloff Wendy Perron IDs.docx

Thank you so much Barbara!
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Barbara Dilley <beedilley@gmail.com>
Date: Mon, Feb 15, 2016 at 1:47 PM
Subject: Re: Merce Cunningham dancers rehearsing near Barcelona 1966
To: La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com>

Thanks for the memories,  50 years ago!
The lovely dancer in the black tights is Carolyn Brown I.believe.
Barbara Dilley

On Feb 15, 2016, at 7:30 AM, La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com> wrote:

Thank you Wendy! I added that identification to the document and am attaching it here. 

Best luck Antoni!

On Sun, Feb 14, 2016 at 9:58 PM, Wendy Perron <wendyperron2@gmail.com> wrote:
Yr welcome. Do you know for a fact that those pix are from 1966? If the beautiful dancer in
black woolens is not Susana Haymen-Chaffey (I think that is the correct spelling) I would be
surprised.

On Sun, Feb 14, 2016 at 9:45 PM, La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com> wrote:
Dear Wendy,

Thank you so much! 

m

On Sun, Feb 14, 2016 at 8:18 PM, Wendy Perron <wendyperron2@gmail.com> wrote:
Hi Meira,
The one in striped socks is definitely Sandra Neels. I would agree with Aileen that the
one squatting in pink socks is Barbara Dilley, known then as Barbara Lloyd.
I see now that the on black knitted tights is not Judith Dunn, now that I see the other pix
of her. I wonder if it could be Suzanna Haymen-Chaffee (not sure of spelling).
You could try asking Sandra Neels at neelss@winthrop.edu.
Or Barbara Dilley at Barbara Dilley <beedilley@gmail.com>
What is this for, anyway?
Best,
Wendy

On Sun, Feb 14, 2016 at 7:52 PM, La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com> wrote:
Dear Wendy,
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Gordon Mumma, John Cage, Raimon Tort, David Tudor
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???? Barbara Lloyd?? Valda Sutterfield??

Carolyn Brown?  Sandra Neels?

Aileen Passloff is not sure who this is but says this might be Judith Dunn who was in Merce’s company, doesn't look like Valda Sutterfield or Carolyn Brown

David Vaughn would know right away:

[bookmark: _GoBack]Wendy Perron notes that Judith Dunn left the company in 1963 – she thinks this dancer is Susana Haymen-Chaffey
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•

???? Barbara Lloyd?? Valda Sutterfield??

Carolyn Brown?  Sandra Neels?



Aileen Pasloff phone conversation with K. Meira Goldberg 2.14.16: The dancer with the tiny head, long neck, and striped legwarmers is definitely Sandra Neels. Second dancer might be Judith Dunn who was in Merce’s company, doesn't look like Valda Sutterfield or Carolyn Brown. Wendy Perron agrees!
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???? Barbara Lloyd?? Valda Sutterfield??

Carolyn Brown?  Sandra Neels?

Merce Cunningham

Aileen Pasloff says Sandra Neels
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???? Barbara Lloyd?? Valda Sutterfield??

Carolyn Brown?  Sandra Neels?

Aileen Pasloff says this is definitely Barbara Dilley-Lloyd married to Lou Lloyd – Wendy Perron agrees!



Merce Cunningham
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Thank you so much - it's very generous of you! I'm attaching the word doc: open it
and scroll down - you'll see it has 7 pages, with as many images.

besos,

Meira 

On Sun, Feb 14, 2016 at 3:47 PM, Wendy Perron <wendyperron2@gmail.com>
wrote:

Hi Meira,
I did not see the other photos. I only saw the solo shot that I think is Judy Dunn. IF
you send me the one you think is Sandra Neels or Barbara Dilley, I can probably tell
you.
Bet,
Wendy

On Sun, Feb 14, 2016 at 2:44 PM, La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com> wrote:
Hey all,

I just spoke to Aileen: she says the dancer in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th photos in black
leg warmers and a black leotard might be Judith Dunn, but she's not sure. Wendy
Perron says: The dancer looks like Judith Dunn, though I think she left the
company in 63 and this is dated 66. But it is definitely not Valda, Carolyn, Sandra
or Barbara Dilley.

Aileen said the dancer in the 4th and 5th photos with striped socks and white
tights is definitely Sandra Neels, and the dancer in the 6th photo with white
leotard and black tights is definitely Barbara Dilley-Lloyd. Aileen suggests we ask
David Vaughn: Daisy, would you be kind to show these photos to him?

I attach the word doc w Aileen's identifications but not yours Wendy, as I wasn't
sure which dancer you were referring to...

hope it's helpful,

m

2016-02-13 15:35 GMT-05:00 Piza, Antoni <APiza@gc.cuny.edu>:

Meira:  Puedes identificar a estas personas?  (Miralo, pero no pierdas mucho
tiempo; ya basta lo ocupada que estas…)

 

Puedes escribir tus comentarios en el WORD Doc

 

Merci beaucoup!

mailto:wendyperron2@gmail.com
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
Visit my new website 
http://wendyperron.com/[wendyperron.com]

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
To: Aileen Passloff; Nina Bennahum; Michelle Heffner Hayes; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Merce Cunningham dancers rehearsing near Barcelona 1966
Date: Sunday, February 14, 2016 10:34:53 AM
Attachments: fotografies assaig companyia Merce Cunningham.docx

Dear friends,

This from Antoni Pizà - can you confirm that the identification of the people in the photo is
correct?

besos,

Meira
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Piza, Antoni <APiza@gc.cuny.edu>
Date: 2016-02-13 15:35 GMT-05:00
Subject: Merce Cunningham dancers rehearsing near Barcelona 1966
To: "La Meira (lameira2011@gmail.com)" <lameira2011@gmail.com>

Meira:  Puedes identificar a estas personas?  (Miralo, pero no pierdas mucho tiempo; ya basta
lo ocupada que estas…)

 

Puedes escribir tus comentarios en el WORD Doc

 

Merci beaucoup!

 

Antoni

 

 

 

 

 

 

Antoni Pizà, Director

Foundation for Iberian Music

mailto:passloff@bard.edu
mailto:bennahum@theaterdance.ucsb.edu
mailto:mhayes@ku.edu
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

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.lameiraflamenco.com&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=zNjXWmtdOACwxary03HaxgPPlaIIXagBJqvq4PHrVfk&s=650jlzNVGmMODWRGUYR-Hu6Qoaj8K326nR7kKy_os1Y&e=


From: La Meira
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Merce Cunningham dancers rehearsing near Barcelona 1966
Date: Monday, February 15, 2016 7:51:00 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Neels, Sandra <neelss@winthrop.edu>
Date: Mon, Feb 15, 2016 at 4:15 PM
Subject: RE: Merce Cunningham dancers rehearsing near Barcelona 1966
To: La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com>

The dancer who is dressed in all black that you thought might be Judith Dunn is actually Carolyn
Brown. Those are her legs and feet. Judith Dunn was not in the company then, and Susanna has
much larger thighs and is a bit knock-kneed. That is definitely not Susanna.

 

From: La Meira [mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, February 15, 2016 4:02 PM
To: Wendy Perron; Carolyn Brown
Cc: Piza, Antoni; Aileen Passloff; Barbara Dilley; Nina Bennahum; Daisy Pommer; Neels, Sandra

Subject: Re: Merce Cunningham dancers rehearsing near Barcelona 1966

 

Dear Carolyn and Sandra,

I write you on behalf of Antoni Pizà, Director of the Foundation for Iberian Music at the
CUNY grad center, who is working on the 1966 debut of Cunningham's company at the
Teatro Prado in Sitges, Barcelona. Wendy Perron has kindly given us your email. I attach a
document with 7 photos; Antoni is trying to identify the dancers in the photos, and to learn
about the event.

Aileen Passloff and Wendy concur that the dancer with striped legwarmers is you, Sandra.
Can you confirm this? And Barbara Dilley has confirmed that the dancer in a deep cross-
legged plie in the second-to-the-last image is her!

Barbara Dilley says the beautiful dancer in black leotard and black leg-warmers in the 2nd,
3rd, and 4th images is you Carolyn. Can you confirm this?

many thanks to all,

K. Meira Goldberg

 

On Mon, Feb 15, 2016 at 3:30 PM, Wendy Perron <wendyperron2@gmail.com> wrote:

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:neelss@winthrop.edu
mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com
mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com
mailto:wendyperron2@gmail.com


Barbara is probably right, but I would say, to make absolutely sure, you should email Carolyn
at <vanrhys@verizon.net>

 

Wendy

 

On Mon, Feb 15, 2016 at 3:24 PM, La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com> wrote:

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

mailto:vanrhys@verizon.net
mailto:lameira2011@gmail.com
mailto:beedilley@gmail.com
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

The one in striped socks is definitely Sandra Neels. I would agree with Aileen that the one
squatting in pink socks is Barbara Dilley, known then as Barbara Lloyd.

I see now that the on black knitted tights is not Judith Dunn, now that I see the other pix of
her. I wonder if it could be Suzanna Haymen-Chaffee (not sure of spelling).

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

Thank you so much - it's very generous of you! I'm attaching the word doc: open it and scroll
down - you'll see it has 7 pages, with as many images.

besos,

Meira

 

On Sun, Feb 14, 2016 at 3:47 PM, Wendy Perron <wendyperron2@gmail.com> wrote:

Hi Meira,

I did not see the other photos. I only saw the solo shot that I think is Judy Dunn. IF you send
me the one you think is Sandra Neels or Barbara Dilley, I can probably tell you.

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

I just spoke to Aileen: she says the dancer in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th photos in black leg warmers
and a black leotard might be Judith Dunn, but she's not sure. Wendy Perron says: The dancer
looks like Judith Dunn, though I think she left the company in 63 and this is dated 66. But it is
definitely not Valda, Carolyn, Sandra or Barbara Dilley.

Aileen said the dancer in the 4th and 5th photos with striped socks and white tights is
definitely Sandra Neels, and the dancer in the 6th photo with white leotard and black tights is
definitely Barbara Dilley-Lloyd. Aileen suggests we ask David Vaughn: Daisy, would you be
kind to show these photos to him?

 

I attach the word doc w Aileen's identifications but not yours Wendy, as I wasn't sure which
dancer you were referring to...

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
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From: Maria Luisa Martinez
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Message Size Above Limits
Date: Thursday, June 23, 2016 6:02:20 PM

Ya... 
Cuando os lo envié, recibí inmediatamente este email de GC que te reenvío.

María Luisa Martínez Martínez | Spanish Government Teacher
mmartinez2@unis.org / +1 212-584-3008

United Nations International School
24-50 FDR Drive New York, NY 10010-4046
http://www.unis.org[unis.org]

[unis.org]   [instagram.com] [flicker.com]

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: <proofpoint-pps@gc.cuny.edu>
Date: Thu, Jun 23, 2016 at 11:57 AM
Subject: Message Size Above Limits
To: mmartinez2@unis.org

Your message could not be delivered because by policy Graduate Center email must total less
than 20 Megabytes in size, contain less than 50 attachments.  Attached archive files (.zip, .tar,
etc) must contain less than 256 files and have no more than 20 nested folder levels.

File(s):

Size: 0

Type:
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From: Samuel Thomas
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: music stands
Date: Thursday, January 28, 2016 12:23:37 PM

does she ever stop micromanaging?

=-= Samuel

Samuel Torjman Thomas, Ph.D
Ethnomusicologist, Performer, Composer
Artistic Director, ASEFA and NY Andalus Ensemble | 917-620-3998
www.AsefaMusic.com[AsefaMusic.com] | 
www.NewYorkAndalusEnsemble.com[NewYorkAndalusEnsemble.com] 

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Martelle, Jacqueline" <AMartelle@gc.cuny.edu>
Subject: music stands
Date: January 28, 2016 at 12:13:23 PM EST
To: "sthomas@asefamusic.com" <sthomas@asefamusic.com>

Hi Sam,
Just a reminder that when your group uses 3389, please see that the music stands are 
returned to the studios from which they’ve been retrieved.
I noticed that 3389 had a small “herd” of stands and the studios had none, maybe this wasn’t 
your group, but I am reminding everyone.
Thanks!
All the best,
Jackie

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
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From: Angel Gil-Ordóñez
To: Piza, Antoni
Cc: Asuncion Gil Ordóñez
Subject: Fwd: Pago ayuda Granados en Nueva York
Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 9:42:19 AM
Attachments: InvoiceSpainFoundation.pdf

Antoni, por favor envíales la factura cuanto antes. Utiliza exactamente el mismo modelo que
usaste para la de la Embajada (te la adjunto). 
La cantidad solicitada son $9,000 dólares USA.

Nunca nos dijeron que hacía falta esto!!
Gracias
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
Date: 2016-05-03 7:33 GMT-04:00
Subject: RE: Pago ayuda Granados en Nueva York
To: Angel Gil-Ordóñez <angel@postclassical.com>
Cc: "Piza, Antoni" <APiza@gc.cuny.edu>, Asuncion Gil Ordóñez
<asungordonez@hotmail.com>

Queridos Amigos:

 

Si efectivamente hemos recibido la copia de las facturas justificativas, pero para poder dar la orden
de transferencia lo que necesitamos recibir es la factura por parte de la Foundation for Iberian Music
a la Sociedad Estatal de Acción Cultural.

He escrito a Tony con este motivo

 

Los datos de facturación son

Sociedad Estatal de Acción Cultural

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:asungordonez@hotmail.com
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tel:%28202%29%20321%205795
mailto:angel@postclassical.com
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__postclassical.com_&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6acr-83fTDsXHClJkJ_p2c4BIzdRwTWz9EqUy8uCKXk&s=NQj3Q5zjUQFMluVyyLcNKsh4OWuN-xtQSu3UN9nnYdE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.chesapeakeartists.com_angel-2Dgil-2Dordonez&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6acr-83fTDsXHClJkJ_p2c4BIzdRwTWz9EqUy8uCKXk&s=dQtAhGSCYIIlYIZWQ4L2_8UvkhUOLEG_SqvavhbVtwg&e=
mailto:pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es
mailto:angel@postclassical.com
mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:asungordonez@hotmail.com



Foundation for Iberian Music 


Barry S. Brook Center for Music Research and Documentation 


Foundation for Iberian Music 
Graduate Center , City University of New York (CUNY) 
Federal ID: 13-3219419 


The Graduate School and University Center 


The City University of New York 


365 Fifth Avenue 


New York, NY 10016-4309 


TEL 212.817.1819 FAX 212.817.1569 


E-MAIL iberianmusic@gc.cuny.edu 


14 de Marzo de 2016 


FACTURA nr. 2016/8 


SPAIN-USA FOUNDATION 
2801 16TH Street NW 
Washington DC 20009 
United States 
FEIN 52-2199703 


Prograrna: 
FROM BARCELONA WITH PASSION: ENRIQUE GRANADOS IN NEW YORK 
Nueva York. 12 de Marzo de 2016 


Concepto: Gastos de producci6n correspondientes al simposio y concierto celebrados en 
el Graduate Center de City University of New York: 


2.200 dólares. 


Esta ayuda se aplicara directamente a los gastos de la orquesta Perspectives Ensemble 
como parte de la residencia que esta desarrolla en el Foundation for Iberian Music. 


El cheque debe estar a nombre de 
Foundation for Iberian Music 
The Graduate Center, The City University of New York 
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016 


Antoni Piza 


Director 


http://www.gc.cuny.edu The Graduate School and University Center is The City University of New York's doctorate-granting institution, which operates in consortium with all the CUNY campuses: o Bernard M. Baruch College 
o Borough of Manhattan Community College o Bronx Community College o Brooklyn College o The City College o The City University of New York Medical School o The City University of New York School 
of Law at Queens College o The College of Staten Island o Medgar Evers College o Eugenio Maria de Hostos Community College o Hunter College o John Jay College of Criminal Justice o Kingsborough 
Community College o Fiorello H. LaGuardia Community College o Herbert H. Lehman College o New York City Technical College o Queens College o Queensborough Community College o York College 







VAT: ESA 81553521

C/ José Abascal 4 – 4ª

28003 Madrid

España

 

Mil gracias

Pablo Eulate

 

De: Angel Gil-Ordóñez [mailto:angel@postclassical.com] 
Enviado el: viernes, 29 de abril de 2016 17:56
Para: Pablo Álvarez
CC: Piza, Antoni; Asuncion Gil Ordóñez
Asunto: Pago ayuda Granados en Nueva York

 

Querido Pablo.

Lamento esta confusión con el pago de vuestra ayuda, pero todo se envió el pasado 20 de
Marzo (ve abajo).

Te adjunto todo de nuevo. Os rogamos enviéis la transferencia lo antes posible porque la
orquesta tiene un proyecto en unos días y había contado con esta subvención para poder
realizarlo.

 

Un cordial saludo,

Angel

 

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Angel Gil-Ordóñez <angel@postclassical.com>
Date: 2016-03-20 22:14 GMT-04:00
Subject: Memoria Granados in NY
To: Jorge Sobredo <jorge.sobredo@accioncultural.es>, Pablo Alvarez de Eulate Gonzalez
<pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es>
Cc: "Piza, Antoni" <APiza@gc.cuny.edu>, Asuncion Gil Ordóñez
<asungordonez@hotmail.com>

mailto:angel@postclassical.com
mailto:angel@postclassical.com
mailto:jorge.sobredo@accioncultural.es
mailto:pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es
mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:asungordonez@hotmail.com


Queridos Jorge y Pablo.

Os adjuntamos la memoria de actividades del programa que presentamos el pasado 10 de
Marzo, así como las facturas de la orquesta y billete de avión de Benet.

 

Por favor decidnos si necesitáis algo más para proceder al pago de la ayuda.

 

Imagino que tenéis los datos bancarios de Foundation for Iberian Music.

 

Con todo nuestro agradecimiento,

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
Subject: Fwd: permission to publish?
Date: Wednesday, November 16, 2016 8:40:49 PM
Attachments: 00001.jpg

Jajajaja

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Alan Jones <lefestinjoyeux@gmail.com>
Date: Wednesday, November 16, 2016
Subject: permission to publish?
To: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

Meira, I've tried this so many times, this is the first time that the document seems to be
attached. Tell me if you get it, otherwise the only solution would be by post  (or else I may be
able to fax it from a cyber café). Best, Alan

2016-11-09 0:03 GMT+01:00 Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>:
Oh that'd be fantastic--thank you.

On Tuesday, November 8, 2016, Alan Jones <lefestinjoyeux@gmail.com> wrote:
OK, I could also scan it (I can do that now) and email it....

2016-11-08 4:06 GMT+01:00 Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>:
Dear Alan, 

Thank you for working on this. I can't change the pdf format, I'm afraid, but what's
important is your signature: if it's easy you can just print it, sign it, and mail it by snail
mail (still works!) to 

Antoni Pizà, Director
Foundation for Iberian Music
CUNY Graduate Center
365 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10016

Thanks much,

Meira

On Monday, November 7, 2016, Alan Jones <lefestinjoyeux@gmail.com> wrote:
I tried filling it out but the letters I typed didn't go onto the document, even though the
cursor was visible. Could you send it in a different format?

2016-11-06 7:03 GMT+01:00 Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail
.com>:

Dear Alan, unfortunately there are no complimentary copies in paper, but you will

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:annadelapaz@hotmail.com
mailto:lefestinjoyeux@gmail.com
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
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https://www.gc.cuny.edu/Page-Elements/Academics-Research-Centers-Initiatives/Doctoral-Programs/Music-%28Ph-D-D-M-A-%29/Faculty-Bios/Antoni-Piza

Agreement between Publisher, Editor and Contributor for the publication of a
Work by Cambridge Scholars Publishing

Cambridge Scholars Publishing (hereafter Publisher) has agreed to publish your
contribution as part of a collection of essays. The agreement is contingent upon the
fulfilment of a number of requirements listed below.

The contributor warrants that the contribution is original, that it is not in any
way libellous or unlawful in the United Kingdom, that it does not infringe any
copyright or other proprietary right. The contributor further warrants that she
or he holds the rights to publish and sell the work in traditional formats like
hardback and paperback but also as e-books.

By submitting the essay, the Contributor agrees to transfer the rights to publish
and sell the work in any binding or medium to Publisher. These rights are
governed by a contract between the editor of the work and Publisher.

The Contributor warrants that the contribution has not been published
elsewhere, and that if it is, both the Editor and Publisher must be notified and their
consent must be obtained before submission of the contribution to the Editor.
By submitting the essay, the Contributor agrees to the Publisher's Contributor
Copies policy which determines the number of complimentary copies to which
Contributor is eligible, if any. For certain categories of books, Contributor
may receive no complimentary copies. The Publisher's Contributor Copies policy
is available via the website http://www.cambr idgescholars.com or can be
obtained upon request from admin@ cambridgescholars.com.

By submitting the essay, the Contributor agrees to Publisher's author discount
and postage policy in the event of any purchases from Publisher.

The Contributor agrees to make a reasonable effort to conform to Publisher's
submission guidelines and to liaise with the volume editor to ensure that the
requirements of these guidelines are met to a reasonable degree.

Title of Publication: Q /Obﬁl I’/&[h a 1[ %4 e "[167;40/6} ’\OCﬂ

Title OI‘Cmnribulion:Qr[/q ‘ns gng/ 71‘/0[%5‘&/‘41(/) 4% 0(3 )Zlu /Lkp‘,/%

First Name: A}an Surname: ) Ope ¢
"

Institution:

Position:

Country:

Email: /efpsh'h/}o(yeux@ ;}maf/- cow

Signmurc:% ﬁ/(/., Date: /§ hov. 20 7é

I'would like to receive news and promotional offers from Cambridge Scholars Publisf;irn/g. tailored
to my field of interest (please detail) Yes o No






get permanent access to the online version, and a discount if you want to buy a hard
copy. They are expensive- I agree.

The link won't work till the book is published.

Yours,

Meira 

On Saturday, November 5, 2016, Alan Jones <lefestinjoyeux@gmail.com> wrote:

Hello Meira, What exactly is the situation on complimentary copies ? The link
didn't go anywhere, they should be clear on everything if they want us to sign...

2016-11-05 15:05 GMT+01:00 Meira Goldberg
<fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>:

Dear Alan,

I hope this note finds you well, and forgive me for pestering. The Cambridge
Scholars edition is in the final stages of production, but we can't go to press
without your permission. Will you be kind to take a few minutes to sign the
attached agreement and return it to us? 

Thanks so much,

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



From: Tatjana Markovic
To: Piza, Antoni
Cc: antonio.baldassarre@hslu.ch
Subject: Fwd: Piza Article Edit 2
Date: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 8:36:17 AM
Attachments: Piza corr TM EDIT2 DG.docx

Dear Antoni!

Hope this finds you well.

Could you please check your paper the last time, accept (or not) the track changes, add an abstract (max.
200 words) and send us back as soon as you can, latest until Friday. Below you will find the comments
and questions of our proofreader. Thank you in advance!

Best regards,
Tatjana
 

 

>>> Diane Glazer <dianeglazer@gmail.com> 09/18/16 10:15 PM >>>
Hello Tatjana

Attached is the Piza article with corrections.
Below are a few additional thoughts about it....

The caption to the photo on page 4 about gratitude
for Raimon Tort is either incomplete or hidden by the photo.  Not sure of  the full meaning there but it
needs to be modified.
 
Formatting on page 7 of John Cage’s quote seems strange…is it copied in a specific manner directly
from a book or should it be aligned left?
 

On page 18 is the segment about Wildenhahn…it is a mix of quotes and
descriptions as far as I can tell.  Descriptions would be in past tense while
direct quotes would likely have be in present tense. Where there are no
quotation marks, I switched things to the descriptive/past tense.  (If the entire entry is a quote, I can
backtrack.)  There are several little phrases in quotation marks with no footnotes. Clearly, this section is
much easier as an oral presentation than as a written document!
I think if there is one footnote added after the last quote, it will be clear 
that the section is basically a paraphrase of Wilandhahn's remarks and then the 
precise source will be available if needed by the reader.
I put that comment in the text.  

Keep in touch! :)

Diane

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:antonio.baldassarre@hslu.ch

Antoni Pizà

affiliation ?



Joan and John:

How Miró Sponsored the Merce Cunningham Dance Company in Sitges in 1966[footnoteRef:1] [1:  I am extremely grateful to Marita Gomis for encouraging this research; I am deeply indebted to her for providing many sources of information and being an avid e-mail writer.  Pilar Subirà Adelantado, a musician, music journalist, and radio personality, introduced me to her and has also been instrumental in shaping this essay.] 






please add abstract



In the spring of 1966, the renowned dance critic Clive Barnes, with his usual wit, claimed in a column in the New York Times that the State Department was “being subsidized by European painters”.[footnoteRef:2]   He really didn’t did not mean it, but he was sounding the alarm about a specific fact:   while the Office of Cultural Presentations at the State Department was defunding many US projects abroad, prosperous visual artists were stepping in to foot part of the bill. [2:  Clive Barnes, “Dance: Trouble with going abroad” the New York Times, 21 May 1966, 24.] 




A case in point—and the main motivation behind Barnes’s column—was the Merce Cunningham Dance Company (MCDC).   Throughout the sixties, and even earlier, it had built a solid reputation in Europe and Asia thanks to its international tours.  Many of these had been bankrolled through a combination of sources:   there were booking fees paid by the venues where the Company performed; there were many private donations collected through semi-public fundraisers in the USA, and above all,  there were many donations that had materialized through personal contacts, including in-kind gifts offered by the the MCDC’s friends in the visual arts.   Both Merce Cunningham and John Cage had had many artistic partnerships with artists who eventually had become well-known and financially successful, Jasper Johns and Robert Rauschenberg being two clear examples.[footnoteRef:3]   Thus, to tap into the art world for subsidies was for the MCDC an almost natural modus operandi.[footnoteRef:4] [3:  Cage created several financial structures to support his artistic projects, including the Foundation for Contemporary Performance Arts, aimed at creating partnerships with visual artists, which functioned to receive art works to subsidize the MCDC’s tours.  See Naima Prevots, Dance for export:  Cultural diplomacy and the Cold War
(Middletown, Conn.: Wesleyan University Press ; Hanover, N.H. : University Press of New England, 1998.).  See also Jennifer Harris, “Merce Cunningham:  The Accidental Icon”, Honors Thesis /Wellesley College, 2012), 108–9.  Both argue that since the MCDC was systematically excluded from government funds, Cage and his collaborators had to tap into the art world for funds.  The MCDC not only innovated in dance, but also in fundraising for dance.]  [4:  A very readable account of all kinds of minutiae, including performance fees, of the MCDC can be found in David Vaughan and Melissa Harris, Merce Cunningham: Fifty years (New York:  Aperture, 1997).  Many primary sources are available also through the Merce Cunningham Trust, whose archives are open to the public at The New York Library for the Performing Arts at Lincoln Center.] 




Barnes was a staunch defender of cultural diplomacy and apparently thought it was scandalous that the MCDC had been “evaluated” but not “nominated” for any grant in 1966.   He supported his opinions with the argument that, in addition to the previous successes of the MCDC’s tours in Europe, “this year [1966] the company also received a number of foreign invitations, among them were a festival at Sitges, Spain, another in the south of France, a film-date in Hamburg and the very prestigious Berlin Festival”.   Ultimately, though, he acknowledged:   “However, the story has a happy, or fairly happy ending.   The great Spanish painter Joan Miró, who had seen the Cunningham group in Paris, was so interested in getting the company to Spain that he donated one of his paintings to pay the company’s fares to Europe and back (…)”.[footnoteRef:5] [5:  Barnes, op. cit.] 




David Vaughan and Melissa Harris, archivists of the MCDC’s and authors of the Company’s official history, summarize that same difficult juncture as follows:



The company returned to Europe twice in 1966.   Once again, funding was a problem.   The State Department refused to help.   The summer tour was to begin in Sitges, Spain; to continue to the Fondation Maeght, Saint Paul-de-Vence, France; and conclude with the filming of Variations V in Hamburg.   The airfares were covered by the gift of a painting by Joan Miró, who had seen the company in Paris in 1964.[footnoteRef:6] [6:  David Vaughan and Melissa Harris, Merce Cunningham: Fifty years, 152.] 




And so, it was true:   the MCDC was able to accept some of these invitations thanks to the generosity of Miró and others.[footnoteRef:7]   The first stop of the tour was Sitges, a beautiful seaside resort a few hours away from Barcelona, where on July 29th 1966, the MCDC would perform at the Teatro Prado.   Early on in the twentieth century, Sitges had been known as a retreat for artists and bohemians and continuously later to this very daysince then as a liberal-minded tourist destination, especially for the LGBTQ community.   Barcelona, a cosmopolitan and large city, would have appeared to be the optimal place to host the first stop in the MCDC’s European tour, but no venue was available and the Teatro Prado in Sitges was chosen as an alternative.[footnoteRef:8] [7:  In addition to Miró, Canadian artist Jean-Paul Riopelle (1923–2002) also donated a work.  Moreover, there were other private donations in Spain, which will be discussed later. Both Miró and Riopelle were working under contract by Galerie Maeght.  The MCDC was to perform at the newly opened Fondation Maeght in Saint-Paul-de-Vence, France.]  [8:  Composer Carles Santos has stated that it was only at the last moment that the performance was moved from Barcelona to Sitges, although there is no other documentation to corroborate his statement. Santos states:  “Llegaron a Barcelona y en el último momento el teatro que los tenía que acoger no lo hizo, y al final todo se trasladó a Sitges”.  See Josep Ruvira’s interview with Carles Santos, “El piano ya me lo traigo yo”, in José A. Sánchez, ed., Situaciones:  Un Proyecto multidisciplinary en Cuenca (Cuenca:  Diputación de Cuenca/ Universidad de Castilla-La Mancha, 2003) 93.] 




Either wayFortunately Sitges had many advantages:   in addition to its long-established artistic and liberal atmosphere open to newnessinnovation, it was near  to La Ricarda (also known as Casa Gomis), a villa built by Ricardo Gomis (1910-–1993) and his wife Inés Bertrand (1915-–1992).   The Gomises were a highly cultivated family with a serious interest in the arts.   The couple were supporters and friends of many artists and, from the very beginning, La Ricarda was thought of as a place to entertain artists and, above all, to foster creativity and artistic experimentation. A day after the performance in Sitges, on July 30 1966, the Gomis family hosted the whole MCDC troupe at La Ricarda; in addition they helped with the expenses of the Sitges performance.[footnoteRef:9] [9:  One of the daughters of Ricardo, Marita Gomis, keeps the family archive, which includes check stubs of some payments towards the MCDC’s transportation within Spain as well as other expenses. I visited the archive on 13 December 2015 and I have maintained a busy e-mail correspondence with Marita Gomis.] 


	

	La Ricarda had been built on farmland and marshes owned by Inés Bertrand’s family, wealthy textile entrepreneurs since the nineteenth century.   Her husband, Ricardo was an engineer by training and took a keen interest in planning all construction and the design details of the house.   (Incidentally, La Ricarda’s name has no connection to Ricardo Gomis’s first name).   The home was to have the latest technology in design, appliances and—more importantly for the avant-garde-friendly couple—a state-of-the-art sound system for their own use and for their music soirées.   A few years earlier, Gomis had recruited Raimon Tort Alemany for the installation of their home’s sound system; and so, for the Sitges performance in 1966 Tort also provided the “James B. Lansing, Marantz y Revox” equipment, as the program spells out.   Tort owned a hi-fi business, AUDIO, S.A., dedicated to designing as well as selling audio systems.   However, he loved projects involving experimental music and the arts in general.   Designing the proper sound system for La Ricarda and eventually helping the musicians (John   Cage, David Tudor, and Gordon Mumma) with the Sitges performance were a matter of passion, not only business.[footnoteRef:10] [10:  I am grateful to Raimon Tort’s son, Antoni, who continues the A/V family business, for several emails describing his father’s artistic interests.] 


[image: ]

IllustrationFig. 10.:   Teatro Prado, Sitges.   From left to right:   Gordon Mumma, John Cage, Raimon Tort, and David Tudor setting up the performance of the MCDC.   Photographer unknown.   Marita Gomis’s family archive



	The construction of La Ricarda was finished in 1963.   Originally, the Gomises had asked renowned architect Josep Lluís Sert to design the house, but he declined the offer and recommended instead Antoni Bonet (1913-1989), who had trained with Sert and Le Corbusier.   Accordingly, La Ricarda follows the strict principles of the modern style in its Spanish version sometimes referred to as racionalismo.   Sert, Dean of the Harvard Graduate School of Design (1953–1969) and a good friend of Joan Miró, also designed the Fundació Joan Miró in Barcelona and the Fundació Pilar i Joan Miró in Palma de Mallorca.   He was also the architect of the second venue of the MCDC tour, the Fondation Maeght.   It was a full circle:   Miró, Sert, the Gomis family at La Ricarda, and the Fondation Maeght.







[image: ]








Illustration 1:Fig. 2.   La Ricarda or Casa Gomis; Antoni Bonet, architect; used by permission of the Town Hall of El Prat de Llobregat, photo by Sergi Ramos



	



	In the early twentieth century, Sert had been one of the founding members of several associations aimed at promoting modernism and arts experimentation in Barcelona.   First, there was the GATCPAC (Grup d’Arquitectes i Tècnics Catalans per al Progrés de l’Arquitectura Contemporània or Group of Catalan Architects for the Advancement of Contemporary Architecture).   From this group emerged another association, the ADALAN (Amics de l’Art Nou or Friends of New Art).   Finally, this motivated the foundation of the Club 49,[footnoteRef:11] again to promote new developments in the arts.   Some of its members were Joan Prats, a milliner and art advocate; the brothers Joaquim and Ricardo Gomis; composer Josep Maria Mestres-Quadreny; artist and art activist Joan Brossa; art critic Sebastià Gasch; and Joan Miró, among many others.   Club 49 was the official sponsor of the MCDC’s performance in Teatro Prado, Sitges, as the program shows.   Another member, Maria Lluïsa Borràs remembers how the Club got involved in bringing the MCDC to Barcelona: [11:  The activities of Club 49 were surveyed in a publication and an exhibition.  Pilar Bonet and Marti Peran, eds., Club 49:  Reobrir el joc, 1949-1971 (Barcelona:  Generalitat de Catalunya, 2000).  This publication accompanied an exhibition Centre d’Art Santa Mònica, Barcelona 15 June–31 August 2000.] 


During that time, deep into the Franco regime, I was afraid to go to work outside my home because I thought they would accuse me of not taking care of my daughter […](…).   Both Prats and Miró asked me to become the manager [secretaria] of Club 49 […](…).   They offered it to me to get me out of the house, not because I was qualified.   It was under Miró’s indication, and through the Club 49, that we invited Merce Cunningham to come to Barcelona to dance.   He was touring Europe with John Cage and Robert Rauschenberg; we sent him a letter, which I wrote, and we explained to him that Club 49 wanted him to present the same show in Barcelona.   And he said yes.  agreed. Nonetheless, his budget was very high, and the Club 49, formed by volunteers, had no funds.   Miró made a lithograph, which he gave to the members of the Club—we all have one—and the rest was were sold; with that money we were able to bring Merce Cunningham.[footnoteRef:12] [12:  “En aquell temps, en ple franquisme, em feia por sortir a treballar a fora de casa perquè pensava que m'acusarien de no ocupar-me de la meva filla […] Prats i Miro, tots dos […]  em van demanar que em fes càrrec de la secretaria  del Club 49.  Estic segur que no me la van oferir perquè creguessin que jo era la persona mes adequada o perquè els anava be, sinó per treure'm d'aquell aïllament i donar-me una feina que m'obligues a sortir […] I va ser per indicació seva que, a traves del Club 49, vam convidar Merce Cunningham perque vingués a ballar a Barcelona.  Estava fent una gira per Europa amb John Cage i Robert Rauschenberg, i li vam enviar una carta que vaig escriure jo,  explicant que el Club 49 volia presentar el seu espectacle, i ell va constar que si.  Tanmateix el pressupost que va fixar era molt elevat, i el Club 49, format per un grup de persones voluntàries, no tenia fons.  Miró va fer una litografia que va regalar als membres del Club 49 -tots en tenim una- i la resta es va posar a la venda; amb aquells diners vam poder portar Merce Cunningham”.  See interview with Borràs in Joan Punyent Miró, Al voltant de Miró (Barcelona:  Fundació Joan Miró, 2014), 74.  All translations are mine, unless otherwise stated.] 




	Many events organized by Club 49 were hosted at La Ricarda.   Indeed, throughout the sixties and beyond, La Ricarda presented dozens of avant-garde events, concerts, theater and performance “actions,” as they were termed.[footnoteRef:13]   The exquisite interiors and furniture were designed mostly by the same architect, Antoni Bonet, and included one of his signature designs, the airy and summery Butterfly chair.   This was the perfect setting to host the MCDC, beacons of modernity around the world. [13:  For a detailed survey of these performances see Helena Martin Nieva, “Les accions musicals de Josep Maria Mestres Quadreny i Joan Brossa a Casa Gomis-Bertrand de La Ricarda (1963–66)”, Masters Thesis (Universitat Politècnica de Catalunya.  2009). Marin Nieva is now completing a dissertation on the Club 49.] 
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[Illustration 2:Fig. 3.   Interior of La Ricarda with the Butterfly chair designed by Antoni Bonet.   Photo by Asier Rúa.  Used by permission.]


	The beauty of the setting, the stream-lined architecture and ornamental details, the exquisite décor, and above all the generosity of the Gomis family left a deep imprint on all the guests.   John Cage later recollected:

	We spent the afternoon on the	

lawns of Ricardo Gomis’ estate

outside Barcelona.   The tortillas were

delicious (omelets with potatoes and onions).

	The weather was perfect.   Even though we	

were all there (and his five daughters and

	many other guests) the space was such it didn’t seem like a large party.[footnoteRef:14] [14:  John Cage, Empty Words (Middletown, Conn.: Wesleyan University Press, 1969), 86.] 






[image: ]		

[image: G:\0_Writings\Books_in_progress\Miro\MaritaGomis\LA_RICARDA\MyphotosLa_Ricarda\IMG_2454.JPG][image: G:\0_Writings\Books_in_progress\Miro\MaritaGomis\LA_RICARDA\MyphotosLa_Ricarda\IMG_2452.JPG]



Figs. 4, 5. 6.[Illustrations 3, 4, 5: John Cage, Merce Cunningham (David Tudor in the background), and David Tudor at La Ricarda, 1966.   Photos by Joaquim Gomis.  Used by permission..]



	There seems to be a little divergence of memories about who exactly had the original idea of bringing the MCDC to Sitges or at least to Spain.   Was it the Club 49’s idea or was it the MCDC’s initiative?   It seems it the idea was actually Cage’s idea, who in addition to composing was the MCDC’s main public relations person responsible for garnering the and needed financial support for their European tour in 1966.   Although many years after, Cage many years after was quoted in the daily El País as saying:   “I performed in Sitges, invited by Joan Miró, who drew the poster of our tour”,[footnoteRef:15] he had in fact pitched the idea before getting the invitation.   As seen in the letters quoted below and his introduction to his own “Miró in the third person:   8 statements”, he came up with the idea of asking Miró to help subsidize the tour.   When the Catalan artist accepted, he asked Cage to include Spain in the tour and also for some texts to accompany an edition of his upcoming gravures published by Maeght Éditeur.   Most of the deal was done through the Galerie Maeght and one of its directors, Jacques Dupin, an art writer, Miró’s confidante, and the author of several critical volumes on Miró. [15:  No author, El País July 25, 1985.] 




	At the same time, many seeds had been planted in Spain that had created a buzz among art lovers.   For one, Spanish composer and artist-provocateur Juan Hidalgo had attended in 1958 the celebrated Darmstadt course and had met Cage.   In 1959 both Hidalgo and Cage were in Italy working with Bruno Maderna.   When Hidalgo, who was financially independent, returned to Barcelona that same year, he began advocating for new music and especially Cage’s music among the local composers, including Josep M. Mestres-Quadreny and the main members of the Club 49, especially Joan Prats and Joan Brossa.   His enthusiasm for new music was such that some critics even referred to him as “the Spanish Cage”.[footnoteRef:16]   One result of that activism was a series of concerts, Música oberta (Open music), whose main event that year was David Tudor’s concert on Nov 8, 1960.   This Tudor concert was the main kernel that generated most of the local interest in the Cage and Cunningham artistic partnership. [16:  Llorenç Barber, “40 años de creación musical en España”, Tiempo de historia 62/6 (January 1980), 207.] 




	Cage definitely knew about Miró as the music editor of the arts journal Possibilities from 1947 to 1952, when Francis Lee ee interviewed the artist for the magazine.[footnoteRef:17]   Nevertheless, it is quite plausible to think that Cage was acquainted with Miró’s art several decades before.   During the 1930-31 period, Cage had traveled throughout Europe with his boyfriend, Don Sample (also known as Donald St Paul).   A bright Harvard graduate and a sort of a precocious modern art connoisseur, Sample introduced him to European modernist currents, specifically James Joyce.   Cage, therefore, was very well-informed about what went on in Paris in the early part of the twentieth century, and being au courant, of course, meant to be aware of Miró’s art.   Incidentally, during his time in Paris, Cage casually met on the street Josep (or José) Pijoan (1881-–1963) on the street, . the Pijoan was a Catalan art historian who had taught at Pomonma College, Cage’s alma mater.   Cage credits him and this Paris encounter with having been inspired his interest in “modern music and modern painting”.[footnoteRef:18]   Furthermore, Cage wrote his first musical composition in Mallorca, Miró’s home island for most of his life.   It could be argued, then, that there is a kind of “Catalan connection” (Pijoan-Miró-Cage-Mallorca), which later would be crowned by Cage’s friendship with the Duchamps, longtime residents of Cadaqués on the Catalan coast. [17:  Francis Lee, “Interview with Miro”, Possibilities 1 (Winter 1947–48). The text is reproduced in Joan Miró: selected writings and interviews, Margit Rowell, ed. (Boston: G.K. Hall, 1986).]  [18:  See http://johncage.org/autobiographical_statement.html (accessed on ).] 




	It was precisely at the Duchamps’ home in Cadaqués where Cage, in September 1966, two months after the Sitges performance, wrote the text, “Miró in the third person:   8 statements”.[footnoteRef:19]   The story of how these “statements” originated and how the Sitges performance was arranged and sponsored by Miró can be partially surmised from Cage’s unpublished correspondence.[footnoteRef:20]   The “statements” were also published independently by Cage and they were preceded by an introduction detailing how both artists met: [19:  John Cage, A year from Monday: New lectures and writings (Middletown, Conn.: Wesleyan University Press, 1969).]  [20:  See The John Cage Collection at Northwestern University Library, especially the following items:  Box 5, Folder 10, Sleeve 1; Box 5, Folder 11, Sleeve 11; Box 6, Folder 4, Sleeve 12; Box 6, Folder 6, Sleeve 4; Box 6, Folder 6, Sleeve 4; Box 112, Folder 6, Sleeve 16. My gratitude to Greg MacAyeal, Curator of the Music Library, for expediting these documents.] 


One day I telephoned Miró.   He was in a New York hotel about to leave for Europe.   Our conversation was in French and I had never met him.   I asked him to make a gift of a painting to the Cunningham Dance Foundation, explaining that this gift would make possible a European tour on the part of the dancers.   (I knew Miró had seen the 1964 performances of Cunningham and his Company at Theâtre de l’Est Parisien and that he had been enthusiastic.) Miró asked me to write him a letter.   I did. He replied generously, not only promising a gift but proposing performances in Spain for which he would made a poster.[footnoteRef:21] [21:  Cage, A year, 85.] 





	Corroborating the story, on November 25 1965, Dupin wrote to Cage:
He [Miró] is delighted that the Merce Cunningham Company had the idea of including Spain in its tour.   He is also very happy that you are planning shows at the Maeght Foundation, he he will personally be there.   To help you with your plans in Barcelona and in Saint Paul de Vence, he agrees to execute a work that he will put at your disposal.[footnoteRef:22] [22:  John Cage Collection, Box 5, Folder 10, Sleeve 1.	] 




	Another letter dated March 12, 1966 from Cage to Dupin seems almost desperate and frantic in tone and reads:

Dear Mr. Dupin:

The financial state of the Merce Cunningham Dance Company is such that we will not be able to perform in Europe unless our travel expenses are covered.   We are depending on the generosity of Miró.   I am referring to your letter of November 25 in which you state that Miró agrees to execute a work that he will put at our disposal.

Our total expenses are very high, but we shall be finding some subsidy here.   We are counting on the Miró work for us, that it will cover the travel expenses which are in the neighborhood of $20,000.00.   You will understand that we need confirmation of this as soon as possible.   Please let me know very soon what we may expect from the sale of the work of Miró.   The Tour depends upon it.[footnoteRef:23] [23:  Letter at the library of the Fundació Pilar i Joan Miró a Mallorca. The call number is FPJM-FD 0472 – 5229, carpeta 11. Also FD0462 includes a note from Dupin to Miró stating that Cage accepts writing a text for the etchings.] 




	

	Miró and Cage often communicated through Dupin or other intermediaries with typed letters on official letterhead.   A few times, both added handwritten notes directly to each other.   On one occasion, on a typed letter by Dupin, Miró had written:   “J’ai beacoup regretté de ne pas vous rencontré [sic] avant mon depart, et espère vous voir bientôt.   Tres amicablement, MIRÓ.”[footnoteRef:24]   Thus Cage, upping the ante, so to speak, and desperate to get the funds, adds to this letter in beautiful handwriting:   “Dear Miró, We hope you will make this tour possible.   It will be a miracle! (…)”.[footnoteRef:25] [24:  Box 5, Folder 10, Sleeve 1.]  [25:  FPJM-FD 0472–5229, carpeta 11.] 


		

	And a miracle it was.   In late July 1966, John Cage, arriving separately from the rest of the troupe, landed at the Barcelona airport.   Composer Josep Maria Mestres-Quadreny, Juan Hidalgo’s partner in new music activism and a member of the Club 49, picked him up and has left a vivid portrait of Cage’s early hours in Catalonia:

That year [1966] the great event of the Club 49 was the presentation of of the Merce Cunningham Dance Company.   This company came to Europe with a spectacle with music by John Cage for two pianos, performed by himself and David Tudor, to perform at the Fondation Maeght in Saint-Paul de Vence and also at Teatro Prado in Sitges.   Joan Miró created a lithograph to defray the expenses of the tour, which was also used to illustrate the poster and hand program.   I was took care of picking up Cage at the airport and taking him to Hotel Terramar in Sitges. His French was sufficient to carry on a conversation and, being a very extroverted person,rson very extroverted, we soon started a lively conversation, starting with the joy he felt to ride around the Garraf slopes, so similar, as he said, to the coastal slopes of California, where he hailed from, and then following through several aspects about music, which we continued for a good while as soon as we arrived at the hotel.   “Music has been so much of the same for three centuries, that now it’s surprising that it could be different,” he said.   Among other things he explained his project to mount an exhibition about new graphic musical notation, to which I would be invited to participate.   The performance of the spectacle was a great success.   An expectant public had filled up the Teatro Prado, I even saw some young composers from Madrid, and all fervently applauded the artists.   Next The next day, Ricard Gomis offered a reception at La Ricarda where he invited the whole company and we could all share a few hours and a few drinks with all of them.[footnoteRef:26] [26:  Josep Maria Mestres-Quadreny, unpublished memoirs.  The composer has explained most of these anecdotes in some of his published books, most importantly in Tot recordant amics (Tarragona: Arola, 2007), 166. The unpublished version reads: “Però aquell any el gran esdeveniment del Club 49 fou la presentació de Merce Cunningham and dance company. Aquesta companyia vingué a Europa amb un espectacle amb música de John Cage per a dos pianos, interpretats per ell mateix i per David Tudor, per fer una representació a la Fundació Maeght de Sant Pau de Vença i l'altra per al Club 49 al teatre del Prado a Sitges. Joan Miró va fer una litografia per a sufragar les despeses d'aquesta gira, que també serví pel cartell i el programa de mà. Jo em vaig ocupar de recollir Cage a l'aeroport per traslladar-lo al hotel Terramar de Sitges. Ell parlava un francès suficient per mantenir una conversa i, en tractar-se d'una persona molt extravertida vam engegar una animada conversa, començant pel goig que li feia circular per les costes de Garraf, tant semblants, segons deia, a les costes californianes d'on ell era originari i seguint per diversos aspectes de la música, que van prosseguir una bona estona un cop arribats a l'hotel. “La música ha estat tres segles tant igual que ara sorprèn que pugui ser diferent”, deia. Entre altres coses em va parlar del seu projecte de fer una exposició de noves grafies musicals a la qual jo seria invitat a participar. La representació de l'espectacle fou tot un èxit. Un públic expectant omplia de gom a gom el teatre del Prado, hi vaig veure fins i tot alguns compositors joves madrilenys, i va aplaudir amb fervor els artistes. El dia següent Ricard Gomis va fer una recepció a la Ricarda on va invitar a tota la companyia i vam poder compartir unes hores i unes copes amb tots ells.”] 




	Mestres-Quadreny has also commented that one morning he and Cage strolled around Barcelona (it was probably Sunday July 31  31st 1966) and Cage, seeing a public performance of the sardana, the national dance of Catalonia, and having a very jovial personality, joined the dancers with great enjoyment.



	When the whole company arrived, it was quite a sensation.   A local journalist, comically, insisted on referring to Merce Cunningham as “Ms. Merce Cunningham”, since in Catalonia “Mercè” is one of the most popular women’s names,[footnoteRef:27] but most of the writing was very well informed and serious.   Thus, the press offered several lengthy previews full of excitement, and later there were a quite a few favorable reviews of the event. [27:  Delfí Colomé, “Dansa transitive”, Assaig de teatre: revista de l'Associació d'Investigació i Experimentació Teatral (Monogràfic: Dansa a Catalunya), 66–67 (2008), 85–94.] 




	Xavier Montsalvatge, a well-known composer and writer, published an extensive article in La vanguardia an extensive article about a week before the Sitges performance.   Despite Montsalvatge’s bent for tonal music and conventional forms and genres in his own compositions (his nostalgic Cinco canciones negras are an all-time favorite among many singers), as a critic he was open to experimental artists.   He was also respectful of the members of the Club 49:   wealthy art patrons like the Gomises and international artists such as Miró who could not be antagonized.   His preview of the event highlighted the fact that Cage’s music gains gained by being associated with Cunningham’s choreography.   The visual element, he claimed, makes made it easier for the audience to assimilate Cage’s complex musical language.   Cunningham’s movements on the stage, he argued, created “an absolutely new kind of beauty”.[footnoteRef:28] [28:  Xavier Montsalvatge, “El ballet de Merce Cunningham en Sitges”, La vanguardia 16 July 1966, 48.] 




	Arturo Llopis (Arturo Llorens Opisso’s nom de plume), a prestigious cultural reporter, profiled Joan Prats and Joaquim Gomis, founding members of the Club 49. The sponsorship of the MCDC’s Sitges performance, he asserted, was very much in line with the spirit that had always driven the Club.   Prats and Gomis recalled their successful efforts, many years ago, when they organized exhibitions of Picasso and Miró, as well as many other lesser-known artists.   In 1956, they recalled, they mounted a presentation by György Ligeti who spoke on electronic music and performed some of his scores.   On a different occasion, Pierre Barbaud introduced his musical compositions on Bull computers.   Llopis also acknowledged the sponsorship of Joan Obiols, a psychiatrist, professor, and eventually the Rector of the Universitat de Barcelona and one of main founding members of the Club 49.   Other sponsors were the City of Sitges (Ajuntament de Sitges), whose mayor is quoted as saying that, he applauded initiatives such as this because they bring brought back to the town’s (Sitges’s)to Sitges “yesteryear’s artistic ambience”, especially when it the ambiance is brought up to the present moment, as with the MCDC does.    According to the article, other sponsors were the tourist Tourist board Board (Fomento del Turismo), the tourist Tourist workers’ Workers union Union (Sindicato Local) and the Casino Prado Suburense, the club (or parent company) that hosted the actual theater.[footnoteRef:29] [29:  Arturo Llopis, “El Club 49 presenta a Cunningham y a los suyos”, La vanguardia 29 July 1966, 29.] 




	The first review of the event came a few hours after the performance.   An enthusiastic Llopis, a reporter and critic from the time when reviews were “dictated” over the phone, offered his readers his immediate reaction to the performance:   “I am dictating these notes while at the Teatro Prado: the audience’s roaring applause continues, an audience that is enthusiastic and knowing and that has totally filled the old theater (…)”.   He mentioned that not only Cunningham but each individual dancer got a standing ovation; as did the shy musicians.   He qualified described the choreography as having an “obsessive plasticity”, and finishes by saying “this is all one can say in a journalistic note written in the early hours of the morning.”[footnoteRef:30] [30: Arturo Llopis, “Sitges:  Éxito de ‘Merce Cunningham and Dance Company’”, La vanguardia 30 July 1966, 44.] 




	One of the most prominent founding members of the Club 49, Sebastià Gasch, was also a very active modern arts promoter as well as a columnist for the conservative Madrid newspaper ABC.   He used his column to highlight Barcelona as a center for modern creativity, as opposed to Madrid, seen as a bit less dynamic than Barcelona and a bit more bureaucratic and government-oriented.   His column stressed the role of the Club 49 in bringing the avant-garde to Barcelona and the excitement of the “free spirit” brought by the MCDC in which the artistic paradigms of authorship and creative responsibility, he elaborated, are substituted by a collaborative enterprise.   Cunningham, Cage, and Tudor, he asserted, contributed their art without anyone knowing their exact role in the staging of these dances.[footnoteRef:31] [31: Sebastián Gasch, “Cunningham y su compañía de danza, en Sitges”, ABC 7 August 1966, 67.] 




	The cultural monthly Serra d’Or also published an essay by musicologist Montserrat Albet, “John Cage a Sitges”.[footnoteRef:32]   The fact that she focused on Cage and not on the MCDC is important.   She claimed that the Sitges performance became an opportunity to experience Cage’s music up-close after having heard so much about it so much.  and she thought that tThe fact that that music and dance evolve on the stage independently and without any narrative or story is was a plus., she  [32:  Montserrat Albet, “John Cage a Sitges”, Serra d'Or, 8/8, (August 1966), 72  3.] 


thought.  SheAlbet asserted that the later performance at the Fondation Maeght the first week of August was not liked by the critics but that it was nevertheless attended by luminaries of the art world such as Chagall and Miró, and they all pronounced it a success.   Zen, she argued, is seen in Europe as suspicious and that could be a problem for Cage, despite the outstanding success of his prepared piano.   She suggested that Cage was best understood by contextualizing it with Umberto Eco’s ideas, especially his concept of “open artworks”, as well as the literary experimentations of Samuel Beckett and Ionesco.   As a safe conclusion she said that although it might seem too early to really evaluate Cage’s music, so far it is was worth paying attention, at least.



	There are a few written accounts of those days in Sitges by some members of the MCDC.   Composer Gordon Mumma had just been hired as a sound producer for the troupe.   His music was not performed on July 29 1966 in Sitges, but in the Fondation Maeght, a few days later, Cunningham included Place, choreography based on Mumma’s electronic work Mesa.   Michelle Fillion, editor of Mumma’s recent memoir, explains: 

In July 1966 Mumma and his wife Jackie [Jacqueline Leuzinger] left Ann Arbor to tour with the company; his first professional appearance with them was in Sitges, Spain, on July 29. The connection was flexible from the start—no contracts needed—and as work progressed Mumma soon proved himself an indispensable member of the musical trio with Cage and Tudor.[footnoteRef:33] [33:  Gordon Mumma and Michelle Fillion (eds.), Cybersonic Arts: Adventures in American New Music (Champaign, IL:  University of Illinois Press, 2015), 99.] 






Mumma himself has written about their days in Sitges and a hilarious drinking episode:



Following a rehearsal of the Cunningham Dance Company in the Spanish town of Sitges in July, we discovered that it was siesta time and the tractor-tram to our hotel was not running. A few dancers conceded to the long, hot walk; the rest of us decided to wait. A nearby store was ignoring siesta, and Cage purchased a rare heavy sherry, Sandeman’s Bang Brown. Boarding the idle tram, Peter Saul and John resumed a previously suspended game of travel-board chess, sharing with the kibitzers the Brown Bang. A half-hour passed, the air grew hotter, the Brown Bang was finished, and the chess moved more slowly. David Tudor opened a secret bottle of coconut liqueur. The chess game stopped and unnoticeably the tram began its now quite surreal journey down the long beach to the Terramar Palace Hotel.[footnoteRef:34] [34:  Ibid., 181–182.] 




In a recent email communication Mumma added:



One other amusing situation: only a short time before the performance I had stepped outside to buy some bottled water for us musicians.   When I returned and tried to enter from the front entrance (rather than the stage-entrance) I was denied entry because I wasn't on their list of the dancers.   I showed them my name on the performance program, but that wasn't sufficient for the front-door bureaucracy.   So I had to get entry by going around the outside of the building to the stage-entrance, where they recognized me, and arrived just a few minutes before the curtain went up. All of Sitges was a wonderful time, in hot weather.[footnoteRef:35] [35:  Mumma’s e-mail to the author on 25 January 2016.] 




One of the most important dancers of the MCDC, Carolyn Brown, has also left her impressions from that sojourn in Sitges:



In late July, the Cunningham Company left for Spain and an idyllic four days onf the coast of the Mediterranean at the Terra Palace Hotel, which rose like a gigantic wedding cake at the end of a long white crescent beach, a short jitney ride away from the outdoor Prado Theatre in the ancient town of Sitges, where our single performance did not begin until one hour before midnight.   Usual for Spain, unusual for us.[footnoteRef:36] [36:  Carolyn Brown, Chance and circumstance: Twenty years with Cage and Cunningham (New York:  Knopf, 2007), 472.] 




She details the names of the whole troupe, which included her mother, and of her dance students, the MCDC’s dancers, lighting designers, the musicians, and the company’s manager, among others.   Her recollection that the Teatro Prado was an “outdoor” venue is incorrect, though.   The subsequent Maeght performance was outdoors, but not the one in Sitges one..   The Gomis archive holds many photos of the rehearsal and performance of the show.   It was indeed inside.   The following photos give a little insight on the rehearsal and performance at Teatro Prado in Sitges in 1966.   They all come from Marita Gomis’s family archive.   The photographer is unknown, perhaps a member of the Gomis family.[footnoteRef:37] [37:  The following individuals helped me identify the dancers:  K. Meira Goldberg, Ailleen Pasloff, Wendy Perron, Carolyn Browan, Barbara Dilley, Sandra Neels.  My deepest gratitude for their help.] 
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Fig. 7. Carolyn Brown
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Fig. 8. Merce Cunningham
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Fig. 9. Barbara Dilley-Lloyd and Merce Cunningham   Fig.10. 	Sandra  Neels (and Merce Cunningham in the background)
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Fig. 11. Sandra Neels and unknown dancer







One more record helps us understand that summer in Sitges in 1966.   The documents archived as part of the “Merce Cunningham Dance Foundation Collection” at the New York Public Library at Lincoln Center contain a recording about ten minutes long.   It is a voice-over in English for the 1966 film John Cage by Klaus Wildenhahn.[footnoteRef:38] In his documentary, Wildenhahn follows the ensemble during their 1966 tour.   In the English voice-over, Wildenhahn himself describes Cage’s composition, How to pass, kick, fall and run, which was performed in the 1966 European tour both in Sitges and the Fondation Maeght.[footnoteRef:39]   The dance here is paired not with music but short texts by Cage read aloud by the composer and, sometimes, other people.   In France Cage read the texts in “his own French”, but we don’t know in what language they were read in Sitges.   It could have been English, Spanish, Catalan or more likely in French, in preparation for the Fondation Maeght performance.   Parts of texts, incidentally, are were sometimes read at the same timesimultaneously by two people, often making them often incomprehensible.;   All all the more because the voices are were manipulated by  the electronic devices with sound modifiers changing color and intensity. [38:  This is not part of the “film-date in Hamburg” Clive Barnes mentions in the article quoted at the beginning of this essay.  That film is VARIATIONS V directed by Arne Arnbom and it was recently issued on DVD from Mode Records DVD 258.]  [39:  For a detailed description to the MCDC’s choreographies see http://www.mercecunningham.org/trust/] 




Wildenhahn also focuses on the fact that Miró donated an artwork worth $20,000.   Half of that amount was wired to the MCDC in advance, he says, but now at the Fondation Maeght, Cage has had to request from Daniel Lelong, Aimé Maeght’s general manager, the rest of the money.   Wildenhahn mentions the “French system” of valuing art:   for an established artist, like Miró, the price is calculated according to the size of the art work.   So, Lelong and Maeght, he says, know exactly that this Miró is worth at least $20,000.   Cage, tellingly, is quoted as saying that the role of the modern composer is that of a public relations agent in charge of fundraising.   Absolument vrai.

	

		Wildenhahn actually mentions that venues are asked to provide the electronic equipment for these types of performances the same way “they provide a Steinway” for conventional concerts.   Musicians in the MCDC, he continues, don’t do not travel with heavy amplifiers, tape recorders, and loudspeakers.   They do have sound modifiers, cables, sockets, and prepared tapes, however.   Then, the musicians set up a switching system between sound source, sound modifiers and loud speakers.   Their role is the “skilled, intuitive, and inventive manipulation of this system during performance”.FOOTNOTES FOR EACH SHORT QUOTE OR AT LEAST ONE FOOTNOTE HERE WHICH WOULD OBVIOUSLY APPLY TO ALL THE ABOVE SHORT QUOTES FROM WILDENHAHN?



After Sitges, the MCDC left on a train to France for their performance at the Fondation Maeght.   That performance created a lot of stress.   As mentioned, theThe equipment was retained at the Spanish-French border; the electricity at the Fondation did not work until later in the day of the first performance; the dancers were afflicted with splinters from the pine floor of the stage.   In the end all was goodwent well.   It is alsoThis is the subject of another essay. “Discipline and Cicadas” written by   Gordon Mumma, always a great raconteur, . In his essay “Discipline and Cicadas”He remembers it as follows:



I have always been impressed with Cage’s discipline as a performer, particularly under unusual or difficult circumstances. On my first tour with the Merce Cunningham Dance Company in the summer of 1966 THE DATE WAS MISSING…IS IT IN THE ORIGINAL ESSAY OR IS IT AN ERROR IN THE ORIGINAL ESSAY?, we performed in Saint-Paul de Vence on the French Riviera. We had traveled by train from our previous engagement, crossing the border from Spain that day. It turned out to be a national holiday, and the customs offices were closed. All our equipment, costumes, and musical instrumments would have to be held at the border until customs opened the next day.   The performance was that night in an outdoor space at the Fondation Maeght to a sold-out house. I considered the situation a disaster. Cage, on the other hand, undertook a careful exploration of the gallery and outdoor stage, experimenting with its inherent sounds. He dragged pieces of wood across the soggy, splintered stage. He considered the results in the context of the natural sounds of the space: screaming cicadas in the noonday sun and a croaking chorus of tree frogs that emerged later in the day. In the end we did get some of our equipment by a small private plane, chartered from Corsica, and the performance.





Despite all the problems, many sources identify the 1966 event as a crucial point in Spanish music.   Composer and conceptual artist Carles Santos has expressed exactly this idea:   Santos considers the event very “important” and even “traumatic” for Spanish music.[footnoteRef:40]   Its influence on contemporary dance has also been remarkable for the paths it opened.[footnoteRef:41]   Recent surveys of avant-garde, experimental, and conceptual art highlight the influence of the event in all media and art forms, punk rock included.[footnoteRef:42]   It all seemed to have happened thanks to the fundraising tactics of John Cage and the support of Joan Miró. [40:  José A. Sánchez (ed.), Situaciones, 93.]  [41:  Llorenç Barber and Pep Llopis, “Nuevas músicas y danza en la España de hoy”, Variaciones: Cuadernos de música contemporánea 3 (February 1995), 33.]  [42:  Pilar Parcerisas, Conceptualismo(s) poéticos, políticos y periféricos:  en torno al arte conceptal en España 1964–1980 (Madrid:  Akal contemporaneo, 2007); Jorge Luis Marzo and Patricia Mayayo, Arte en España (1939–2015):  Ideas, practicas, politicas (Madrid: Catedra, 2015); Pompeyo Perez Diaz, “Musica y Situacionismo:  de John Cage al Punk Rock” Revista de Musicologia 32/2 (July 2009), 579–90.  See also Helga de la Motte-Haber, “Die Gruppe Zaj: Cage-Rezeption in romanischen Ländern”, Positionen: Beiträge zur Neuen Musik 21 (November 1994), 32.] 




[bookmark: h.gjdgxs][bookmark: _GoBack] 	Merce Cunningham ended that year speaking at a Dance Management Seminar (Dec 14 1966).   And despite Despite all the financial problems of his company he stated optimistically, almost triumphally:



Dancers have a strength of community that they are not aware of, and that consists of the human interest of the people who have been involved [in], or whose lives have in some way touched, the dance.   I was furious at the Rockefeller Brothers report that said that dance is in a state of chaos.   That is not true.   Despite being ignored, we have made a forceful and handsome art come alive.   The American dance has brought glory to this country around the world.   Chaos indeed![footnoteRef:43] [43:  Vaughan, 156.  He quotes Lydia Joel, “Dance Management Seminar Held” Dance Magazine 1967.] 




Clive Barnes would have agreed.





[image: ][image: ][image: ]
[image: ]

Fig. 12. Hand program for the performance at Teatro Prado, Sitges 1966.

21



image3.jpeg







image4.jpeg







image5.jpeg







image6.jpeg







image7.emf



image8.emf



image9.emf



image10.emf



image11.emf



image12.emf



image13.jpeg

PN

Loa squipos de reprodiuccicn de sonida para ests

aiin hon sido insialados por AUDIO, 8. A
empleando componenias de afs dsldad JAMES
B LANSING, MATANTZ  REVOX.

SITOES - Teatro Prado, 26 e 1908 - €LUB 40







image14.jpeg







image15.jpeg

oo o0
0 o 9o & ¢ o000 e






image16.jpeg







image1.png







image2.jpeg









From: Secretaria del Departament d"Art i de Musicologia
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: PIZA/ANTONI 25MAY PMI BCN
Date: Wednesday, May 11, 2016 7:18:43 AM

Bon dia,

Li envio el bitllet electrònic per la seva estada a Barcelona per la tesi de la senyora Paula
Bonet.
Atentament,

Susanna

-------- Missatge reenviat --------
Assumpte:PIZA/ANTONI 25MAY PMI BCN

Data:Wed, 11 May 2016 11:13:43 +0000
De:"Viajes El Corte Ingles " <eticket@amadeus.com>
A:D.ART@UAB.CAT

PIZA/ANTONI 25MAY PMI BCN
***EL PASAJERO HA SIDO INFORMADO DEL SERVICIO (FECHA, HORA
  DESTINO, CONDICIONES ESPECIALES) SIENDO DE SU CONFORMIDAD.
***COMPRUEBE QUE VIAJA DEBIDAMENTE DOCUMENTADO (DNI, NIE O
  PASAPORTE SI SE REQUIERE) INCLUIDOS MENORES, DEBIDAMENTE
      AUTORIZADOS, MAS INFORMACION WWWW.MAEC.ES.SIENDO SU
 RESPONSABILIDAD LA OBTENCION DE VISADOS Y REQUISITOS NECESARIOS
 PARA LA ENTRADA O PERMANENCIA EN LAS ESCALAS Y EN PAIS DE DESTINO
***EL TIEMPO LIMITE PARA LA EMISION DEL BILLETE HACE REFENCIA A LA RESERVA DE 
PLAZA
  LA TARIFA RESERVADA TIENE VIGENCIA EL DIA DE LA RESERVA
***DESCUENTO DE RESIDENTES: OBLIGATORIO PRESENTAR DNI, NIE
   EN VIGOR Y CERTIFICADO DE RESIDENCIA ACREDITATIVO
***LA CANCELACION O CAMBIO POR EL CLIENTE PUEDE PRODRUCIR
          GASTOS DE HASTA EL 100 POR 100 DEL PRECIO
***PARA VIAJES A EE.UU. ES INDISPENSABLE OBTENER AUTORIZACION
    DEL FORMULARIO E.S.T.A. CONSULTE EN 
HTTPS://ESTA.CBP.DHS.GOV/[ESTA.CBP.DHS.GOV]
***EN EQUIPAJE DE MANO A EE.UU. Y UK ASEGURARSE DE LLEVAR LOS DISPOSITIVOS
      ELECTRONICOS CON BATERIA EN BUEN ESTADO Y COMPLETAMENTE CARGADA
 ***SERVICIO DE URGENCIAS A EMPRESAS: 902.180.129/91.218.39.26
        HORARIO DE LUNES A VIERNES DE 18.00 A 09.00 HRS
         HORARIO SABADOS, DOMINGOS Y FESTIVOS: 24 HORAS

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------
-

This document is automatically generated.
Please do not respond to this mail.

                           BILLETE ELECTRÓNICO
                    RECIBO DEL ITINERARIO DE PASAJERO

 VIAJES EL CORTE INGLES            FECHA: 11 MAY 2016
 ED CAMPUS DE LA UAB              AGENTE: 5991
 BELLATERRA                       NOMBRE: PIZA/ANTONI
 BARCELONA
 IATA       : 782 72611

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:eticket@amadeus.com
mailto:D.ART@UAB.CAT
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=HTTPS-3A__ESTA.CBP.DHS.GOV_&d=CwMDaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=gzwH0B6ZE0PhRV340s3VwJXEsPi7MuhCh-Sawl7282o&s=voTcJCealX8sjN4XzHnOOV8-xF1c2j6F0L8uAdPn2WQ&e=


 TELÉFONO   : 0034935814064

 COMPANIA EMISORA                       : VUELING AIRLINES
 NUMERO DE BILLETE                      : ETKT 030 1755403992
 LOC. RESERVA : AMADEUS: 534KM3, AIRLINE: VY/NGNVJE

 DE /A           VUELO   CL FECHA  DEP      BASE TARIFA   NVA   NVD   BAG  ST

 PALMA MALLORCA  VY 3903 P  25MAY  0835     PRTVY/BP      25MAY 25MAY 1PC  OK
 BARCELONA                        HORA DE LLEGADA:     FECHA DE LLEGADA:
 AIRPORT                          0925                 25MAY
 TERMINAL:1

 BARCELONA       VY 3914 L  26MAY  2035     LRTVY/BP      26MAY 26MAY 1PC  OK
 AIRPORT
 TERMINAL:1
 PALMA MALLORCA                   HORA DE LLEGADA:     FECHA DE LLEGADA:
                                  2125                 26MAY

 EN FACTURACION, DEBERA PRESENTAR UN DOCUMENTO DE IDENTIDAD CON FOTOGRAFIA Y
 EL DOCUMENTO USADO COMO REFERENCIA AL HACER LA RESERVA.

 EL PASAJERO PIZA/ANTONI
 SUBVENCIONADO A ACREDITAR/ NO VERIFICADO:
 EL PASAJERO DEBE IDENTIFICARSE Y ACREDITAR SU CONDICION DE BENEFICIARIO EN
 FACTURACION O EMBARQUE.
 EN CASO CONTRARIO EL PASAJERO NO PODRA REALIZAR EL VIAJE CON ESTE TITULO DE
 TRANSPORTE.
 ENDOSOS       : NON END/NON REF/CHGS RESTR
 PAGO          : CC DC XXXXXXXXXX0269/Exp0616 S004186 116.28

 CÁLCULO DE TARIFA  :PMI VY BCN10.50VY PMI75.50EUR86.00END

 TARIFA AÉREA       : EUR     86.00
 TASA               : EUR     21.96JD   EUR     1.14OG    EUR     7.18QV
 TOTAL              : EUR     116.28

*******************************************************
**** SERVICIO DE ASISTENCIA POR SINIESTRO 24 HRS ****
**** TRAVEL GUARD TEL (+34 902 538 228) ****
****NUMERO DE POLIZA 10.225****
************************************************************
** TEL: 902 180 129 / 91 218 39 26 **
** HORARIO: L-V: 18.00-09.30 HRS**
SABADOS, DOMINGOS Y FESTIVOS DE CARACTER NACIONAL 24 HRS **
***********************************************************

EL CALCULO MEDIO DE EMISIONES DE CO2 DURANTE EL VUELO ES 87.79 KG/PERSONA
FUENTE: ICAO CALCULADORA DE EMISIONES DE CARBONO
HTTP://WWW.ICAO.INT/ENVIRONMENTAL-
PROTECTION/CARBONOFFSET/PAGES/DEFAULT.ASPX[ICAO.INT]

AVISO
EL TRANSPORTE Y OTROS SERVICIOS PRESTADOS POR EL TRANSPORTISTA ESTAN SUJETOS 
A
LAS CONDICIONES DE TRANSPORTE, LAS CUALES SON CITADAS COMO REFERENCIA. ESTAS
 CONDICIONES PUEDEN SER SOLICITADAS AL TRANSPORTISTA EMISOR DEL BILLETE

EL RECIBO/ITINERARIO CONSTITUYE EL BILLETE DE PASAJE A LOS EFECTOS DEL
ARTICULO 3 DEL CONVENIO DE VARSOVIA, EXCEPTO EN EL CASO DE QUE EL
TRANSPORTISTA ENTREGUE AL PASAJERO OTRO DOCUMENTO QUE CUMPLA CON LOS
REQUISITOS DEL INDICADO ARTICULO 3.

AVISO
SI EL VIAJE DEL PASAJERO TERMINA O TIENE UNA ESCALA EN UN PAIS QUE NO SEA EL
DE SALIDA , PUEDE APLICARSE EL CONVENIO DE VARSOVIA, RIGIENDO DICHO CONVENIO
Y, EN LA MAYORIA DE LOS CASOS, LIMITANDO LA RESPONSABILIDAD DE LOS
TRANSPORTISTAS POR MUERTE O LESIONES PERSONALES, ASI COMO POR PERDIDA DEL
EQUIPAJE O DANOS AL MISMO. VEASE TAMBIEN EL AVISO TITULADO 'AVISO A LOS
PASAJEROS INTERNACIONALES SOBRE LIMITACION DE RESPONSABILIDAD' Y 'AVISO SOBRE
LIMITACIONES DE RESPONSABILIDAD POR EQUIPAJE'.

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=HTTP-3A__WWW.ICAO.INT_ENVIRONMENTAL-2DPROTECTION_CARBONOFFSET_PAGES_DEFAULT.ASPX&d=CwMDaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=gzwH0B6ZE0PhRV340s3VwJXEsPi7MuhCh-Sawl7282o&s=Ir6hj758wbIvpT8o4UrkUovbyCosRti-YsAOV9kSilY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=HTTP-3A__WWW.ICAO.INT_ENVIRONMENTAL-2DPROTECTION_CARBONOFFSET_PAGES_DEFAULT.ASPX&d=CwMDaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=gzwH0B6ZE0PhRV340s3VwJXEsPi7MuhCh-Sawl7282o&s=Ir6hj758wbIvpT8o4UrkUovbyCosRti-YsAOV9kSilY&e=


EN TRANSPORTE DOMESTICO ESPANOL LA RESPONSABILIDAD DEL TRANSPORTISTA QUEDA
LIMITADA DE ACUERDO CON LA LEY DE NAVEGACION AEREA DE 21 DE JULIO DE 1960.

NOTICE
CARRIAGE HEREUNDER IS SUBJECT TO THE RULES AND LIMITATIONS RELATING TO
LIABILITY ESTABLISHED BY THE WARSAW CONVENTION UNLESS SUCH CARRIAGE IS NOT
 AS DEFINED BY THAT CONVENTION. LIABILITY OF CARRIER
IS SUBJECT TO THE WARSAW CONVENTION AND EC-REGULATION 2027/97. CONDITIONS OF
CARRIAGE ALSO APPLY. PASSENGER BAGGAGE MUST NOT CONTAIN DANGEROUS GOODS.

WITH THIS TICKET YOU WILL RECEIVE A SET OF NOTICES, WHICH FORMS PART OF THE
TICKET AND CONTAINS THE CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND OTHER IMPORTANT NOTICES.
PLEASE MAKE SURE YOU HAVE RECEIVED THESE NOTICES, AND IF NOT, CONTACT THE
NEAREST OFFICE OF THE ISSUING AIRLINE OR TRAVEL AGENT TO OBTAIN COPIES PRIOR
TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF YOUR TRIP.

NON-AIR TRANSPORTATION AND/OR SERVICES
WHERE THIS COUPON IS ISSUED FOR TRANSPORTATION, OR SERVICES OTHER THAN AIR
TRAVEL, SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS MAY APPLY. THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS
MAY BE INCLUDED IN THE TICKET SET OR MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE ISSUING COMPANY
OR AGENT.

NOTICE:  IF THE PASSENGER'S JOURNEY INVOLVES AN ULTIMATE DESTINATION OR STOP
IN A COUNTRY OTHER THAN THE COUNTRY OF DEPARTURE THE WARSAW CONVENTION MAY BE
APPLICABLE AND THE CONVENTION GOVERNS AND IN MOST CASES LIMITS THE LIABILITY
OF CARRIERS FOR DEATH OR PERSONAL INJURY AND IN RESPECT OF LOSS OF OR DAMAGE
TO BAGGAGE. SEE ALSO NOTICES HEADED  PRINTED IN THIS TICKET. FULL DETAILS ON 
THESE OTHER
LIMITS ARE LAID AT ANY SALES OFFICE OF THE CARRIER CONCERNED.

IN SPANISH DOMESTIC CARRIAGE THE CARRIER'S LIABILITY IS LIMITED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE AIR NAVIGATION ACT OF JULY 21ST 1960.

EL TRANSPORTE DE MATERIALES PELIGROSOS TALES COMO AEROSOLES, FUEGOS
ARTIFICIALES Y LÍQUIDOS INFLAMABLES A BORDO DEL AVIÓN QUEDA ESTRICTAMENTE
PROHIBIDO. SI USTED NO COMPRENDE ESTAS RESTRICCIONES, SÍRVASE OBTENER MAYOR
INFORMACIÓN A TRAVÉS DE SU COMPAÑÍA AÉREA.



From: Fundacio ACA Àrea Creació Acústica
Subject: Fwd: Presentació Monogràfics
Date: Monday, September 26, 2016 5:42:57 AM
Attachments: Monográficos.jpg

Bon dia!!

Els concerts monogràfics de la FUNDACIO ACA ja són a la venda:
https://teatreprincipal.koobin.com/index.php?action=PU_evento&Ev_id=902

També el paquet dels tres monogràfics:
https://teatreprincipal.koobin.com/index.php?action=PU_paquetes[teatreprincipal.koobin.com]

Recordau que el primer concert serà a càrrec del francès Jean Pierre Dupuy, amb les Sonates
& Interludes for Prepared Piano.

https://www.facebook.com/l.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fteatreprincipal.koobin.com%2Findex.php%3Faction%3DPU_evento%26Ev_id%3D902&h=SAQFgmaev&s=1
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__teatreprincipal.koobin.com_index.php-3Faction-3DPU-5Fpaquetes&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=J9IOfSKaad5MAba4HhokXbvCZQEggOYBEc1wtF7TaVA&s=pY7ccOdBTZPZ9ewLQHiZKmGCx-uoQsAX2QVNdRd7rD0&e=

MONOGRAFICS
ENCONTRE INTERNACIONAL DE COMPOSITORS JOHN CAGE
BARTOMEU ARTIGUES
XAVIER CARBONELL

3-4-5 OCT 20:00 PM
|||I TEATRE PRINCIPAL
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From: Eva Leon
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Question
Date: Wednesday, January 06, 2016 8:52:34 PM

Hola Antoni,

Estos son los posibles first readers que Prof. Carey propone. Danny es Daniel Phillips
 (violinista)

Que te parece? Les conoces?

Mil gracias,
Eva

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Carey, Norman" <NCarey@gc.cuny.edu>
Date: January 6, 2016 at 11:13:09 AM EST
To: Eva Leon <evamleon@yahoo.com>
Subject: Re: Question

Is Danny on your committee? That’s a possibility, and so would be Edward
Klorman <Edward.Klorman@qc.cuny.edu>, a violist who is on the theory faculty
at Queens.

Let me know.

All best,

Norman Carey
Acting Executive Officer
Ph.D/D.M.A. Programs in Music
CUNY Graduate Center
Tel: (212) 817-8594
Office: 3102.05

On Jan 6, 2016, at 6:37 AM, Eva Leon <evamleon@yahoo.com>
wrote:

Dear Prof. Carey,

Happy New Year! Hope you had a wonderful Holiday.

I am hoping to defend my dissertation this year and unfortunately my first
reader, Shaugn O'Donnell, is taking a sabbatical and will not be able to help.
Could you please advise in whom I should ask to be my first reader? Ideally I
would love to have someone I could easily work with and that would have the

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:NCarey@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:evamleon@yahoo.com
mailto:Edward.Klorman@qc.cuny.edu
mailto:evamleon@yahoo.com


time for me. I understand how busy we all are. I actually put time aside this
semester just to focus on this.

It has definitely been a throwback but I am determined to finish it as soon as
possible. Would really appreciate your advise.

Thank you!
Eva



From: Katie Straker
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Re: final(ish) concert program
Date: Tuesday, February 09, 2016 3:51:54 PM

FYI

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Sato Moughalian <satomoughalian@gmail.com>
Date: Feb 9, 2016 3:02 PM
Subject: Re: final(ish) concert program
To: Kathryn Straker <kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu>
Cc: Angel Gil-Ordóñez <angel@postclassical.com>," Douglas Riva (jdriva@gmail.com)"
<jdriva@gmail.com>

 Hi Katie, I'm going to wait to hear back from you because it's really hard for me to write
anything with just one hand. If you do not have a more recent bio, I will definitely do it but
I'll wait for your answer. And if you have something more recent, could you kindly cut and
paste it in an email to me? Thank you so much, Sato 

On Tuesday, February 9, 2016, Sato Moughalian <satomoughalian@gmail.com> wrote:
 Hi Katie, is this really the most recent biography for perspectives ensemble that you
have? It's at least seven years old. If you don't have a more recent one I will try to pull a
short biography together for you but this one cannot be used. Thank you,

On Tuesday, February 9, 2016, Kathryn Straker <kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu> wrote:
Hi all,
 
Attached is the latest version of the concert program. We have done our best to
incorporate everyone’s comments. It needs to go to the printer tomorrow, so please let
us know if we’ve overlooked anything in juggling all of the e-mails from everyone.
 
 
--
Katie Straker, Assistant
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, CUNY
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
(212) 817-1819
 
 
 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:satomoughalian@gmail.com


From: Katie Straker
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: RE: small poster order
Date: Monday, March 28, 2016 12:48:13 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: "Capelli, Christian" <CCapelli@gc.cuny.edu>
Date: Mar 28, 2016 11:29 AM
Subject: RE: small poster order
To: "Straker, Kathryn" <kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu>
Cc: 

Hi Katie,

 

Your posters are ready.

 

Christian

 

From: Kathryn Straker [mailto:kstraker@gradcenter.cuny.edu] 
Sent: Wednesday, March 23, 2016 4:11 PM
To: Capelli, Christian <CCapelli@gc.cuny.edu>
Subject: small poster order

 

Hi Christian,

 

Attached are 2 posters. Please print 3 copies of each. Both are 12x18. There is no specific date we
need them by, just as soon as you can have them available.

 

 

Thanks,

--

Katie Straker, Assistant

Foundation for Iberian Music

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


The Graduate Center, CUNY
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016

(212) 817-1819

 

 

 



From: Noemy Berbel
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Seminario de Investigación en Educación Musical SIEM UIB2016
Date: Thursday, February 25, 2016 12:37:47 PM
Attachments: Di´ptico SIEM2016.pdf

Benvolgut Antoni,

Primer de tot me presentaré, sóc na Noemy Berbel, professora de música de la Universitat de
les Illes Balears. Fa anys que conec a en Joan Parets, l'altre dia em vaig posar en contacte amb
ell en relació al Seminari d'Investigació en Educació Musical que farem a la UIB el proper
mes de juliol, me va parlar de tu i per això t'envio la informació del Seminari per si pot ser del
teu interès. 

Moltes gràcies,
Quedo a la teva disposició,
Salutacions cordials,

Noemy Berbel
Professora de l'Àrea de Didàctica de l'Expressió Musical 
Facultat d'Educació
Universitat de les Illes Balears
971259731
noemy.berbel@uib.es

...............................

Es para nosotros un gran placer comunicarle que la Universitat de les Illes Balears y el Grupo de
Investigación en Arte y Educación está organizando el SEMINARIO DE INVESTIGACIÓN EN
EDUCACIÓN MUSICAL SIEM UIB2016, que tendrá lugar en Mallorca los días 6, 7 y 8 de julio
de 2016, en la sede del Caixaforum de Palma

El SIEM 2016 tiene por finalidad presentar investigaciones en el ámbito de la educación musical que
inviten a formular propuestas y reflexiones sobre el recorrido llevado a cabo. De igual manera,
interesa fomentar la colaboración entre las diversas instituciones nacionales e internacionales que
trabajan en el ámbito de la música.

Solicitamos su colaboración para difundir el documento adjunto (cartel y díptico) entre los
profesores y alumnos de su Facultad, así como la página web :
http://siemuib2016.wix.com/siemuib2016[siemuib2016.wix.com]

Le agradecemos por adelantado su atención y colaboración con la Universitat de les Illes Balears y
el Comité organizador del SIEM UIB2016

Un saludo cordial,

Dra. Noemy Berbel Gómez
Presidenta del Comité Organizador SIEM UIB2016
Universitat de les Illes Balears

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:noemy.berbel@uib.es
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__siemuib2016.wix.com_siemuib2016&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=gVMRvRChgOQv2MPVXvDwY7OG_Nt0axrnBISDJDCs6MI&s=9rxZhfCA9adrNILQeVxgUoNvBcWBiylm_QBUT_nDiDc&e=
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Plaça Weyler, 3, 07001 
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PRESENTACIÓN


Organizado por la Universidad de las Islas Baleares, el SIEM 2016 tiene por  
finalidad presentar investigaciones en el ámbito de la educación musical que 
inviten a formular propuestas y reflexiones sobre el recorrido llevado a cabo. 
De igual modo, interesa fomentar la colaboración entre las diversas institucio-
nes nacionales e internacionales que trabajan en el ámbito de la música. El 
seminario ha sido diseñado de forma eminentemente participativa, a fin de que 
sea de utilidad para investigadores y futuros doctores. 


Más información en: http://siemuib2016.wix.com/siemuib2016
Dirección email: siem.uib2016@gmail.com


MODALIDAD DE TRABAJO


Ponencias de los expertos invitados y debate sobre las propuestas. Exhibición 
de trabajos de investigación en sesión de pósters. Los pósters serán presentados 
por sus autores en las correspondientes sesiones establecidas a lo largo del Se-
minario. Se contará con 10’ para la presentación de cada póster y con media 
hora de puesta en común y debate en cada sesión. Las sesiones se desarrolla-
rán en sala de conferencias, con la proyección del póster en pantalla.


CONDICIONES PARA PARTICIPAR EN LA SESIÓN DE PÓSTERS


Presentación de un resumen de 450 palabras, máximo, en el que se especifi-
quen: objetivos; hipótesis o interrogantes; metodología empleada; resultados y 
discusión; referencias.


EJES TEMÁTICOS 


Música, educación y contexto; Evaluación y currículo; Innovación educativa; Edu-
cación musical y tecnología; Inclusión-diversidad; Gestión y políticas educativas.


FECHAS DE INTERÉS 


Fecha límite envío de resúmenes: 23 de marzo de 2016
Comunicación de la aceptación de los trabajos: 11 de abril de 2016
Fecha límite de inscripción: 23 de mayo de 2016
Envío del póster (formato pdf) por email: 23 de mayo de 2016


Entrega del póster impreso (80x100 cm) para exponerlo, hasta el 5 de julio, 
en la conserjería del edificio Sa Riera, c/ de Miquel dels Sants Oliver, Palma. 
Durante los días 6, 7 y 8 se pueden llevar directamente a CaixaForum. 


CERTIFICACIÓN 


Se certificará la participación como asistente. Los pósters aceptados y presen-
tados se certificarán como comunicación presentada en el Seminario. Se han 
solicitado créditos de formación del profesorado de las Islas Baleares, por la 
Conselleria d’Educació i Universitat. 


INSCRIPCIÓN


General: 150 € / Alumnos de Grado y de conservatorio: 50 €
Todos los autores deben estar inscritos.


EXPERTOS INVITADOS


Dr. David Forrest, Profesor en la School of Education y en la School of Arts 
de la RMIT, University, Australia. Coordinador de investigación en la School of 
Arts (HDR Coordinator).


Dra. Graça Mota, Directora del CIPEM (Centro de Investigação em Psicolo-
gia da Música e Educação Musical), Escola Superior de Educação do Instituto 
Politécnico do Porto.







DIRIGE


Noemy Berbel, Universidad de las Islas Baleares


SECRETARÍA TÉCNICA


Magdalena Jaume, Universidad de las Islas Baleares


COMITÉ CIENTÍFICO


Presidenta


Maravillas Díaz, Universidad del País Vasco


Secretaria


Noemy Berbel, Universidad de las Islas Baleares


Miembros del Comité


María José Aramberri, Centro Superior de Música del País Vasco, Musikene
Cristina Arriaga, Universidad del País Vasco
Lluís Ballester, Universidad de las Islas Baleares
Fernando Bautista, Conservatorio Profesional de Las Palmas de Gran Canaria
José María Belló, Conservatorio Superior A Coruña
Alberto Cabedo, Universidad Jaume I
Elizabeth Carrascosa, Universidad de Valencia
Roberto Cremades, Universidad Complutense de Madrid
Albert Díaz, Conservatorio Superior de Música de las Islas Baleares
Miquel Estelrich, Conservatorio Superior de Música de las Islas Baleares
David Forrest, RMIT University, Melbourne
Llorenç Gelabert, Universidad de las Islas Baleares
Andrea Giráldez, Universidad de Valladolid
Magdalena Jaume, Universidad de las Islas Baleares


Mª Paz López-Peláez, Universidad de Jaén
Oswaldo Lorenzo, Universidad de Granada
José Filomeno Martin Raimundo, Escola Superior de Artes Aplicadas do 
IPCB, Castelo Branco, Portugal
Emilia Martos, IES Rosa Navarro  Olula del Río, Almería
Graça Mota, Directora del CIPEM (Centro de Investigação em Psicologia 
da Música e Educação Musical) Portugal 
María del Valle de Moya, Universidad de Castilla la Mancha
Remigi Morant, Universidad de Valencia
Enrique Muñoz, Universidad Autónoma de Madrid
Adolf Murillo, Universidad Politécnica de Valencia
Arnau Reynés, Universidad de las Islas Baleares
Daniel Roca, Conservatorio Superior de Canarias
Maricel Totoricagüena, Universidad de Cantabria
María Elena Riaño, Universidad de Cantabria
Miren Zubeldia, Conservatorio Profesional Ataúlfo Argenta, Santander
Anna Vernia, Presidenta de SEM-EE


COMITÉ ORGANIZADOR


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







PROGRAMA - Miércoles 6 de julio


MAÑANA


9 h Recepción y registro de inscripciones


9.30 h Acto de apertura


10.30 - 12.00  h 


Conferencia Dr. David Forrest 


Collaborative Higher Degree Research Supervision in Music 


Education: The Case of an Australian Doctoral Program


12.00 h Descanso 


12.30 - 14.00 h  Sesión de pósters nº1 


TARDE


16.00 -17.30 h  Sesión de pósters nº2 


17.30 h Descanso  


18.00 -19.30 h  Sesión de pósters nº3


PROGRAMA - Jueves 7 de julio


MAÑANA


9.00 - 10.30 h


Conferencia Dra. Graça Mota


Música e inclusión social: un tema crucial en el dominio 


de la Educación Musical


10.30 h Descanso 


11.00 -12.45 h  Sesión de pósters nº4


12.45 - 14.15 h  Sesión de pósters nº5


TARDE


16.00-17.30 h  Sesión de pósters nº6 


17.30 h Descanso  


18.00-19.30 h  Sesión de pósters nº7







PROGRAMA - Viernes 8 de julio


MAÑANA


9.30 - 11.00 h  Sesión de pósters nº8 


11.00 h Descanso


11.30 - 13.00 h  Sesión de pósters nº9


13.00 - 13.30 h  Puesta en común. Intercambio entre los 
participantes.


13.30 h Cierre del Seminario


LUGAR


CaixaForum Palma 
Plaça de Weyler, 3, 07001 Palma, Mallorca


ORGANIZAN


Grup de Recerca en Art i Educació (GRAiE) 


Direcció General de Política Universitària i d’Ensenyament Superior


COLABORAN


Institut de Recerca i Innovació Educativa (IRIE)


Universitat de les Illes Balears. Facultat d’Educació
Departament de Pedagogia i Didàctiques Específiques 


CaixaForum Palma







-- 
SIEM UIB2016
Seminario de Investigación en Educación Musical
Universitat de les Illes Balears
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From: Meira Goldberg
To: Adam Kent; Alan Jones; Alex Chavez; Alfonso Cid; Allan de Paula Oliveira; Allan Oliveira; Alvaro Ochoa-Serrano;

Aurèlia Pessarrodona; Brook Zern; Bruno Bartra; Claudia Calderón Saenz; Claudia Jeschke; Craig Russell; Elisabet
Torres Aguilera; Elisabeth Le Guin; Erica Ocegueda; Estela Zatania; Gabriela Granados; Gabriela Granados;
Gabriela Mendoza-Garcia; Guillermo Castro Buendia; Iris Viveros; Jared Newman<pjnguitar.earthlink.net>;
Jessica Gottfried Hesketh; John Moore; José Miguel Hernández Jaramillo; Kiko Mora; Loren Chuse; Lou Charnon
Deutsch; Lénica Reyes Zúñiga; Martha Gonzalez; Martha Gonzalez; María José Ruiz Mayordomo; María Luisa
Martínez; Matteo Giuggioli; Michael Malkiewicz; Michelle Habell-Pallán; Miguel Angel Berlanga Fernández; Miguel
Ángel Berlanga (vía Google Drive); Nancy Heller; Nubia Florez; Nubia Florez Forero; Paul Naish; Peter Manuel;
Piza, Antoni; Rafael Figeroa Hernández; Ramon Soler; Raquel Paraiso; Raquel Paraiso; Reinaldo Fernández
Manzano; Ricardo Pérez Montfort; Theresa Goldbach; Thomas Baird; Tony Dumas; Walter Aaron Clark; Wilfried
Raussert; Álvaro Ochoa Serrano

Subject: Fwd: Simposio Fiesta y Cuerpo
Date: Friday, April 15, 2016 1:18:22 PM
Attachments: VI Encuentro CONVOCATORIA Definitiva en PDF abril de 2016 (1).pdf

Gracias Nubia por este aviso de un congreso tan interesante!

con un fuerte abrazo para todos,

Meira
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Nubia Florez <nubialeonor.florez@gmail.com>
Date: 2016-04-14 12:35 GMT-04:00
Subject: Fwd: Simposio Fiesta y Cuerpo
To: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

Apreciada Meira:
Te agradecería que me ayudaras a difundir esta Convocatoria, estoy segura que es del interés
de muchos:

Adjunto la primera Convocatoria Pública del VI Encuentro- Argentina 2017. En el cual se realizará un simposio sobre Cuerpo
y Fiesta.
La idea es que cada uno de ustedes la envíe a sus amigos o conocidos y a las redes de la cual forman parte. De igual manera,
si es posible, tratar de que sea colgada en las páginas web de sus propias entidades. Nuestro interés es  realizar el Encuentro
de investigadores más calificados sobre el tema de Fiesta- Nación- Cultura,  por lo menos en Nuestra América Latina. Eso
depende fundamentalmente de su colaboración. 
-- 
Nubia Flórez Forero
tel: 310 765 94 85
Barranquilla - Atlántico

-- 
Nubia Flórez Forero
tel: 310 765 94 85
Barranquilla - Atlántico
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CONVOCATORIA  


  VI Encuentro Internacional sobre Estudios de Fiesta, Nación 


y Cultura.  
 


Tema: La Fiesta 


 


Fecha: Septiembre de 2017 


 


Lugar: Facultad de Humanidades y Ciencias de la 


Educación/Universidad Nacional de La Plata, Argentina 


 


1. PRESENTACIÓN 


De manera conjunta la Universidad Nacional de La Plata (UNLP) de Argentina -a 
través de la Facultad de Humanidades y Ciencias de la Educación (FaHCE) y el 
Instituto de Investigaciones en Humanidades y Ciencias Sociales (IdHICS)-, la 
Corporación de Estudios Interculturales Aplicados INTERCULTURA de Colombia, filial 
de L´AMAP. Amitié des peuples du monde con sede en Paris- Francia y la Red 
Internacional de Investigadores en Estudios de Fiesta y Nación (REDRIEF), invitan a 
participar del VI Encuentro Internacional sobre Estudios de Fiesta, Nación y 
Cultura a realizarse durante el mes de septiembre del 2017, en la sede de la FaHCE.    


 
La UNLP, fundada en agosto de 1905, es una de las universidades más prestigiosas de 
la República Argentina y referencia académica a nivel continental e internacional. Su 
trayectoria se encuentra articulada hoy por la calidad de su docencia -a nivel de grado 
y posgrado-, en la investigación científica de enorme impacto y en el vínculo con la 
sociedad que le aporta la extensión universitaria.   
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INTERCULTURA, (filial de L´AMAP. Amitié des peuples du monde con sede en Paris- 
Francia),  es la entidad colombiana, sin ánimo de lucro, que ha convocado y 
organizado, desde 1997, los Encuentros Internacionales de Investigadores en Estudios 
de Fiesta, Nación y Cultura en Colombia y Venezuela  (1997, 2008, 2011, 2012 y 2015) 
y en el marco de la línea de investigación sobre estos estudios construyó la Red 
Internacional de Investigadores en Estudios de Fiesta -REDRIEF- que coordina en la 
actualidad. En estos Encuentros han participado 400 ponentes/investigadores de 
Bolivia, Brasil, Colombia, Cuba, Chile,  Costa Rica, España, EEUU, Francia, Italia, 
México, Suiza y Venezuela.  
 
 


2. FUNDAMENTACIÓN 


En el año 2017 se cumplen 20 años de haber iniciado la construcción de la Red 
Internacional de Investigadores en Estudios de Fiesta, Nación y Cultura REDRIEF y de 
la entidad que la administra: la Corporación de Estudios Interculturales Aplicados- 
Intercultura.  
 
En estos años la REDRIEF e Intercultura han publicado 13 libros sobre el tema de 
Fiesta en América, realizado 50 documentales, producido 5 Encuentros 
Internacionales sobre estudios de estos temas y ha consolidado la adscripción de 400 
investigadores activos, provenientes de varias naciones. Paralelo a ello, decenas de 
instituciones, entre universidades y entidades académicas o de cultura, se han 
vinculado a nuestras actividades. Ver: www.interculturacolombia.com  
 
El encuentro que tendrá lugar en el año 2017, se concibe como un espacio  para el 
balance de las investigaciones académicas o de las prácticas festivas más significativas 
que se han realizado en cada nación, con lo cual se pretende consolidar el gran 
observatorio de los estudios en estas temáticas. Un balance que nos conducirá a 
fortalecer el Blog de investigadores y a crear un programa académico virtual sobre el 
tema de la fiesta. La base fundamental de estos programas será orientada y 
coordinada por un equipo internacional de 20 profesionales con títulos de Maestría o 
Doctorado.   
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3. OBJETIVOS 


 Realizar un balance de las investigaciones académicas centradas en 
el estudio de la relación Fiesta- Nación y Cultura.   


 Consolidar la REDRIEF 
 Propiciar la fundamentación científica de programas académicos en 


el estudio de la relación: fiesta-nación-cultura. 
 Explorar las posibilidades del uso de la fiesta como estrategias de 


intervención social para promover cambios en la ciudadana y en la 
afirmación de identidades y diferencias, cuyo reconocimiento es 
necesario para fortalecer las prácticas de convivencia.  


 Dar un fundamento de saberes a los procesos pedagógicos festivos 
liderados por docentes o por gestores culturales. 


 
 


4. TEMÁTICAS 


 


4.1 Temática central: 


La Fiesta 
 


4.2 Temáticas específicas: Simposios 


 


4.2.1 Fiestas y Nación.  


 


 Coordinadores  


-Pablo Ortemberg (Conicet-Universidad de Buenos Aires, Argentina) 
-Moisés Guzmán (Universidad Michoacana de San Nicolás de Hidalgo, México)  
-Reinaldo Rojas (Fundación Buría, Venezuela)  
-Claudia Isabel Navas (Francia)  
-Zamira Díaz (Universidad del Cauca, Colombia).   
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 Descripción 
 
Desde hace varias décadas el estudio de las fiestas y ceremonias como dispositivos 
fundamentales en la construcción de las naciones ha logrado instalarse como un 
campo historiográfico autónomo en el plano académico mundial. En él confluyen 
diversas tradiciones disciplinares, como la antropología, la historia del arte y la 
historia política, las cuales se alimentan entre sí y combinan según sus métodos 
diferentes insumos documentales. En su conjunto, los aportes que resultan de este 
campo continúan hoy en día teniendo su impacto en la historia cultural de lo político, 
una perspectiva amplia cada vez más transitada por los investigadores de hoy en día, 
y contribuyen a elucidar diferentes procesos y coyunturas en el “plebiscito cotidiano” 
de la construcción de nación. 
 
A estas alturas, existe un consenso historiográfico sobre la relevancia de la dimensión 
cultural en la modelación de lo político. La fiesta no es un mero espejo dramatizado de 
una determinada jerarquía social o una forma de nación que le antecede y esta 
escenificada, sino que la misma performance festiva incide creativamente en la 
confirmación, alteración y edificación de las jerarquías, solidaridades, formas de 
autoridad y modos de pensar y sentir, en este caso, la nación. Por ello la fiesta resulta 
omnipresente en todos los regímenes políticos a la vez que se presenta como una 
arena donde diferentes actores disputan sentidos y compiten por imponer un 
determinado papel, un relato de los orígenes, encauzar los usos de la historia, 
seleccionar los fragmentos a recordar y a olvidar de la memoria estatal y establecer 
los lugares de poder legítimos a ocupar. Las fiestas oficiales son rituales del poder en 
el que los sujetos negocian mediante la acción simbólica diferentes aspiraciones de 
legitimación del pacto de dominación. Si bien son dirigidas desde las autoridades 
estatales necesitan de la aprobación de las clases subalternas. 
 
Desde ese marco, el simposio Fiesta y Nación convoca la presentación de trabajos que 


analicen desde disciplinas como la historia cultural, antropología, sociología, historia 


del arte, arquitectura, lingüística, etnomusicología, semiótica y folklore, entre una 


miríada de aproximaciones posibles problemas del pasado y contemporáneos 


relacionados con la Fiesta y la Nación: desfiles, actos protocolares, performances, 


himnos, monumentos, rituales escolares, héroes, iconografía, vocabularios políticos. 
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4.2.2 Fiestas populares.   


 


 Coordinadores  


-María Geralda Almeida (Universidad Federal de Goiás, Brasil)  
-Carlos Eduardo Santos (Universidad Federal de Juiz de Fora, Brasil)  
-María Teresa Arcila (Iner-Universidad de Antioquia, Colombia)  
-Gisela Landazuri Benítez (Universidad Autónoma Metropolitana, México) 
 


 Descripción 
 
El simposio sobre fiestas populares, entiende las fiestas como manifestaciones 
grupales o colectivas, pues convocan la participación pública y amplia de diversos 
grupos humanos. Tradicionalmente se las consideró expresiones de cultura popular, 
entendida como la propia de un sector –subordinado- de la sociedad, sin embargo, 
más que continuar reproduciendo esta separación (García Canclini), es necesario 
asociar su comprensión con la incidencia de relaciones de poder. Las fiestas populares 
contribuyen a la producción social de espacialidades determinadas: barrios, veredas, 
pueblos, ciudades, regiones y a su vez son producidas por ellas. Son momentos para 
escenificar, recrear y/o reafirmar los símbolos de identificación/diferenciaciones 
culturales, tanto de los territorios en los cuales se inscriben o con los cuales 
interactúan, como de los grupos sociales y humanos que las celebran. 
  
En síntesis, las fiestas como prácticas simbólicas (Turner) son expresión de la 
complejidad humana, pues ellas condensan economía, política, relaciones  sociales, 
producción simbólica y estética; son música, danza, gastronomía, producción 
artesanal, manifestaciones artísticas y  recreativas, representaciones teatrales o 
carnavalescas, etc. Su cabal comprensión demanda análisis que no las fraccionen ni 
descontextualicen y abordajes históricos, es decir, con perspectiva de proceso. 
 
Los temas específicos pueden referirse a: La fiesta como hecho social total: dimensión 
histórica, económica, política, social, simbólica y estética (análisis de caso) y a Fiestas 
populares: poder y contrapoderes (análisis de caso).  
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4.2.3 Fiesta, migración y etnicidad. 


 


 Coordinadores  


-Nicolás Herrera (Universidad de La Plata, Argentina)  
-Olimpia Niglio ( Kyoto University, Japón) 
-José Marcial Ramos (Universidad Pedagógica- UPEL, Venezuela) 
-Natalia Gavazzo (Universidad de San Martin- Conicet, Argentina) 
 


 Descripción 
 
Tomando nota de la creciente legitimidad internacional que al interior de los estudios 
migratorios ha ido adquiriendo la práctica festiva como objeto de estudio, este 
simposio brindará un espacio privilegiado en el cual presentar trabajos que 
investiguen temáticas migratorias en contextos festivos. Sin descuidar la interrogación 
teórica y metodológica, el simposio pretende focalizar el análisis de aquellos casos 
empíricos en los cuales la práctica festiva haya habilitado preguntas de investigación 
sobre la dinámica interna del grupo étnico y/o los vínculos que los migrantes 
producen con el contexto migratorio a partir de su producción festiva. 
 
En este sentido, se invita a analizar cómo a partir de la práctica festiva se 
reconstruyen identificaciones nacionales en contextos migratorios, se dramatiza 
ritualmente un mito de origen que permite a los actores leerse como parte de una 
historia compartida, se produce prestigio, legitimidad y visibilidad social, se disputan 
sentidos sociales, se habilitan redes intra y extra grupales que en contextos extra 
festivos desaparecen; o se encuentra en ella un espacio/tiempo a partir del cual 
revertir culturalmente los estigmas y prejuicios reproducidos por la sociedad local. 
Estos serán solo algunos de los temas que el simposio propone como relevantes. 
      
En el fondo, el simposio propone dar cuenta de la productividad académica que tiene 
la práctica festiva para estudiar las relaciones que los migrantes y sus descendientes 
entablan entre ellos y el contexto migratorio.  
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4.2.4 Carnavales. 


 


 Coordinadores  


-Felipe Ferreira (Universidade do Estado do Rio de Janeiro, Brasil) 
-Andrés Bisso (Universidad Nacional de La Plata- Conicet, Argentina)  
-Virtudes Feliú. (Ministerio de Educación Superior de Cuba, Cuba) 
-Javier Tobar (Universidad del Cauca, Colombia) 
-Claudia Afanador (Universidad de Nariño, Colombia) 
-Edgar Rey Sinning, (Universidad Popular del Cesar, Colombia) 
 


 Descripción 
 


En el conjunto de las manifestaciones festivas, el carnaval es una de las prácticas que 
más ha generado estudios debido a las complejidades sociales que genera, a las 
diversas formas de su celebración, así como por la influencia cultural que ha tenido en 
sus múltiples puestas en escena.  
 
A partir de la comprensión de su origen histórico y por la evolución de esta fiesta los 
temas que hoy se debaten se relacionan con la fecha de su realización, con la 
definición de lo que es carnavalesco, en su relación con el espectáculo, en el control de 
la fiesta, en el campo de lo político y de lo económico, en el significado de una 
tradición, en la incidencia de la comercialización y en el significado cultural y 
patrimonial para las comunidades. Más que una descripción de esta fiesta lo que 
importa para este simposio es la presentación de estudios que aborden los temas que 
impliquen observaciones sobre las permanencias, cambios, mutaciones o rupturas 
que se pueden observar en este fasto.  
 
 


4.2.5 Fiesta y Música.  


   


 Coordinadores  


-Vera Gerner (Universidad Nacional, Costa Rica) 
-Nadil Podhajcer (Universidad de Buenos Aires y Universidad Nacional de Avellaneda, 
Argentina) 
-Javier Romero (Bolivia)  
-Nicolás Aliano (Universidad Nacional de La Plata- Conicet, Argentina)   







 


 
Sitio Web: www.interculturacolombia.com 


Correo Electrónico: interculturacolombia@gmail.com 
Bogotá Colombia, Sur América 


 


 Descripción 
 


La música es un elemento clave en la construcción de uniones y reuniones de todo tipo 
de agrupaciones. También sirve para activar horizontes históricos de larga duración o 
anularlos y crear nuevos. Este mecanismo actúa desde un nivel micro -como por 
ejemplo en la convocatoria a fiestas callejeras espontáneas- hasta un nivel macro, por 
ejemplo interviniendo como símbolos unificadores en la construcción de una nación.  
 
El presente simposio busca explorar esta vinculación entre música y fiesta indagando 
los modos en que estas se relacionan y afectan mutualmente; el papel de la música en 
la construcción del sentir comunitario (clave en el funcionamiento de fiestas y de la 
Nación); y los cambios a diferentes niveles sociales que inciden en la música y las 
experiencias vinculadas a ella. Desde esta perspectiva, el simposio Fiesta y Música, 
propone una serie de ejes temáticos específicos: 
 


-Himnos oficiales y no-oficiales, su uso y su relación con la Nación. 
-La canción como portadora de discursos sociales. 
-La música como dispositivo promotor de experiencias de individualización / 
colectivización social. 
-Resignificación y cambios musicales en conexión con cambios sociales. 
-Música, agentes del poder y conflicto social. 
-Relaciones entre músicas comunitarias no-mercantiles y mercantilización de 
la música. 


 
 


4.2.6 Fiestas religiosas. 


 


 Coordinadores  


-Sonia García (Universidad Simón Bolívar, Venezuela) 
-William Beezley (Universidad de Arizona, USA)  
-Jaime de Almeida (Universidad de Brasilia, Brasil) 
   


 Descripción 


El sentimiento religioso, particular impulsor del mundo festivo, debió generar, desde 
tiempos inmemoriales, rogativas de salud, ritos de purificación o  de fertilidad de la 
tierra y de la mujer y muchos otros, hasta configurar fiestas que lograron máximo 
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espacio en las comunidades. En América Latina, la religión impuesta por la iglesia 
Católica tendió lazos entre los grupos étnicos iniciales de nuestro mestizaje en un 
proceso de sincretismo que dio nacimiento a la religiosidad popular y que, junto con la 
lengua, construyó ejes de unión del continente. Allí la figura central del cristianismo 
dio base a muchas devociones: Navidad, Santos inocentes, Pastores y Reyes Magos, la 
Pasión de Cristo, además de símbolos (la Cruz, Corpus Christi) y advocaciones 
marianas. Sigue en importancia el culto al santo patrón, protector de comunidades, 
incluyendo Ángeles y Arcángeles. De ahí que el estudio de estas festividades ofrezca 
primordiales claves de nuestras costumbres, mentalidades, historia y mucho más. 
Además el mundo de hoy está pleno de religiosidades y de iglesias de tal manera que 
otras ritualidades tienen campo en este simposio. De igual manera en muchas zonas, 
sobre todo rurales, se escenifican fiestas a santos y vírgenes organizadas y 
controladas por comunidades que no necesariamente requieren de la presencia de 
autoridades eclesiásticas. Son fiestas en las cuales se entrecruza lo popular con lo  
religioso.  


  
 


4.2.7 Fiesta- Educación. 


   


 Coordinadores 


-Rocío Varela (Universidad del Atlántico, Colombia) 
 


 Descripción 


En la actualidad la educación se considera una herramienta importante en el proceso 


de conformación de la identidad cultural de los sujetos, ya que contribuye a que las 


manifestaciones culturales puedan pervivir y dinamizarse en el tiempo. Este es un 


factor clave para reflexionar sobre el rol de las instituciones educativas como actores 


de salvaguarda y proyección de las fiestas y otras manifestaciones culturales en las 


nuevas y futuras generaciones.  


En este simposio se desarrollarán las siguientes temáticas: 
  


-Acciones educativas implementadas en todos los niveles para recrear las 
fiestas reconocidas como parte integral de sus comunidades.   







 


 
Sitio Web: www.interculturacolombia.com 


Correo Electrónico: interculturacolombia@gmail.com 
Bogotá Colombia, Sur América 


 


-Fortalecimiento de las competencias patrimoniales (conocer, valorar y 
proteger las fiestas) a partir de proyectos pedagógicos.  
-Experiencias de articulación entre la institución educativa (de cualquier nivel), 
los museos y los portadores de los saberes culturales.  
-Vinculación de las instituciones educativas de cualquier nivel como actor 
directo en la celebración de las fiestas.       


  


 


4.2.8 Fiesta y Cuerpo.  
   


 Coordinadores  


-Silvia Citro (Universidad de Buenos Aires – Conicet, Argentina) 
-Alberto Gawryszewski (Universidad de Londrina, Brasil) 
-Nubia Flórez (Universidad del Atlántico, Colombia) 
-Gilma Ríos (Universidad del Cauca, Colombia) 
   


 Descripción 
 
Adentrarnos en el escenario de la fiesta y abordarlo desde la construcción de 
corporalidades, nos sitúa sin lugar a dudas frente a un estudio interdisciplinario de la 
relación cuerpo – fiesta. 
 
El espacio antropológico de la fiesta es una construcción cultural que necesariamente 
involucra al cuerpo y sobre todo a la construcción social que de este se realiza, dentro 
de cada cultura. Interesa examinar los usos sociales del cuerpo dentro de la fiesta, 
tanto su historia como las nuevas relaciones y construcción de identidades, a partir de 
viejas y nuevas tradiciones. Asimismo, se propone explorar cómo esos usos permiten 
expresar y a veces también tramitar los conflictos sociales, generando inclusiones y 
exclusiones dentro del espacio festivo. 
 
Se reconoce el papel del cuerpo como repositorio de memoria y escenario para narrar 
las culturas, pero también valoramos su enorme potencial para construir nuevas 
prácticas y territorios de interculturalidad. 
 
Cómo eran los cuerpos y cómo se ha regulado, históricamente, su comportamiento en 
las expresiones festivas, cómo son los cuerpos que se encuentran en las fiestas 
contemporáneas, cómo son percibidos, qué tipo de relaciones establecen, qué papel ha 
jugado el cuerpo dentro de la fiesta para contribuir al diálogo y al intercambio 







 


 
Sitio Web: www.interculturacolombia.com 


Correo Electrónico: interculturacolombia@gmail.com 
Bogotá Colombia, Sur América 


 


cultural, cómo se han mantenido y se han transformado las tradiciones y prácticas 
festivas que involucran directamente al cuerpo, como la danza, la gestualidad, la 
performance, el juego, la gastronomía, la pintura corporal, entre otras. 
 
Este panel está abierto a todas las reflexiones que discurran en el eje del cuerpo, como 
territorio y como representación, dentro del campo festivo. 


 
 


4.2.9 Fiesta, Memoria y Patrimonio. 
   


 Coordinadores  


-Paola Monkevicius (Universidad Nacional de La Plata- Conicet, Argentina) 
-Mónica  Lacarrieu   (Universidad  de  Buenos  Aires – Conicet, Argentina)  
-Daniel Badenes (Universidad Nacional de Quilmes, Argentina) 
-Marcos González Pérez. (Intercultura, Colombia) 


 
 Descripción 


 
A partir de la emergencia e institucionalización del patrimonio cultural inmaterial, las 
fiestas se convirtieron en las manifestaciones con mayores declaratorias a nivel 
nacional e internacional (UNESCO). Sin embargo, no cualquier fiesta. Las fiestas más 
“exóticas” y/o más coloridas, como los carnavales, son las que despertaron mayor 
interés en el campo del patrimonio a diferencia de las celebraciones asociadas a lo 
cotidiano, lo común y lo social, desplazadas del lenguaje patrimonial y redefinidas 
como “festivales”.  
 
Poco se ha reflexionado sobre esta temática y menos aún acerca de perspectivas 
vinculantes como los “trabajos de la memoria” histórica, social y cultural que 
contribuyen en la producción, reproducción y/o transformaciones del mundo de lo 
festivo. En este simposio, el interés estará colocado en el análisis crítico de las fiestas 
y/o manifestaciones festivas, con la mirada puesta en la construcción patrimonial y 
los procesos de memoria colectiva. 
 
Entendemos que es de extrema importancia conocer los trabajos investigativos que 
dan cuenta de la relación de la fiesta con la producción de memorias, sobre todo en el 
marco de sociedades en conflicto político analizando las particularidades del 
fenómeno festivo como vehículo, soporte material y espacio de lucha entre diversas 
interpretaciones del pasado jerárquicamente posicionadas. Se sabe que las 
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comunidades han tomado la ruta de las prácticas festivas, del arte y la cultura para 
vislumbrar espacios de sosiego. 
 
Así, en este simposio son válidos los discursos que den cuenta de la relación fiesta-
patrimonio; de los actos de conmemoración; de la reinvención de ceremoniales; de los 
problemas, retos y desafíos implícitos en la gestión del patrimonio inmaterial.  
 
 


4.2.10 Fiesta y Cine 


   


 Coordinadores  


-La coordinación General  del VI Encuentro seleccionará cinco  documentales relativos 
al tema de la Fiesta para ser presentados por sus realizadores en sesiones vespertinas.  
 


 Descripción 
 
El cine y la fiesta se encuentran en tanto espacios de representación. En el caso del 
cine hablamos de la existencia de unas mediaciones conscientes y otras inconscientes 
por parte del creador, que llevan a reflejar en la pantalla, por acción u omisión, la 
mentalidad de una época. Es natural que en la Fiesta como espacio de puesta en 
escena de lo colectivo, se constituya en tema recurrente del cine y por lo mismo en 
objeto de estudio gracias a la mediación que lo cinematográfico produce. 
  
El cine, especialmente el Cine documental, es uno de los vehículos más apropiados 
para conocer la relación fiesta- comunidad.  Este medio audiovisual nos permite 
visualizar el registro de detalles y de gestos de los actores de la fiesta que dejan 
escuchar al silencio. En este simposio será de importancia conocer tanto  los aspectos 
metodológicos y experiencias prácticas para abordar lo festivo desde lo audiovisual, 
así como la muestra de las nuevas modalidades de como las comunidades han 
instaurado nuevos conceptos de las expresiones festivas. Descripciones de una fiesta, 
papel de los actores de la fiesta, notas etnográficas audiovisuales de los actos festivos, 
tradiciones y mutaciones de la fiesta, los debates de las complejidades de la fiesta, las 
fiestas rurales y las urbanas, las de tradición o de modernidad, todos estos temas y 
otros más, vistos desde la relación fiesta- cine, es el campo de este simposio.     
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5. ACTIVIDADES 


 
 Conferencias: La Red Internacional de Investigadores en Estudios de Fiesta, 


Nación y Cultura -REDRIEF- propiciará la participación de eminentes 
investigadores de estas temáticas a nivel mundial.  
 


 Ponencias: Presentación de experiencias, desafíos, reflexiones teóricas y 
resultados de investigación a cargo de investigadores y estudiantes. 
Investigadores internacionales de la REDRIEF ejercerán como comentaristas 
de las ponencias o como coordinadores de Simposios. 
 


 Galería de exposiciones: Muestra audiovisual y fotográfica de Fiestas en el 
Mundo.  


 
 Actividades artísticas: Presentaciones de las expresiones y prácticas de la 


fiesta.  
 


 Socialización de libros: Presentación de libros, revistas, documentos 
audiovisuales y productos festivos. 


  
 Mesa de Trabajo: Discusión sobre la Fiesta en el siglo XXI. El equipo 


coordinador de Simposios presentará los avances de la propuesta de 
implementación del programa académico virtual sobre el tema de Fiesta.  
  


Nota. Se propiciará la creación de una RED de estudiantes para que colaboren y 
participen del Encuentro.  


 
 


6. CONTACTO E INFORMACIONES 


 
Sitio Web: www.interculturacolombia.com 
Correo Electrónico: interculturacolombia@gmail.com 
 
 



http://www.interculturacolombia.com/

mailto:interculturacolombia@gmail.com
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7. INSTITUCIONES CONVOCANTES  


 Universidad Nacional de La Plata. Argentina. 


Sitio Web: http://www.unlp.edu.ar 


 Facultad de Humanidades y Ciencias de la Educación. UNLP 
Sitio Web: http://www.fahce.unlp.edu.ar 
 


 Instituto de Investigaciones en Humanidades y Ciencias Sociales. UNLP 
Sitio Web: http://www.fahce.unlp.edu.ar/idihcs 
 


 Intercultura Colombia  
Sitio Web: www.interculturacolombia.com 
Correo Electrónico: interculturacolombia@gmail.com 


 


Nota: Se incluirán las entidades que en el desarrollo de la convocatoria apoyen la 


realización del Encuentro.  


Las Informaciones sobre cronograma, procedimiento de inscripción de ponentes y 
asistentes, inversión, algunas fechas precisas y otros datos de interés los encontrará 
desde junio del año 2016 en la página web de Intercultura: 
www.interculturacolombia.com 
 


8. INSCRIPCIÓN DE PONENCIAS  


 
La inscripción de propuestas de ponencias se puede hacer diligenciando el formulario 
que se encuentra en el sitio web de Intercultura, en la sección Red-Rief 
(www.interculturacolombia.com/red-rief) o también se puede acceder al 
formulario escribiendo en el navegador la siguiente dirección:  
http://goo.gl/forms/SftF2TI7Pz 


El plazo para enviar su propuesta de ponencia es el 30 de septiembre del año 2016. 
Los coordinadores de Simposio evaluarán la pertinencia y calidad de la misma y antes 
del 30 de octubre del año 2016, recibirá comunicación del estado de su participación. 
Esto facilitará sus trámites de movilidad y hospedaje hacia septiembre del año 2017.  
Además se le informará de fechas, procedimientos y normas para entrega de la 
ponencia definitiva.       



http://www.unlp.edu.ar/

http://www.fahce.unlp.edu.ar/

http://www.fahce.unlp.edu.ar/idihcs
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
Subject: Fwd: Sitges 1966
Date: Tuesday, February 16, 2016 12:44:54 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: carolyn brown <vanrhys@verizon.net>
Date: Tuesday, February 16, 2016
Subject: Sitges 1966
To: La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com>

Dear Meira,

In the second and third photograph, I am the dancer in all black.  I do not have a 4th image to
look at.

Carolyn Brown

Subject: Re: Merce Cunningham dancers rehearsing near Barcelona 1966 

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

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.lameiraflamenco.com&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=PYx_tBOY1Jso_M2p2IemoIr21GqQUudwXl0vkwEmVvU&s=60GDK8X83phAl1yu9i6sReCDxKTMcqASmTtmbrFBay4&e=


From: Meira Goldberg
To: Adam Kent; Alan Jones; Alex E. Chavez; Allan Oliveira; Arnie Sheetz; Aurèlia Pessarrodona; Bruno Bartra; Claudia

Calderón Saenz; Claudia Jeschke; Craig Russell; Cristina Cruces; Guillermo Castro Buendia; Jared
Newman<pjnguitar.earthlink.net>; Jessica Gottfried Hesketh; John Moore; Jose Miguel Hernandez Jaramillo;
Straker, Kathryn; Kiko Mora; Lenica Reyes; Loren Chuse; Lou Charnon Deutsch; María José Ruiz Mayordomo;
María Luisa Martínez; Miguel Ángel Berlanga (vía Google Drive); Nubia Florez; Paul Naish; Peter Manuel; Piza,
Antoni; Rafael Figeroa Hernández; Ramon Soler; Raquel Paraiso; Reinaldo Fernández Manzano; Ricardo Pérez
Montfort; Theresa Goldbach; Thomas Baird; Tony Dumas; Walter Aaron Clark; Wilfried Raussert

Subject: Fwd: The Global Reach of the Fandango in Music, Song and Dance
Date: Tuesday, September 20, 2016 1:19:29 PM

Dear all,

Katie here, on behalf of Meira. The updated link for reviewing files is forwarded below. If you
had difficulty with the previous link, please use the new one below. Please submit any
revisions to Meira by October 1, in order to meet publishing deadlines.

Thanks so much!

Katie

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Amanda Millar <amanda.millar@cambridgescholars.com>
Date: Tue, Sep 20, 2016 at 2:59 AM
Subject: RE: The Global Reach of the Fandango in Music, Song and Dance
To: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>
Cc: "Piza, Antoni" <APiza@gc.cuny.edu>

Dear Meira and Antoni,

 

Thank you for your message, and please find below the link to download your files:

https://www.sendthisfile.com/1XZZfIHGiCOgnrGYgecYxxXA[sendthisfile.com]

I would recommend that you save the files and send the individual Chapters to your
Contributors, please let them know that they should not alter out formatting.

 

Best wishes,

Amanda

 

Amanda Millar
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mailto:wilfried.raussert@uni-bielefeld.de
mailto:amanda.millar@cambridgescholars.com
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Typesetting Manager

 

Web:    www.cambridgescholars.com[cambridgescholars.com]

Email: amanda.millar@cambridgescholars.com  

Twitter: @CamScholars
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From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: this bounced the first time...
Date: Sunday, October 30, 2016 4:00:02 PM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>
Date: Sun, Oct 30, 2016 at 3:58 PM
Subject: Re: Incoming File from SendThisFile(R)
To: Amanda Millar <amanda.millar@cambridgescholars.com>, "Piza, Antoni"
<APiza@gc.cuny.edu>

Dear Amanda,

Thank you for these beautiful galleys. We did print out all images on A5 paper before we sent you the final manuscript. There
are a few omissions that are my fault - I hope they can be addressed: 

The double-sided page of color images is missing. I have attached the 00a_dancing feet to this email, and 00b_Dolores is sent
as a drive link (the first email I sent bounced back). (Both images are also in the dropbox.) They should be inserted between
pp. iv (title page) and v (dedication). ​

 00b_Dolores de Goñi Daguerreotype.tif

​Also (less urgent, if we have to choose one or the other) the program on p. 684 is only the first page and not the 28 page final
conference program which we'd hope to have included. Please find it attached here.​

 06b_2015 FinalProgram.pdf
​
There are a few typos and such as well:

03_JohnMoore p. 36 this chart is, despite our best efforts, misaligned. Please remove the text and insert the attached pdf
"moore-diagram" in its place.

p. 44  El Cojo de Huelva, “Que me sirve de compaña”, Odeón, 1943.

p. 676 Paul D. Naish was a historian of the early American republic who taught history and social sciences at CUNY’s
Guttman Community College. After a career as Managing Director at Inside Broadway, an arts education program that makes
theater tickets available to public schools to recognize student achievement and sends actors, directors, musicians, and artists
into  classrooms to teach, Paul became a full-time doctoral student at CUNY’s Graduate Center. He completed his 2011
dissertation, “Safe Distance: U.S. Slavery, Latin America, and American Culture, 1826-1861,” under  the supervision of
James Oakes. The project was awarded the 2012 Zuckerman Prize by the McNeil Center of Early American Studies at the
University of Pennsylvania. A manuscript based on the dissertation is  under contract with the University of Pennsylvania
Press. Paul served on Guttman’s Civic Learning, Engagement & Social Responsibility GLO (Guttman Learning Outcome)
Team.

We are missing a few permissions - I have sent out reminders again. Can you tell us what the absolute deadline is?

Many thanks for everything,

Meira and Antoni

On Sun, Oct 30, 2016 at 3:28 PM, Meira Goldberg <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com
mailto:amanda.millar@cambridgescholars.com
mailto:APiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBQWJLYUlUZGNzUU0/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBQWJLYUlUZGNzUU0/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBS1NGUDlfOFZTZWc/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBS1NGUDlfOFZTZWc/view?usp=drive_web
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com


wrote:

Dear Amanda,

Thank you for these beautiful galleys. We did print out all images on A5 paper before we
sent you the final manuscript. There are a few omissions that are my fault - I hope they can
be addressed: 

The double-sided page of color images is missing. I have attached the 2 images to this email.
(They are also in the dropbox.) They should be inserted between pp. iv (title page) and v
(dedication). 

Also (less urgent, if we have to choose one or the other) the program on p. 684 is only the
first page and not the 28 page final conference program which we'd hope to have included.
Please find it attached here.

​

 06b_2015 FinalProgram.pdf
​
There are a few typos and such as well:

03_JohnMoore p. 36 this chart is, despite our best efforts, misaligned. Please remove the
text and insert the attached pdf "moore-diagram" in its place.

p. 44  El Cojo de Huelva, “Que me sirve de compaña”, Odeón, 1943.

p. 676 Paul D. Naish was a historian of the early American republic who taught history and
social sciences at CUNY’s Guttman Community College. After a career as Managing
Director at Inside Broadway, an arts education program that makes theater tickets available
to public schools to recognize student achievement and sends actors, directors, musicians,
and artists into  classrooms to teach, Paul became a full-time doctoral student at CUNY’s
Graduate Center. He completed his 2011 dissertation, “Safe Distance: U.S. Slavery, Latin
America, and American Culture, 1826-1861,” under  the supervision of James Oakes. The
project was awarded the 2012 Zuckerman Prize by the McNeil Center of Early American
Studies at the University of Pennsylvania. A manuscript based on the dissertation is  under
contract with the University of Pennsylvania Press. Paul served on Guttman’s Civic
Learning, Engagement & Social Responsibility GLO (Guttman Learning Outcome) Team.

We are missing a few permissions - I have sent out reminders again. Can you tell us what
the absolute deadline is?

Many thanks for everything,

Meira and Antoni

On Wed, Oct 26, 2016 at 7:43 AM, Amanda Millar <amanda.millar@cambridgeschola
rs.com> wrote:

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


 

Please find below a link to download your final pdf file:

https://www.sendthisfile.com/RrcOvhYk9hiSao7MxR4OeZYy[sendthisfile.com]

Before we proceed to press, can you please print out all Figures with text at size A5, to
ensure that they can be clearly read and understood.

 

Please note that we can only make changes in the event of a major catastrophe, and
cannot at this stage make any textual or minor formatting changes. Once you let me
have your approval, I can send this to press.

 

The number of complimentary copies which you will be sent is as per your contract, and
the postal address which we have for you is as follows:

 

Antoni Pizà, Director

Foundation for Iberian Music

CUNY Graduate Center

365 Fifth Avenue

New York, NY 10016

 

Kindly note that final approval is still subject to a final editorial check, prior to sending
to press.

 

We would like to remind you that as Editor you have responsibility for ensuring that we
have received all signed permission forms from the contributors to your book, prior to
its publication.  In addition, we also remind you, that you have indemnified CSP, the
publisher, against any claim for a breach of Intellectual Property Rights, arising in the
instance where you have not obtained the informed consent of a contributor. By
confirming that you are happy to proceed with publication, you are confirming that you
understand and accept these points.

 

Please note that this is your final opportunity to make changes to the document, as the
manuscript will be locked following your approval, due to the fact that we will not be

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.sendthisfile.com_RrcOvhYk9hiSao7MxR4OeZYy&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=S3i-Yu4y8gTvPFh-dimZO2XntNlo7k1WwfeaqcFNkIM&s=ub78JMm4w3uCJNG_rUZnpEtb8n1EE-DiqPLTaF7rXjs&e=


able to make further adjustments once it has gone to print.

 

Many thanks and best regards,

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

 

Cambridge Scholars Publishing Ltd is registered in England. Reg. No: 4333775; VAT
No: 108280727

 

Disclaimer: The views and opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily
represent those of Cambridge Scholars Publishing Ltd. The contents of this message are
intended for the addressee only. They are confidential and may contain private
information. Cambridge Scholars Publishing is not responsible for any damages
resulting from the unauthorised use, forwarding or disclosure of this message, and will
not be held liable for damages or loss caused by any viruses.

 

From: Meira Goldberg [mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com] 
Sent: 17 October 2016 15:40
To: Victoria Carruthers
Cc: Amanda Millar; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Re: Incoming File from SendThisFile(R)

 

Great. Thank you Victoria and Amanda.

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.cambridgescholars.com_&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=S3i-Yu4y8gTvPFh-dimZO2XntNlo7k1WwfeaqcFNkIM&s=eWV71NN3Bjv6F7ify5_sEFc1nWbmT5ALR5drTpQ-cO4&e=
mailto:amanda.millar@cambridgescholars.com
https://twitter.com/CamScholars
mailto:admin@cambridgescholars.com
mailto:fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com


On Monday, October 17, 2016, Victoria Carruthers <victoria.carruthers@cambridge
scholars.com> wrote:

Dear K. Meira Goldberg and Antoni Pizà.

Thank you for your file, I have saved your files and I have passed these to Amanda.

I look forward to hearing from you further.

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

-----Original Message-----
From: files@sendthisfile.com [mailto:files@sendthisfile.com]
Sent: 15 October 2016 19:28
To: Victoria Carruthers <victoria.carruthers@cambridgescholars.com>
Subject: Incoming File from SendThisFile(R)

SendThisFile File Notification

fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com has sent you a file that will EXPIRE in 8 DAYS.
Click the following link to retrieve your file:

https://www.sendthisfile.com/h66D7nPToEgVrdGCfJeD317K[sendthisfile.com]

CSP complete manuscript submission Oct 14 2016 Archive.zip

Here is the full manuscript of

mailto:victoria.carruthers@cambridgescholars.com
mailto:victoria.carruthers@cambridgescholars.com
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.cambridgescholars.com&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=S3i-Yu4y8gTvPFh-dimZO2XntNlo7k1WwfeaqcFNkIM&s=Xr0rMMtZwpbseWgRQgGNOLSY3c3tQadU4yQbaBCDYp0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.sendthisfile.com_h66D7nPToEgVrdGCfJeD317K&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=S3i-Yu4y8gTvPFh-dimZO2XntNlo7k1WwfeaqcFNkIM&s=s32q4hHgXDfL3Lq0MKBDtJp6MIfK9i2UO4OsSP0vFGI&e=


The Global Reach of the Fandango in Music, Song and Dance: Spaniards, Africans,
Indians and Gypsies
ATTN: Victoria Carruthers and Amanda Millar

If the above link is not clickable, copy and paste the link into a browser to download your
file.

-----
Free Accounts at SendThisFile: Easily send large files to anyone in minutes.
http://www.SendThisFile.com/e[SendThisFile.com]
-----

Notice: By downloading this file you are agreeing to the Terms of Service which can be
viewed from the www.SendThisFile.com[SendThisFile.com] home page.

Copyright 2003-2016 - SendThisFile, Inc.

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

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.SendThisFile.com_e&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=S3i-Yu4y8gTvPFh-dimZO2XntNlo7k1WwfeaqcFNkIM&s=ddRFaLicEmVAX2nE8vQUJrkrO8x3ZvWWWlTrm09gO_0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.SendThisFile.com&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=S3i-Yu4y8gTvPFh-dimZO2XntNlo7k1WwfeaqcFNkIM&s=snuiXaT1auGigyeLHKNA1aplEfxPu6qd2D-GfRunoiA&e=


From: Katie Straker
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Tracking Message Order Number 21153
Date: Monday, March 14, 2016 9:39:12 AM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Restaurant Associates at CUNY Grad Center <orders@catertrax.com>
Date: Mar 14, 2016 09:10
Subject: Tracking Message Order Number 21153
To: kstraker@gc.cuny.edu
Cc: 

Tracking Message for order 21153

Message From: ypena Date: 3/14/2016 / Time: 9:10 AM
This is your final invoice. We are standing by if you have any
questions. Respectfully, The Management Team

Request
Changes[cuny.catertrax.com]

Print Updated
Order[cuny.catertrax.com]

Dear Katie Straker,

Please do not reply to this email! Instead, please use the "Request Changes" link to
respond, if needed. 

[cuny.catertrax.com]
Restaurant Associates at CUNY Graduate Center
365 Fifth Avenue,New York,NY 10016
(212) 817-7948

Order # 21153

[cuny.catertrax.com]

Pick-up/ Delivery Date: 3/10/2016
Room Ready Time: 8:15 AM
Event Time: 8:30 AM
Clean-up Time: 9:30 AM

Order Total: $160.75
Grand total may be adjusted to accommodate any special requests.
Click here[cuny.catertrax.com] to print or view an up to date version of this Order. 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_shopcusttracking.asp-3FoidToken-3DsDR7qjKfAJJBLqTNCtFQFQ-253D-253D-26oid-3D21153-26intCustomerID-3D-252Ax-252B-257E&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=7POCywVWHcNEMlD9uYUAVQEWoYAx_ss5cCEBSGYLkAs&s=Q7ieXpZXCSGkZOW-RQfjHzYt80U6j8hNCET9_uV3Dxw&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_shopcusttracking.asp-3FoidToken-3DsDR7qjKfAJJBLqTNCtFQFQ-253D-253D-26oid-3D21153-26intCustomerID-3D-252Ax-252B-257E&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=7POCywVWHcNEMlD9uYUAVQEWoYAx_ss5cCEBSGYLkAs&s=Q7ieXpZXCSGkZOW-RQfjHzYt80U6j8hNCET9_uV3Dxw&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_shopprintinvoice.asp-3FoidToken-3DsDR7qjKfAJJBLqTNCtFQFQ-253D-253D-26oid-3D21153-26intCustomerID-3D-252Ax-252B-257E&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=7POCywVWHcNEMlD9uYUAVQEWoYAx_ss5cCEBSGYLkAs&s=Br8X2YDHGDspZMzPjmO9MwIt6W5NIPy7zU8MpP1NtTk&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_shopprintinvoice.asp-3FoidToken-3DsDR7qjKfAJJBLqTNCtFQFQ-253D-253D-26oid-3D21153-26intCustomerID-3D-252Ax-252B-257E&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=7POCywVWHcNEMlD9uYUAVQEWoYAx_ss5cCEBSGYLkAs&s=Br8X2YDHGDspZMzPjmO9MwIt6W5NIPy7zU8MpP1NtTk&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=7POCywVWHcNEMlD9uYUAVQEWoYAx_ss5cCEBSGYLkAs&s=28FPcP9CqOnvCU1cKRQ9aBhtEDvbWd5s_V-L8l0AtCg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=7POCywVWHcNEMlD9uYUAVQEWoYAx_ss5cCEBSGYLkAs&s=28FPcP9CqOnvCU1cKRQ9aBhtEDvbWd5s_V-L8l0AtCg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_vcs.asp-3FoidToken-3DsDR7qjKfAJJBLqTNCtFQFQ-253D-253D-26oid-3D21153-26intCustomerID-3D-252Ax-252B-257E&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=7POCywVWHcNEMlD9uYUAVQEWoYAx_ss5cCEBSGYLkAs&s=wsEtuoIXoF1Toj3n_nvU5VQwzx37uUKMlIVS9tOfqks&e=
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
Subject: Fwd: Tracking Message Order Number 21154
Date: Monday, March 14, 2016 9:39:31 AM

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Restaurant Associates at CUNY Grad Center <orders@catertrax.com>
Date: Mar 14, 2016 09:12
Subject: Tracking Message Order Number 21154
To: kstraker@gc.cuny.edu,apiza@gc.cuny.edu
Cc: 

Tracking Message for order 21154

Message From: ypena Date: 3/14/2016 / Time: 9:12 AM
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

Order # 21154

[cuny.catertrax.com]

Pick-up/ Delivery Date: 3/10/2016
Room Ready Time: 11:00 AM
Event Time: 11:15 AM
Clean-up Time: 12:15 PM

Order Total: $152.00
Grand total may be adjusted to accommodate any special requests.
Click here[cuny.catertrax.com] to print or view an up to date version of this Order. 

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_shopcusttracking.asp-3FoidToken-3DxUI-252F7Uj71RBs-252FjUxRR-252B60A-253D-253D-26oid-3D21154-26intCustomerID-3D-252Ax-252B-257E&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=qtm4WUxkE1LTpUxsLUJ4gztjIQ8FoKJf5jmQoWEWfVg&s=jIhuPGSuCJpLLAqt8kb1esf7rhMl8MBgkKJWokQudew&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_shopcusttracking.asp-3FoidToken-3DxUI-252F7Uj71RBs-252FjUxRR-252B60A-253D-253D-26oid-3D21154-26intCustomerID-3D-252Ax-252B-257E&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=qtm4WUxkE1LTpUxsLUJ4gztjIQ8FoKJf5jmQoWEWfVg&s=jIhuPGSuCJpLLAqt8kb1esf7rhMl8MBgkKJWokQudew&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__cuny.catertrax.com_shopprintinvoice.asp-3FoidToken-3DxUI-252F7Uj71RBs-252FjUxRR-252B60A-253D-253D-26oid-3D21154-26intCustomerID-3D-252Ax-252B-257E&d=CwMCAg&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=lHcg_uFu8lrxqDKQxlHHdgXKzwye0Vc_8a0DBfLE46E&m=qtm4WUxkE1LTpUxsLUJ4gztjIQ8FoKJf5jmQoWEWfVg&s=n-fyMbDcJtJvX3kGCeNwSasDP_VLnLp_HOWufxUltIM&e=
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From: Jeff Nichols
To: Pell, Nathan; Peter Kramer; Sang-Hoon Song; Jp Besingrand; Drake Andersen; Jacob Sachs-Mishalanie; Daniel

Fox; Qin Ding; Vicente Alexim
Cc: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Tuesday March 22 COMPOSERS FORUM
Date: Monday, March 21, 2016 3:30:03 PM
Attachments: ElectroacousticsSpain.docx

Hi all,

Qin is better but has a conflict tomorrow, so we will be enjoying another Spanish invasion --
see attached!

Any of you coming to hear my quartet tonight -- remember to ask for comps under my name --
any number you want! (info again pasted below).

See you in the morning --

Jeff

Stern College for Women/Yeshiva University presents:
Momenta Quartet, the Beatrice Diener Ensemble-in-Residence

Works by Ursula Mamlok, Milton Babbitt, Mendelssohn and premieres by Jeff Nichols and
David Glaser

Monday, March 21, 2016 7:30 pm
The Center for Jewish History, 15 West 16th St. NYC
Admission $15, $10 Students and Senior Citizens and CJH members.
Tickets available at the door and through SmartTix: www.smarttix.com or 212-868-4444.

Emilie-Anne Gendron and Alex Shiozaki, violins; Stephanie Griffin, viola; Michael Haas,
cello

with guest artist Samuel Rhodes, viola
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C O M P O S E R S   F O R U M

Professor Jeff Nichols

The Graduate Center, CUNY

365 Fifth Ave, New York NY 10016

March 22 2016 – Rm 3491 / 10:00-11.30am

A Historical Overview of Electroacoustic Music and Sound Art in Spain

A lecture with musical examples by Ferrer-Molina & Miguel Álvarez-Fernández



[bookmark: _GoBack]	The works of Ferrer-Molina and Miguel Álvarez-Fernández inhabit the margins between experimental music and sound art, while also exploring conceptual art, performance, experimental video and other possibilities for developing our relationship with sound. Their activities are channeled through concert pieces, sound installations, sculptures, curatorial projects and many other manifestations.



Ferrer –Molina is a sound artist, musicologist, conductor and critic, with degrees in guitar, piano, conducting, music education, musicology and composition at the conservatories of Valencia and Madrid. Electroacoustic composition mainly in LEA and LIEM / CDMC. Knowledge of contemporary composition and sound art expanded in seminars given by Helmut Lachenman, Charles Dodge, Nicolas Collins, Peter and Simona Bosch, Ramon Ramos, José Iges, David Toop, Kim Cascone, and Llorenç Barber among others. PhD in Fine Arts at the Polytechnic University of Valencia with a thesis called “The Non Orthodox Guitar from 1960 to 2015: New patterns of use and own projects” under the guidance of Miguel Molina. Regularly participates as a sound artist at festivals and gatherings such as SON (Auditorio Nacional Madrid), PHASE (Villa Elisabeth, Berlin), SOUND -IN, GUITAR INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE VALENCIA and FESTIVAL WITH NO FANCY NAME (EXPERIMENTAL INTERMEDIA, New York). He has given workshops in Sound Art in SGAE-Valencia, La Fragua-Córdoba and Matadero-Madrid. He has lectured at the Congress of Electroacoustic Music Association of Spain, the conference "100 years of Valencian Sound Art" associated to the festival “Nits d' aielo i art”, the Palau de les Arts "Reina Sofia" (Opera House) in Valencia, and the NYU Waverly Labs (New York). Member of the expert committee of the “Sound-In Program for New Creators”. He was co-organizer of the Meeting on Sound Art in Spain held in La Casa Encendida in June 2010 in Madrid. From 2014 Ferrer-Molina is the president of the Spanish Society of Electroacoustic Composers and Sound Artists (AMEE) http://www.musicaelectroacustica.com/amee/ and curator of the “Punto de Encuentro” International Festival of Sound Art and Electroacoustic Music, Spain, http://www.musicaelectroacustica.com/amee/eventos/xxii-punto-de-encuentro/



Miguel Álvarez-Fernández is a composer, sound artist, musicologist, sound theorist and curator born in Madrid in 1979. Studies of Composition at the Conservatory of El Escorial (Madrid), Law (B.A. from the Complutense University of Madrid) and Ph.D. in Musicology at the University of Oviedo. Miguel Álvarez-Fernández was selected composer-in-residence at the historical “Residencia de Estudiantes” between 2002 and 2005. The works of Álvarez-Fernández have been presented in several venues in Europe and America, including the Museo Nacional Centro de Arte Reina Sofía, the National Auditorium of Music and the Residencia de Estudiantes in Madrid, the Technical University of Berlin, The Huset gallery in Copenhagen, or the Eyebeam Gallery in New York, among many other festivals and exhibitions in Spain, Germany, France, Italy, Serbia, Denmark and Lithuania. He has also composed music for different audiovisual productions, including the film "A via láctea", by Brazilian director Lina Chamie, premiered at the Cannes Film Festival in 2007. In 2005 he curated, along with María Bella, the public-sound-art Project “Itinerarios del sonido” (www.itinerariosdelsonido.org), taking place in different public spaces of Madrid. Between 2005 and 2008 Miguel Álvarez-Fernández lived in Berlin, where he worked both as a guest researcher and as a guest composer at the Electronic Music Studio of the Technical University Berlin (TUB). During the course 2007-2008 he also lectured about “Aesthetics of Electroacoustic Music” at the Electronic Music Studio of the TUB. Since 2008 he has been living in Madrid, where he hosts “Ars Sonora” (http://www.rtve.es/alacarta/audios/ars-sonora/), a weekly radio broadcast devoted to experimental music and sound art in Radio Clásica/RNE (Spanish National Radio). From 2014 Miguel Álvarez-Fernández is the vice-president of the Spanish Society of Electroacoustic Composers and Sound Artists (AMEE) http://www.musicaelectroacustica.com/amee/ and curator of the “Punto de Encuentro” International Festival of Sound Art and Electroacoustic Music, Spain, http://www.musicaelectroacustica.com/amee/eventos/xxii-punto-de-encuentro/



From: Meira Goldberg
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: una pregunta
Date: Tuesday, October 04, 2016 3:23:07 PM

Se me olvidó preguntarte...

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Aurelia Pessarrodona Perez <Aurelia.Pessarrodona@uab.cat>
Date: Tuesday, October 4, 2016
Subject: una pregunta
To: "fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com" <fandangoconference.cuny@gmail.com>

Querida Meira,

¿Sería posible tener un certificado que acredite la próxima publicación de nuestro artículo en
el "Cambridge Scholars"? Me lo piden para solicitar una acreditación de profesor... Muchas
gracias!

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
To: Piza, Antoni; Angel Gil-Ordóñez
Subject: Fwd: Unfortunate news
Date: Thursday, March 03, 2016 2:19:09 PM

Aquí esta.  A ver como responde. 

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Mar 3, 2016 at 2:18 PM
Subject: Unfortunate news
To: Anna de la Paz <annadelapaz@hotmail.com>

Hola Anna,

I am very sorry to write with bad news.  The expected funding for the concert next Wednesday
did not come through to pay your fee.  This was only confirmed today.   He believed that the
Institut Ramon Llull would provide funding but it did not happen.

If you want to cancel we would all certainly understand.  But, we hope you might see your
way clear to dance next Thursday.  But, obviously the decision is yours.  For what it might
matter to you, neither Ángel nor I are being paid for the concert.   

I would have called you with this bad news but I do not have your phone number.  

Please let me know your decision.  Again, we are all very sorry.

Douglas

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:angel@postclassical.com
mailto:jdriva@gmail.com
mailto:annadelapaz@hotmail.com


From: Douglas Riva
To: Piza, Antoni; Angel Gil-Ordóñez
Subject: Fwd: Unfortunate news
Date: Thursday, March 03, 2016 2:41:04 PM

Solucionado.  Generosamente ha aceptado actuar sin cobrar.  Aquí tenéis su mensaje y mi
respuesta.

Abrazos,
D
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Mar 3, 2016 at 2:39 PM
Subject: Re: Unfortunate news
To: Anna de la Paz <annadelapaz@hotmail.com>

Dear Anna,

Thank you for your generosity.  Your dancing is an important part of our homage to
Granados.  I am personally very grateful to you.

Of course, I would be happy to take a look at your paper.  I look forward to reading it.

Again, thank you.

Abrazos,

Douglas

On Thu, Mar 3, 2016 at 2:35 PM, Anna de la Paz <annadelapaz@hotmail.com> wrote:
Thank you Douglas for letting me know.  I am honored to share the stage with you. Despite
the lack of funds, I will still perform on Thursday.
My telephone number is 845-596-5156.

I have a favor to ask...can I send you my rough draft of my paper? I would love your insight
and opinion. You may be too busy right now...I understand if you can't.

Un abrazo,
Anna

Sent from my iPhone

> On Mar 3, 2016, at 2:18 PM, Douglas Riva <jdriva@gmail.com> wrote:
>
> Hola Anna,
>
> I am very sorry to write with bad news.  The expected funding for the concert next
Wednesday did not come through to pay your fee.  This was only confirmed today.   He
believed that the Institut Ramon Llull would provide funding but it did not happen.

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:angel@postclassical.com
mailto:jdriva@gmail.com
mailto:annadelapaz@hotmail.com
mailto:annadelapaz@hotmail.com
tel:845-596-5156
mailto:jdriva@gmail.com


>
> If you want to cancel we would all certainly understand.  But, we hope you might see your
way clear to dance next Thursday.  But, obviously the decision is yours.  For what it might
matter to you, neither Ángel nor I are being paid for the concert.
>
> I would have called you with this bad news but I do not have your phone number.
>
> Please let me know your decision.  Again, we are all very sorry.
>
> Douglas
>
>



From: La Meira
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: Video available
Date: Friday, March 25, 2016 10:34:09 AM

Aquí la mesa redonda...díme que piensas...

besos y hablamos pronto sobre Cambridge,

m
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Laura Turegano <laura.turegano@nyu.edu>
Date: Wed, Mar 23, 2016 at 1:57 PM
Subject: Video available
To: Maria Saldana <msp6@nyu.edu>, Sebastian Calderon Bentin <ssc7@nyu.edu>, La Meira
<lameira2011@gmail.com>, Paloma McGregor <paloma.mcgregor@gmail.com>, Miguel
Marin <miguel@miguelmarin.com>

Dear all,
we have uploaded the video of the panel. Right now it's on the landing page and on the event
page:

www.kjcc.org[kjcc.org]
http://www.kjcc.org/event/beyond-sorrow-rethinking-flamenco-for-the-21st-century/[kjcc.org]

Enjoy!
Laura

-- 
Laura Turegano
Associate Director
King Juan Carlos I of Spain Center
New York University
53 Washington Square South, Suite 201
New York, NY 10012
Tel. (212) 998-3652
Fax (212) 998-4804
www.kjcc.org[kjcc.org]

-- 
...por que la vida se nos acaba,
y yo quiero morir cantando,
como muere la cigarra...

www.lameiraflamenco.com[lameiraflamenco.com]
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From: Anna Bartos
To: Anna Bartos
Subject: Fwd: When the Nightingale Sings...SAVE THE DATE!
Date: Sunday, January 03, 2016 11:14:09 AM
Attachments: Nightingale-flyer-LAST-2-1-30-16-3.docx

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Anna Bartos <anna.bartos@gmail.com>
Date: Sat, Jan 2, 2016 at 7:08 PM
Subject: Fwd: When the Nightingale Sings...SAVE THE DATE!
To: Anna Bartos <anna.bartos@gmail.com>, Eric Sedgwick <sedgwick.eric@gmail.com>,
Jesse Han <jessica.jade.han@gmail.com>

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Anna Bartos <anna.bartos@gmail.com>
Date: Thu, Dec 31, 2015 at 11:01 AM
Subject: Fwd: When the Nightingale Sings...SAVE THE DATE!
To: Anna Bartos <anna.bartos@gmail.com>

Dear friends, music and art lovers!

We hope to see you and your friends at our concert on Saturday, January 30. It is
our extreme honor and pleasure to play some of Enrique Granados' most beautiful
music for you in celebration of his centenary and 150th anniversary during 2016. 

If you are unable to attend the concert, please feel free to send a contribution of any
amount to us via our fiscal sponsor, Something to Sing About in New York, a non-
profit creative arts collective for singers, actors and instrumentalists. Your
contributions and concert proceeds will be used to help us complete, produce and
distribute our new Granados CD, When the Nightgale Sings...which we began
recording last May. 

Here's the link: https://www.fracturedatlas.org/site/fiscal/profile?
id=5865#supporters[fracturedatlas.org]

Many thanks from all of us, and warm wishes for a very Happy, Healthy, Peaceful
New Year! 

Anna 
212-239-1514
www.annabartos.com[annabartos.com]
Eric Sedgwick
Jesse Han
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When the Nightingale Sings…

Songs and Piano Works by Enrique Granados 

in celebration of the

  Enrique Granados Centenary and 150th Anniversary

Saturday, January 30, 2016  ~ 6:00 p.m.

*reception following*



[bookmark: _GoBack][image: Macintosh HD:Users:annabartos:Desktop:Nightingale Promo:granados1.jpg]

 

Anna Bartos, Soprano ~ Eric Sedgwick, Piano 

Jesse Han, Flute
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The National Opera Center ~ 330 7th Ave., 

Rehearsal Hall ~ 7th floor

New York City

Suggested Contribution: $20 ~ tax deductible



This performance is being sponsored by

 Something to Sing About in New York.
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Enrique Granados
Spanish composer

[britannica.com] 

July 27, 1867
Lleida[britannica.com],
Spain[britannica.com]

March 24, 1916
Atlantic

Ocean[britannica.com]

Born

Died

Listen to Granados' Epilogo: https://www.youtube.com/watch?
v=fH8uEW41BuE[youtube.com] and

El mirar de la maja:
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=5EHsem5hvfo[youtube.com]

P.S. Much of Granados' music was written in homage to the great Spanish painter,
Francisco Jose de Goya y Lucientes, who lived 100 years before him. I will
comment on their connection and show some of Goya's paintings which greatly
inspired Granados, who has been called The Chopin of Spain.

Enrique Granados,  (born July 27,
1867, Lérida, Spain[britannica.com]—died March 24,
1916, at sea), pianist and composer, a leader of the
movement toward nationalism[britannica.com] in late
19th-century Spanish music[britannica.com].

Granados made his debut as a pianist at 16. He studied
composition in Barcelona[britannica.com] with Felipe
Pedrell[britannica.com], the father of Spanish nationalism
in music. He studied piano[britannica.com] in Paris in
1887. Returning to Barcelona in 1889, he established
himself as a pianist of the front rank, and his 12 Danzas
españolas achieved great popularity. The first of his
seven operas, María del Carmen, was produced in 1898.
In 1900 Granados founded a short-lived classical-concerts
society and his own piano school, which produced a
number of distinguished players. His interest in the 18th
century is reflected in
his tonadillas[britannica.com], songs written “in the
ancient style.” He wrote extensively and fluently for the
piano, in a somewhat diffuse, Romantic style. His
masterpieces, the Goyescas (1911–13), are reflections on
Francisco de Goya’s paintings and tapestries. They were
adapted into an opera[britannica.com] that received its premiere in New York
City[britannica.com] in 1916. Returning home from this performance[britannica.com],
Granados drowned when his ship, the Sussex, was torpedoed by a German submarine.

 

When the Nightingale Sings…

Songs and Piano Works by Enrique Granados

in celebration of the

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_biography_Enrique-2DGranados_images-2Dvideos_Granados_38414&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=q-CLp6Pbbir6k5jYPvKU4ad4VCvomueH-5NdfBu70eg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_biography_Enrique-2DGranados_images-2Dvideos_Granados_38414&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=q-CLp6Pbbir6k5jYPvKU4ad4VCvomueH-5NdfBu70eg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_place_Lleida-2DSpain&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=Y-5REo0YBCcjJoM60RaNBOtWd5SiH-OSlnEhbJriUbQ&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_place_Spain&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=9oj1D9uZZSwJ9Mvi2RGWUb6CDtE-FCVcT_mDuwr2nEI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_place_Spain&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=9oj1D9uZZSwJ9Mvi2RGWUb6CDtE-FCVcT_mDuwr2nEI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_place_Atlantic-2DOcean&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=YXxrwY0JiWVX67Qoloh4vyXrNjaPmjjIX9Demmgx-Jg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_place_Atlantic-2DOcean&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=YXxrwY0JiWVX67Qoloh4vyXrNjaPmjjIX9Demmgx-Jg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.youtube.com_watch-3Fv-3DfH8uEW41BuE&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=o1KqOgTtgRtaGWMFXjq_hG17ULpInTJfNqcEcnTUO0g&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.youtube.com_watch-3Fv-3DfH8uEW41BuE&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=o1KqOgTtgRtaGWMFXjq_hG17ULpInTJfNqcEcnTUO0g&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.youtube.com_watch-3Fv-3D5EHsem5hvfo&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=pnDO2LPjw6g9IzU36kHxJ8V32SnvhfXWRY9Iq5hkvWU&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_place_Spain&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=9oj1D9uZZSwJ9Mvi2RGWUb6CDtE-FCVcT_mDuwr2nEI&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_art_nationalistic-2Dmusic&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=fvxUVyUSpXWx_GNzv9UGOR5BjiZGydHlGFJHUSCh-VY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_art_music&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=sTMUgZjoGPJ19-7aPjERVcimPr6z8J3S09odb-MEfwY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_place_Barcelona&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=SwVBwrGNFkwDtWFbnBVjkuDad8huGFS3kv6HPxr7Tc8&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_biography_Felipe-2DPedrell&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=Dgxdoq2FZIcIZ-aVI8wL8nquURNCGyW4ctm_vgjCd8Y&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_biography_Felipe-2DPedrell&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=Dgxdoq2FZIcIZ-aVI8wL8nquURNCGyW4ctm_vgjCd8Y&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_art_piano&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=uVn9wRkCU7EADv0rlC5xTyB-Luh61jP5x277ys8_mzE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_art_tonadilla&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=GTU8zgP3VpvYk2YEyg5WeOrUPSRuDO6FKdf_E2nDlhc&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_art_opera-2Dmusic&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=Aps2ZNWX_DXnHo9YwerTJ5brhNODzQ9JQ7X411fSieg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_place_New-2DYork-2DCity&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=mpCkD5GlOboXFAYVlhgc9cvqkiXZcIZv3gLaN_WgXwg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_place_New-2DYork-2DCity&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=mpCkD5GlOboXFAYVlhgc9cvqkiXZcIZv3gLaN_WgXwg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.britannica.com_art_performance-2Darts&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=6fC6nMqNLrq5IhH5fNbOtwuavVggr0raHSK-j1uWdn4&s=7p4sodXjFYUsvn5IUPbxtd24leZyRdOoLlcgbDYH_qA&e=


  Enrique Granados Centenary and 150th
Anniversary

Saturday, January 30, 2016  ~ 6:00 p.m.

*reception following*
 

the program includes selections from La coleccion de tonadillas; Canciones
amatorias; songs in Catalan; piano and flute solos

 

Anna Bartos, Soprano

 Eric Sedgwick, Piano 

Jesse Han, Flute



 
 

The National Opera Center 

330 7th Avenue at 29th Street

Rehearsal Hall ~ 7th floor

New York City

Suggested Contribution: $20 at the door 

~ tax deductible ~

RSVP requested

 

This performance is being sponsored by

 Something to Sing About in New York.



From: Meira Goldberg
To: Straker, Kathryn; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Fwd: www.clarkart.edu
Date: Thursday, June 02, 2016 5:11:35 PM

Did I send you this already Katy? It's the link to Belén Maya's residency at Clark - the FIM
was a consultant - this should go on our new flamenco page! :-)
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: La Meira <lameira2011@gmail.com>
Date: 2016-06-02 13:51 GMT-04:00
Subject: www.clarkart.edu[clarkart.edu]
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
Montfort; Theresa Goldbach; Thomas Baird; Tony Dumas; Walter Aaron Clark; Wilfried Raussert; Anna de la Paz

Subject: galleys/ galeradas for Cambridge Scholars Publishing
Date: Friday, September 09, 2016 9:31:16 AM
Attachments: C2-Contributor agreement.pdf

CSP dustjacket 1-4438-9963-1-overprint-prontaprint.pdf

Esteemed colleagues and contributors to the CSP proceedings,

Forgive me for writing in English...

We are almost there with this beautiful volume - please find attached the dustjacket -
for you approval.

Please find below a link to download a zipped folder of the proofs for our book:

https://www.sendthisfile.com/fC8Nc0XWIlN3LJc2fJmPM9RM[sendthisfile.com]

 
Please read the Read Me First file before proceeding, and please make all changes in
the files provided. Then please just email me your revised work--take care not to
change formatting please--or, it is easier, simply a list of revisions and we will input
them. We would like to have these back as soon as is convenient, for 2016 publication.
 
We also need you to please print, sign, scan in, and email us the Contributor
agreement, attached. Please do not be distressed by its language!

Here is the language from the front pages:

This volume is a revised and translated edition of bilingual conference proceedings
published by the Junta de Andalucía, Consejería de Cultura: Centro de
Documentación Musical de Andalucía, Música Oral del Sur, vol. 12 (2015). The
bilingual proceedings may be accessed here: http://www.
centrodedocumentacionmusicaldeandalucia.es/opencms/documentacion/revistas/
revistas-mos/musica-oral-del-sur-
n12.html[centrodedocumentacionmusicaldeandalucia.es] 

CSP explains in response to our query that "the standard form basically sets out that if
the text has been published elsewhere, you need to get permission. As it has been set
in your contract that the text has been published elsewhere, and you already have
permission, we can leave the form as it is and you would still be covered."

So we do hope you feel comfortable with this.

...and stand by for an invitation to the upcoming conference, Spaniards, Indians,
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Africans, and Gypsies: Transatlantic Malagueñas and Zapateados in Music, Song,
and Dance, April 6-7, 2017 at the University of California at Riverside. 

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



From: Departament d"Art i de Musicologia
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: gastos adicionales tesis Laura Bonet
Date: Thursday, June 30, 2016 2:45:13 AM

Apreciado profesor Piza,

El pasado 25 de mayo participó como miembro del tribunal evaluador de la
tesis presentada por la doctoranda Paula Bonet, en la Facultad de
Filosofía y Letras de la UAB.
Mi compañera de la Secretaria de Arte, Susanna, me comunico que nos
enviaría por correo las tarjetas de embarque, así como los tickets de
los gastos adicionales que le generó el desplazamiento.

A fecha de hoy todavía no los hemos recibido, y le agradeceríamos que
nos comunicará si tiene previsto enviarlos o, en su caso ya no dispone
de ellos.

En caso de disponer todavía de ellos, le agradeceríamos que nos lo haga
llegar, lo antes posible, por correo postal a la siguiente dirección:

Universidad Autónoma de Barcelona
Facultad de Filosofía y Letras
Departamento de Arte y de Musicología - Edificio B
calle de la Fortuna, s/n
08193 Bellaterra

En caso de que no disponga ya de ellos, le agradeceríamos que nos lo
comunicase para liquidarle la dieta pendiente.

Atentamente,

José Ramón Llagostera
Secretaria d'Art i de Musicologia
UAB

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Information Technology
To: GC Community
Subject: GC closure Jan. 23-24
Date: Saturday, January 23, 2016 3:54:51 PM

The Graduate Center is closed the remainder of this weekend, Jan. 23-24.
 
Updates are posted to the Graduate Center website.

mailto:it@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:GC_community@gc.cuny.edu
http://www.gc.cuny.edu/home


From: Maria Luisa Martinez
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Gmail
Date: Tuesday, September 20, 2016 2:11:53 PM

Antoni, ¿me pasas tu dirección de gmail para compartir contigo en el drive lo que reuní en
relación a nuestro quinteto? Dime si prefieres que lo haga de otra manera.
¡Gracias!

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
mailto:mmartinez2@unis.org
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From: Meira Goldberg
To: Walter Aaron Clark; Piza, Antoni
Subject: g"morning
Date: Friday, June 03, 2016 9:37:26 AM
Attachments: fandango poster2.pdf

Final_Program.pdf
emancipation fandango needs permission for hi res nypl.digitalcollections.510d47e1-3faa-a3d9-e040-
e00a18064a99.001.w.jpg
fandango w hip bump.jpeg

And how are you Walter?

I know we have quite a number of things pendiente for next April...

What's your summer schedule like? When will be good windows for us to talk? 

I am in the very last days of putting together the Cambridge manuscript. They have been SO
responsive - just dreamy after the surly incompetence of MOS. It's going to come out in paper,
it's going to have a cover (the main image for our 2015 conference - Chasselat), and we're
going to see galleys so it will be CLEAN!

I'm working on the endmatter: no bibliography or index, but we'll include the poster and
conference program from 2015 - attached for your reference.

I think we should make up a page, maybe even a color page as I think the 2015 poster should
be - they handle color images separately - advertising 2017.

I attach a few images for your consideration - of course you two may have other ideas! The
images attached are all either fair use or straightforward to get permission for. 

Walter, do you have anyone at UCR who could make this up? Or Antoni could Katy do it?

besos a los dos,

Meira​

 Spanish dancing nypl.digitalcollections.7d9ddc8...
​​

 The Spanish Fandango Galop Banjo 1870 loc.gov 4...
​​

 Theatre in St. Iago nypl.digitalcollections.dcb...
​​

 Mlle Noblet zapateado 1838 nypl.digitalcollecti...
​​

 Negro fandango scene Augustus Earle 1822.png
​​

 from Grove fandango frontispiece from C A Fisch...
​​

mailto:walter.clark@ucr.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBeVZyNVJZSGtITEU/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBeVZyNVJZSGtITEU/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBNVF1a1NfNkFfSHM/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBNVF1a1NfNkFfSHM/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBUllZWWUyQWdUVk0/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBUllZWWUyQWdUVk0/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBU3VtWVdvcXZOcU0/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBU3VtWVdvcXZOcU0/view?usp=drive_web
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INTRODUCTION 
Spaniards, Indians, Africans, and Gypsies:   


The Global Reach of the Fandango in Music, Song, and Dance 
 
 


I saw this dance from Cádiz, still famous after so many centuries for its voluptuous steps, 
which you can see danced even today in all neighborhoods and all houses in this city, 


with incredible applause from those attending: 
it is not celebrated only among Gypsies and other people of low caste, 


but also among honorable and well-born gentlewomen. 
— Manuel Martí Zaragoza, Deacon of Alicante, 17121 


 
In The Mestizo Mind: The Intellectual Dynamics of Colonization and Globalization, Serge Gruzinski notes “the difficulty we 
experience even ‘seeing’ mestizo phenomena, much less analyzing them.”2 The fandango emerged in the early eighteenth 
century as a popular dance and music craze across Spain and the Americas. While in parts of Latin America the term 
“fandango” came to refer to any festive social dance event, over the course of that century in both Spain and the Americas 
a broad family of interrelated fandango music and dance genres evolved that went on to constitute important parts of 
regional expressive culture. This fandango family comprised genres as diverse as the Cuban peasant punto, the salon and 
concert fandangos of Mozart and Scarlatti, and—last but not least—the Andalusian fandango subgenres that became core 
components of flamenco. The fandango world itself became a conduit for the creative interaction and syncretism of music, 
dance, and people of diverse Spanish, Afro-Latin, Gitano, and perhaps even Amerindian origin. As such, the fandango 
family evolved as a quintessential mestizaje, a mélange of people, imagery, music and dance from the Americas, Europe, 
and Africa.3 Emerging from the maelstrom of the Atlantic slave trade with its cataclysmic remaking of the Western world, 
the fandango in its diverse but often interrelated forms was nurtured in the ports of Cádiz, Veracruz, Sao Paolo and 
Havana, and went on to proliferate throughout Old and New Worlds.  Widely dispersed in terms of geography, class, and 
cultural reference, the fandango’s many faces reflect a diversity of exchange across what was once the Spanish Empire. 
 


This conference proposes to bring these cousins together, and to wonder how one form can shed light on another. 
Born in transit between the Americas and the Iberian Peninsula, the fandango was swept along by industrialization and 
the growth of cities, the birth of capitalism, and the great emancipatory processes that would lead, over the course of the 
eighteenth and nineteenth centuries, to independence in the Americas. From the celebrations of humble folk to the salons 
and theaters of the European elite, the fandango multiplied. With boisterous castanets, strumming strings and dexterous 
footwork, flirtatious sensuality and piquant attitudes, the costume of peasants and Gypsies done in elegant fabrics for 
Spanish aristocrats, the fandango absorbed dance and music ideas of “Gypsies and other people of low caste” into the 
heart of Spain’s national identity. The period of its greatest popularity, from approximately the mid-eighteenth to the 
early-nineteenth century, straddles the tipping point of the Spanish colonial enterprise from ascent into decline. With 
Gluck’s Don Juan (1761), Mozart's The Marriage of Figaro (1786), Rossini's The Barber of Seville (1816), and Petipa’s Don 
Quixote (1869), the narrative of Spain as represented by the reviled conquistadores, Torquemada’s Inquisition, and Jesuit 
missionaries (the “dogs of God”), was replaced with the image of Spain as a land of festive bandits and swarthy, 
gleaming-eyed Gypsies.  


 
As the emblem of majismo, an aristocratic fashion for imitating the underclass, the fandango, emerging in the 


Americas among enslaved Africans and decimated indigenous peoples, was embraced and absorbed by Spaniards who 
raised this dance of the Indies in resistance to the minuets of the French. With its empire crumbling, Spain, once the 


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
1 Aurelio Capmany, “El baile y la danza.” In Francesch Carreras y Candi, Folklore y costumbres de Espan ̃a: II (Barcelona: Casa Editorial Alberto Martín, 
1931), 248. 
2 Serge Gruzinski, The Mestizo Mind: The Intellectual Dynamics of Colonization and Globalization (N.Y.: Routledge, 2002), 2. 
3 José Antonio Robles Cahero, “Un paseo por la música y el baile populares de la Nueva España” (Hemispheric Institute Web Cuadernos, March 6, 
2010), http://www.hemisphericinstitute.org/cuaderno/censura/html/danza/danza.htm (accessed February 13, 2014).	
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colonizer, was now the object of the colonizing gaze—as Dumas is reputed to have said, “Africa begins at the Pyrenees.” 
In the ultimate reversal, the fandango was a symbol of freedom of movement and of expression, a danced opposition to 
the academic conscriptions and modes of the Spanish court. 


 
The process of creolization took place on both sides of the Atlantic, and it took place through surprising alliances, 


such as the black and white slaves—fandangueros—of Cádiz in 1464, or the Gypsies whom Swinburne described in 1776 
dancing a variant of the fandango, the Mandingoy—recalling not only the Mandinka people of West Africa, but also a 
runaway slave community in 18th-century Mexico.4 In each universe where the fandango took root, it developed 
differently, as classical music, flamenco, son jarocho, joropo, punto…  


 
What is the full array of the fandango? How has the fandango participated in the elaboration of various national 


identities; that is, what are the politics of representation of the various fandangos? How do the fandangos of the 
Enlightenment shed light on musical populism and folkloric nationalism as armaments in the revolutionary struggles for 
independence in the 18th and 19th centuries? What are some of the shared formal features—musical, choreographic, or 
lyric—that can be discerned in the diverse constituents of the fandango family in Spain and the Americas? How does our 
recognition of these features enhance our understanding of historical connections between these places? How does the 
fandango manifest the recurrent reflections, cultural assimilations, appropriations, elisions, accommodations and 
rejections of the postcolonial Latin world? What are the political economies of fandango performances—how do local, 
cross-class, and transnational transactions activate the process of mestizaje? Can we track the great flows, effusions, 
migrations, and transformations of culture through a close examination of the local and specific histories of the fandango? 
How do fandango music and dance embody memory? How do they collapse past and present, creating performances that 
simultaneously echo the magical or sacred practices of their ancestors and appeal to a commercial audience? How may 
we read, as Terence Cave has described, the performance of mestizaje and the negotiations of hegemonic gender codes in 
intermediate forms like the minuet afandangado, or a fandango on eggs?5 What is the genealogy of the fandango’s stringed 
instruments, instrumental and vocal techniques, rhythm, verse, melodic structures, and improvisational syntax? What 
does the movimiento jaranero in Chicano communities across the U.S. as well as in Mexico have to do with the process of 
decolonialization?  


Many questions, and here begins the conversation… 


K. Meira Goldberg & Antoni Pizà 
Organizing Committee  
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
4 José Luis Navarro García, Semillas de ébano: el elemento negro y afroamericano en el baile flamenco (Sevilla: Portada Editorial, S.L., 1998), 59, 199, citing 
Municipal Archives of Jerez de la Frontera, September 14, 1464, folio 118; Henry Swinburne, Travels through Spain, in the Years 1775 and 1776 (Dublin: 
Printed for S. Price, R. Cross, J. Williams [and 8 others], 1779), 353–54; Patrick J. Carroll, “Mandinga: The Evolution of a Mexican Runaway Slave 
Community, 1735–1827,” Comparative Studies in Society and History, vol. 19, no. 4 (1977): 488–505. 
5 Terence Cave, Mignon's Afterlives: Crossing Cultures from Goethe to the Twenty-First Century (Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2011). 







	
  
	
  


	
   5 


PROGRAM 


Friday, April 17, 2015 9:30 am – 7pm 
 


9:30 – 10:00  Welcome Breakfast at Segal Theater, Ground Floor 
 
 


CUNY GC Segal Theater   10:00 – 11:30  CUNY GC Room 9204 10:00 – 12:00 
Embodied Memory and Sonic Spectre: Tracing Rhythm,  
Gesture, Syntax, Melody, and Verse 


 The “Emancipation of Music:”6 19th & 20th Century 
Fandango, Flamenco Formation, and National Identity  


Chair: Antoni Pizà  Chair: Estela Zatania 
 
“The Fandango in Mozart’s The Marriage of Figaro: The Prism 
of Revolution in the Enlightenment.” Craig Russell, 
California Polytechnic State University 


  
“The physical forms and cloaked politics of flamenco 
fandangos.” Estela Zatania, Deflamenco.com, Brook 
Zern, flamencoexperience.com 


 “‘When Fandango Hits the Border, When Music Comes to 
Town’: Mobilizing Music, Participatory Cultures, and 
Translocational Community-Building in the 21st century.” 
Wilfried Raussert, Bielefeld University, Center for 
InterAmerican Studies 
 


  “Rhythmic Evolution in the Spanish fandango: Binary 
and Ternary Rhythms.” Guillermo Castro Buendia, 
Centro de Investigación Flamenco Telethusa 
 


“Fandango in the Franco Era: the Politics of Classification.” 
Theresa Goldbach, University of California, Riverside 
  


 “The Fandango in Nineteenth Century Flamenco: The 
Untold Story.” 
José Miguel Hernández Jaramillo, Universidad Nacional 
Autónoma de México 


   
“Musical Relationships Between Spanish Malagueñas 
and Fandangos in the Nineteenth Century.” Lénica 
Reyes Zúñiga, Universidad Nacional Autónoma de 
México 


	
  


	
   	
  


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
6 Antonio García de León Griego, El mar de los deseos: el Caribe hispano musical: historia y contrapunto (Mexico:  Siglo XXI, 2002).	
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CUNY GC Segal Theater 11:30 – 1:00  CUNY GC Room 9204 12:00 – 1:00 
18th & 19th Century Fandango Globalization: The Ida y 
Vuelta of the Black Atlantic7 


 Fandangos in the Age of Enlightenment 


Chair: Peter Manuel  Chair: Nancy Heller 
   
“An Introduction to Popular Spanish Music in 19th 
Century USA.” Kiko Mora, Universidad de Alicante  
  
“The Fandango as an Example of the Circulation of 
Culture between Mexico and the Caribbean.” Ricardo 
Pérez Montfort, Centro de Investigaciones y Estudios 
Superiores en Antropología Social – CIESAS 
 


 “Spanish and Hispanic American Depictions of Dancing in 
El velorio del angelito.” Nancy G. Heller, University of the 
Arts (Philadelphia, PA) 
 
“Luigi Boccherini’s ‘afandangado’ quintets: sound, form 
and plot.” Matteo Giuggioli, Zurich University Institute of 
Musicology 
 


“The Fandangos of Southern Spain in the Context of other 
Spanish and American Fandangos.” Miguel Ángel 
Berlanga, Universidad de Granada 
 


  


 
 


1:00 – 2:00  Lunch Break 
 


  


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
7 Paul Gilroy, The Black Atlantic: Modernity and Double Consciousness (Cambridge, MA:  Harvard, 1993). 
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2:00 – 3:00  Segal Theater 


 


Keynote Address  


 


Tonadilla and Fandango: How a Genre and a Practice Intersect and Diverge 
By 


Elisabeth Le Guin, University of California, Los Angeles 
 


 
Photo: Lindsay Johnson 


 
 
Elisabeth Le Guin is a performer and musicologist whose dual allegiances manifest as a series of 
dialogues, in tones and words, between theory and practice. As a Baroque cellist, she was a founding 
member of Philharmonia Baroque Orchestra and the Artaria String Quartet, and appeared in over 40 
recordings; she continues in this capacity, while aspiring ever more earnestly to the condition of an 
amateur. In more recent years she has become involved in the movimiento jaranero, a transnational 
grassroots musical activism in Mexico and Mexican immigrant communities in the USA. 
 
As an academic, Professor Le Guin has published two books with the University of California Press: 
Boccherini's Body: an Essay in Carnal Musicology, in 2006, and The Tonadilla in Performance: Lyric Comedy in 
Enlightenment Spain, in 2014. In this capacity, she received the American Musicological Society’s Alfred 
Einstein and Noah Greenberg Awards, as well as grant support from various national and international 
organizations including the ACLS, The UC Presidents’ Research Fund, the Institute for International 
Education (Fulbright program), UCLA's International Institute, the Program for Cultural Cooperation 
between Spain and United States Universities, and the UC Humanities Research Institute. Le Guin has 
taught at UCLA since 1997, with a particular focus on undergraduate advising, the teaching of writing, 
international education, and the integration of performance with scholarship. She succeeded in re-starting 
UCLA´s Early Music Ensemble in 2009 after a 15-year hiatus, and has served two terms as Study Center 
Director for the UC Education Abroad Program in Mexico City. Dr. Le Guin’s abstract is on page 17.  







	
  
	
  


	
   8 


 
CUNY GC Segal Theater 3:00 – 4:30  CUNY GC Room 9204 3:00 – 4:30 
Fandango on the European Stage – Critical Reception 
and Choreographic Adaptations 


 Movimiento Jaranero and “Cosmopolitics”8 


Chair: Lou Charnon-Deutsch  Chair: Michelle Habell-Pallán 
“’Like Salamanders in a Flame:’ The Early European 
Love Affair with the Fandango.” Lou Charnon-Deutsch, 
SUNY Stony Brook  


 “Women Who Rock the Fandango: Lessons in 
Convivencia.” Michelle Habell-Pallán, UW Libraries 
Women Who Rock Oral History Archives University 
of Washington, and Iris Viveros, Gender, Women, & 
Sexuality Studies, University of Washington. 
 


“The Fandango in 19th Century Theory and on European 
Stages: Henri Justamant’s Les Conscrits Espagnols.” 
Claudia Jeschke, University of Salzburg; Derra de 
Moroda Dance Archives at the University of Salzburg 
 


 “Sonic (Trans)Migration: Rhythmic Intention in 
Zapateado.” Martha Gonzalez, Scripps College  
 


«Ceci n’est pas un fandango.» Michael Malkiewicz, 
Mozarteum University Salzburg 
 


 “Yo no soy marinero, soy capitán: Contemporary 
sociopolitical uses of fandango and son jarocho.” Rafael 
Figueroa Hernández, Universidad Veracruzana, 
comosuena.com 
 


4:30 – 4:45  Coffee Break 
 


CUNY GC Segal Theater 4:45 – 6:00  CUNY GC Room 9204 4:45 – 5:30 
Diasporic (Re)Cycling – Cultural Flow, Transmission, 
and Reconception 


 The Abanico of Fandango: Throughout The Americas 
 


Chair: Walter Clark  Chair: Nancy G. Heller 
 
“The Fandango as a Family of Musical Forms in the 
Afro-Hispanic Atlantic: From the 16th-Century 
Zarabanda to the 19th-Century Malagueña.” Peter 
Manuel, The Graduate Center, CUNY, María Luisa 
Martínez, Universidad de Jaén 
 


  
“Brazilian Fandango: traditionalism, identity and 
policies of cultural heritage.”Allan de Paula Oliveira, 
West Parana State University (UNIOESTE) 


“The Revels of a Young Republic: Revolutionary 
Possibilities of the Fandango in Timothy Flint’s 1826 
Francis Berrian.” Paul D. Naish, Guttman Community 
College, CUNY  
 


  
“Mitote, Fandango and Mariache or Mariachi, a Space of 
Festivity.” Álvaro Ochoa Serrano, El Colegio de 
Michoacán 


“The Malagueñas of Breva, Albéniz, and Lecuona:  
From Regional Fandango to Global Pop Tune. Walter 
Clark, University of California, Riverside 


  
 
 


	
  


	
   	
  


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
8 “‘When Fandango Hits the Border, When Music Comes to Town’: Mobilizing Music, Participatory Cultures, and Translocational Community-Building 
in the 21st century.” Wilfried Raussert, Bielefeld University, Center for InterAmerican Studies. 
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CUNY GC Segal 
Theater 


6:00 – 7:00  CUNY GC Room 
9204 


5:30 – 7:00 


 
The Elevation of the Folk – Fandango on the Concert 
Stage 


  
Border Crossings: Fandango as Emblem of 
Transnational, Postcolonial Identity 


Chair: Brook Zern  Chair: Bruno Bartra 
 
A Talk Illustrated at the Piano: Enrique Granados' 
Fandango del Candil and Manuel de Falla's Danza de la 
Molinera. Adam Kent (piano), Brooklyn College  
 


  
“The Fandango as a Space of Resistance, Creativity, and 
Liberty.” Nubia Flórez Forero, Universidad Del 
Atlántico - (Avalado), CEDINEP 
 


A Talk Illustrated by Dance: The Use of Castanets in 
The Fandango of Doña Francisquita, by Amadeu Vives, 
choreography by José Molina. Gabriela Granados 
(dance), American Bolero Dance Company, Adam 
Kent (piano), Brooklyn College  
 


 “Vaivenes, del Cuerpo al Verso: On the Expressive and 
Political Anatomy of the New Years Eve Topada in 
Xichú, Guanajuato.” Alex E. Chávez, University of 
Notre Dame  
 


A Talk Illustrated at the Piano: Musical Aspects of the 
Colombian and Venezuelan Joropo. Claudia Calderón 
Sáenz (piano), pianollanero.com; Fundación Editorial 
Arpamérica 
 


 “Son Jarocho in New York: Jarana and Fandango as 
Symbols of a New Mexican identity.” Bruno Bartra, The 
Graduate Center, CUNY 
 


	
  


 
 
 
 


7:00 – 9:00 GRAN FANDANGO, WITH RADIO JAROCHO 
SEGAL THEATER 
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PROGRAM 
Saturday, April 18, 2015 10:00 am – 3:45 pm 


Sociedad Benevolente La Nacional, 239 West 14th Street – Parlor Floor 


 
10:00 – 11:15  Fandango as a Prism of Enlightenment9 
Chair: K. Meira Goldberg 


“Changing Places: Toward the Reconstruction of an Eighteenth Century Danced Fandango.” Thomas Baird, Historical 
Dance Specialist, K. Meira Goldberg, Visiting Research Scholar, Foundation for Iberian Music, Paul Jared Newman, 
guitarist, and Elisabet Torras Aguilera, dancer 
 
“Choreological Gestures in Iberian Music of the Second Half of the Eighteenth Century: a Proposal for Historically 
Informed Interpretation of the Fandango.” María José Ruiz Mayordomo, Universidad Rey Juan Carlos / Compañía de 
Danza “Esquivel”; Aurèlia Pessarrodona, Università degli Studi di Bologna 
 
“Emergence and Transformations of the Fandango.”Alan Jones, Independent Scholar 


11:15 – 11:30 Mutis: Sonia Olla, Ismael de la Rosa Fernández & Rafael Brun - Flamenco Fandangos 


11:30 – 1:30 Fandango as Praxis 
Chair: Raquel Paraíso 


“Frozen Footwork: Folklórico Falters Following Fandangos Footsteps.” Erica Ocegueda, Arizona State University 


“Envisioning the Nation through Dance: The Teaching and Performance of the Jarabe Tapatío in 1920s and 1930s Mexico 
within the Educational System.” Gabriela Mendoza García, Independent Scholar 
 
“Re-contextualizing Traditions and the Construction of Social Identities through Music and Dance: un fandango en 
Huetamo, Michoacán.” Raquel Paraíso, Independent Scholar 
 
“The Fandango as Fiesta and the Fandango within the Fiesta: Tarima, Cante and Dance.” Jessica Gottfried, Instituto 
Veracruzano de la Cultura / Universidad Veracruzana Intercultural 
 
“The Fandango as Improvised Music and Poetry: the Trovo of Alpujarra.” Reynaldo Fernández Manzano, Centro de 
Documentación Musical de Andalucía, Asociación Española de Documentación Musical (AEDOM) 
 


1:30 – 2:15  Lunch Break 
 


2:15 – 3:45 Cosmopolitics II: Fandango as Resistance and Rebeldía in Contemporary Flamenco 
Chair: Tony Dumas 


“Fandangos de Huelva: Voices of Women.” Loren Chuse, Independent Scholar 


“Fandango and the Rhetoric of Resistance in Flamenco.” Tony Dumas, SUNY Brockport  


“El Fandango en Málaga: Del Cante Bailado Al Cante Desgarrado.” Ramón Soler Díaz, ethnomusicologist 


“Cante Libre is not free – contrasting approaches to fandangos personales.” John Moore, University of California, San Diego 
 


4:00 – 5:00 Fin de Fiesta/ Mojiganga – Film Screening 
 


Flamenco de Raíz. Válgame Dios que alegría tiene esta gente, que fatigas tengo yo (una historia crítica y social del flamenco): Álvarez 
 A documentary by Vicente Pérez Herrero, of Tiempos Difíciles Films. Álvarez is a cantaor and street sweeper from Málaga. 
An outstanding interpreter of fandangos, a friend of Camarón and other flamenco greats, Álvarez is not known by the 
general public but known among flamenco cognoscenti as an artist among artists, a source for knowledge and inspiration. 
Suggested donation: $10. 


	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  	
  
9 “The Fandango in Mozart’s The Marriage of Figaro: The Prism of Revolution in the Enlightenment.”  Craig Russell, California Polytechnic State 
University  
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ABSTRACTS 
 


THOMAS BAIRD (Historical Dance Specialist), 
K. MEIRA GOLDBERG (The Graduate Center, 
CUNY), PAUL JARED NEWMAN (guitar), and 
Elisabet Torras Aguilera (dance), “Changing 
Places: Toward the Reconstruction of an 
Eighteenth Century Danced Fandango.” 
 
The fandango, as a dance craze adopted by the 
aristocracy of 18th century Spain and propagated in elite 
concert halls and salons, derived from the communal 
celebrations of the lowest rungs of Spanish and Spanish-
American society. Indeed, as Craig Russell describes, the 
fandango’s widespread popularity is inextricably linked 
to the great social, economic, and cultural shifts of the 
Enlightenment, with its elevation and representation of 
the popular. Yet the popular fandangos, interpreted in 
aristocratic settings and recorded in the cifras of court 
musicians, dance treatises, libretti of ballets, operas, and 
tonadillas, as by elite observers and foreign tourists, have 
themselves been lost to time. Therefore, we endeavor to 
engage with the question that Alan Jones poses: is it 
possible to reconstruct a fandango from an 18th century 
Spanish ball? What can primary sources tell us about the 
movement vocabulary, the choreography, and the 
rhythms of the fandango? Beyond that, how can we 
kinesthetically grasp the supposed lasciviousness that, 
along with the fandango’s representation of the popular, 
universally characterizes this dance? In this research, 
Thomas Baird and K. Meira Goldberg move toward the 
18th century from opposite directions: Thomas, as an 
historic dance specialist steeped in the ethos of the 
courtly style, Meira, as a flamenco dancer and historian 
grounded in the world of the popular, Jared, performer 
and scholar of both Baroque and flamenco guitar, 
Elisabet, trained in the Escuela Bolera. We seek here to 
explore and catalog the insights, intuitions, questions, 
and possibilities gleaned from our dialogue with the 
sources and with each other.  
 
BRUNO BARTRA (The Graduate Center, 
CUNY), “Son Jarocho in New York: Jarana 
and Fandango as Symbols of a New Mexican 
identity.” 
 
In the past decade, a New York-based music scene 
surrounding son jarocho music from the Mexican State of 
Veracruz has started to develop. It is linked to a middle 
class diaspora of Mexican professional musicians who 
perform and teach, in concert with impresarios whose 


upscale restaurants in Manhattan and Brooklyn provide 
performance venues for these artists. Bands like Radio 
Jarocho and Jarana Beat lead a scene that has a two-fold 
agenda. On one hand, the bands perform a fusion of the 
genre with rock, but, on the other hand, they always 
play an acoustic segment in which they try to organize a 
traditional "fandango" (a traditional dance-party), 
having the "jarana" guitar and the dancing "tarima" as 
central elements of identity and authenticity. Integrating 
musicians from all-over Latin America, this community, 
in contrast to the traditional working class migrant 
Mexicans, is trying to find a niche within the New York 
world music community, in an attempt to construct an 
alternative Mexican-American, a “friendly” and 
professionalized Other.  
 
MIGUEL ÁNGEL BERLANGA (Universidad de 
Granada), “The Fandangos of Southern Spain 
in the Context of other Spanish and American 
Fandangos.”  
 
Some years ago, historical and (ethno)musicological 
research documented the great number of musical 
phenomena denoted by the word “fandango.” But from 
the conceptual and musical point of view there yet 
remain some unanswered questions. Is it useful to 
propose a general definition of the fandango that would 
include all the musical phenomena known by this 
denomination? I propose here to demonstrate that it is 
indeed useful to propose a universal meaning for the 
word “fandango.” (Or, at least, as universal as possible.) 
For this definition to be valid, we must assume that it 
should include in a convincing way all of the diverse 
meanings of this word, in the present as well as in the 
past. In this regard, from a strictly formal point of view, 
the most characteristic features of the fandango music of 
southern Spain are compared with those of other 
fandangos from both sides of the Atlantic.  
 
CLAUDIA CALDERÓN SÁENZ (Fundación 
Editorial Arpamérica), “Musical Aspects of 
the Colombian and Venezuelan Joropo.”  
 
The word Joropo encompasses a Colombian and 
Venezuelan tradition that includes village fiestas, poetry, 
singing, music, and dance in a form of popular 
expression that is constantly evolving. Improvised 
creativity flourishes within existing structures and 
defined patterns of style. Joropo’s origins date from 
Iberian music of the 17th and 18th centuries, such as the 
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many fandangos, folías, peteneras, jotas and Andalusian 
malagueñas. These roots were flavored with the 
influence of eight centuries of Arabic occupation, and 
then transformed in America by the mixing of African 
and indigenous elements under the burning sun of the 
Orinoco Basin, and the infinite largeness of its horizons 
and savannas. Joropo’s roots include the music of sailors 
and troubadors who arrived in Spanish galleons, taking 
root in Caribbean and South American soil and 
developing into a powerful and vigorous tradition. Over 
time, joropo even became a symbol of national identity 
in Venezuela, and in eastern Colombia. There are three 
regional styles of joropo defined by instrumental and 
stylistic differences: eastern joropo and central joropo in 
Venezuela and the llanero joropo, from the plains along 
the Orinoco River, which is found in both countries and 
is very popular, due to its many recordings, extensive 
radio airplay and an abundance of festivals and 
competitions. 
 
GUILLERMO CASTRO BUENDIA (Centro de 
Investigación Flamenco Telethusa), 
“Rhythmic Evolution in the Spanish 
Fandango: Binary and Ternary rhythms.”   
 
In Spain, the fandango has a polyrhythmic character. On 
one hand is the binary rhythmic pattern of the singer 
(6/8, similar to Jota), and on the other hand is the 
musical accompaniment in ternary rhythm (3/4). These 
rhythms merge to create one of the most unique styles of 
Spanish popular music. In fandangos published in Spain 
from the early-18th century to the late-19th century, we 
can detect an evolution in the accompaniment that, upon 
close analysis, allows us to better understand the nature 
of this musical genre. In this presentation, I focus on the 
the polyrhythmic nature of fandangos, which has led to 
a number of musicians to write it sometimes in binary 
meter and other times in ternary meter. 
 
LOU CHARNON-DEUTSCH (SUNY Stony 
Brook), “’Like Salamanders in a Flame:’ The 
Early European Love Affair with the 
Fandango.”  
 
This talk examines European travelers’ evolving 
perception of the fandango from the early 18th century to 
the end of the 19th century. Early travelers deemed 
Spain’s greatest attraction to be its Moorish past, 
lamenting the decay and backwardness of the 
present.  Mostly they condemned the “lasciviousness” of 
the fandango, but beginning in the late 18th century and 
especially 19th century male travelers became enthusiasts 
of the dance that they compared with the Cadiz dances 
in the first century.  Towards the end of the 19th century 


French travelers especially became enamoured of the 
sensuousness of fandango dancers. In 1889 Spain sent a 
group of dancers to the Universal Exposition in 
Paris.  Writer Catulle Mendès, waxing poetic about the 
excitement produced by “exotic” human displays at the 
Exposition dancing the fandango, said their movements 
were “like salamanders in a flame.” 
 
ALEX E. CHÁVEZ (University of Notre Dame), 
“Vaivenes, del Cuerpo al Verso: On the 
Expressive and Political Anatomy of the New 
Years Eve Topada in Xichú, Guanajuato.”  
 
This paper discusses the little-known Mexican music of 
huapango arribeño, with attention to its topada 
performance in Xichú, Guanajuato. There, two 
ensembles engage in both poetic dueling and musical 
flyting (performative dueling) in the town central plaza 
from dusk until dawn while thousands of spectators 
ring in the New Year. The highly public and 
impermanent expenditure and excess at play, it is 
argued, animate stories and desires of movement and 
connection that grow sharply political in relation to the 
transnational political economies in which many of the 
participants are positioned. In pursuit of this claim, this 
paper details the multi-voiced poetic and musical 
grammar of the topada space of vernacular performance. 
 
LOREN CHUSE (Independent Scholar), 
“Fandangos de Huelva: Voices of Women.”  
 
The many genres of fandango for which Huelva is well 
known, from the regional forms such as Fandangos de 
Alosno to fandangos naturales or personales, have been 
created and performed by women singers since the early 
twentieth century. Well-known letras, (lyrics) of 
fandangos by earlier singers María “La Conejilla” and 
“La Juana María de Felipe Julián,” both from Alosno, 
continue to be performed by singers today. Renowned 
singer Carmen Linares and local cantaor Plácido 
González, from Huelva, have both recorded the cante of 
María Conejilla.  Tina Pavón, a cantaora from Huelva, 
has also specialized in fandangos. Tina Pavón was a co-
founder of the Peña Flamenca Feminina de Huelva, 
which has become known for its performance and 
recordings of fandangos of a number of regional genres. 
María José Matos, one of the pioneers of a growing 
group of women flamenco guitarists, learned to play 
guitar at the Peña Flamenca Feminina and was the 
original accompanist for the performing group of the 
peña. Younger women singers today are carrying on this 
tradition. Singer Argentina, also from Huelva, has made 
a name for herself in recent years, as a featured singer at 
the Noche Blanca de Flamenco in Córdoba in 2013. 
Another younger singer, Rocio Marquéz, has received 
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much attention over the past few years for both her 
interpretations of fandangos de Huelva as well as her 
masterful command of the Cante de las Minas. This 
paper will present the work of these women singers 
within the context of the genre as a whole. Based on 
interview material, recordings and media sources, I will 
discuss the important participation of these women 
singers and guitarists in creating, maintaining and 
innovating the tradition. 
 
WALTER CLARK (University of California, 
Riverside), “The Malagueñas of Breva, 
Albéniz, and Lecuona:  From Regional 
Fandango to Global Pop Tune.”  
 
The “Malagueña” immortalized in renditions by Roy 
Clark, Liberace, and the Boston Pops was the creation of 
Cuban composer Ernesto Lecuona.  And yet, as even 
flamenco purist Donn E. Pohren conceded, Lecuona’s 
work conveys much of the essence of the folkloric 
malagueña, a regional variant of the fandango first 
popularized by Juan Breva in the late 1800s and 
immortalized in the classical canon by Isaac Albéniz.  It 
is clear that Lecuona was familiar with and influenced 
by Albéniz’s pianistic malagueñas, and his Suite 
Andalucía, in which the famous “Malagueña” appears, 
owes an obvious debt to Albéniz’s very similar 
collections of songs and dances.  This paper explores the 
history of the malagueña from Breva to Lecuona, then 
examines its impact in the realm of global popular 
culture, in which its basic musical ingredients form a 
sort of “museme” that has “gone viral” in representing 
Spain and Spanish culture. 
 
TONY DUMAS (SUNY Brockport), “Fandango 
and the Rhetoric of Resistance in Flamenco.”  
 
On June 25, 2014, three flamenco singers interrupted 
proceedings of the Spanish Parliament in Andalusia. 
Representing the guerrilla protest group Flo6x8, their 
goal was to draw attention to a ballooning two-thirds 
unemployment rate, oppressive austerity politics, 
governmental corruption, and a drastic rise in 
corporatocracy. Their vehicle of protest: the 
fandango. This paper examines the role of the fandango 
as a voice of resistance and protest within flamenco—a 
genre that has been historically stifled, surveilled, and 
censored since its inception. Several scholars consider 
flamenco’s political sentiment to be too “invisible,” 
subtle, or personal to qualify as protest music. Although 
this certainly characterizes much of flamenco’s 
repertoire, I respectfully contend that an ambivalence 
toward capitalism and sentiments of protest and dissent 
form the core of flamenco’s ethos. Working from R. 
Serge Denisoff’s model of protest music, I hope to show 


that flamenco does indeed encourage activism (magnetic 
protest) and that it identifies the marginalizing social 
conditions of Andalusia’s working-and-underclass 
(rhetorical protest). As such, I suggest that flamenco 
exemplifies a broader range of protest music; a protest 
music that demands attention and empathy and that can 
even transcend cultural borders. In the words of a 
Flo6x8 dancer, “flamenco captures perfectly how we feel 
about the crisis. You can use it to express desperation, 
rage, pain, and the desire to change things.” 
 
REYNALDO FERNÁNDEZ MANZANO (Centro de 
Documentación Musical de Andalucía, 
Asociación Española de Documentación 
Musical [AEDOM]), “The Trovo of Alpujarra: 
The Fandango as Improvised Sung Poetry.”  
 
The fandango has been a widely established popular 
music and dance throughout Latin America and Spain, 
and has been present in classical music from the 
eighteenth century onward. Its development has 
constituted one of the most distinguished branches and 
forms of flamenco, and has become an identifying sign 
of the Spanish world for Romantic tourists and later 
composers. The Trovo of Alpujarra constitutes one of the 
principal forms of the region of the provinces of Almería 
and Granada, linked to the verdiales of the hills of 
Málaga and other manifestations. With a poetic base of 
quintillas (five-line stanzas) and musical accompaniment 
of violin, guitar, and castanets, to which may be added 
the bandurria and the lute, a tournament upon a theme 
chosen by the audience, where one defends and another 
attacks, is improvised. 
 
RAFAEL FIGUEROA-HERNÁNDEZ (Centro de 
Estudios de la Cultura y la Comunicación de 
la Universidad Veracruzana), “Yo no soy 
marinero, soy capitán: Contemporary 
Sociopolitical Uses of Fandango and Son 
Jarocho.”  
 
The popular fiesta known as fandango, with roots in the 
intercommunication of Latin America and Spain during 
the three hundred years of the colonial period, has 
become, since the last quarter of the twentieth century, a 
very powerful tool for the creation of a transnational and 
transcultural social movement known as movimiento 
jaranero, that has transcended its natural region in 
southern México and gained followers in practically 
every major city in México, important Hispanic 
communities in the United States and modest, but 
significant, enclaves in Europe. Following the traditional 
musical and lyrical rules of son jarocho, an increasingly 
large group of people has been using the fandango as a 
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way to participate in social protest in various ways: a) by 
creating and/or maintaining identity among subaltern 
groups, b) by spreading social and political ideas 
through lyrics based on traditional forms and c) by 
directly participating on rallies and demonstrations, 
among others. 
 
NUBIA FLÓREZ FORERO (Universidad Del 
Atlántico [Colombia], Grupo de Investigación 
CEDINEP), “The Fandango as a Space of 
Resistance, Creation and Freedom.”  
 
This contribution aims to show how a cultural matrix of 
musical, danced, and festive elements was constructed 
all around the Fandango, a result of cultural exchange 
instigated by the encounters of the different cultures in 
America: natives, the cultures of enslaved Africans, and 
those of the Spanish and European conquerors. The 
Fandango as a matrix generates many musical and 
danced rhythms throughout the Americas. The dance 
forms, music, and the festivity usually share the same 
name in every region where they are present. In the 
particular case of the Colombian Caribbean, these round 
spaces of men and women that sing, dance and play 
percussion instruments (drums, preferably) are also 
called “Tamboras” (drums) or “Bailes cantados” (sung 
dances), among other names. In the USA we find the so-
called “Ring Shouts,” which are very similar to the 
Fandangos, Tamboras, and sung dances, although there 
is an absence of drums. My intent is to show how the 
following factors were involved in this cultural matrix: 
1) the discovery and conquest of America and the 
resulting cultural exchange; 2) slavery and intensive 
commerce of slaves brought from Africa to the American 
colonies; 3) the evangelization of the colonies that 
involved both native cultures and enslaved cultures. 
Finally, I want to posit the hypothesis that the Fandango 
as an expression of popular culture works as a 
laboratory for cultural exchange and that it emerges 
from cultural syncretism generated as resistance devices 
against religious domination. Thus, it is present during 
religious festivities of the colonizers. The cultural matrix 
of the Fandango is seen here as an anthropological space 
of freedom amidst the slavery and subjugation of the 
cultures that inhabited America. 
 
MATTEO GIUGGIOLI (Zurich University 
Institute of Musicology), “Luigi Boccherini’s 
‘afandangado’ Quintets: Sound, Form and 
Plot.”  
 
In a previous article I have shown in which way and 
how deeply the fandango, as topos, may affect the 
chamber music of Boccherini. Based on the analysis of 


the Quintet in C minor, Op. 10, n. 3 (G 267), that article 
doesn't suggest any definitive interpretation, but it 
presents an open ending, because of the need, in my 
opinion, of analyzing this phenomenon through a larger 
number of compositions by Boccherini in order to 
understand its wide range. In this paper I would like to 
start identifying traces of the fandango in a group of 
chamber works by Boccherini. My aims are essentially 
twofold. The first is to observe how the features of the 
fandango merge in the style of the composer, 
contributing to define an original sound experience in 
the context of European instrumental music of the 
second half of the 18th century. The second aim is to 
observe how the fandango affects the musical form and 
how Boccherini puts it into action with other topoi 
creating plots rich with cultural implications. 
 
THERESA GOLDBACH (University of California, 
Riverside), “Fandango in the Franco Era: the 
Politics of Classification.”  
 
The fandangos occupied a precarious position in the 
pantheon of flamenco rhythms during the Franco 
dictatorship. Flamenco was transitioning from the 
theatrical flamenco and ópera flamenca era, of which the 
fandangos and fandanguillos were seen as symbols for 
many purists. The era referred to as nacionalflamenquismo 
began as ópera flamenca ended and an authoritarian 
dictatorship brought its love of categories and 
classification. A renewed government tourism campaign 
searched for nationalist forms and local arts to sponsor. 
I will examine the trajectory of the fandango through the 
government sponsored “Festivales de España” 
campaign in the fifties and sixties. I will analyze how its 
roots as folk rhythm and flamenco palo provided a 
bridge between the franquista use of Andalusian imagery 
for tourist purposes and the orthodoxy of flamenco 
purists like Antonio Mairena. I will also consider the 
importance of fandango specialists like Paco Toronjo in 
assuring its survival as part of the flamenco canon. 
 
MARTHA GONZALEZ (Scripps College), “Sonic 
(Trans)Migration: Rhythmic Intention in 
Zapateado.”  
 
My talk will be informed by experiential methodologies 
shaped by my musical practices, both as (1) a Chicana 
vocalist, percussionist and composer in the Chicano rock 
band Quetzal, and (2) a participant in the transnational 
music movement Fandango sin Fronteras (Fandango 
Without Borders). My analysis is based on embodied 
knowledge generated through my shared musical 
practices in these communities rather than an objective 
formal analysis of musical notation. By interrogating 
the sonic aspect of movement, particularly the footwork 
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of zapateado Jarocho, I seek to reorient our minds in how 
we perceive both dance and music. In this sense I 
attempt to recount the many historical voices and 
dialogues that resonate in the striking of feet on wood. 
Conceiving dance as a sonic experience and or considering 
dance as an important sound source, I suggest that one 
can gain valuable insight and additional narratives 
within a culture’s historical hybrid trajectory. Ultimately 
I suggest that rhythms processed by the body are not 
just marking time in music and dance practice, but 
rather political acts rooted in resistance. 
 
JESSICA GOTTFRIED (Instituto Veracruzano de 
la Cultura / Universidad Veracruzana 
Intercultural), “The Fandango as Fiesta and 
the Fandango within the Fiesta: Tarima, 
Cante and Dance.”  
 
Working toward a definition of the fiesta and 
understanding the role of music, dance and performance 
in the different types of fiesta, the starting point for this 
paper is that the fiesta conserves, recreates and transmits 
intangible heritage. Of many musical, dance, poetic and 
festive traditions that are named fandango, this paper 
focuses on examples from 21st century traditional 
contexts in Mexico (Fandango Veracruzano, Fandango 
Istmeño), Spain (Fandangos de Huelva) and Brazil 
(Fandango Caiçara).  The Fandango Veracruzano and 
the Fandango Caiçara are fiestas that revolve around the 
tarima and the zapateado or tamanqueado dancing which 
integrate with the musical ensemble as part of the 
percussion. The spatial, social, and musical organization 
around and on the tarima structures the fiesta and the 
performance and interaction of dancers, musicians and 
public. The Fandango Istmeño, the Fandango Parao’ and 
the Fandango de Santa Eulalia take place during the 
fiesta: they are elements within its structure, they occur 
at specific moments, and they contribute to giving the 
fiesta character and identity. What role do these 
fandangos play in the spatial, social and musical 
organization? How do they contribute to determining 
the structure of the fiesta?  
 
GABRIELA GRANADOS (American Bolero 
Dance Company), “Fandango, A Dance with 
Castanets.” 
 
Castanets have always been a part of Spanish culture, 
whether in music or dance. When the Romans advanced 
into the Iberian Peninsula circa 215 BC, they brought 
back to Rome stories of seductive female dancers from 
Cádiz, the Puellae Gaditanae, who danced with honey on 
their hips and seashells in their hands. Just like the 
Seguidillas, the Fandango and the castanets have been 


inseparable partners for centuries. I will start by giving a 
brief history of the castanets. Secondly, I will 
demonstrate steps and castanet rhythms used in 
fandango dances. And finally I will dance José Molina’s 
choreography of “Fandango” from the zarzuela Doña 
Francisquita, by Amadeo Vives.  
 
MICHELLE HABELL-PALLÁN (University 
of Washington), and IRIS VIVEROS (Gender, 
Women, & Sexuality Studies, University of 
Washington), “Women Who Rock 
the Fandango: Lessons in Convivencia  and 
Polyrhythm.” 
 
The resurgence of fandango practices in Chican@ 
communities across the U.S. has reaffirmed forms of 
consciousness shaped by bailadoras and musicians that 
transform gender relations on and off "la 
tarima."  In particular, Seattle Fandango Project's 
practice of convivencia, what scholar & practitioner 
Martha Gonzalez describes as the co-creation of social 
space within the context of fandango, has supported 
the Women Who Rock Oral History Archive (hosted by 
the University of Washington’s Libraries Digital 
Initiatives Program), Film Festival, and 
annual Encuentro/unconference. Inspiring what we call 
archivista praxis, this presentation dialogues about the 
promise and tensions generated when scholarship, 
archive-building, graduate mentoring, media production 
and community engagement congeal 
around conviviencia practiced within fandango over the 
last 5 years. In dialogue with Gonzalez and 
bailadora Iris Viveros, we focus on Viveros's use of the 
term “polyrhythm,” that demonstrates how 
polyrhythmic participatory-based music practices like 
fandango embody sociopolitical realities and decolonial 
imaginaries that produce alternative modes of 
knowledge production, modes, which ultimately create 
a framework for supporting archivista praxis in Women 
Who Rock.  
 
NANCY G. HELLER (University of the Arts 
[Philadelphia, PA]), “Spanish and Hispanic 
American Depictions of Dancing in El velorio 
del angelito.”  
 
Some Spanish and Hispanic American paintings that 
appear to be celebratory genre scenes turn out, on closer 
inspection, to represent wakes. More specifically, they 
depict el velorio del angelito, a ritual in which a child’s 
corpse is dressed in white, adorned with a floral crown 
and paper wings, and surrounded by people who eat, 
drink, sing, and dance, often with wild abandon.  
Traditional belief held that the soul of such an innocent 
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would ascend directly to Heaven…unless its wings were 
weighted down by mourners’ tears; hence, the 
apparently festive tone of these sad gatherings.   
For centuries such velorios have been described in 
travelers’ accounts and ethnographic studies; they have 
also inspired novels, films, visual art and theatrical 
choreography. This paper will focus on the broader 
significance of several modern painted velorios that 
depict a seemingly incongruous combination of smiling 
guests engaged in various kinds of dancing, with tiny 
white coffins.  It will end with a film clip of a dance-
piece based on the velorio, performed to music that is 
clearly related—in its tonalities and harmonies--to the 
fandango. 
 
JOSÉ MIGUEL HERNÁNDEZ JARAMILLO 
(Ethnomusicology, Universidad Nacional 
Autónoma de México), “The Fandango in 
Nineteenth Century Flamenco: The Untold 
Story.” 
 
Contrary to what is commonly assumed, flamenco in the 
second half of the nineteenth century was significantly 
different from that of today. Much research about 
flamenco is predicated on a series of prejudices, myths 
and assumptions, sometimes self-interested, trying to 
explain the processes of flamenco in the nineteenth 
century within the parameters of today's flamenco. This 
fact has impeded the understanding of flamenco's true 
dimensions during this period. For example, today it is 
unanimously accepted that the fandango is one of the 
main musical expressions of flamenco, but, in the first 
golden age of flamenco, in the last quarter of the 
nineteenth century, we note a significant absence of 
fandango on the Spanish stage, while other musical 
expressions of flamenco were represented almost daily 
in cafes cantantes and theaters, both in Spain and in 
Europe and America. This paper will analyze the role 
that the fandango occupied in various levels of 
nineteenth-century Spanish society, from rural or 
suburban areas to performances at theatres and 
aristocratic parties, in order to reveal the processes that 
shaped the fandango within the world of nineteenth-
century flamenco. 
 
CLAUDIA JESCHKE (University of Salzburg; 
Director, Derra de Moroda Dance Archives at 
the University of Salzburg), “The Fandango 
in 19th Century Theory and on European 
Stages: Henri Justamant’s Les Conscrits 
Espagnols.”  
 
Dance theory discussed the Fandango as part of the 
Hispanomania in 19th century Europe; choreography 


displayed the use of this cultural hype on dance stages. 
‘Spanishness’ was considered to broaden the movement 
vocabulary used so far for theatrical dancing. 
Furthermore, it allowed the dancers to develop more 
expressive and personal performance modes. The ballet 
masters, thus (or as well), included a great number of 
Spanish dances into their works. Henri Justamant (1815 
– 1886), one of the most prolific choreographers of his 
time, left over 100 ‘livrets de mise en scène’, i.e., 
notations and descriptions of his many stage 
productions. These manuscripts present the 
documentation and dramaturgic usage of a great 
number of Spanish dances; a Fandango, notated in the 
ballet Les Conscrits Espagnols of 1850/51, will be the topic 
of a close reading in this lecture that intends to 
exemplify some concepts as well as practice-based 
programs of the Fandango in European (dance) culture.  
 
ALAN JONES (Independent Scholar), 
“Emergence and Transformations of the 
Fandango.”  
 
As it filtered into every level of Spanish society, the 
fandango underwent surprising changes not only in 
style and technique but also musical structure and even 
meter. The voluptuous, spontaneous and nearly 
unstructured dance described by Casanova and others 
was subjected to rules, ornamented with courtly steps 
and recast in the mold of the English country-dance and 
French contredanse. An unlikely hybrid of the fandango 
and minuet, the minué afandangado, briefly found favor, 
while the alternating copla/estribillo structure typical of 
the seguidillas durably marked the regional fandangos 
danced in Spanish villages even today. We end with a 
glimpse at the little-known fandango fever that seized 
the straight-laced town of Boston in the 1790s. Musical 
examples and a wide-ranging selection of texts are 
included. 
 
ADAM KENT (Brooklyn College), “Enrique 
Granados and Manuel de Falla: The 
Fandango through the Concert Hall to the 
Corral.”  
 
The Fandango has been an internationally recognized 
“trope” in European classical music since the early 
eighteenth century. Spanish-born and Hispanicized 
composers such as Domenico Scarlatti, Padre Antonio 
Soler, and Luigi Boccherini created a tradition of the 
fandango as a virtuoso keyboard or chamber music 
work, featuring increasingly frenzied variations over a 
simple harmonic formula, while Mozart famously 
alluded to the genre as a courtly dance in the third act of 
his Marriage of Figaro. Enrique Granados and Manuel de 
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Falla, Spanish nationalist composers of the early 
twentieth century, treated the Fandango to post-
romantic and impressionistic harmonic vocabulary and 
the outlines of sonata form. In “El Fandango del Candil” 
from his Goyescas suite for solo piano, Granados 
employs a full arsenal of late-nineteenth century piano 
techniques, much as Falla utilizes the resources of the 
Debussyian orchestra in the “Danza de la molinera” 
from the ballet El sombrero de tres picos. “Enrique 
Granados and Manuel de Falla: The Fandango through 
the Concert Hall to the Corral” examines the 
idiosyncratic ways these composers employ 
contemporary mainstream compositional approaches to 
evoke the earthy spirit of the dance’s folkloric origins. 
Live performances by pianist Adam Kent of both works 
will augment the presentation. 
 
KEYNOTE ADDRESS: ELISABETH LE GUIN 


(University of California at Los Angeles), 
“Tonadilla and Fandango: How a Genre and a 
Practice Intersect and Diverge.”  
 
There is considerable confusion about the supposed 
relationships of the Spanish tonadilla to the Hispano-
Caribbean fandango; and there is also considerable 
reason for it. It is my contention that the various things 
that have been called “tonadilla” in the history of 
hispanophone theater and song have never had a 
systematic, coherent, meaningful relationship at all to 
the even more various things that have been called 
“fandango.” At best, some mutual borrowings, fleeting, 
on the sly. 
 
The main problem with which I wish to engage here lies 
in those words “systematic, coherent, meaningful” as a 
historiographical problem concerning the possible 
relationships between genre and practice. There are 
worlds of distance here; they can be expressed in terms 
of social estate, in terms of urban and rural, peninsular 
and colonial and indigenous cultures, in terms of 
literacies. Whose system? Whose meaning? Genres 
reference and to some extent create a hegemonic world 
through which actions are disciplined and codified into 
texts, while practices can and do elude or exceed 
discipline, codification, and hegemony—and with them, 
any firm relationship to the idea of ‘history.’ 
 
My talk is a meditation on several questions. How can 
these worlds communicate? As a historical musicologist, 
I have learned that it can be fruitful, if tricky, to study 
genres like the 18th-century tonadilla for the para-
textual traces they contain of the practices that enacted 
them. It appears to be trickier still to go in the other 
direction, and study historical practices for the traces 
that the textual world may have left upon them. Diana 


Taylor’s work offers us some elegant suggestions here, 
but urgent questions still abound: Are we too eager to 
codify, to find coherence—in short, to make history—out 
of the sprawling transhistorical, transcontinental 
practice/genre complex that is summoned, kraken-like, 
by the word “fandango”? And, if historicization violates 
the nature of practices, what options remain to us as 
scholars sincerely wishing to understand them? 
 
MICHAEL MALKIEWICZ (Mozarteum University 
Salzburg), “Ceci n’est pas un fandango.”  
 
Based on the few documents that we have about the 
fandango as a social dance in the 18th century, we can 
infer that the fandango is an erotically stimulating, 
heterosexual couple dance. The music, normally played 
by a guitar, is often accompanied by castanets, which are 
played by the dancers themselves. As already outlined 
in my article about the dance scene in Le nozze di Figaro 
(Malkiewicz 2007), Mozart's fandango – represented as a 
male solo dance by Figaro, inviting another man (the 
Count) to dance with him – must be understood as an 
‘anti-fandango’, raising many questions about its 
specific meaning. At this conference, I would like to talk 
about the engraving La danse du Fandango (18th Century), 
which shows a dancing couple. The dance is free of any 
erotic elements, the dancers do not use castanets and, 
instead of a guitar player, they are accompanied by a 
male harpist, sitting on the left side of the engraving. 
Iconographic topoi teach us to ‘read’ the harpist as a 
‘representative of king David’. Both sources—Mozart’s 
Figaro and this engraving—show an untypical fandango 
and refer to a biblical subtext. The presentation of these 
two sources should evoke a stimulating discussion. 
 
PETER MANUEL (The Graduate Center, 
CUNY), MARÍA LUISA MARTÍNEZ (Universidad 
de Jaén),“The Fandango as a Family of 
Musical Forms in the Afro-Hispanic 
Atlantic.”  
 
Despite the considerable amount of astute scholarship 
on the fandango in its diverse transatlantic incarnations, 
the fandango complex remains an unruly, sprawling and 
enigmatic congeries of entities.  However, after 
eliminating cases in which the term ‘fandango’ denotes 
any festive event, one can attempt to impose a certain 
interpretative order on a broad constellation of 
Hispanic-Atlantic musical forms, linking and arranging 
them in terms of a set of formal features that can be 
retrospectively regarded as intrinsic to a certain core 
fandango family, distinguished by one or more copla 
sections, instrumental paseo/ritornello/variaciones 
sections based on a chordal ostinato, and other details. 
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Core constituents of this complex are 
Andalusian fandangos del sur and writtenfandangos de 
salon of the 18th and 19th centuries.  Close examination of 
19th-century notated versions of guitar-and-voice 
rondeñas/malagueñas--including one presumably from 
the 1840s recently discovered by Martínez, and brought 
to life by a recording produced by her colleagues--sheds 
new light on the dialectic relations between 
vernacular fandangos del sur and stylized 
contemporary fandangos de salon by classical performers. 
 
 
GABRIELA MENDOZA GARCÍA (Gabriela 
Mendoza-Garcia Ballet Folklorico), 
“Envisioning the Nation through Dance: The 
Teaching and Performance of the Jarabe 
Tapatío in 1920s and 1930s Mexico within the 
Educational System.”  
 
Early twentieth-century Mexican music scholar Gabriel 
Saldívar argues that the jarabes began with the influences 
of the Spanish zapateado dances, especially the Seguidilla 
and Fandango that were popular in the sixteenth century, 
as well as the Zambra. The colonists brought these 
zapateado dances with them to New Spain.  In his telling, 
dances such as the Fandango were transformed over time 
as a result of the influences of people who lived in 
Mexico. By 1921, one dance became so beloved that it 
was considered the national dance of Mexico—the Jarabe 
Tapatío.  My paper focuses on how Mexico’s early 
twentieth-century educational system promoted the 
teaching and performance of the Jarabe Tapatío in order 
to culturally unify the country. I argue that in early 
twentieth-century Mexico, the Jarabe Tapatío operated as 
a colonizing project that worked alongside educational 
policies designed to assimilate the indigenous and 
peasant communities while encouraging a nationalistic 
sentiment. 
 
JOHN MOORE (University of California, San 
Diego), “Cante Libre is not Free – Contrasting 
Approaches to Fandangos Personales.” 
 
Flamenco song forms are often divided into two 
categories: cante a compás and cante libre; respectively 
those with a steady rhythmic structure and those said to 
lack any regular rhythmic structure.  Most of the cante 
libre forms belong to the generalized fandangos family 
and derive ultimately from rhythmic folkloric song 
forms. Cante libre emerged in the late 19th and early 20th 
centuries, as professional singers expanded the flamenco 
repertoire by transforming these rhythmic forms into 
libre vocal showpieces, including fandangos personales, 
which are often associated with the 20th century ópera 


flamenca movement.  This talk will examine two 
contrasting approaches to rhythm in fandangos personales: 
those associated with Pepe Marchena and Manolo 
Caracol.  I propose a continuum of rhythmic expression 
– from a fairly clear structure to one that approaches 
true cante libre.  Interestingly, however, one finds 
vestiges of compás, even in the freest expression of cante 
libre. 
 
KIKO MORA (University of Alicante), 
“An Introduction to Popular Spanish Music 
in Nineteenth Century USA.”  
 
This paper aims to analyze, using newspapers, 
magazines, and scores released by North American 
publishing houses of the era as primary sources, the 
introduction of Spanish popular music in the USA 
during the nineteenth century, with special emphasis in 
the New York area. My paper has a historiographical 
character, which I consider fundamental with regards to 
the supply of hard facts for a later understanding of the 
particularities of Spanish music in its contact with North 
American culture. To this historiographical 
reconstruction follows a brief analysis of the first 
Spanish musics recorded by the National Phonograph 
Company, owned by T. A. Edison. 
 
PAUL D. NAISH (Guttman Community 
College, CUNY), “The Revels of a Young 
Republic: Revolutionary Possibilities of the 
Fandango in Timothy Flint’s 1826 Francis 
Berrian.”  
 
Timothy Flint’s 1826 Francis Berrian, the first novel 
written in the United States with a Latin American 
setting, features a young Massachusetts native who 
rescues a Conde’s daughter from a band of Comanches 
and participates in Mexico’s war for independence.  A 
fandango at the woman’s estate forms a pivotal set piece 
where “old and young, parents and children, masters 
and servants” mix in a giddy dance that anticipates a 
future happy union between Mexico and the United 
States. Yet the fastidious American recoils at this display 
of cross-class informality, and the titled Mexican woman 
chastises him for his snobbery. Perhaps inadvertently, 
Francis Berrian suggests that American ideas of equality 
might be better practiced on the dance floor of 
aristocratic Mexico than they are realized in the Republic 
of America. 
 
ERICA OCEGUEDA (Arizona State University), 
“Frozen Footwork: Folklórico Falters 
Following Fandangos Footsteps.”  
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On February 1st, 2014 I attended the second annual 
University Folklórico Summit, “Resurrecting the Roots, 
Empowering our Existence,”at California State 
University, Fullerton. The overarching goal of the 
conference was to support student leaders of Mexican 
folklórico groups from mostly California and the 
Southwest, through workshops and social events, as 
they worked to create efficient and sustainable 
university folklórico groups. One of the scheduled 
events was a fandango for Saturday afternoon.  The 
conference leaders asked the participants to improvise to 
fandango on top of tarimas. These folkloristas were used 
to choreographed steps and when asked to initiate 
movement they stood still and frozen.  How has the 
latest surge in fandango popularity affected Mexican 
folklorico groups in how they train and learn dances? 
How do fandango jams work to influence and 
complicate the legacy of Mexican folklórico performance 
left by the recognized grand dame of folklorico, Amalia 
Hernández?  How is fandango working to contemporize 
Mexican folklorico dance’s influence within its 
established university and high school structures? 
 
ÁLVARO OCHOA SERRANO (Centro de Estudios 
de las Tradiciones de El Colegio de 
Michoacán, “Personajes y tradiciones 
populares del Occidente de México”),  
 “Mitotl, Fandango and Mariache or Mariachi, 
a Space of Communal Fiesta.”  
 
The fandango, understood as a space of celebration in 
central western Mexico and on the Pacific coast, has 
antecedents in the Prehispanic mitotl (mitote, dance). It 
received its naturalization papers during the epoch of 
colonial New Spain, especially in the eighteenth century; 
at the same time it became a synonym of the mariache or 
mariachi in Mexican national life. In this sense, and in 
order to clearly explain, we will follow the central 
western route described above, and the coastal route 
given impetus by the attraction of the California Gold 
Rush following 1849.  
 
SONIA OLLA AND ISMAEL DE LA ROSA 


FERNÁNDEZ, FLAMENCO ARTISTS. 
 
Born and raised in Barcelona, Sonia Olla earned a degree 
in Spanish Dance and Flamenco at the “Instituto de 
Teatro y Danza of Barcelona.” Sonia has shared the stage 
with flamenco greats such as Rafael Amargo, Antonio 
Canales, Domingo Ortega, Aída Gómez, Eva la 
Yerbabuena, Rafaela Carrasco, María Pagés, La Farruca, 
Alejandro Granados and the famed Nuevo Ballet 
Español. In 2011, Sonia directed, choreographed, and 


danced the lead in “Entretiempo,” with flamenco singer 
Ismael de la Rosa Fernández at the renowned Teatro 
Lara of Madrid, and in 2014, “Tiempo Al Aire,” at Joe’s 
Pub and Lincoln Center Outdoors.  
 
Born in Seville, Spain, of Gypsy descent, Ismael de la 
Rosa Fernández grew up performing in flamenco 
festivals throughout the world with his internationally 
renowned family, “La Familia Fernández.” In 2004, 
Ismael won the National Contest of Cordoba, 
singing bulerías for famed dancer Soraya Clavijo, and 
that same year he was a finalist in the Festival de Cante 
de La Union. Ismael also regularly participates with his 
family in the celebrated Bienal de Flamenco de Sevilla. 
Ismael has worked with flamenco legends such as 
Antonio Canales, Farruquito, Marina Heredia, El 
Torombo, Leonor Moro, María Pages, and Sonia Olla. 
 
RAQUEL PARAÍSO (Independent Scholar), “Re-
contextualizing Traditions and the 
Construction of Social Identities through 
Music and Dance: A Fandango in Huetamo, 
Michoacán.” 
 
From the 1920s onwards, the post-revolutionary 
Mexican state supported intellectuals and artists in 
their quest to discover, describe, and catalog Mexican 
popular cultural expressions. Music, dance, and poetry 
were among such expressions that suffered from a 
process of selection and de-contextualization as the state 
aimed to create typical regional traditions to represent 
Mexico and Mexican identity, thus narrowing the 
country’s actual cultural diversity. Now, with a renewed 
interest in both the study and performance of these 
traditions, some are trying to bring them back to the 
social contexts in which they originated and were once 
performed, authenticating their popular nature in 
shared spaces. At popular fiestas—and in more formally 
organized events—Mexican sones have become the 
center of attention as practitioners, cultural promoters, 
and audiences are reclaiming the original context of 
their production and performance, embracing their 
music, dance, and poetry to reflect a way of 
understanding life. Thus, the fandango has become a 
statement of roots, identity, and ownership of one’s 
culture in various parts of Mexico. The revitalization of 
the son experience entails a connection with the past, 
which brings a powerful element into the practice. My 
paper deals with a fandango in Huetamo, Michoacán, as 
an example of re-contextualizing traditions and the 
construction of social identities through music and 
dance. 
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ALLAN DE PAULA OLIVEIRA (West Parana State 
University [UNIOESTE]), “Brazilian 
Fandango: traditionalism, identity and 
policies of cultural heritage.”  
 
This talk will present a framework of the Brazilian 
fandango as it is played today. Traditionally related to 
communities that live in coastal areas of two Brazilian 
states (São Paulo and Paraná), the fandango, as a 
complex that integrates dance and music, has a great 
importance to these communities as an element of 
traditional cultural practices. In this way, it is an 
important element to discuss locality and identity. 
Beside this, it has a central role in the internal social 
dynamics of these communities, operating as a leisure 
practice and, at the same time, regulating social 
relationships. The conference will also talk about the 
place of fandango in political debates about cultural 
heritage in Brazil for the last ten years. Public policies 
have been created in order to regulate its changes and its 
traditional role in the communities in which it is played. 
 
RICARDO PÉREZ MONTFORT (Centro de 
Investigaciones y Estudios Superiores en 
Antropología Social [CIESAS]), 
 “The Fandango as an Example of the 
Circulation of Culture between Mexico and 
the Caribbean.”  
 
This work explores the fandango as a representation of 
the fiesta and ritual of a mestizo tradition in nineteenth 
and twentieth century Mexico, the Antilles, the southern 
states of Central America, and the Atlantic Coasts of 
Colombia and Venezuela. Beginning in the second half 
of the nineteenth century and the early twentieth 
century, when the regional stereotypes of the “jarocho,” 
the “abajeño,” the “costeño,” and the Mexican 
“huasteco,” “jíbaro,” “guajiro,” “paisano,” and “llanero” 
took shape in the hinterlands of the insular Caribbean 
universe, with its coastal boundaries, this presentation 
begins with a descriptive and critical analysis of regional 
characteristics, with supposedly unique details specific 
to regional cultures. Often contradicting reality and 
more aptly considered a product of the assumptions and 
imaginings of those who describe the fandangos, I 
attempt to identify the elements that make up the fiesta 
and perhaps prove that we are seeing a circulation of 
cultural values that manifests in multiple vectors. At the 
same time, I will review the diverse iconographic 
representations that accompany the texts of these 
chronicles, with the goal of establishing how they 
generate a set of assumptions that will eventually serve 
as a resource for traditional and regional identity. In this 
way my presentation focuses on the growing distance 


between representation, lived experience, and the 
circulation of central elements imposed and revitalized 
in the territories and areas studied here. 
 
AURÈLIA PESSARRODONA (Università degli 
Studi di Bologna) and MARÍA JOSÉ RUIZ 


MAYORDOMO (Universidad Rey Juan Carlos, 
Compañía de Danza “Esquivel”), 
“Choreological Gestures in Iberian Music of 
the Second Half of the Eighteenth Century: A 
Proposal for a Historically Informed 
Interpretation of the Fandango.”  
 
Within the framework of this conference dedicated to 
the fandango, the team formed by choreologist María 
José Ruiz Mayordomo and musicologist Aurèlia 
Pessarrodona will present a study of the gestural 
language this genre, an aspect that has been almost 
completely omitted in the many studies of the fandango. 
Our proposal emerges from a cross-disciplinary 
methodology (music-dance and theory-practice) that 
analyzes the gesture of musical work gleaned from the 
“ideal” dancing body of the second half of the 
eighteenth century, establishing in this way a dialogue 
between the choreographic context of the composer, the 
bolero tradition and other eighteenth-century 
repertories. In this case our intention is to analyze the 
eighteenth-century phenomenon of the fandango with 
an appreciation of its variety (generic, functional, and 
even semantic), in order to later focus on a possible 
“paradigm” of the eighteenth-century instrumental 
fandango seen in now classic works by Nebra, Soler, 
Mozart, Gluck, and Boccherini. The principal novelty of 
our proposal lies in examining this repertory in light of 
the extant choreographic sources, transmitted only 
through oral tradition within the professional world of 
the bolero dance, and also in tracing the 
correspondences between the bolero tradition and its 
direct choreographic antecedents, such as the jácara. 
Thus, this proposal attempts to unite theorists and 
interpreters of the fandango phenomenon in a holistic 
manner, as in its era the components of the 
performance—composer, interpreter, and audience—
understood perfectly the gesture inherent in these 
danced airs because they had internalized and 
incorporated them by dancing them. Nonetheless, these 
corporeal codes, emerging from a specific cultural 
context, are usually absent in contemporary 
interpretations of eighteenth-century repertory. We 
wish, in other words, to recapture them, to restore and 
interpret these works from a choreographically and 
choreologically informed point of view. 
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WILFRIED RAUSSERT (Bielefeld University, 
Center for InterAmerican Studies), “‘When 
Fandango Hits the Border, When Music 
Comes to Town’: Mobilizing Music, 
Participatory Cultures, and Translocational 
Community-Building in the 21st century.”  
 
What I investigate more closely in this presentation 
could be summoned up as ‘sonic cosmopolitics’ from the 
people for the people. The term I use in this context is a 
redefinition of the classic term “cosmopolitanism” 
frequently associated with a Eurocentric view from high 
above or far away, associated with elitism and 
privileged travelers. What I argue is that sonic 
cosmopolitics offer us new alternative ways of revisiting 
cosmopolitanism at the crossroads of music and 
grassroots politics in the beginning of the 21st century. 
Music projects such as the transnational diaspora project 
Fandango Sin Fronteras and the Ginger Ninjas’ The 
Pleasant Revolution Tour are musical endeavors that are 
irreversibly connected with participatory cultures and 
recent movements of the people that pursue locally as 
well as translocally oriented grassroots politics to create 
a new civic society. 
 
LÉNICA REYES ZÚÑIGA (Universidad Nacional 
Autónoma de México), “Musical Relations 
between Spanish Malagueñas and Fandangos 
in the Nineteenth Century.”  
 
The fandango, as a musical expression, had a strong 
presence in the Iberoamerican musical scene in the 
eighteenth and early nineteenth centuries. Well into the 
nineteenth century, the fandango was replaced on the 
Spanish stage by other expressions that became crowd 
favorites.  One of these was the malagueña, a piece that, 
as had happened with the fandango decades earlier, 
gained an important place not only on stage but in other 
performative spaces. In the field of flamenco, the 
malagueña has been regarded as a derivative of 
fandango due to musical similarity, even though there’s 
little research to explain which musical features are 
similar. For this reason, besides the popularity of both 
musical expressions not only in Spain but also in other 
Latin American countries, I consider it important in this 
work to delve into this matter. In this paper the 
relationship between fandango and malagueña will be 
shown, detailing what musical features they share and 
which are specific to each one. Using the SAAP 
Software, musical paradigmatic analysis is applied to a 
large corpus of scores of nineteenth century Spanish 
malagueñas and fandangos. 
 


CRAIG RUSSELL (California Polytechnic State 
University), “The Fandango in Mozart’s The 
Marriage of Figaro: The Prism of Revolution 
in the Enlightenment.”    
 
From the Renaissance onward, Spanish culture had 
developed two highly differentiated strands of dance 
styles, which reflected completely different societal 
contexts—the baile reflected the peasant, commoner, and 
ruffian, whereas the danza depicted royalty, nobility, and 
high society. During the Enlightenment of the eighteenth 
century, however, several new genres arose that held 
that each person was inherently worthy, regardless of 
class, ethnicity, gender, or social status.  No dance better 
encapsulated this new egalitarian philosophy of the time 
than the fandango.  This new genre was a sort of “audible 
photograph” of “natural law”—a musical depiction of 
the “natural laws” articulated by Newton and Leibniz in 
physics and by Adam Smith, Jefferson, and Voltaire in 
government.  When Jefferson stated it was “self-evident 
… that all men are created equal,” the fandango 
proclaimed it on the dance floor. In crafting their first 
opera together, The Marriage of Figaro, librettist Lorenzo 
da Ponte and composer Wolfgang A. Mozart drew upon 
these dance genres and their cultural associations to 
perfectly reflect the conflicts between characters and 
class structures in their drama.  Based on the 
Beaumarchais play of the same name, the entire opera is 
a clash between servant and master, and to tell their tale, 
da Ponte and Mozart adeptly use the historical divisions 
between baile and danza. Using a rigorous examination of 
structural symmetries in Figaro, I will argue that one of 
the first things the creators did when sketching out their 
narrative was to place the fandango at center stage, using 
it at key moments to proclaim the triumph of intellect 
and of a transparently worthy servant over the artificial 
“worth” of an abusive count (an encapsulation of the 
Enlightenment’s essence).  Both Susanna and Figaro sing 
egalitarian messages, and it is significant that they both 
use the fandango at these key moments as their musical 
vehicle to convey their message.  
 
RAMÓN SOLER DÍAZ (Professor of 
Mathematics and Ethnomusicologist), “The 
Fandango in Málaga: From Dance Song to 
Heart-Shattering Song.”  
 
Málaga—both the capital and the province—occupies a 
place of singular importance in the birth of flamenco, a 
musical genre that began to develop in parts of 
Andalusia from earlier musical traditions in the mid-
nineteenth century. The fandango in this southern 
Spanish province manifests in a diversity of forms 
unknown in other regions. Its oldest variants are still 
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practiced—with great vitality—in the pandas de verdiales, 
groups with guitars, tambourines, cymbals, song, and 
dance. They originate in the agrarian regions of the 
Málaga countryside, growing out of the roots of pre-
Christian fertility rites. Around 1860 the music of these 
danceable fandangos slowed down and lost their 
orchestration, to become, with only guitar 
accompaniment, what are now called fandangos 
abandolaos, one of the first forms of flamenco song of 
which we have notice. At the end of the nineteenth 
century the fandangos definitively lost their basic 
rhythm and the personal fandangos were born, reaching 
the height of popularity until the end of the cafés 
cantantes (the music halls where flamenco was born), in 
the decade of the 1920s. Both the fandangos abandolaos 
and also malagueñas make up the customary repertory of 
cantaores—flamenco singers—of today. The 1920s saw 
the birth of the era of “Flamenco Opera”—an era in 
which many singers created numerous styles of 
fandangos, the earliest of which were elaborations of 
folkloric fandangos. In Málaga these fandangos, the 
fandangos personales, were widespread and popular. 
Today there lives in the city of Málaga the greatest living 
representative of fandangos personales, El Álvarez (b. 
Málaga, 1947), a singer of great expressivity who, 
despite never having worked professionally, has been 
admired by figures like Chano Lobato, Camarón, Luis el 
Zambo, and Duquende. In 2010 a full length 
documentary film directed by Vicente Pérez Herrero, 
titled Válgame Dios, qué alegría tiene esta gente qué fatigas 
tengo yo, was released by RTVE, a portrait of El Álvarez’s 
life and singing. 


 
 
 
 
ESTELA ZATANIA (Editor, deflamenco.com), 
and BROOK ZERN (Flamencoexperience.com), 
“The Physical Forms and Cloaked Politics of 
Flamenco Fandangos.”  
The focus of this academic gathering is "fandangos," a 
concept so vast, the word even transcends its standard 
usage within the world of music.  This presentation 
however, deals strictly with the here and now of the 
flamenco manifestations of fandangos. The reference to 
physical forms and cloaked politics, reflects not one 
combined topic, but two separate ones.  On the one 
hand, we'll look at the role of fandangos as a tacit 
symbol of non-gypsy culture, often unfairly perceived as 
a lesser or inferior branch of flamenco. Within Spain this 
has become a profoundly emotional topic, as flamenco 
followers feel compelled to choose sides in the great 
racial divide, which in turn has far-reaching 
sociopolitical underpinnings. The rest of the 
presentation will be a succinct description and 
demonstration of the music and verse-forms 
of flamenco fandangos, focusing in particular on how an 
extremely diverse rhythmic treatment makes for a wide 
emotional range, all the way from light folklore to 
extreme stylization and sophistication. 
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The Foundation for Iberian Music is a cultural and educational initiative that promotes and disseminates the classical 
and popular traditions of Iberian music, including those rooted in the Mediterranean, Latin American, and Caribbean 
cultures. 


The Foundation presents interdisciplinary programs that bridge the gap between academic and general interests, 
including: 


• Public events such as concerts, lectures, and exhibitions. 
• Scholarly activities including publications and conferences, as well as the development of a comprehensive 


archive of scores, books, and recordings. 
• Professional opportunities that foster exchange among students, scholars, performers, composers, musicologists, 


and music educators. Student employment, scholarships, dissertation grants, and fellowships will be available. 


Drawing together world-renowned musicians and scholars in the field, the Foundation for Iberian Music is the only 
endeavor of its kind entirely dedicated to the study, research, and performance of Iberian music. In addition to its general 
objectives, the Foundation aims at increasing knowledge of the reception and influence of Iberian music in the United 
States, and to further understanding of the links between folklore, contemporary popular genres, and classical music. It 
seeks insight into the multi-cultural, multi-linguistic constitution of the Iberian Peninsula, encompassing Christian, 
Islamic, and Jewish traditions. 


The Foundation for Iberian Music encourages donations from institutions and individuals through The Graduate Center 
Foundation, Inc. 


Honorary Member: 
Alicia de Larrocha (23 May 1923 – 25 September 2009) 


Advisory Board: 
Malena Kuss, University of North Texas 
Paul Laird, University of Kansas 
Peter Manuel, The City University of New York 
William Summers, Dartmouth College 


Director: 
Antoni Pizà 


Research Assistant: 
Katie Straker 


Contact Information: 
Antoni Pizà, Director 
Foundation for Iberian Music 
CUNY Graduate Center 
365 Fifth Avenue 
New York, NY 10016 


(212) 817-1819 (tel.) 
(212) 817-1569 (fax) 


iberianmusic@gc.cuny.edu 
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Since its founding in 1868 the primary objective of the Centro Español – Spanish Benevolent Society is to “promote, 
encourage and spread the spirit of fraternity and solidarity among Spanish and Hispanic-American residents of this 
country. In those early years, the Society served as an essential support system for Spaniards immigrating to the United 
States, acting as their de facto home away from home in New York. While the needs of their members have changed 
greatly since that time, the Spanish Benevolent Society still remains committed to assisting individuals who come from 
Spain to seek a new way of life in New York. It has served as a meeting ground for political dissidents and 
revolutionaries, avant-garde poets and artists – including the groundbreaking director Luis Buñuel and the modernist 
poet Federico Garcia Lorca, who wrote sections of his famous anthology “Poet in New York” during his stay at the 
Society. It is even said that Picasso stopped in for a taste of home. The Centro Español – Spanish Benevolent Society 
believes in a diverse, multi-cultural Spain. It supports the expression and promotion of all her languages and customs, 
and has long been a hub of flamenco activity in New York.  The Society holds several events each week that are topical 
and relevant expressions of our diverse culture, including hosting Alegrías en La Nacional.  
 
The Spanish Benevolent Society is an American not-for-profit, 501(c)(3) tax-exempt, charitable organization. The Society 
and building on 14th street are member-owned and receives our support from membership and corporate partnerships. 
 


Alegrías en La Nacional presents A Night in Andalucia, a traditional Flamenco show called tablao. Alegrías presents the 
best local and international artists every Saturday, offering the experience of an authentic flamenco night out. Alegrías 
serves tapas, paella, sangria, wine, beer, etc.,  You can eat and drink while you enjoy the show. There are two shows per 
night scheduled at 8:30 and 10:45. Each show is one hour long. Open seating at 7:30PM. Cover price is $22, conference 
participants, students, and senior citizens get $5 off the cover price. For reservations please call (929) 312-9604 or send an 
email to info@alegrias.com. 
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 Le Fandango nypl.digitalcollections.2880f6e0-f8...
​​

 Broadhurst Man from Mexico fandango 1322u loc 1...
​​

 De espanol e india. produce mesizo Pintura d...
​
-- 

“Anyone can dance the fandango—from peasants to kings…it is the manifestation—in dance form—of the
equality of the human spirit.” 
 ~ Craig Russell

https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBTE1RREVsTGlySEE/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBTE1RREVsTGlySEE/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBUWduYzFvU0NMTkk/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBUWduYzFvU0NMTkk/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBelVpNHBLZjRZb2c/view?usp=drive_web
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B1IC2hUguKTBelVpNHBLZjRZb2c/view?usp=drive_web


From: Jose Maria Curbelo
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Gracias!
Date: Friday, March 11, 2016 11:50:40 PM

Hola Antoni,

Nuevamente muchas gracias por la invitación y la excelente organización del simposio. Nos
vamos con una gran experiencia y haber conocido a gente tan fabulosa. Como te comentamos,
no pudimos ir al concierto porque ya teníamos las entradas para el del Carnegie Hall y no te
encontramos para despedirnos. Nos dio pena y seguro que el concierto habrá sido otro éxito.

Otra cosa que no pudimos tratar por falta de tiempo es ver la opción de colaboración entre la
Fundación y el Conservatorio Superior de Música de Canarias. Traje conmigo algo de
información pero estaba fuera de lugar ocuparte con eso el miércoles o el jueves. Lo
podríamos hablar próximamente cuando tú me digas a través de Skype o teléfono porque es
algo que nos podría interesar y mucho.

Mil gracias y un fuerte abrazo de mi parte y Ariadna

-- 
José María Curbelo

Concert pianist and piano teacher

http://www.josemariacurbelo.com[josemariacurbelo.com]

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.josemariacurbelo.com&d=CwMFaQ&c=8v77JlHZOYsReeOxyYXDU39VUUzHxyfBUh7fw_ZfBDA&r=i2JlyT74L0Aqx3aayKTAAP6Ut-iS0Gvr0Md1unLUgFA&m=jeH6WvUxo3Vw9XTk-eNWu3g4QPezuLBGEcR_WxCZrZ8&s=RXoZzjfDoadVfvzLcGoPRjH65UUPdPKNtucaSLdbyls&e=


From: Ana Blanco
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Gracias
Date: Tuesday, September 27, 2016 4:07:39 PM

Querido Antoni:

Solo quería darte las gracias una vez más por tu generoso recibimiento. Como comentamos, hoy en día el tiempo es
lo más preciado.

Ha sido un placer conocerte. Quedo a tu entera disposición para cualquier cosa en la que pueda serte de ayuda.

Un cordial saludo,

Ana Blanco

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Oscar Peñas
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Gràcies!!
Date: Thursday, May 05, 2016 11:19:35 AM

Benvolgut Antoni,

Gràcies per dedicar-me aquesta estona aquest dimarts.
Et mantindré informat de com evoluciona tot plegat.

Espero que vagi bé el teu viatge a Mallorca i que, com tu vas dir, no torni a passar tant de temps fins que ens tornem
a veure.

Una abraçada,
Oscar

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: melcion mateu
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Gràcies
Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 10:07:30 AM

Toni,

Gràcies a tu i en Troi per tot aquests dies. Vaig arribar ahir cap a les 16h a  Curitiba perquè
tenia moltes hores d'enllaç a São Paulo.

Ara al Brasil es whatsapp no funciona uns dies per ordre judicial...

Una aferrada pes coll i records,

Sion

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Martelle, Jacqueline
To: Martelle, Jacqueline
Subject: Graduate Center ID Validation Stickers now
Date: Wednesday, August 17, 2016 11:56:57 AM
Attachments: D498394C-CD99-4D59-B0EC-2FC3A1D54132.png

Dear All,

Fall 2016 Graduate Center ID validation stickers are now available and can be obtained from 
either Tonisha Alexander or me. 
Looking forward to the start of the new semester!
See you soon.
All the best,
Jackie

Dr. Jacqueline Martelle
Academic Program Coordinator/Assistant Program Officer
PhD/DMA Programs in Music
CUNY Graduate Center, Suite 3105
365 Fifth Avenue  New York, NY 10016
phone: 212.817.8603  fax: 212.817.1529
email:  amartelle@gc.cuny.edu  

This communication (including any attachments) is intended solely for the recipient(s) named above 
and may contain information that is confidential, privileged or legally protected. Any unauthorized 
use or dissemination of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
communication in error, please immediately notify the sender by return email message and delete all 
copies of the original communication. Thank you for your cooperation.
 

mailto:amartelle@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:amartelle@gc.cuny.edu
file:////c/amartelle@gc.cuny.edu
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From: GC Library Scanner Email
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Graduate Center Library BookScans
Date: Wednesday, November 23, 2016 3:03:37 PM

mailto:libraryscanneremail@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Douglas Riva
To: Pablo Álvarez (pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es); Piza, Antoni
Subject: Granados 2017 en Nueva York
Date: Monday, September 26, 2016 8:34:18 AM

Estimado Pablo,

Sé que Antoni te ha informado de concierto de clausura del homenaje a Granados en Nueva
York.  Sería un placer reunirnos para ampliar la información que Antoni te ha escrito sobre el
gran concierto el próximo 9 de febrero en Nueva York. 

Estoy en Madrid  hasta el próximo 6 de octubre. Si tienes tiempo para una reunión breve estoy
a tu disposición. 

En espera de tus noticias. 

Fijo  91 539 44 02
Móvil 605 1290 26

Muy cordialmente,

Douglas

Douglas Riva
jdriva@gmail.com

c/San Simón, 5
1º C
28012 Madrid

mailto:pablo.eulate@accioncultural.es
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:jdriva@gmail.com


From: Smith, Michele
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Granados and the guitar
Date: Friday, April 08, 2016 5:25:24 PM

Hi Antoni,
 

I saw this concert was being given on May 4th

Just thought I’d send you the info
 
http://www.nyhistory.org/programs/manuel-barrueco-evening-celebrating-granados-and-falla
 
have a nice weekend – chilly but pretty!
michele

mailto:Msmith2@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
http://www.nyhistory.org/programs/manuel-barrueco-evening-celebrating-granados-and-falla


From: Kathryn Straker
To: Communications and Marketing - Digital Signs; asweeney@gc.cuny.edu; ccc@cunydsc.org; Scott, Charles
Cc: Piza, Antoni
Subject: granados concert sign
Date: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 3:01:48 PM
Attachments: concert vertical.pptx

Please display in the following locations:
 
Main lobby
Elebash lobby
Proshansky lobby
Dining commons
DSC
Skylight Room
James Art Gallery
 

 
Thanks,
--
Katie Straker, Assistant
Foundation for Iberian Music
The Graduate Center, CUNY
365 Fifth Ave, New York, NY 10016
(212) 817-1819
 
 
 

mailto:digital_signs@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:asweeney@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:ccc@cunydsc.org
mailto:CScott@gc.cuny.edu
mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
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From Barcelona with Passion:
Orchestral Works by Enrique Granados

Perspectives Ensemble

with Douglas Riva, piano
and Anna de la Paz, dance

Featuring the WORLD PREMIERE of
Romanza sin palabras: Homage to Granados
by Benet Casablancas

Thursday, March 10, 2016
7 pm
Elebash Recital Hall

Free Admission
brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu














From: Kathryn Straker
To: Communications and Marketing - Digital Signs
Cc: Piza, Antoni
Subject: granados concert sign B
Date: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 3:01:39 PM
Attachments: concert horizontal.pptx

Please display this sign on each floor’s elevator bank. 

(Thanks to an Outlook error, you were supposed to receive this over a week ago, and I've just
discovered today that it never sent. So please post it today if you can, so at least we'll get a day out
of the sign. Thanks!)
 

 
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

WORLD PREMIERE . Thursday, March 10, 2016
Romanza sin palabras: | 7 pm
Homage to Granados : Elebash Recital Hall

by Benet Casablancas I Free Admission

brookcenter.gc.cuny.edu














From: Anna de la Paz
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Granados conference
Date: Friday, March 11, 2016 11:11:20 AM

Antoni,

Ayer fue un día excepcional, y me encuentro tan agradecida por la oportunidad de aprender
tanto sobre Granados, y de compartir mis propios pensamientos.  Gracias por todo tu trabajo! 
Todo salió muy, pero muy, bien!
Gracias!

Anna

Anna de la Paz

www.annadelapaz.com

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu


From: Angel Gil-Ordóñez
To: Miguel Marin; Isabel Aranda
Cc: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Granados en el Festival de Flamenco 2016
Date: Tuesday, January 12, 2016 12:45:28 PM

Queridos Miguel e Isabel.
Estamos muy contentos con la inclusión de nuestro programa de Granados en vuestra edición
de este año. Acabo de verlo en vuestra página web.

Nada más un par de ruegos:
-No aparece la fecha de 10 de Marzo en la descripción del programa
-Por favor incluid esta frase al final:
"Support for this program was provided by Acción Cultural Española (A/CE) and the Embassy
of Spain in Washington, DC."

Podrías enviarnos el catálogo general del festival en formato pdf para distribuirlo también
electrónicamente?

Un abrazo con nuestro agradecimiento
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
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From: Walter Clark
To: jdriva@gmail.com; Piza, Antoni
Subject: Granados proceedings
Date: Tuesday, August 30, 2016 8:52:20 PM

Hi, Doug and Antoni:  Well, it's been a while since our wonderful Granados conference in NYC, and I
thought I should follow up on the idea of publishing some of the presentations in our refereed online
journal, Diagonal:  An Ibero-American Music Review. 

So far, I've only gotten one submission, an article on pedaling from Oliver Curbelo.  Did we ever make a
general announcement about sending me an article for publication?  I mean, Oliver must've heard
something.  Do you think we/I should send out a reminder?  If there are no takers, that's fine.  We have
plenty of other stuff to publish.  But people should know of the opportunity, and of course we want to
disseminate the wonderful research that people presented.

Anyway, your guidance would be most welcome.  Hope all is well.  Yours, Walter
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From: Liz Norman
To: Piza, Antoni
Cc: Douglas Riva
Subject: Granados questions for you too!
Date: Wednesday, September 21, 2016 10:56:27 AM

Hi Antoni,

Thanks for all of your help and suggestions.  

We've managed to launch our season ticket sales so I now have time to think about our concert
and event, and dig into the repertoire.

I'm hoping you could quickly add your opinion about what differentiates the music on this
program - mostly Catalan, mostly 1910s/20s - from other music?  

I'm curious from your musician perspective because as I listened to our CD yesterday, the
choral sound was pretty consistent with our other recordings. In other words, not especially
differentiated as romantic / modern / Catalan in contrast to renaissance / Italian or French or
German.  Of course we will always want clarity of intonation and blended sound.

So I'm thinking about marketing / outreach / planning the event.  What makes this music
special? To you? (besides of course the great story of the Song of the Stars manuscript, which
is fascinating)

Please just reply spontaneously - I'm not planning to quote from your email.  I'm just trying to
build my own understanding.

Thanks so much!
Liz

-- 
Liz Norman
Executive Director

Voices of Ascension
12 West 11th Street
New York, NY 10011
212-358-1469
www.voicesofascension.org[voicesofascension.org]
Tax ID 13-3668472

Voices of Ascension 2016-2017 A Choral Journey
Subscriptions on sale now - Single tickets September 15!

Greenwich Village: Candlelight Christmas 12/20 and 12/21/16
Austria: Mozart and Haydn 1/19/17
Spain: Granados, de Falla and Modernisme 2/9/17
Germany: Bach St. John Passion 3/30/17
Italy: Sistine Chapel / Palestrina, Victoria and Allegri 5/3/17
www.voicesofascension.org[voicesofascension.org]
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From: Douglas Riva
To: Piza, Antoni
Subject: Granados y cosas
Date: Monday, June 13, 2016 3:00:09 PM

Hola Antoni,

Espero que el viaje ha ido perfectamente.  ¿Podrías hablar un día esta semana?  Tenemos
varias cosas pendientes y otras nuevas.

¿Cuándo va a estar Katie?  Tenemos que cambiar unas cosas en el web.  Lo que a escribir en
inglés en un mensaje aparte.

Reilly Lewis, el Director de la Catherdral Choral Society de Washington, murió estos días de
una forma totalmente sorprendente, un infarto le llevó de golpe.  Llevaba años hablando de
presentar Cant de les estrelles, previsto para la primavera de 2017.  Una gran pena, un músico
de alta calidad y muy buena persona. 

Un abrazo,

Douglas

mailto:apiza@gc.cuny.edu
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